Public Document Pack

IGDON
A

LONDON

VIR TUAL North To Councillors on the Committee

Plan ni ng Com mittee Councillor Henry Higgins (Chairman)

Councillor John Morgan (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Jas Dhot
Date: WEDNESDAY, 17 Councillor Becky Haggar
FEBRUARY 2021 Councillor Allan Kauffman
Councillor Carol Melvin BSc (Hons)
Councillor John Oswell (Opposition Lead)

Location: VIRTUAL MEETING Councillor Jagjit Singh
Councillor David Yarrow

Time: 6.00 PM

Watch Live Watch a live broadcast of this
meeting on the Council’'s YouTube
channel: Hillingdon London

Important Following UK Government advice
Meeting to avoid all but essential travel and
to practice social distancing, the

Advice: usual physical public speaking
rights at Planning Committee will be
suspended temporarily during the
coronavirus pandemic. Instead,
written representations will be
considered as part of Hillingdon’s
established Petitions Scheme.
Published: Tuesday, 9 February 2021
Contact: Liz Pennny
Tel: 01895 250636
Email: epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk
Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services PUttlng our residents first

London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase I, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW


https://www.youtube.com/user/HillingdonLondon

Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1
2
3

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting dated 28

January 2021

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | 16 Murray Road, Northwood | Two storey rear extension and 9-20
Northwood — enlargement of habitable roofspace to
include 2 rear dormers, 3 side 228-235
4626/APP/2020/3048 rooflights, central roof lantern and
alterations to elevations
Recommendation: Refusal
7 | 4 Woodside Road, Northwood | Erection of a garden shed to rear 21-36
Northwood - Hills
Recommendation: Approval 236-239

73105/APP/2020/3521




8 | The Six Bells Public West Proposed barn extension to provide 37 — 88
House, Ducks Hill Ruislip an extended dining area at ground
Road, Ruislip - floor and 8 no. guest rooms at first 240-253
floor, adding a guest house use to the
14387/APP/2020/4126 existing public house/restaurant to
create a mixed use (Sui Generis), with
associated works and landscaping.
Recommendation: Approval
Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
9 | The Six Bells Public West Proposed barn extension to provide 89 - 106
House, Ducks Hill Ruislip an extended dining area at ground
Road, Ruislip - floor and 8 no. guest rooms at first 254-267
floor (Application for Listed Building
14387/APP/2020/4128 Consent)
Recommendation: Approval
10| 188 Bury Street, Eastcote & | Demolition of existing bungalow and 107-130
Ruislip - East erection of 4 x 4 bed dwelling houses
8697/APP/2020/3622 RUISllp with associated parking spaces and 268-274
external works
Recommendation: Approval
11| Pylon Farm, New Year | Harefield Demolition of existing outbuildings 131-154
Green Lane, Harefield and construction of single
- replacement outbuilding 275-294
12579/APP/2020/2742
Recommendation: Approval
12| Mount Vernon Northwood | Construction of 1.5m wide gravel 155-176
Hospital, footpath around lawn perimeter and
Rickmansworth Road, through the centre of the woodland 295-299

Northwood —

3807/APP/2020/4265

belt to south of lawn, to include two
access ramps with handrails.

Recommendation: Approval




13| The Olde Northwood Northwood | Conversion of public house to 177-194
PH, 142 Pinner Road, residential use to provide 4 self-
Northwood — contained flats including habitable 300-311
roofspace and roof terrace,
demolition of existing garages and
rear element and the erection of 2 x
two storey, dwellings with habitable
roofspace including parking and
amenity space and external works

73773/APP/2020/3002

Recommendation: Approval

PART Il - Members Only

That the reports in Part 2 of this agenda be declared not for publication because they involve the
disclosure of information in accordance with Section 100(A) and Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) to the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that they contain exempt information and that the public interest in
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.

14 ENFORCEMENT REPORT 195-204
15 ENFORCEMENT REPORT 205-214
16 ENFORCEMENT REPORT 215-226

PART | - Plans for North Planning Committee — pages 227-312




Agenda Iltem 3

Minutes o,

TILLINGDON

LONDON

NORTH Planning Committee

28 January 2021

Meeting held at VIRTUAL - Live on the Council's YouTube channel: Hillingdon London

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Henry Higgins (Chairman), John Morgan (Vice-Chairman), Jas Dhot,
Becky Haggar, Allan Kauffman, Carol Melvin, John Oswell (Opposition Lead),
Jagjit Singh and David Yarrow

LBH Officers Present:

Glen Egan (Office Managing Partner - Legal Services), Liz Penny (Democratic
Services Officer), James Rodger (Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration),
Alan Tilly (Transport Planning and Development Manager) and James Wells (Planning
Team Leader)

113.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

There were no apologies for absence.

114.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda ltem 2)

None.

115.

TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS DATED 9
DECEMBER 2020 AND 14 JANUARY 2021 (Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meetings dated 9 December 2020 and 14
January 2021 be agreed as an accurate record.

116.

MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)

None.

117.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that the items of business marked Part 1 (items 1-11) would be
considered in public and the items of business marked Part 2 (items 12-14) would be
considered in private.

118.

25 DENE ROAD, NORTHWOOD - 46479/APP/2020/3055 (Agenda Item 6)

Page 1




Replacement of existing buildings with a 2.5 storey building comprising 5 x 3-
bed and 3 x 2-bed self-contained flats, parking, landscaping works and widening
of vehicular crossover to front.

Officers introduced the report advising Members that the application was
recommended for approval. The proposal was deemed to be well-designed, well-
prepared and of high quality. It was considered that the development would not be
detrimental to the amenity of local residents and would not be harmful to the Area of
Special Local Character (ASLC). The Committee was informed that Highways officers,
Conservation officers and Tree & Landscape officers had raised no objections to the
scheme. Thorough reports had been submitted in relation to the basement, daylight
and sunlight, water, trees and flood management.

A written submission was read to the Committee on behalf of petitioners objecting to
the application. Key points included:

The proposed development was a threat to the local area;

Approval of such a development would set a precedent for future developments;

The proposal would not be in keeping with the character of the ASLC;

The intensification of the site to create a new build of 8 flats, in a bulky building

constructed very close to both side boundaries, would fail to harmonise with the

other properties which were mainly detached single family houses;

e The proximity to neighbouring properties would be detrimental to immediate
neighbours and the local environment;

e The increase in the number of vehicles would create further parking stress and
present a safety risk;

e The proposed building would adversely impact the outlook and daylight of
properties in Foxdell and Firs Walk and would infringe on the rights of residents
by directly overlooking them;

e The 10% flat redevelopment principle should not apply in an ASLC,;

e Arelated proposal at 5 & 6 Firs Walk sought to significantly increase the density
of that site; the two proposals represented gross over-development;

e The strain on existing services, particularly water supply and drainage, would
negatively impact on existing properties;

e Petitioners had not been adequately consulted during the application process.

A written submission was read to the Committee on behalf of the agent for the
application. Key points included:

e The proposal was policy compliant;

e Gavacan Homes had worked closely with planning officers for over a year to
establish an acceptable scheme;

e A Heritage specialist who was also a former Historic England Inspector and
trained architect had been commissioned to assist in addressing concerns
raised by the Conservation Officer in relation to the previous design and its
relationship with the neighbouring locally listed building and the ASLC;

¢ A high-quality development was now proposed which respected the historic
setting, introduced a new building sympathetic to the original and to the Dene
Road frontage and created a landscape regime that added to the area’s
verdancy;

e Planning officers were in support of the new design and the Conservation Officer
had commended it;

e The proposed development delivered a number of benefits including better use

Page 2




of the site by providing a net increase of 7 units, a mix of housing including
family sized accommodation and units which exceeded minimum space
standards;

e The proposal would not result in more than 10% of properties in Dene Road
being redeveloped into flats;

e The building would be no further forward than the existing and the roof line
would be the same height;

¢ The site had capacity to accommodate the proposal — parking and amenity
provision complied with local standards and all units would receive plentiful
daylight and sunlight;

e The building footprint sat well within the 45-degree lines of the neighbouring
properties to protect them from overshadowing and loss of privacy;

e 13 parking spaces were proposed, including Blue Badge and Electric Vehicle
provision and the increase in traffic would be minimal;

¢ A Construction Management Plan would be approved prior to the
commencement of works at the site.

With reference to the nearby conversion to a flatted development referred to by the
petitioner, Members enquired how many additional flats were proposed at that site. The
Head of Planning was unable to confirm definitively but indications suggested there
would be 5 flats.

The Committee welcomed the inclusion of 3-bed family homes at the application site.
Members enquired how the current proposal differed to previous proposals which had
been rejected. It was confirmed that the current proposed development was smaller
and further from the boundary with neighbouring properties. The proposal complied
with policy in all respects.

In response to questions from the Committee, it was confirmed that obscure glazed
screens to balconies would be incorporated to ensure there was no overlooking.
Members heard that the majority of the proposed quality control conditions had yet to
be discharged. In respect of drainage, Councillors were reassured that a
comprehensive report on this matter had been received.

Members enquired whether flatted developments were allowed in an Area of Special
Local Character. It was confirmed that these were not prohibited provided they
enhanced the area and the design was of high quality. The Committee heard that the
proposal would not exceed the 10% policy in respect of flatted developments.

In response to further questions from the Committee, it was confirmed that the Flood
and Water Management Officer had requested a detailed report and had been satisfied
with the proposal.

Members supported the officer's recommendation to approve the scheme which was
high quality and policy-compliant. The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded
and, when put to a vote, unanimously approved.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved.

119.

33 GATEHILL ROAD, NORTHWOOD - 22910/APP/2020/2870 (Agenda Item 7)

Part two storey, part single storey front/side/rear extension to existing chalet,
and conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include retention of 1 x existing
front dormer and 1 x existing side dormer, plus 1 x proposed rear dormer and 1 x

Page 3




proposed rear rooflight.

Officers introduced the application noting that the proposed extensions were large and
would constitute a substantial change. Members were informed that the Conservation
Officer had concluded that the development would erode the quality of the original
property and was therefore unacceptable. It was felt that the proposal would have a
detrimental impact on the original house, the street scene and the Area of Special
Local Character.

A written submission had been received from petitioners in objection to the application
and was read out to the Committee. Key points included:

e Overbearing Street Scene — the property was set at an elevated position and
had a narrower frontage than other properties. It was set further forward than
the other properties. If the application were approved, the original building
would be lost and the new building would be overbearing on the street scene;

¢ New Build Not Subordinate — the proposed development would double the
footprint, add double storey extensions to the front, extend the property on both
sides, add a 3-storey block at the rear and incorporate a colossal new roof
structure with several crown roofs;

¢ Hijack of Non-Owned Land — the site had been incorrectly redlined as land
owned by Gatehill Estate Northwood Limited had been incorrectly included
within the redline;

e Privacy concerns — the privacy of no.31 Gateshill Road would be compromised
as only windows in non-habitable rooms would be conditioned to be obscure
glazed. Residents of Ravenswood Park would be dependent on the applicant
not felling boundary trees and shrubs.

Members were in agreement with the officer's recommendation commenting that the
proposed development was excessive and unacceptable. The officer’s
recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

120.

28B KINGSEND, RUISLIP - 73975/APP/2020/3392 (Agenda Item 8)

Addition of a first floor to provide 2 x 3-bed self-contained flats with associated
parking and amenity space.

Officers introduced the report and highlighted the information in the addendum which
included comments from the Ruislip Village Conservation Area Panel and a proposed
fourth reason for refusal. Members heard that the proposed development would alter
the character of the existing building and would not enhance the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area. The development would be over-dominant, impact negatively on
the amenity of 28a Kingsend and on the street scene and would fail to safeguard a
protected tree. The 10% rule in terms of flatted developments would also be breached
as detailed in the addendum.

Petitioners had submitted a written representation in objection to the application which
was read out for the consideration of the Committee. Key points included:

e The original bungalow at 28B Kingsend had been a modest single storey
bungalow. It had been progressively extended on all sides over the years
resulting in a large irregularly shaped footprint;

Page 4




The property had recently been divided into two bungalows -28B and 28C. The
proposal would add another storey with a much higher roof structure;

The additional storey would dominate the outlook for many surrounding
properties;

The site was predominantly landlocked;

The site was located over 45m from Kingsend accessible via a single track
gated driveway. This single car track with no dedicated footpath was intended
for 1 or 2 cars, not to access a block of flats;

Residents adjacent to the property would feel hemmed in;

Properties at 21, 23, 23A Ickenham Road were already curtailed by the
presence of the Methodist Church with its excessively high roof, the church hall
and outbuildings;

The proposed development would be located just a few feet from rear garden
fences with overlooking to gardens and patios;

Access to the site for emergency vehicles and refuse collection would be
problematic — there were no bin stores or cycle storage at present;

Petitioners objected to the proposal due to the unsuitable location, bulk and
close proximity to boundaries of many adjoining properties. The development
would be visually intrusive, overbearing and detrimental to the character and
appearance of the area. It did not respect design guidelines in terms of form,
volume, elevation treatments, outlook and vehicular access. Its bulky
appearance would fail to harmonise with the character of the Ruislip Village
Conservation area.

A written submission had been received from the agent and was read to the
Committee. Key points included:

The application site lay between Kingsend Road and Ickenham Road. Ickenham
Road properties were over 45m away, Kingsend properties 35m away and
Sovereign Close properties over 30m away from the property;

The application site was not easily visible from Kingsend road and was
dominated by a large modern flatted development. It could only be seen through
a narrow gap between No.28 and 30 Kingsend Road. Even with the addition of
two flats on the first floor, the property would be overshadowed by the large
Methodist Church building;

The property was barely visible from Ickenham Road — a pocket-sized view of
the property could be seen through the gap between the Church and 21
Ickenham Road. Even with the addition of two flats, the property would be in line
with a series of large two storey buildings and would be inconspicuous
compared to the sprawling building block of the Church;

There was a pocket-sized view of the property from Sovereign Close. However,
Sovereign Close was a small cul-de-sac with no passing pedestrians. The
application site was a back-land development surrounded by large mature trees
which provided a natural screen;

The development would not adversely impact the character of Ruislip Village.
Changes to proposed windows had been made to include a reduction by half in
the size of the lounge and bedroom windows, removal of three small windows,
replacement of bathroom windows and the 3 bedroom with skylights and the
removal of the kitchen side window;

The protected tree was approximately 8m from the property. The applicants
were willing to obtain a tree report from an expert to confirm that the proposed
development would not harm the cedar tree;

The development would be similar in size and character to nearby properties

Page 5




and would not be incongruous. The site was barely visible from the road
therefore could not be detrimental to the character and visual amenity of Ruislip
Village. The proposed windows had been changed to ensure that the
development did not impact negatively on the privacy of surrounding properties.

A written submission in objection to the proposal had been received from Ward
Councillor Philip Corthorne. This was read out to the Committee. Key points included:

e Ward Councillor Corthorne supported the officer's recommendation for refusal
commenting that the proposal would result in overdevelopment within the
Conservation Area and would not harmonise with the local area. It would also
result in an unacceptable loss of residential amenity;

e Some inaccuracies in the officer’s report were highlighted — the percentage of
flatted development in Kingsend already exceeded the 10% that the Planning
Inspectorate previously deemed an appropriate upper limit. This had been
acknowledged in previous appeals — the correct figure was 13% whereas the
report stated 8%. The report also failed to reference the objections of the Ruislip
Conservation Panel.

Members concurred with the officer's recommendation for refusal citing considerable
concerns regarding overdevelopment and overlooking. The Committee noted that there
were four good reasons for refusal set out in the report and the addendum.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

121.

ST JOHNS SCHOOL, POTTER STREET HILL, NORTHWOOD - 10795/ADV/2020/64
(Agenda Item 9)

Installation of 1 x wall mounted LED Logo sign.
Members noted that this was a small change therefore an officer’s presentation was
not deemed necessary. No objections or concerns were raised and the Committee was

in agreement with the officer's recommendation to approve the application.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved.

122.

KINGDOM HALL OF JEHOVAH'S WITNESSES, OAKDALE AVENUE,
NORTHWOOD - 11385/APP/2020/2982 (Agenda Item 10)

Conversion of part of the ground floor of an existing place of worship to form 2 x
studio flats and alterations to fenestration.

Officers presented the report noting that the studios would only be in use on an ad hoc
basis by visiting dignitaries of the Church. It was explained that the studios would be
occupied by ministers connected to the charity who would only use the studios for part
of each week. No alterations in terms of scale were proposed and the application met
policy standards; however, it was noted that there was no exterior private amenity
space. A legal agreement was proposed to restrict the use of the studios to visiting

Page 6




ministers only.

Members noted that the application site was in Northwood Hills rather than in
Northwood as stated in the report. The Committee requested clarification regarding
soundproofing between studio 2 and the motor repair shop. It was confirmed that
Condition 5 necessitated the submission of sound insulation information prior to
commencement of development work.

In response to Members’ requests for clarification, it was explained that paragraph 4 on
page 70 of the agenda pack was advising Members of a potential reason for refusal; it
did not mean that the applicant had failed to agree. A legal agreement was required to
ensure that the studios were used on an ad hoc basis only and were not for general
residential use.

Members were in agreement with the officer’'s recommendation and raised no further
concerns. The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a
vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved.

123.

SECTION 106 QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT (Agenda Item 11)

RESOLVED: That the Section 106 Quarterly Monitoring Report be noted.

124.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda ltem 12)
RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, was
agreed; and,

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in the report, into the public domain, solely for the purposes of it
issuing the formal beach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is declared as exempt from publication as it involves the disclosure of
information in accordance with Section 100(A) and paragraphs 1, 2 and 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12 (A) to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that the report
contains information relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and information relating to any action taken or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of

crime and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing it.

125.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 13)
RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, was
agreed; and,

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in the report, into the public domain, solely for the purposes of it

Page 7




issuing the formal beach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is declared as exempt from publication as it involves the disclosure of
information in accordance with Section 100(A) and paragraphs 1, 2 and 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12 (A) to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that the report
contains information relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and information relating to any action taken or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of

crime and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing it.

126.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda ltem 14)
RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, was
agreed; and,

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in the report, into the public domain, solely for the purposes of it
issuing the formal beach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is declared as exempt from publication as it involves the disclosure of
information in accordance with Section 100(A) and paragraphs 1, 2 and 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12 (A) to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that the report
contains information relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and information relating to any action taken or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of

crime and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public
interest in disclosing it.

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.40 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Liz Penny on Telephone 01895 250636 or email
(recommended): epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk. Circulation of these minutes is to
Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube

Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 8




Agenda Iltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 16 MURRAY ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Two storey rear extension and enlargement of habitable roofspace to include
2 rear dormers, 3 side rooflights, central roof lantern and alterations to
elevations

LBH Ref Nos: 4626/APP/2020/3048

Drawing Nos: P102
P201
P301
P101
P103 A
P202 A

Date Plans Received:  25/09/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 24/09/2020
Date Application Valid: 01/10/2020

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The site is occupied by a detached two and a half storey building which is currently in
residential use, with planning history showing that part of the ground floor had been used
as a veterinary clinic in the past and, more recently, as a space for providing catering
tutorials.

The original building was L-shaped with a hipped end lateral roof and a gable ended roof
running perpendicular to this. The elevation walls are predominantly finished in red brick.
There are prominent ground and first floor level bay windows on the building frontage,
which is set well back from the street with a hard surfaced parking area provided to the
front. A sizeable two-storey flat roof extension, which includes bay windows, has been
added to the rear as well as a modestly sized single-storey lean-to style extension. It
appears that these extensions were made prior to 1948, when the Town & Country
Planning Act first came into effect. The rear amenity space includes a hard surfaced
terrace area adjacent to the building, with the majority of the space being a lawn. Site
boundaries are marked by mature landscaping.

The site is located on a residential road that is characterised by large, detached two and
three - storey buildings that are set well back from the road, on deep plots. The level of set
back is uniform and creates a strong building line. The presence of mature landscaping
both within plots and in the form of street trees softens the visual impact of built forms and
generates a verdant character and appearance to the street. Gaps to the side of buildings
are minimal and as a result, views to the rear of buildings are limited. Extensions to the
rear of buildings, both single and two-storey, are a relatively common feature whilst side
and front elevations are largely unmodified.

The majority of buildings on the road are single dwellings or contain flats although there is a
Doctor's Surgery and a Synagogue nearby. At the end of the road, to the north of the site, is

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



Northwood Town Centre and Primary Shopping Area. Northwood Underground Station is
sited within the Town Centre, approximately 200 metres walking distance from the site.

The application site lies within the Northwood Town Centre Conservation Area as identified
in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012). The site is
also covered by TPO483.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning consent for the replacement of the existing rear addition
with a two storey rear extension and the enlargement of the habitable roofspace to include
2 rear dormer windows, 3 side rooflights, a central roof lantern and additional side
windows.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
4626/APP/2018/1772 16 Murray Road Northwood

Part two storey, part single storey rear extension, extension to roofspace and change of use from
Use Class C3 (Dwellings) to Use Class D1 (Non Residential Institutions - Nursery)

Decision Date: 26-10-2018 Withdrawn Appeal:
4626/APP/2019/629 16 Murray Road Northwood

Two storey rear extension with habitable roofspace to allow for conversion of ground and first floor
from part Use Class C3 (Dwellings) and part Class D1 to Class D1 (Non-Residential Institutions -
Nursery) and addition of rear dormer to allow for conversion of second floor into 2 x 1-bed self-
contained flats.

Decision Date: 28-05-2020 Refused Appeal:
4626/PRC/2018/51 16 Murray Road Northwood

Part single, part two-storey rear extension and Change of Use from part use class C3, part D1 to
a nursery (Use Class D1)

Decision Date: 13-06-2018 OBJ Appeal:
4626/PRC/2020/84 16 Murray Road Northwood
Proposed extensions and conversion of existing dwelling into 5 self-contained flats
Decision Date: 30-06-2020 OBJ Appeal:

Comment on Planning History

A previous submission for the extension and change of use of the property was refused on
7 grounds. These included the size, scale and design of the extension; the impact on the
neighbouring occupiers; the loss of residential floorspace; unsatisfactory indoor living area;
lack of amenity space; inadequate parking provision and failure to demonstrate the
proposal would not result in unacceptable noise and disturbance to surrounding residents.

2, Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 16th December 2020

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



3. Comments on Public Consultations

15 neighbours and the Northwood Residents Association were consulted for a period of 21
days expiring on the 26 October 2020. There were 7 responses raising the following
issues:

- There is no planning statement yet the application has been made valid

- The plans do not note that the windows to the side are to be obscure glazed and non-
opening

- Loss of light

- Overshadowing of the garden and patio area of the neighbouring property

- Loss or damage to trees

- Loss of privacy

- Visual amenity and loss of view

- Potential use for multiple occupancy

- Noise and building disruption

- Unusually large number of bedrooms for a single residence

- Loss of the rear bay features will detract from the attractive outlook

- This appears even larger than the previously refused scheme

- Completely out of scale with the original dwelling and do not respect its original design

- Removal of the mature hedging is not desirable

- Out of keeping with the Conservation Area

- Detrimental to the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers

- Overdominance

- Loss of outlook

- No applicant named

- Proposal would compromise a 45 degree line of sight from the neighbouring lounge
window

- The overall outlines of the neighbouring property do not accurately reflect the various
levels

- Overdevelopment

- Incongruous addition

- The revised block plan does not show the massing of the neighbouring buildings thus
offering a less than accurate picture of the variety and intricate scale of this properties

- Does not comply with a 45 degree line of sight as the roof compromises the line

- Ground floor still too intrusive on no. 18

- There should be no access over the flat roof if approved

A Ward Councillor has also commented. They state that the proposal is for a very large
double storey extension to this already large house that is currently in total keeping with the
neighbouring properties in terms of size and scale. Such a large house given its location
would only be appropriate for use as a HMO. Given that it is next to a 55+ retirement home,
this would seem to be a totally inappropriate and detrimental development within a
conservation area.

A petition against the proposal with 24 signatures was also submitted.

Officer response: Within planning there is no right to a view. Also we can only assess the
proposal as submitted. Any future use as a House in Multiple Occupation for more than 6
individuals would require planning consent in its own right. Noise and disruption due to
construction works is considered transitory in nature and insufficient reason to refuse an
application in its own right. There is no legal requirement for the applicant to be named if
they have given authority to the agent to act on their behalf.

Trees/Landscaping Officer - The site lies within the Northwood Conservation Area, a

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



designation which protects trees. Furthermore the site lies within the area covered by TPO
483 with T3 a birch and T4 an ash present on the side (south) boundary of the back
garden. This submission follows the refusal of application ref. 2019/629. No topographical
survey or supporting tree report has been submitted, although the presence of trees in the
back garden is indicated on plan. The previous application included an arboricultural
assessment, which has identified and assessed 11 trees which are on, or close to, the
site. There is one 'A' grade copper beech tree, T11, which is off-site and one 'B' grade
street tree, a lime, T3 on the survey schedule. All other trees are rated 'C'. According to this
report it is likely that no trees of merit will be affected by this proposal, however, an updated
tree report will be required which provides a tree constraints plan, arboricultural impact
assessment and full tree protection measures together with an arboricultural method
statement. Landscape conditions will also be required to protect and enhance the
character and appearance of the landscape within the Consevation Area.

RECOMMENDATION No objection subject to pre-commencement conditions for tree
protection measures and landscaping..

Conservation and Design Officer - The existing property is an attractive double fronted late
Victorian house which forms part of a set of three properties designed and built at the
same time. This group of three were amongst the earliest houses built long Murray Road
after the arrival of the railway in 1887. The road is predominantly characterised by
residential dwellings set on spacious verdant plots. Whilst some change has occurred over
time, the street scene is still strongly defined by its residential characteristics and early
20th century buildings.

The group of the properties are characterised by their double fronted asymmetrical
elevations which includes a double height bay window with two projecting gable features at
roof level. The varied size and detailing to the gables provide some sense of hierarchy to
the overall composition of the building. The larger gable ends are finished in a pebble dash
render with mock Tudor timber detailing and notable finials at the apex. Below the first floor
bay window there are attractive panel details within the brickwork. The entrance is
highlighted by a classical detailed surround with a simple pediment above. Whilst this has
been in filled at a later date the originally recessed door ahs been retained. The group of
properties are externally finished in a red brick. The original hipped roof form is finished in
profiled clay tiles with a ridge detail contributing to the pleasant appearance of the property.
Originally the windows were likely single glazed timber sash however these have been
replaced with modern alternatives. Tot he rear the property has rear additional however
they appear to be similar to rear additions at nos. 18 and 20 following a consistent historic
precedent. Nos. 16, 18 and 20 are little altered to the front and their homogenous
appearance collectively, positively contributes to the significance of the conservation area
and the character and appearance of the street scene, as duly recognised within the
conservation area appraisal.

The proposed development would be detrimentally harmful to the character and
appearance of the conservation area and existing building. The submitted information lacks
a heritage statement, which should be submitted in line with para. 189 of the NPPF. An
assessment of the surrounding environment must be considered prior to the development
of proposals in order to understand the best design approach and potential impact it will
have.

Front Elevation
The proposal would result in the loss of original features, notably the finials to the front and

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



ridge tiles at roof level, such features would need to be retained. The loss of such features
would diminish the original design and quality of the building, individually and as part of a
group. The front elevation would need to be left untouched so that its group value with nos.
18 and 20 and their collective positive contribution to the conservation area is appropriately
preserved.

Rear extension

The proposed rear additions would be disproportionately large in relation to the original
house, which would be more than double the original footprint and scale of the building. The
proposal would extend across the full width of the original property resulting in the loss of
the rear elevation in its entirety and original features. The original plan form of the building
would be lost including the phased extension of the property in the past, which forms part
of its history and character. Instead it would be replaced with an elongated plan form
resulting in the unsympathetic, large roof form. The bulk of the large rear extension would
be visible in the gap between nos. 16 and 18. The gap between nos. 16 and 18 is open with
attractive views to the trees behind. , The excessively long rear extension for the full height
of the development will be visible on this side and will impact negatively on the conservation
area. The proposal would fail to remain subservient to the original property, it would
disregard the property's original built form and characteristic qualities.

It is important to remember that an area which is designated for its special architectural
and historic character is not based on just views form the road. The heritage asset may be
experienced from private and public spaces therefore the desire to preserve or enhance its
character and appearance is just as relevant in relation to rear elements.

Roof

To entirely remodel the original roof form and create a dummy pitched roof form would be
considered in principle unacceptable. The unsympathetic roof form with a large central
area of flat roof is an uncharacteristic roof form within the CA. It contributes to the
excessive bulk and over dominant scale of the development harming the character and
appearance of the original property. The additions and alterations to the roof would fail to
remain subservient or in keeping with the scale, design, character and style of the original
buildings and notable group value.

Murray Road has a strong residential character which forms part of its interest within the
conservation area. Individual houses, set on spacious plots define how the road was
developed and forms part of its historic interest. There would significant concerns thet the
large, excessive extension would warrant the conversion into a flatted development in the
near future, as had been proposed at pre-application. It is wholly disappointing that the
opportunity to enhance the appearance of the front garden has not been included in this
proposal.

The development would be disproportionately out of scale. It would lack anu form of
subservience to the original building. The sheer bulk of the development would be further
exacerbated by the dummy pitched roof form with no relief to the long flank elevations. The
original design of the building particularly to the rear would be completely lost.

As proposed the development would result in significant harm to the conservation area
which can be defined as less than substantial. | am not convinced that such harm would be
outweighed by the limited (if any) public benefits from the proposal. In any instance para.
196 of the NPPF would need to be applied. The development would have a negative impact
on the conservation area and the existing contribution the group of buildings no. 16 forms a

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



part of.

Officer response: Revised plans were submitted reducing in part the scale of the rear
extension.

The Conservation Officer has further advised: The minor amendment comprising of a part
reduction to the proposed rear addition would not fully address previous comments. Whilst
the part reduction to the proposed rear addition is welcomed, the development would still
fail to remain subservient to the original property. As proposed, it would amount to less than
substantial harm to the conservation area.

4, Local Plan Designation and London Plan

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 4 Conservation Areas

DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

NPPF- 12 NPPF-12 2018 - Achieving well-designed places
NPPF- 16 NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main issues for consideration in determining this application relate to the effect of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the original dwelling, the impact on the visual
amenities of the surrounding area, the impact on residential amenity of the neighbouring
dwellings and provision of acceptable residential amenity for the application property.

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policy BE1 seeks a quality of design in all
new development that enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form, scale and
materials; is appropriate to the identity and context of the townscape; and would improve
the quality of the public realm and respect local character.

Policy DMHB 11 of the of the Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020) advises that all development will be required to be designed to the highest

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



standards and incorporate principles of good design. It should take into account aspects
including the scale of the development considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent
structures; building plot sizes and established street patterns; building lines and
streetscape rhythm and landscaping. It should also not adversary impact on the amenity,
daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

DMHB 4 also advises new development within or on the fringes of conservation areas will
be expected to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the area. It should
sustain and enhance its significance and make a positive contribution to the local character
and distinctiveness.

Policy DMHD 1 requires that alterations and extension of dwellings would not have an
adverse cumulative impact on the character and appearance of the street scene, and
should appear subordinate to the main dwelling. It also required that there is no
unacceptable loss of outlook to neighbouring occupiers. It advises that two storey rear
extensions should not contravene a 45 degree line of sight from the neighbouring windows
and full width two storey rear extensions are not considered acceptable in designated
areas.

The original L shaped property has previously been extended to the rear, including a 4.25m
deep single storey extension and a 5.5m deep two storey flat roofed extension. The
proposal would incorporate these and extend to the rear, giving a two storey rear extension
of between 2.3m and 9.85m in depth (against the original property depth of 8.6m and 5.7m
respectively). This is set beneath a gabled roof and a hipped roof with a flat valley roof
between. At ground floor there is a further flat roofed ground floor extension of 4.6m in
depth and 3.35m in height, which in fills the area to the side of the two storey extension.

This is a substantial addition to the original property. The Conservation Officer has raised
strong objections to the proposal. They have advised that the proposed rear additions
would be disproportionately large in relation to the original house, which would more than
double the original footprint and scale of the building. The proposal would extend across the
full width of the original property resulting in the loss of the rear elevation in its entirety and
original features. The original plan form of the building would be lost including the phased
extension of the property in the past, which forms part of its history and character. The bulk
of the large rear extension would be visible in the gap between nos. 16 and 18, which is
currently open with attractive views to the trees behind. As proposed, the extensions would
amount to less than substantial harm to the conservation area.

The excessive depth and bulk of the proposal would to fail to appear as a subordinate
addition to the original dwelling and would be out of keeping with the architectural character
and appearance of the wider street scene and conservation area. As such the proposal
fails to comply with policies DMHB 4, DMHB 11 and DMHD 1 of the Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020).

The proposed rear extension would project approximately 2.15m beyond the rear of
Copperbeach Court (to the north) set back by approximately 2m. To the other side the site
plan shows that the proposed extension at ground floor would project approximately 1.15m
beyond the rear of no. 18 also set back by 2m. At first floor the living room window of 18a is
set back on the original recessed rear elevation of that property. The proposed 2 storey
extension would project approximately 5.25m beyond the rear of that window, set back by
approximately 4m. Although it is noted that the proposal would not compromise a 45
degree line of sight from the window (except the eaves of the roof) given the extent of the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



extension and that the window is already recessed on one side by the original projection of
the dwelling, this would result in an overbearing impact on the occupiers of that property.
As such the proposal fails to comply with policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 1 of the Local Plan:
Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020).

The principle windows would face front and rear and the side windows would serve non
habitable rooms and could be conditioned to be obscure glazed and non opening below
1.8m if all other aspects of the proposal were acceptable. As such the proposal would not
significantly increase any overlooking and loss of privacy.

Whilst most of the resultant rooms would maintain an adequate outlook and source of
natural light, it is noted that bedroom 6 set within the proposed roofspace would be served
solely by two high level rooflights. Whilst these would provide sufficient light, they would fail
to provide any outlook for the occupiers of this room. Therefore the proposal fails to provide
a satisfactory living environment for the future occupants of property in accordance with
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2016.

Policy DMHD 1 (appendix A, Part A) vi), states that for alterations and extensions to
residential dwellings; adequate garden space should be retained. The property benefits
from a large rear garden and sufficient garden space would be retained.

There is no impact on parking provision as a result of this proposal.

6. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed rear extension by reason of its size, scale, bulk and design, would be an
intrusive addition to the property which would fail to harmonise with the existing character
of the original dwelling, the group of three properties of which it forms a part and the wider
street scene. The proposal therefore fails to either preserve or enhance the character or
appearance of the Northwood Town Conservation Area and would be contrary to Policies
BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
and Policies DMHB 4, DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHD 1 of Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020).

2 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed two storey rear extension by virtue of its depth, height and proximity, would
be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining occupiers at no. 18 by reason of
overdominance, loss of outlook and loss of light. Therefore the proposal would be contrary
to Policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 1 Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020).

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal would provide an indoor living area of an unsatisfactory quality for the future
occupiers and would therefore give rise to a substandard form of living accommodation to
the detriment of the amenity of future occupiers. Therefore the proposal would be contrary
to Policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 1 Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) and to Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



INFORMATIVES

1

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan
Policies (2016). Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1
- Strategic Policies on 8 November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 on
16 January 2020.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our
statutory policies from the Local Plan Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary
Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well
as offering a full pre-application advice service.

Standard Informatives

1

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 4 Conservation Areas

DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

NPPF- 12 NPPF-12 2018 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF- 16 NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic
environment

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



Contact Officer: Liz Arnold Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



Copperbeach

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary OF HILLINGDON

o omifcat | 16 MURRAY ROAD Residents Services

or identification purposes only. Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with NORTHWOOD Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . T . .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 4626/APP/2020/3048 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey North Page 19 | February 2021 THILL L P ON




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 4 WOODSIDE ROAD NORTHWOOD MIDDLESEX
Development: Erection of a garden shed to rear

LBH Ref Nos: 73105/APP/2020/3521

Drawing Nos: 1251-BR-101C - annotated with Revision D
1251-BR-101B
HOUSEHOLDER SUBMISSION LETTER - 28-10-2020

Date Plans Received:  29/10/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 29/10/2020
Date Application Valid: 10/11/2020

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a recently constructed two storey three bedroom dwelling
house on a previous area of open land situated on the eastern side of Woodside Road
which was formerly an area of garden attached to No. 2 Woodside Road.

The street scene is predominantly residential in character and is largely characterised by
detached properties located within substantial plots. The application site lies within the
Gatehill Farm Estate Area of Special Local Character and is covered by TPO 99 however
there are no protected trees within the curtilage of the site. It also lies within a critical
drainage area.

1.2 Proposed Scheme
The current application seeks planning permission for the erection of a garden shed.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Planning History

70377/APP/2016/4221 - Two storey, 3-bed dwelling with habitable roofspace, parking and
amenity space and installation of vehicular crossover to front. - Refused 22/2/17 - Allowed
on appeal dated 28/7/19 subject to the following conditions as stated by the planning
Inspector: -

"The first condition relates to the standard time period for implementation. The second
condition specifies the plans to which the permission relates and is necessary for clarity
and certainty. The condition relating to materials is necessary to protect the character and
appearance of the ASLC.

The conditions relating to obscured glazing and openings are necessary to ensure the
protection of the privacy of adjacent occupiers. The conditions removing permitted
development rights for further development are necessary in order to protect the character
and appearance of the ASLC. The use of such conditions is exceptional in accordance with
the Planning Practice Guidance, but necessary in this case given the importance of the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



ASLC.

The condition relating to ground levels is necessary given the slope of the site and its
relationship to adjoining properties.

The conditions relating to the protection of trees and hedges and the provision and
retention of landscaping are necessary to protect the character and appearance of the
ASLC."

These conditions were as follows: -

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years from the date of this
decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans: 1251/P/1, 1251/P/2, 1251/P/3, 1251/P/4 and 1251/P/5.

3) No development shall commence until details of the materials to be used in the
construction of the external surfaces of the extension hereby permitted have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

4) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification), no windows, doors or other openings, other than those expressly
authorised by this permission shall be constructed on the elevation or roof slopes on the
elevations facing No 2 and No 6 Woodside Road.

5) The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the windows facing No 2 and
No 6 Woodside Road have been fitted with obscured glazing, and no part of those windows
that is less than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which it is installed shall be
capable of being opened. Details of the type of obscured glazing shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority before the window is installed and once
installed the obscured glazing shall be retained thereafter.

6) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification), no garages, sheds or other outbuildings shall be erected other
than those expressly authorised by this permission.

7) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification), no extension to the building or roof shall be erected other than
those expressly authorised by this permission.

8) No development shall take place until full details of the finished levels, above ordnance
datum, of the ground floor of the proposed building, in relation to existing ground levels have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved levels.

9) No retained tree or hedge shall be cut down, uprooted, destroyed, pruned, cut or

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



damaged in any manner from the date of the occupation of the building for its permitted
use, other than in accordance with the approved plans, without the prior written approval of
the local planning authority.

Appeal Decision APP/R5510/W/17/3171932. In this condition "retained tree or hedge"
means an existing tree or hedge which is to be retained in accordance with the approved
plans and particulars.

10) If any retained tree or hedge is cut down, uprooted or destroyed or dies another tree or
hedge shall be planted at the same place and that tree or hedge shall be of such size and
species and shall be planted, at such time as may be specified in writing by the local
planning authority.

In this condition "retained tree or hedge" means an existing tree which is to be retained in
accordance with the approved plans and particulars.

11) No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning authority with respect to:

i A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures

i Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained.

12) All the trees and hedges shown on the approved plans as "to be retained" shall be
protected by strong fencing, the location and type to be previously approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The fencing shall be erected in accordance with the approved
details before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought onto the site for the
purposes of the development, and shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and
surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed
within any fenced area, and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor
shall any excavation be made, without the prior written consent of the local planning
authority.

In this condition "retained tree or hedge" means an existing tree or hedge which is to be
retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars.

13) No development shall commence until details of both hard and soft landscape works
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. These
details shall include:

i) planting plans at a scale of not less than 1:100

ii) boundary treatments and means of enclosure

iii) vehicle parking layouts;

iv) hard surfacing materials;

v) proposed and existing functional services above and below ground
vi) an implementation programme,

The landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before
any part of the development is first occupied in accordance with the agreed implementation

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



programme. The completed scheme shall be maintained in accordance with an approved
scheme of maintenance

70377/APP/2019/2476 - Variation of condition 2 (Approved Plans) and 5 (Side Windows) of
Secretary of State's Appeal Decision ref: APP/R5510/W/17/3171932 dated 28/07/2017
(LBH ref: 70377/APP/2016/4221 dated 22/07/2017) Two storey, 3-bed detached dwelling ,
use of habitable roof space, ancillary works and provision of new vehicle access from
Woodside Road.- Approved 20/3/2020.

The above conditions attached to the original permission (70377/APP/2016/4221), with the
exception of Nos 2 and 5, were again attached to the grant of permission for application
reference No.70377/APP/2019/2476.

ENF/437/20 - complaint received online in regard to the unauthorised felling of TPO trees
dated 20/7/2020 - under investigation

2, Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

3 neighbouring properties and the local residents associations were consulted by letter
dated 11/11/2020 the consultation period expired on 2/12/2020.

One written representation has been received objecting to the application commenting as
follows: -

The application is retrospective for a garden shed but much more is referred to on the
plans. In fact, the previous application calls the same site 'Land Between 2 & 6 Woodside
Road', and by the same Architect. The reason, we suggest, is that the shed is in
contravention of the conditions imposed by the previous planning consent, as is the
removal of a tree. The application reference is: 70377/APP/2019/2476 We consider the
application should be refused as it is clearly in contravention of the earlier conditions
against this work, as was the removal of the tree.

Re-consultation was carried out on 18/1/2021 and this consultation period expired on
9/2/2021

One written response has been received on 23/1/2021 commenting as follows:-

There is an amended plan submitted, although still dated 1st January 2016. There is no
written explanation, and still no explanation why the application has been made given it is in
contravention of earlier planning conditions against the erection of any outbuildings. The
earlier objection submitted stands for that reason, and the continued request for the other
conditions to continue to apply including the replacement of the tree cut down tree also in
contravention of the existing planning condition.

A petition has been received with 20 signatories objecting to the proposal as follows: -

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



Retrospective planning application which seeks ratification of the destruction of a mature,
protected tree and its replacement with a plastic shed, contrary to 3 conditions which the
Planning Inspector imposed on application 70377/APP/2016/4221 appeal dated 28/7/2019

The Gatehill (Northwood) Residents Association have commented as follows: -

On behalf of Gatehill Residents' Association, | write to object to this application and submit
a petition. As you will see from your site visit and photographs which Enforcement officers
have taken, a tree which the Planning Inspector protected has been cut down and a plastic
shed has been put in its place.

1.Planning History

We would refer you to the planning history for the site which can be found under the
reference 'Land Between 2 & 6 Woodside Road' rather than 4 Woodside Road, with the
most pertinent applications being:

70377/APP/2016/4221 - Planning Inspector granted permission for the new build on Appeal
and set 13 conditions.

70377/APP/2019/2476 - LBH approved internal alterations and minor variations to the
windows and included the Planning Inspector's conditions.

The Planning Inspector granted permission to build on the rear garden of 2 Woodside Road
in this Area of Special Local Character and set out 13 conditions. The Council's
enforcement team has been very busy attempting to ensure that the conditions are
adhered to and 2019/2476 came about because the house was occupied without the side
facing windows being obscure glazed in breach of one of the conditions.

The current application seeks permission to overrule the original conditions set by the
Inspector numbered 6, 9 and 10 of Appeal Decision APP/R5510/W/17/3171932 which have
been carried over to application 2019/2476 and numbered 6, 8 and 9.

The conditions which were carried over from the Inspector to 70377/APP/2019/2476

Condition 6 - Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), no garages, sheds or other outbuildings shall be
erected other than those expressly authorised by this permission.

REASON
To protect the residential amenity of residents in accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020).'

Condition 8 - 'No retained tree or hedge shall be cut down, uprooted, destroyed, pruned, cut
or damaged in any manner from the date of the occupation of the building for its permitted
use, other than in accordance with the approved plans, without the prior written approval of
the local planning authority. In this condition "retained tree or hedge" means an existing tree
or hedge which is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



Part 2 (2020) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.'

Condition 9 - 'If any retained tree or hedge is cut down, uprooted or destroyed or dies
another tree or hedge shall be planted at the same place and that tree or hedge shall be of
such size and species and shall be planted, at such time as may be specified in writing by
the local planning authority. In this condition "retained tree or hedge" means an existing tree
which is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
Part 2 (2020) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.'

Reason for the Landscaping Conditions
In the Appeal Decision APP/R5510/W/17/3171932, the Inspector wrote:

'32. The conditions relating to the protection of trees and hedges and the provision and
retention of landscaping are necessary to protect the character and appearance of the
ASLC.' Yet despite this, the applicant or his tenants have cut down the apple tree in the
rear garden and erected a plastic shed in its place, contrary to Inspector's conditions.

The following photographs show (available on the DIP)

1. The rear of the site containing the apple tree from the applicant's Design and Access
statement which was submitted to gain consent for the new build property. The photo was
labelled by the architect as 'The existing trees and hedgerow to the side and rear
boundaries are to be retained. This will assist in retaining the landscape character of the
site.'

2. An extract from the LBH approved landscaping plan with the tree marked on the right-
hand side at the rear right hand side boundary.

3. The building work taking place without tree protection measures.
4. The tree still thriving post build.

1.Photographs copied from page 8 of the applicant's Design and Access statement
submitted with application 70377/APP/2016/4221 used to gain permission.

2. Extract from the approved landscaping plans for application 70377/APP/2016/4221
which show the apple tree in the rear garden on the right-hand side adjacent to the
boundary.

3. The building work taking place despite no tree protection measures being erected.

4. The tree survived the building work

Gatehill Residents' Association asks that this application is refused and that the shed be

removed, the base be removed, the ground properly prepared and a mature replacement
tree be planted and protected as conditioned by the Inspector.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



As the applicant has repeatedly disregarded planning conditions, we also ask that the LBH
Tree Officer visits the site annually to confirm that the replacement tree is thriving and if it is
not, that a further replacement tree be planted.

Officer response - Noted
INTERNAL CONSULTEE
Trees & Landscaping initially commented on 17/11/2021 as follows: -

This site is occupied by a two-storey detached house, located on the east side of
Woodside Road. The site lies within the area covered by TPO 99, however, there are no
protected trees on, or adjacent to, the property. The site also lies within the Gatehill Farm
Estate Area of Special Local Character, whose character and appearance owes much to
the established gardens and sylvan character of the area.

COMMENT - The house was recently built following the approval of planning application ref.
2016/4221, which was allowed on appeal. The installation of a modest size shed in the
south-east corner of the rear garden would not normally be a cause for concern. In this
case it is understood that there are changes in levels which may complicate the
installation/construction method, impact on nearby boundary vegetation and views.

RECOMMENDATION - As no access has been gained to the rear of the site, more detail
is required about the existing and proposed levels, the construction technique, foundations,
the impact on the adjacent vegetation and how views will be affected.

Drawing ref. 121251-BR-101C - annotated with Revision D, received 11/1/2021 has now
addressed the above concerns and the Trees & Landscaping officer was re-consulted and
now has no further objection.

After a re-consultation was carried out on 18/1/2021 the Gatehill (Northwood) Residents
Association have commented further as follows on 27/1/2021 : -

73015/APP/2020/3521 - 4 Woodside Road, Northwood Retrospective application for a
shed - contrary to 3 of the Planning Inspector's conditions for application
70377/APP/2016/4221 and 70377/APP/2019/2476 approved by LBH.

Gatehill Residents' Association (GRA) still objects to this application for the reasons which
we set out in our original letter dated 1st December 2020 and reminds officers of the
petition submitted by local residents.

Specifically No Garages, Sheds or Other Outbuildings. To summarise our objections, the
Planning Inspector who approved the application to build a new house on a back garden of
the Area of Special Local Character, set 13 conditions. He removed permitted development
rights for outbuildings and stated, 'no garages, sheds or other outbuildings shall be erected
other than those expressly authorised by this permission.

Specifically Protection for Trees In addition, he set 2 conditions to protect the trees and
hedges at the plot and firstly stated, 'No retained tree or hedge shall be cut down, uprooted,
destroyed, pruned, cut or damaged in any manner-". Additionally, he stated 'If any retained
tree or hedge is cut down, uprooted or destroyed or dies another tree or hedge shall be
planted at the same place and that tree or hedge shall be of such size and species and

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



shall be planted- .

In the Appeal Decision APP/R5510/W/17/3171932, the Inspector wrote: '32. The conditions
relating to the protection of trees and hedges and the provision and retention of landscaping
are necessary to protect the character and appearance of the ASLC.'

Preservation of ASLC Characteristics One of the characteristics of this ASLC is the views
of trees in the rear gardens in the gaps between the houses. The view between No.2 and
No. 4 is now of a plastic shed rather than a flourishing apple tree. The tree provided privacy
for the occupants of neighbouring properties and contributed to their amenity, rights which
the Inspector stated that he wished to protect.

Possible Additional Changes We note that the applicant has submitted an amended plan D
dated 11.01.2021 for drawing 1251/BR/101 C dated 01/01/2016. The height of the shed,
which has been erected on the site of a protected established apple tree, appears to have
been slightly reduced. We wonder why the additional information regarding the drainage,
manhole covers, paving and other information is necessary for a retrospective application
for a shed and wonder if there are further deviance from the approved plans for this
property which the applicant also wishes to be approved.

GRA Conclusion and Opinion The GRA is still firmly of the opinion that this application
should be refused. The Inspector's conditions should be upheld by the LPA and the shed
should be removed, the base be removed, the ground properly prepared and a mature
replacement tree be planted and protected.

4. Local Plan Designation and London Plan

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

DMHB 5 Areas of Special Local Character
DMHB 6 Gatehill Farm Estate and Copse Wood Estate Areas of Special Local
Character

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMHD 2 Outbuildings

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

PLANNING POLICIES & STANDARDS

Development Plan

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies

Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local
Planning Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2020)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March
2018 with the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The
Plan was subject to examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated
Draft Plan with amendments was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors
appointed by the Secretary of State issued their report and recommendations to the Mayor
on 8th October 2019.

The Mayor considered the Inspectors' recommendations and, on 9th December 2019,
issued to the Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a
statement of reasons for the Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor did not wish to
accept. The Secretary of State responded on the 13th March 2020 and stated that he was
exercising his powers under section 337 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 to direct
that modifications are required.

On 9th December 2020, the Mayor wrote to the Secretary of State to advise of his intention
to formally approve a new draft London Plan, which included his best understanding of the
modifications required. The Secretary of State responded on 10th December 2020
requesting that the draft London Plan was re-submitted with more specific amendments to
address the 11 previous Directions and 2 additional Directions. On 21st December 2020,
the Mayor formally approved a new London Plan, the 'Publication London Plan'. This has
been submitted to the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State has 6 weeks to respond

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



or can request a further extension of time. The Mayor can only publish the Plan after the
Secretary of State has given approval.

More limited weight should be attached to parts of draft London Plan policies where the
Secretary of State has directed specific amendments. Greater weight may be attached to
policies that are not subject to the specific amendments from the Secretary of State.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main issues for consideration in determining this application relate to the effect of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the original dwelling, the impact on the visual
amenities of the surrounding Area of Special Local Character, the impact on the residential
amenity of the neighbouring dwellings and provision of acceptable residential amenity for
the application property.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (2012) states that all
new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new buildings and the
public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.

Policy DMHB 5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Part 2 Development Management Policies
(2020) states that A) Within Areas of Special Local Character, new development should
reflect the character of the area and its original layout. Alterations should respect the
established scale, building lines, height, design and materials of the area. B) Extensions to
dwellings should be subservient to, and respect the architectural style of the original
buildings and allow sufficient space for appropriate landscaping, particularly between, and
in front of, buildings.

Policy DMHB 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Part 2 Development Management Policies
(2020) states that within the Gatehill Farm and Copse Wood Estates development should
ensure that boundary treatment is unobtrusive and of the natural materials appropriate to
the character and appearance of the estate, preserve the mature trees including boundary
planting to reinforce existing landscaping and Estate settings.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) advises that all development will be required to be designed to the highest
standards and incorporate principles of good design. It should take into account aspects
including the scale of the development considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent
structures; building plot sizes and established street patterns; building lines and
streetscape rhythm and landscaping. It should also not have an adversary impact on the
amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

Policy DMHB 14: Trees and Landscaping of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020) advises that A) All developments will be
expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other natural
features of merit.

Policy DMHD 2 requires residential outbuildings to meet the following criteria: i) The
buildings must be constructed to a high standard of design without compromising the
amenity of neighbouring occupiers; ii) The developed footprint must be proportionate to the
dwelling house and the residential curtilage within which it stands and have regard to
existing trees; iii) The use shall be incidental to the enjoyment of the dwelling and not
capable for use as independent residential accommodation; and iv) Primary living

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



accommodation will not be permitted.

The outbuilding is situated towards the end of the rear garden and would have a depth of
3m, a width of 2.5m, resulting in a floor area of 7.5 sqm, set under a pitched roof with a
maximum height of 2.8m. Therefore the development when viewed in isolation accords
with the requirements of Policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 2 of the Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020).

That said, although it is acknowledged that there are no individually protected trees within
the curtilage of the site, the original planning permission ref. 70377/APP/2016/4221,
granted on appeal, had the following conditions attached in relation to trees, hedges and
vegetation. These conditions were again attached to the planning permission for further
amendments under reference 70377/APP/2019/2476

Condition 8 - 'No retained tree or hedge shall be cut down, uprooted, destroyed, pruned, cut
or damaged in any manner from the date of the occupation of the building for its permitted
use, other than in accordance with the approved plans, without the prior written approval of
the local planning authority. In this condition "retained tree or hedge" means an existing tree
or hedge which is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars.

Condition 9 - No retained tree or hedge shall be cut down, uprooted, destroyed, pruned, cut
or damaged in any manner from the date of the occupation of the building for its permitted
use, other than in accordance with the approved plans, without the prior written approval of
the local planning authority.

Consequently the originally approved site layout plan and the originally approved proposal
that showed the trees to be retained has not been complied with as the removal of the fruit
tree would have required the prior written approval of the local planning authority as shown
on the approved site layout plan reference 1251/P/5 submitted with the application granted
on appeal under reference 70377/APP/2016/4221. Drawing ref. 1251-BR-101C - annotated
with Revision D, received 11/1/2021 is annotated to indicate the fruit tree removal, tree
protection measures and landscaping details

In addition, the following conditions were attached to both above mentioned permissions
and these were subsequently discharged following the submission of application reference
70377/APP/2017/2956 for

"Details pursuant to conditions 3 (Materials), 5 (Obscure Glazing), 8 (Levels), 11 (Method
Statement) and 13 (Landscaping) of the Secretary of State's Appeal Decision Ref:
APP/R5510/W/17/3171932 dated 28-07-2017 (LBH Ref: 70377/APP/2016/4221 dated 06-
03-2017) (Two storey, 3-bed dwelling with habitable roofspace, parking and amenity space
and installation of vehicular crossover to front)" which was approved on 28/11/2017

11) No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning authority with respect to:

i A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures

i Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



12) All the trees and hedges shown on the approved plans as "to be retained" shall be
protected by strong fencing, the location and type to be previously approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The fencing shall be erected in accordance with the approved
details before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought onto the site for the
purposes of the development, and shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and
surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed
within any fenced area, and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor
shall any excavation be made, without the prior written consent of the local planning
authority.

13) No development shall commence until details of both hard and soft landscape works
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. These
details shall include:

i) planting plans at a scale of not less than 1:00

ii) boundary treatments and means of enclosure

i) vehicle parking layouts;

iv) hard surfacing materials;

v) proposed and existing functional services above and below ground
vi) an implementation programme,

The landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before
any part of the development is first occupied in accordance with the agreed implementation
programme. The completed scheme shall be maintained in accordance with an approved
scheme of maintenance."

Drawing ref. 1251-BR-101C - annotated with Revision D, received 11/1/2021 is annotated
to indicate tree protection measures and landscaping details and the Trees & Landscaping
officer now has no further objection, consequently the recommendation is for approval.

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 1251-BR-101C -
annotated with Revision D, received on 11/1/2021

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part
1(2012) and Part 2 (2020), and the London Plan (2016).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan
Policies (2016). Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1
- Strategic Policies on 8 November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 on
16 January 2020.

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

DMHB 5 Areas of Special Local Character

DMHB 6 Gatehill Farm Estate and Copse Wood Estate Areas of Special
Local Character

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping
DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMHD 2 Outbuildings
LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology
3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the

approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local

Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application may have to be submitted. The validity of this planning permission
may be challengeable by third parties if the development results in any form of
encroachment onto land outside the applicant's control that is considered to
cause harm to local amenity.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



5 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control.
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
- carry out work to an existing party wall;
- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining

building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.
The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by
the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission
does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek
prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises.

10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Diane Verona Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



Harleyford

Kelvin

Gair

QO

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

4 WOODSIDE ROAD
NORTHWOOD
MIDDLESEX

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
73105/APP/2020/3521 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 36 | February 2021

i

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address THE SIX BELLS PH DUCKS HILL ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Proposed barn extension to provide an extended dining area at ground floor
and 8 no. guest rooms at first floor, adding a guest house use to the existing
public house/restaurant to create a mixed use (Sui Generis), with associated
works and landscaping.

LBH Ref Nos: 14387/APP/2020/4126

Drawing Nos: Case of Need
Design Access & Planning Statement (Dated 12th December 2020)
BS 5837:2012 Tree Survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Draft
Arboricultural Method Statement & Tree Protection Plan (Dated 27th Augus
2020)
Heritage Impact Assessment (Dated 12th December 2020)
VSA20/11 - 011
Location Plan
VSA20/11 - 00<
VSA20/11 - 004
VSA20/11 - 00%
VSA20/11 - 00¢
VSA20/11 - 00¢
VSA20/11 - 01C
VSA20/11 - 0014
VSA20/11 - 002¢
VSA20/11 - 0064
VSA20/11 - 0074

Date Plans Received:  15/12/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 15/12/2020
Date Application Valid: 15/12/2020
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks permission for a barn building extension to provide a restaurant at
ground floor and 8 no. guest rooms at first floor, adding a guest house use to the existing
public house/restaurant to create a mixed use (Sui Generis).

Notably, the proposed development is considered to pose 'less than substantial harm' to
the setting of the Grade Il Listed Building. In accordance with paragraph 196 of the NPPF
(February 2019), this harm is weighed against the public benefits of the proposal. As
outlined within the main body of the report, the proposed development is considered to
provide public benefits to outweigh the harm posed.

In terms of Green Belt considerations, the proposed development is considered to
constitute inappropriate development within the Green Belt requiring very special
circumstances. These do not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason
of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations. In terms of the harm posed, this is viewed in the
context of the previously approved applications (references 14387/APP/2018/1383 and
14387/APP/2018/1385) which establish merit for the development of the footprint adjoining

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



the Public House. Following the reduction in height and length relative to that previously
refused (references 14387/APP/2020/2775 and 14387/APP/2020/2776), and taking into
consideration the buildings proposed location within the previously developed area of the
site, the proposed development would not be considered to significantly harm the
openness of the Green Belt.

In conjunction with this, the proposed development would support the viability of the Public
House, this being a use which is generally considered to be at risk of closure if they are
unable to adapt to changing economic circumstances. In turn, the development would
safeguard the long term preservation of the heritage asset whilst also safeguarding an
important community use for the local community. Its importance is evidenced by the
limited number of public houses within the area and the receipt of a supporting petition
with 30 signatories, as well as support received from the Eastcote Conservation Panel,
the Eastcote Residents Association and the Ruislip, Northwood and Eastcote Local
History Society.

Given the above, it is considered that the harm posed to the openness of the Green Belt is
sufficiently limited for the development to be considered on-balance acceptable.

For the reasons outlined within the report, the proposed development is recommended for
approval subject to planning conditions.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers VSA20/11 - 006A,
VSA20/11 - 007A, VSA20/11 - 008, VSA20/11 - 009, VSA20/11 - 010, VSA20/11 - 011 and
shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (March 2016).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

- BS 5837:2012 Tree Survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Draft Arboricultural
Method Statement & Tree Protection Plan (Dated 27th August 2020)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



To ensure that the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (March 2016).

4 NONSC Unauthorised Timber Structures

All unauthorised timber structures within the confines of the site shall be removed prior to
the commencement of the development hereby approved.

REASON

As planning permission has not been granted for such structures and to ensure that the
development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

5 NONSC Restriction of Uses

Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as
amended), or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification, the development shall not be used
for any purpose other than as a dining area at ground floor and guest house at first floor.

REASON

To ensure that the provisions of the proposed development are secured to the public
house / restaurant use to prevent detrimental impacts to the local highway network, in
accordance with Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 and DMT 5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (January 2020).

6 COM23 Hours of Use
The restaurant hereby approved shall not be open for customers outside the following
hours: -

- 1200 to 2400 from Monday to Friday
- 1200 to 2400 on Saturday
- 1200 to 2200 on Sunday and Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020).

7 COowm7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



8 NONSC Bin and Cycle Storage Details

Prior to the commencement of above ground works, detailed elevations, material
specifications and screening details of the bin and cycle storage hereby approved shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance and does not injure
the visual amenities of the Green Belt setting, in accordance with Policies DMHB 11 and
DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January
2020).

9 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Prior to commencement of above ground works, a landscape scheme shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse storage

2.b Secure and covered cycle storage demonstrating capacity for at least 9 no. bicycles
2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car parking layouts demonstrating the provision of:

- 42 no. car parking spaces, including 2 no. accessible car parking spaces

- 1 no. car parking space served by an active electric vehicle charging point
- 1 no. car parking space served by a passive electric vehicle charging point
2.e Hard surfacing materials

2.f External lighting

2.g Other structures (if relevant)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies DMHB 11, DMHB
14 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) and Policy 5.17 of the London Plan (March 2016).

10 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations’ and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020) and to comply with Section
197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

11 COMS8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

3. Where the arboricultural method statement recommends that the tree protection
measures for a site will be monitored and supervised by an arboricultural consultant at key
stages of the development, records of the site inspections / meetings shall be submitted
to the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020).

12 NONSC Sustainable Water Management

Prior to the commencement of the superstructure (excluding demolition and site
clearance), a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
clearly demonstrate that sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated
into the designs of the development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in
accordance with Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020) and Policies 5.12 and 5.13 of the London Plan
(March 2016).

13 NONSC Written Scheme of Investigation

No demolition or development shall take place until a written scheme of investigation
(WSI) has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For
land that is included within the WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other
than in accordance with the agreed WSI, which shall include the statement of significance
and research objectives, and

A. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording and the
nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



B. Where appropriate, details of a programme for delivering related positive public benefit

C. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis,
publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the condition
shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the
programme set out in the WSI.

REASON

To safeguard the archaeological interest on this site, in accordance with Policy DMHB 7 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020),
Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016), Policy HC1 of the London Plan (December
2020) and the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019).

14 NONSC Ecological Enhancement Scheme

Prior to commencement of above ground works, a scheme to protect and enhance the
nature conservation interest of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

In order to encourage a wide diversity of wildlife on the existing semi-natural habitat of the
site, in accordance with Policies DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (January 2020) and Policy 7.19 of the London Plan
(March 2016).

15 COM31 Secured by Design

The building(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000 to ensure the development provides a safe and secure environment
in accordance with Policy DMHB 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020) and Policies 7.1 and 7.3 of the London Plan (March
2016).

16 NONSC External Lighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered other than for routine maintenance which does not change its
details.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



Also, to protect the ecological value of the area in accordance with Policy DMEI 7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

17 NONSC Air Extraction System or External Plant

No new air extraction system or external plant shall be used on the premises until a
scheme for the control of noise and odour emanating from the site has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall then
be fully implemented before the development is occupied/the use commences and
thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the
building remains in use.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) and Policy 7.15 of the London Plan (March 2016).

18 NONSC Sound Insulation

Prior to the commencement of the superstructure (excluding demolition and site
clearance), a scheme for the control of noise transmission to the adjoining dwellings shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
be fully implemented before the development is occupied/use commences and thereafter
shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains
in use.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) and Policy 7.15 of the London Plan (March 2016).

19 NONSC Control of Amplified Music

The use of the building hereby approved shall not commence until a scheme for the
control of amplified music emanating from the building has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such
combination of physical works, administrative procedures, noise limits and other
measures as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be fully
implemented before the use commences and thereafter shall be retained and maintained
in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) and Policy 7.15 of the London Plan (March 2016).

20 NONSC Construction Management & Logistics Plan

Prior to the commencement of the superstructure (excluding demolition and site
clearance), a Construction Management and Logistics Plan shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(if) The hours during which development works will occur

(i) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.

(iv) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads
(including wheel washing facilities).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas and to ensure that highway and pedestrian
safety is not prejudiced, in accordance with Policies DMHB 11 and DMT 1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020) and Policy 7.15 of
the London Plan (March 2016).

21 NONSC Accessible Guest Room

The accessible bedroom hereby approved as 'Bedroom 8' on drawing reference
VSA20/11 - 008 shall be designed and implemented in accordance with Figure 52,
incorporating either Figure 30 or 33 of British Standard BS8300-2:2018.

REASON

To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policy DME 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020) and Policies 4.5 and 7.2 of the London Plan (March
2016).

22 NONSC Fire Evacuation Statement

Prior to the occupation of the proposed development, details demonstrating that disabled
people can evacuate from the intended first floor accommodation in a safe and dignified
way during a fire evacuation situation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the operation of the
development.

REASON

To ensure that disabled people can evacuate from the intended first floor accommodation
in a safe and dignified way during a fire evacuation, in accordance with Policy D12 of the
Publication London Plan (December 2020).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)
The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

DMCI 1
DME 5
DMEI 10
DMEI 14
DMEI 4
DMEI 7
DMEI 9
DMHB 1
DMHB 11
DMHB 14
DMHB 2
DMHB 7
DMT 1
DMT 2
DMT 6
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.9
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.16
LPP 7.19
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
NPPF- 11
NPPF- 12
NPPF- 13
NPPF- 15
NPPF- 16
NPPF- 2
NPPF- 6
NPPF- 8

3 170

Retention of Existing Community Sport and Education Facilities
Hotels and Visitor Accommodation

Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

Air Quality

Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

Management of Flood Risk

Heritage Assets

Design of New Development

Trees and Landscaping

Listed Buildings

Archaeological Priority Areas and archaeological Priority Zones
Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Vehicle Parking

(2016) Urban Greening

(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Parking

(2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2016) Cycling

(2016) Improving air quality

(2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.
(2016) Green Belt

(2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2016) Local character

(2016) Architecture

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

NPPF-11 2018 - Making effective use of land

NPPF-12 2018 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF-13 2018 - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF-15 2018 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
NPPF-2 2018 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF-6 2018 - Building a strong, competitive economy
NPPF-8 2018 - Promoting healthy and safe communities

LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan
Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other
informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order
to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application
which is likely to be considered favourably.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



4 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London
Borough of Hilingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be calculated in accordance with the
London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL
Charging Schedule 2012. Before commencement of works the development parties must
notify the London Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the construction
works (by submitting a Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by
submitting an Assumption of Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.
The Council will then issue a Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL
that is payable. Failure to submit a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and
Commencement Notice prior to commencement of the development may result in
surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability
perspective as a scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement
conditions have been discharged/complied with.

5

The written scheme of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a
suitably qualified professionally accredited archaeological practice in accordance with
Historic England's Guidelines for Archaeological Projects in Greater London. This
condition is exempt from deemed discharge under schedule 6 of The Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The site is located on the west side of Ducks Hill Road, just north of the junction with
Reservior Road and contains a building known as the Six Bells Public House, which is
Grade |l listed (first listed on 10-Apr-1972), under the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended, for its special architectural or historic interest.

The Six Bells Public House has been occupied and restored as part of the planning
permission (reference 14387/APP/2018/1383) and Listed Building Consent (reference
14387/APP/2018/1385) granted in 2018. The barn building extension granted under these
permissions has not, however, been started. The extant permissions were granted with the
understanding that the extension to the Public House would provide extra space for the
restaurant and make the project financially viable and self sustaining in order to secure the
long term preservation of the heritage asset.

The application site forms part of designated Green Belt land and the Ruislip Motte & Bailey
Archaeological Priority Area. Based on TfL's webCAT planning tool, the site has a poor
Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) rating of 1b. Based on the Council's GIS, the
site forms part of Flood Zone 1 and a Critical Drainage Area.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks permission for a barn building extension to provide a restaurant at
ground floor and 8 no. guest rooms at first floor, changing the use from a public
house/restaurant to mixed use (Sui Generis), with associated works and landscaping.
Based on measurements taken from the submitted plans, the proposed barn structure
would measure as follows:

- Length: 20.33m

- Width: 9.01m

- Height at the eaves: 4m

- Highest point: 7.75m

- Footprint: 20.33 x 9.01 = 183.17m2

- Volume: (4 x 9.01 x 20.33) + (3.75 x 9.01 x 20.33)/2 = 732.69 + 343.45 = 1076.14m3

3.3 Relevant Planning History

14387/APP/2018/1383  The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Restoration of the Six Bells Public House, to include minor alterations to fittings internally and a
new extension independent of the historic building to increase dining capacity.

Decision: 02-10-2018 Approved

14387/APP/2018/1385  The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Restoration of the Six Bells Public House, to include minor alterations to fittings internally and a
new extension independent of the historic building to increase dining capacity (Listed Building
Consent).

Decision: 18-10-2018 Approved

14387/APP/2019/528 The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Application for a Non-Material Amendment to planning permission Ref: 14387/APP/2018/1383
dated 18/10/18 (Restoration of the Six Bells Public House, to include minor alterations to fittings
internally and a new extension independent of the historic building to increase dining capacity) to
reduce the footprint of the proposed extension

Decision: 17-04-2019 Refused

14387/APP/2020/2775  The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Proposed barn extension to provide a restaurant at ground floor and 10 no. guest rooms at first
floor, changing the use from a public house/restaurant to mixed use (Sui Generis), with
associated works and landscaping.

Decision: 18-11-2020 Refused

14387/APP/2020/2776  The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Proposed barn extension to provide a restaurant at ground floor and 10 no. guest rooms at first
floor (Application for Listed Building Consent)

Decision: 18-11-2020 Refused

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning permission (reference 14387/APP/2018/1383) and Listed Building Consent
(reference 14387/APP/2018/1385) granted the restoration of the Six Bells Public House, to
include minor alterations to fittings internally and a new extension independent of the
historic building to increase dining capacity. The Public House has since been occupied
and restored but has not formally been extended. A site visit indicates that the building has
been extended temporarily to provide additional capacity.

A planning application (reference 14387/APP/2020/2775) and Listed Building Consent
application (reference 14387/APP/2020/2776) for a barn extension to provide a restaurant
at ground floor and 10 no. guest rooms at first floor has been refused. The reasons for
refusal are outlined as follows:

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, size, scale, and design, would
constitute inappropriate development within designated Green Belt land and very special
circumstances do not exist to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness. As such, the proposal is contrary to Policy EM2 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020), Policy 7.16 of the
London Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019).

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, size, scale, and design, would fail to
preserve the significance of the Grade Il Listed Building by posing 'less than substantial
harm' to the significance of the designated heritage asset. Further, the proposed
development is not considered to provide public benefits sufficient to outweigh the harm
posed. As such, the proposal is contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies DMHB 1, DMHB 2 and DMHB
11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020),
Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework
(February 2019).

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, size, scale, and design, would be
detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenities of the street scene. As
such, the proposal is contrary to Policies BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 -
Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (January 2020), Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London
Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019).

4, Planning Policies and Standards
Development Plan

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)
Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies

Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local
Planning Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2020)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March
2018 with the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The
Plan was subject to examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated
Draft Plan with amendments was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors
appointed by the Secretary of State issued their report and recommendations to the Mayor
on 8th October 2019.

The Mayor considered the Inspectors’ recommendations and, on 9th December 2019,
issued to the Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a
statement of reasons for the Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor did not wish to
accept. The Secretary of State responded on the 13th March 2020 and stated that he was
exercising his powers under section 337 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 to direct
that modifications are required.

On 9th December 2020, the Mayor wrote to the Secretary of State to advise of his intention
to formally approve a new draft London Plan, which included his best understanding of the
modifications required. The Secretary of State responded on 10th December 2020
requesting that the draft London Plan was re-submitted with more specific amendments to
address the 11 previous Directions and 2 additional Directions. On 21st December 2020,
the Mayor formally approved a new London Plan, the 'Publication London Plan'. This has
been submitted to the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State has 6 weeks to respond
or can request a further extension of time. The Mayor can only publish the Plan after the
Secretary of State has given approval.

More limited weight should be attached to parts of draft London Plan policies where the
Secretary of State has directed specific amendments. Greater weight may be attached to
policies that are not subject to the specific amendments from the Secretary of State.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



PT1.BE1
PT1.CI1
PT1.EM2
PT1.EM6
PT1.EM7
PT1.EM8
PT1.HE1

2012) Built Environment
2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(

(

(

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise
(

2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

DMCI 1
DME 5
DMEI 10
DMEI 14
DMEI 4
DMEI 7
DMEI 9
DMHB 1
DMHB 11
DMHB 14
DMHB 2
DMHB 7
DMT 1
DMT 2
DMT 6
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.9
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.16
LPP 7.19

Retention of Existing Community Sport and Education Facilities
Hotels and Visitor Accommodation

Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

Air Quality

Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

Management of Flood Risk

Heritage Assets

Design of New Development

Trees and Landscaping

Listed Buildings

Archaeological Priority Areas and archaeological Priority Zones
Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Vehicle Parking

(2016) Urban Greening

(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Parking

(2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2016) Cycling

(2016) Improving air quality

(

2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

(2016) Green Belt
(2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2016) Architecture

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

NPPF- 11 NPPF-11 2018 - Making effective use of land

NPPF- 12 NPPF-12 2018 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF- 13 NPPF-13 2018 - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF- 15 NPPF-15 2018 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
NPPF- 16 NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
NPPF- 2 NPPF-2 2018 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF- 6 NPPF-6 2018 - Building a strong, competitive economy

NPPF- 8 NPPF-8 2018 - Promoting healthy and safe communities

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 3rd February 2021
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 25th January 2021

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



14th January 2021

6. Consultations
External Consultees
A petition in support of the proposed development has been received with 30 signatories.

Letters have been sent to neighbouring properties, a site notice has been displayed and the
application has been advertised in the local paper. A total of 10 comments in support of the
proposed development have been received and are summarised as follows:

- The pub is well run and provides a much needed service.

- The proposal provides additional benefits to the area.

- Overnight accommodation is needed in the area.

- The proposal will create jobs and benefit local businesses.

- Additional signage provided by the applicant at the entrance to our driveway would assist patrons in
finding the correct place to turn into the Six Bells car park.

- A visible pick-up/drop-off zone to the Six Bells car park should be provided to help patrons guide
pick-up and drop-off drivers.

- The plans show some of the windows, on the south side of the proposed building, would have
direct line of sight into several neighbouring properties, compromising privacy. This could be solved
by planting screening.

- An approval should contain condition(s) prohibiting further development for a reasonable period
(e.g. 25-50 years) to ensure that any approval given in this application is utilised and does not lead to
additional applications that change the special character of the site and surroundings.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

All material planning considerations are addressed in detail within the main body of the report. It
should be noted that a condition which restricts any further development for any number of years is
considered to be unreasonable and would not accord with Paragraph 55 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (February 2019).

COUNCILLOR CORTHORNE:
| am writing to express my support for this fresh application following the recent committee decision.

| am given to understand that there has been dialogue between the applicant and officers and
changes to the original proposals has been made to the scale and bulk of the development, which
make it acceptable in planning policy terms.

I've previously indicated that the economic benefits should be recognised as part of the overall
planning balance, and with these changes feel this should now be supported.

CHAIR OF THE RUISLIP NORTHWOOD AND EASTCOTE LOCAL HISTORY SOCIETY:

As Chair of the Ruislip Northwood and Eastcote Local History Society, | support this application as
being sympathetic to the adjacent grade Il listed building and less bulky than the already granted
application for this site (14387/APP/2018/1383). This new building will provide greater economic
viability to the site and more certainty that the listed building will continue to be used and kept in good
repair, bearing in mind the long period of disuse when it was at risk.

GREATER LONDON ARCHAEOLOGICAL ADVISORY SERVICE:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



The Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS) gives advice on archaeology and
planning. Our advice follows the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the GLAAS
Charter.

NPPF Section 16 and the Draft London Plan (2017 Policy HC1) recognise the positive contribution of
heritage assets of all kinds and make the conservation of archaeological interest a material planning
consideration. NPPF paragraph 189 says applicants should provide an archaeological assessment
if their development could affect a heritage asset of archaeological interest.

If you grant planning consent, paragraph 199 of the NPPF says that applicants should record the
significance of any heritage assets that the development harms.

Applicants should also improve knowledge of assets and make this public.

The planning application lies in an area of archaeological interest (Archaeological Priority Area)
identified for the Local Plan: Ruislip.

The application involves the construction of a large new 'barn' within the Ruislip historic village
Archaeological Priority Area and adjacent to the 18th century listed pub. The groundworks are
unlikely to have a major impact but may reveal evidence related to the occupation of this
northernmost part of the historic village.

| have looked at this proposal and at the Greater London Historic Environment Record. | advise that
the development could cause harm to archaeological remains. However the significance of the
asset and scale of harm to it is such that the effect can be managed using a planning condition.

NPPF paragraphs 185 and 192 and Draft London Plan Policy HC1 emphasise the positive
contributions heritage assets can make to sustainable communities and places. Where appropriate,
applicants should therefore also expect to identify enhancement opportunities.

| therefore recommend the following condition on any consent:
Condition

No demolition or development shall take place until a written scheme of investigation (WSI) has been
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within
the WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed
WSI, which shall include the statement of significance and research objectives, and

A. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording and the nomination of a
competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works

B. Where appropriate, details of a programme for delivering related positive public benefits

C. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis, publication &
dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the condition shall not be discharged
until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

Informative

The written scheme of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a suitably qualified
professionally accredited archaeological practice in accordance with Historic England's Guidelines
for Archaeological Projects in Greater London. This condition is exempt from deemed discharge
under schedule 6 of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



(England) Order 2015.

This pre-commencement condition is necessary to safeguard the archaeological interest on this
site. Approval of the WSI before works begin on site provides clarity on what investigations are
required, and their timing in relation to the development programme. If the applicant does not agree
to this precommencement condition please let us know their reasons and any alternatives
suggested. Without this pre-commencement condition being imposed the application should be
refused as it would not comply with NPPF paragraph 199.

EASTCOTE CONSERVATION PANEL & EASTCOTE RESIDENTS' ASSOCIATION:
The Six Bell PH, is a listed building, with several centuries of history.

The previous application was refused because the proposed barn extension was too large and was
not subsidiary to the listed building.

The proposed extension has now been reduced in length and the ridge height is now one metre
lower, the same height as the original building. Being set to one side of the listed building, it does not
appear to be over dominant.

A Tree Survey has been submitted this time, which clarifies the extent of any tree removal. It
appears that a very small number of trees will be removed none of which are large important trees.

There are several areas which need attention but can be conditioned. These are set out below.

- The outdoor lighting for the car park and the buildings, needs to consider the proximity of the site to
Mad Bess Woods part of the SSSI. Excessively bright lights and light spill can disturb the bat
population of the woods. All species of bats are protected. A design for the layout of all outdoor
lighting, which meets Health & Safety rules for a public space and protects the woods from light
pollution can be a condition to be dispersed before construction takes place. RIBA and the Institute
for Lighting Professionals publish guidelines to cover this situation.

- Opening hours, those stated within the application are reasonable. Very late night opening is not
sought. To prevent later changes to theses hours, which, would cause inconvenience to local
residents, a condition stating that change of opening hours must receive planning permission.

- Noise, a condition which states that any music, live or recorded, [amplified sound] any use of a PA
system should not be audible from the nearest dwelling. Even if 'entertainments' are not proposed at
the present time, it is possible in the future the Six Bells may come under a different ownership, then
this condition if in place can be enforced. This would stop any harm to the surrounding residents.

- That any change of use of the new building from a dining hall to a function room or night club be
prohibited. We do appreciate that there are at not any plans at present to change the use, however,
looking to the future it is possible another owner may have different ideas. If we have these
conditions then changes cannot be made without planning permission.

- Car Parking, should the number of vehicles overflow onto the highway, contingency plans should
be in force to deal with inconsiderate parking. For example using the grounds of the Garden Centre
opposite to the Six Bells.

- Care needs to be taken that patrons do not leave litter outside of the premises, in line with the
Environmental Protection Act 1990. A condition making the owner responsible for any litter dropped
outside of the grounds by customers, in the vicinity of the site, to be responsible for cleaning up.

- Any change of signage needs planning permission, we would ask that the name and the pictorial
sign for The Six bells is kept. The original Six Bells was located on the corner of Breakspear Road
with Howletts Lane moving to the present site in 1810. It was the custom to name a PH after the
number of bells in the church tower. St. Martin le Tour Ruislip has six bells. The name like the
building is centuries old and part of the history of Ruislip.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



To sum up, we do not have any objections to this proposal, subject to safeguarding conditions as
set out above, being added to any grant of planning permission that may be given.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

All relevant material planning considerations are addressed within the main body of the report and
planning conditions are attached as such. It should be noted that the upkeep of the premises is
within the remit of the operator and not a matter to be controlled by the Local Planning Authority.

Internal Consultees
PLANNING POLICY OFFICER:

Guest Bedrooms (C1)

The proposal includes the addition of 8 new guest bedrooms, to be located above the new extension
to the restaurant/bar. The new guest bedrooms would not be a standalone building. Guests would
use the same entrance as the restaurant/bar and presumably check-in at the same entrance lobby.
Guests would be required to utilise the staircase next to the extension to the restaurant/bar. Their
experience would presumably be managed by the same members of staff as those running the
restaurant/bar element of the business. If breakfast was to be served, presumably this would also
involve using an element of the restaurant/bar.

Paragraph 86 of the NPPF (2019) states that local planning authorities should apply a sequential test
to planning applications for main town centre uses which are neither in an existing centre nor in
accordance with an up-to-date plan. The addition of 10 new guest bedrooms is deemed to fall under
the category of 'tourism development' which is a main town centre use as defined by the NPPF
(2019). The development is not within or on the edge of a town centre and is not identified as a
sequentially preferable location for new hotel bedrooms in the Development Plan. A sequential test
of some degree is therefore required.

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) is clear that the application of a sequential test
needs to be proportionate and appropriate for the given proposal. As outlined above, the proposal
appears essentially linked to the existing use of the building and therefore it would not be pragmatic
to request a full sequential test of the Borough is undertaken for alternative sites. A statement
outlining how the bedrooms would be linked to the existing facility should be sufficient.

As outlined above, the location of new guest bedrooms in this location would not conform to
development plan policies regarding the location of new visitor accommodation. An assessment
therefore needs to be made as to whether there are other material considerations to indicate
departing from these policies, such as keeping a heritage asset in active use and therefore making it
accessible to the public.

Green Belt

It is noted that approval has been granted for an extension to increase dining capacity
(14387/APP/2018/1383) and that this is yet to be completed. It was concluded that this development
would be inappropriate in the Green Belt, but that very special circumstances existed to outweigh
this harm and any other harm resulting from the proposal.

The proposal would have a materially larger footprint and volume than the one that was approved
and therefore a greater impact on openness from a spatial perspective. It is noted however that the
footprint and volume is less than the previously refused application (14387/APP/2020/4126). It does
not appear that any views would be materially impacted when the approved scheme is considered. It
is also noted that there would be some intrusion into existing soft landscaping areas to facilitate an

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



increase in car parking.

The very special circumstances will need to be reviewed to see if they all remain relevant,
particularly noting that the restoration of the building has been completed and the restaurant/bar has
been operating since 2018, with an option to increase capacity still remaining under the previous
permission.

Please note that very special circumstances must not only outweigh the harm to the openness
caused by the application, but also any other harm resulting from the proposal. Comments on
conservation and design will therefore be particularly pertinent.

PARTNERSHIPS AND BUSINESS ENGAGEMENT MANAGER:

The application to extend the previously approved extension is supported from an economic
development perspective. The investment in the premises will sustain a resource for the local
community and it is refreshing to see investment in a commercial concern that is not linked to
residential development.

It is noted that the extension will accommodate 10 ensuite bedrooms that will be used to provide bed
and breakfast accommodation.

The application is supported for a number of reasons. It serves to secure the future of an
established and popular community facility. The applicant advises that this development is crucial to
the future viability of the business and given the financial challenges the licenced premises faced it is
difficult to argue with this view.

The days of public houses in locations such as the Six Bells surviving on 'locals' calling in for a
couple of drinks are long gone. Public houses outside town centres have had to shift their focus to
being family friendly establishments offering food and as with the Six Bells, party and function
facilities.

The closure of public houses' which do not or can not adapt to changing economic circumstances is
a very real concern. Real Estate advisers the Altus Group reported that already in 2020 (up to the
middle of September) 315 pubs have closed. This follows on from 2019 when 473 pubs in England
closed or were converted to other purposes. 2018 saw 914 pubs close.

It is noted that the proposal will create and secure ten full time and twenty part time jobs. At a time
when unemployment is rising this is welcome news. Due to the hours the licenced sector operate
and the fact that the proposal is to offer bed and breakfast, it is anticipated that the jobs on offer will
by and large be taken by members of the immediate or local community. The creation of new
employment in the licenced premises sector is at present very much against the current trend. At
the end of September 2020 Fullers Brewery, one of the region's biggest owners of public houses
announced that it was likely to make at least 10% of its staff in its chain redundant.

It is also worth noting that the contract for delivering the new development could potentially go to a
local building contractor. Whilst this cannot be guaranteed, developments of this scale are likely to
attract local firms to bid. They will have the advantage of already using mainly local employees and
source materials through local supply chains.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

It should be noted that the proposal is for 8 no. guest rooms and not 10 no. ensuite bedrooms as
referred to in the comments above.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



TREES AND LANDSCAPING OFFICER:

This site is occupied by a grade Il listed building (formerly a pub) and ancillary buildings located at
the bottom end (south) of Ducks Hill Road on the west side. The site is predominantly flat. The
buildings sit within a spacious and very sylvan plot, an outlier of Mad Bess Woods, situated to the
north. Parking and informal external amenity space is located among the open woodland with the
buildings located at the southern end of the site. The trees are not protected by TPO or
Conservation Area, however, their collective value adds significantly to the character and
appearance of the area forming an attractive interface between the more suburban character to the
south and the rural Green Belt land to the north. The site lies within the Green Belt.

Comment

The site has been the subject of several applications in recent years, most recently application ref.
2020/2775. The current proposal is to extend the footprint of the 2018/1383 approved scheme and
add a single-storey extension to provide accommodation. The proposal is supported by a 'draft' tree
report, by Usherwood, dated August 2020. This includes an arboricultural impact assessment, draft
arboricultural method staetement and tree protection plan. The report has identified and assessed
the condition and value of 33 trees. There are no 'A' grade trees. 21 trees are category 'B'; T1,T2,
T6, T7, T11-14, T17-20, T22, T25-27, T30, T32-34 and T39 (all oaks and Field maples. The
remaining trees are 'C' or 'U' grade, categories that are not normally considered to be a constraint
on development. Three 'C' grade trees will be removed to facilitate the development; T4,T8 and T9.
Two 'U' grade trees (very poor quality / condition); T5 and T16 will be removed for sound
arboricultural reasons. Further to the need to remove selected trees, a 'draft' method statement
describes how no-dig porous surfacing for car parking can be achieved. - Final details were 'under
discussion' at the time of the report. A tree pruning works schedule is also being drawn up to specify
require management of the existing trees on the site. There is no objection to the scheme with
regard to the minimal tree loss and landscape impact, subject to the special circumstances required
to justify the development within the Green Belt.

Recommendation
No objection subject to pre-commencement condition RES8 and conditions RES9 (parts 1,2,4 and
5) and RES10.

ACCESS OFFICER:

This proposal seeks to provide a restaurant on the ground floor with 8 overnight B & B style
bedrooms within the roof space of a previously approved structure. In framing the following
accessibility observations reference is made to the 2016 London Plan and its contained policy 4.5.
Reference is also made to the 2019 (intend to publish) London Plan and its policy D12, E10 and
T6.5.

1. No concerns are raised on the four proposed accessible parking spaces.

2. The accessible bedroom shown on plan should accord with Figure 52, incorporating either Figure
30 or 33 of British Standard BS8300-2:2018.

3. In accordance with Policy D12 details should be submitted to ensure that disabled people can
evacuate from the intended first floor accommodation in a safe and dignified way during a fire
evacuation situation. The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and
services from discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a
disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within the
structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be incorporated
with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to take steps to address
barriers that impede disabled people.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



Conclusion: further details are requested in respect of point 3 above.
HIGHWAYS OFFICER:
Site Characteristics & Background

The site consists of an existing Public House (PH) which is proposed to be extended with the
introduction of a C1 use '8 guest room' facility. An established vehicular access serves a 32 space
car park for the existing A3 use.

The address is located in Ruislip on Ducks Hill Road which is a heavily trafficked 'Classified' road
and is located adjacent to Ducks Hill garden centre and in proximity of Ruislip Lido. This section of
road is generally dominated by residential units devoid of on-site parking provisions. Ducks Hill Road
is extensively covered by all day waiting restrictions in order to assist in maintaining an unimpeded
flow of traffic on this heavily trafficked road. A relatively new Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ)
encompassing the address and general location has been introduced in the area and operates for
seven days a week between the hours of 9am and 7pm. The PTAL for the site is considered as low
at a level of 2 and therefore heightens dependency on use of private motor transport.

A recent and similar application (14387/APP/2020/2775) for a restaurant extension and a '10- guest
room' Hotel was refused on excessive scale but not on transport/Highway grounds.

Parking Provision

Local Plan: Part 2 Policy - DMT 6 requires that new development will only be permitted where it
accords with the Council's adopted parking standards unless it can be demonstrated that a deviation
from the standard would not result in a deleterious impact on the surrounding road network.

In order to comply to the maximum parking standard for the A3 extension there would be a
requirement for 4-5 on-plot on plot spaces to be provided (based on 1 space per 35m2 GIFA) whilst
the '8' guest room C1 use class provision would demand an individual site assessment.

Any final quantum would normally be expected to be allocated from the existing 32 spaces
designated for the current A3 use although this allocation would potentially diminish availability for
established restaurant patrons and is therefore undesirable. However it is noted that the existing
provision exceeds prevailing adopted standards related to public houses located outside town
centres hence it could be argued that there is an over-provision in the first place.

Notwithstanding this point, the applicant has indicated an extension to the car park which would
facilitate 10 additional spaces on amenity space (protected by 'permeable matting') adjacent to the
existing car park hard standing with the addition of 2 new disabled compliant bays within the existing
hard standing area of the car park. In total an additional 12 spaces would be provided which is
considered representative and therefore acceptable given the likely parking demands of the
proposal.

In summary, there are no specific parking related concerns with this proposal given the extensive
parking controls on the local highway network which would lessen any potential untoward
displacement onto the public highway road network as a consequence of the extension and C1
provision.

Disabled Compliant Parking Provision
In accord with the parking standard - 10% of parking spaces should be disabled compliant equating

to 1 space. 2 are to be provided within the proposed total quantum. There are no further
observations.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



Cycling Parking Provision
The applicant informs that there are 10 on-plot spaces in place.
A3 use

In accord with the parking standard, a secure and accessible space should be provided per 20 staff
and 20 customers.

C1use
One secure and accessible space should be provided per 10 staff.

The above requirements have not been demonstrated as part of the submission but can be secured
via planning condition.

Vehicular Trip Generation

Local Plan: Part 2 Policies - DMT 1 and DMT 2 require the Council to consider whether the traffic
generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction
capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

It is anticipated that there will be no measurable or specific impact on the 'key' peak morning and
afternoon traffic periods given the scale of proposal and activity profiles which are statistically
concentrated outside peak periods. Hence any uplift would be considered marginal in generation
terms and therefore can be absorbed within the local road network without notable detriment to
traffic congestion and road safety.

Vehicular Access Provision

The existing vehicular access into the site is to remain and would serve both the proposed A3 & C1
use class components. This shared arrangement is considered satisfactory and fit for purpose.

Operational Refuse Requirements

Historically the Council's Waste Management (WM) department have stated that stopping a refuse
vehicle outside of this address is not permitted owing to the presence of parking restrictions on the
immediate highway (operating seven days a week from 8am to 6.30pm). They would therefore be
precluded from exercising their refuse collection duty from the public highway. It has been
suggested that their vehicles should be able to enter and leave the site envelope in a forward gear or
reverse into the site for a distance not exceeding 12m which, on safety grounds, is the
recommended best practice for large service vehicles.

Unfortunately it is not feasible for refuse vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward gear due to
internal site constraints nor would the Highway Authority suggest reversing into the site from the
heavily trafficked Ducks Hill Road as general road safety could be compromised even with
adherence to the aforementioned maximum recommended reversing distance of 12m.

Refuse collection should therefore be undertaken directly from the public highway, as is norm,
irrespective of any waiting restrictions present on the public highway which to not preclude the
stopping of a refuse vehicle whilst exercising their refuse collection duty on this or any other public
highway.

There are no further observations.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



Construction Logistics Plan (CLP)

A full and detailed CLP will be a requirement given the constraints and sensitivities of the local road
network in order to avoid/minimise potential detriment to the public realm. It will need to be secured
under planning condition.

Conclusion

The application has been reviewed by the Highway Authority who are satisfied that the proposal
would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress, and would not raise any measurable
highway safety concerns, in accordance with Local Plan: Part 2 Development Plan Policies DMT 1,
DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies 6.3, 6.9, and 6.13 of the London Plan (2016).

CONSERVATION OFFICER:
1. Summary of comments: Objection
2. Historic Environment Designation (s)

- Grade Il Listed Building - The Six Bells PH - NHLE: 1080240
- Ruislip Motte and Bailey Archaeological Priority Area (APA)

3. Assessment - Background/ Significance

The origin of The Six Bells public house (PH) is thought to date from the late 17th/ early 18th century
however the site has benefitted from alterations over time. The building is originally of timber frame
construction and externally finished in a painted brick to the front and side however the rear
elevations remain as exposed red brick. It is a two-storey building with a cellar. The barrel drop can
be seen along the pavement to the front of the building. There is a notable dentil detail below the half-
hipped roof form, which is externally finished in plain clay tiles. Two tall chimney stacks bookend the
original portion of the building along the south-east side elevation and one to the north-west side
elevation. The front elevation is double fronted and symmetrical in appearance with a centrally
positioned entrance door and a 19th century hood over the door with decorative barge boards. The
former door comprised of a 3 panel door however this appears to have been altered to a modern 4
panel door. The replacement of the front door does not appear to be detailed as part of the
consented works in 2018, therefore is likely to be unauthorised. The sash windows are positioned
either side of the entrance door at ground and first floor. The ground floor sash windows are large,
recessed openings with vertically sliding 10 over 10 multi-paned sash windows. The sash boxes are
set behind the brickwork, a requirement following the 1774 Building Act. The first floor windows are
proportionately smaller providing a sense of hierarchy to the building. The windows are of historic
interest contributing to the building's significance. They can be a good indicator of the building's
historic development overtime.

Evidence of historic structural movement can be seen by the existence of traditional wall tie pattress
plates particularly towards the southern end of the building.

The building has benefitted from a number of additions overtime, including a collection of 20th
century single storey built forms to the rear comprising of the kitchens and toilets. The piecemeal
nature of the rear additions somewhat detracts from the overall composition of the building. There is
also a single storey addition to the north-west side elevation used as a dining area. This is
subservient in character, externally finished in dark stained weatherboarding and a plain tiled roof to
match the original property. It was not uncommon for traditional buildings to have a small number of
ancillary structures within the associated site area, usually used as a store or to house animals.
From looking at historic maps there were a couple of small ancillary structures to the north-east of

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



the main building.

Originally the building was formed part of a small hamlet historically known as Cheapside. The
hamlet of Cheapside formed part of a group of three hamlets on the edge of what was Common
Wood outside the enclosed Park Wood in Ruislip, the other two were known as Cannons Bridge and
Park Hearne. Collectively they were referred to as Ruislip Common, as we know it today.
Documentary evidence references Cannons Bridge as the earliest hamlet within the area. It wasn't
until a mid-16th century Terrier that the land near Cannons Bridge was referred to as Cheapside.
However, in the late 17th century it became known as 'in the withies' and then later changed to Withy
Lane during the Victorian era. Prior to The Six Bells the small hamlet was served by a public house
known as 'The Black Potts' which was located to the west of the application site. The license to
serve beer/alcohol at The Six Bells was ideal due to its proximity to the road along a historic route
and was most likely to reason The Black Potts ceased to exist. It was part of the route from
Rickmansworth to Ealing, via Ruislip (a notable manorial holding). This would have aided in its
establishment as a public house, as a stop along this historic route as well as serving the
community of the small hamlet. (Source: Ruislip, Northwood and Eastcote Local History Society,
Journal 2004, Article 04/1 by Eileen M. Bowlt)

The heritage value of the Listed Building is duly recognised by its notable historic and architectural
interest. It forms part of the history of the area and is a good example of a traditional building of its
time. The strong communal value of the site is evident and contributes to the significance of the
heritage asset. It must be duly noted, as defined in Annex 2: Glossary, National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), June 2019 is, 'Significance derives not only from a heritage asset's physical
presence but also from its setting.'

The setting of the heritage asset and impact of the proposed development has been assessed with
reference to Historic England 2017 Good Practice Advice Planning Note 3 (GPANS3), The Setting of
Heritage Assets.

The surroundings of a heritage asset contribute to how it is experienced, and the setting of a
heritage asset can be influenced by a number of natural and/or human factors. Whilst the wider
environment to the east and south of the site has changed, to the north and west it has remained
undeveloped. This strongly contributes to the sites sense of openness and semi-rural environment,
appropriately protected by the Greenbelt designation of the land. It is a key reminder of the once rural
past of the area and small hamlets which established settlement in this location. The immediate
experience of the Listed Building has somewhat been compromised by the existing rear additions
and the large expanse of hard standing to the north. Nevertheless, the semi-rural environment, wider
woodland backdrop and low-density of development neighbouring the site contributes to the
building's setting. Whilst some additions are not entirely in keeping, the hierarchy of the site has
been maintained. The 2018 approved structure to the rear is intended to remain subservient to the
original building. These elements form part of the building's setting, positively contributing to its
significance.

As briefly mentioned above, consent was granted in 2018 for a subservient extension to the rear of
the building to allow for an increased dining provision for the business, enabling the repair of the
building at that time. Whilst the historic portion of the building has been restored and is currently in
use, the rear addition is yet to be constructed. As existing a large, enclosed timber pergola structure
with a solid flat roof form has been erected on site providing a substantial area of covered seating.
The structure has been enclosed with Perspex and extends up to Ducks Hill Road. This structure is
located within the curtilage of the Listed Building and has a negative impact upon its setting. It does
not benefit from planning permission or listed building consent.

4. Assessment - Impact

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



The principle of the proposed development would be the same as the previous scheme, refused in
December 2020 (planning refs:14387/APP/2020/2775 and 14387/APP/2020/2776). In comparison to
the refused scheme the number of bedrooms proposed has been reduced to 8. The built form itself
has been reduced at the rear, the drawing annotation indicates 3m, in any instance this would need
to be accurately checked on the submitted drawing. The building would be the same width as
previously proposed, positioned in the same location and proximity to the listed building. The design
concept would still adopt the barn-style approach.

In light of the above, the proposed development would still have a harmful impact on the setting of
the listed building. The assessment below is not significantly different to comments provided in
relation to the refused scheme.

The submitted existing and proposed floor plans fail to include the small single storey structure
attached to the south-east side elevation of the listed building. This should be clearly included on the
submitted drawings to ensure plans accurately depict the existing site situation.

Paragraph 1.7.1 within the submitted Heritage Impact Assessment refers to the building as 'at risk’
however it is clearly evident the building has been restored alongside the recent erection of the large
enclosed pergola structure, with the site in use as a bar and grill restaurant.

Whilst the principle of a structure in the proposed location on the site has been established in order
to increase the dining capacity for the restaurant, the 2018 approved, barn-like structure would
remain subservient to the listed building and at such time of approval a balanced judgement was
made taking into account the condition of the listed building.

The proposed development, which would be notably larger than the approved structure, would
negatively affect the setting of the Listed Building. The building would be bulkier in form exacerbated
by its increased scale, bulk, footprint and height. It would have a greater dominant presence on the
site and be highly visible from the street scene and within the site itself. The development would fail
to respect the scale and setting of the original Listed Building. The lack of subservience would
diminish any sense of hierarchy to the site. The Listed Building in itself is an important historic built
asset recognised by its Grade Il designation and strongly contributes to the historic settlement of the
area. The existing and proposed additions to the building and site, cumulatively, would no longer be
ancillary to the original building harming its significance and setting.

The 2-storey structure would fail to relate to the original, approved, design concept as an ancillary,
subtle addition to the site, competing with the original listed building. The roof ridge height appears to
match the listed building along the south east elevation however it appears to be slightly higher along
the north west elevation. This may be due to variations to the ground levels however the
development should remain entirely subordinate to the principal heritage asset.

As noted above whilst the design of the building appears to be somewhat influenced by a barn style
structure, as proposed it fails to respect and truly embrace the architectural principles and qualities
of a traditional agricultural barn. The barn structure would dominate the site as the larger built form
drawing undue attention to it. The reference made in the supporting design and access statement
and heritage statement shows a photograph of the Grade | listed medieval barn in Harmondsworth
however incorrectly describes it as The Great Barn in Ruislip. In this instance a threshing barn would
be an inappropriate design precedent. It would establish a farmstead character to the site.
Historically the site has not operated as a typical historic farmstead, the concept of erecting a barn
style building would deviate from the character and significance of the site as a public house, in turn
failing to respect or preserve the setting of the Listed Building.

Historic timber framed barns are typically characterised by steeply pitched, tiled roof forms. The roof
form tends to dominate the appearance of the building, in turn reducing the bulk of the structure,

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



above the ground floor level. The proposed roof pitch would be shallow resulting in a higher eaves
line and the timber clad elevations dominating the appearance of the building. Whilst the building
may be reduced in length, the bulk and volume would essentially be relocated as part of the first-floor
space.

The inclusion of multiple roof lights and windows to the gable ends of the proposed barn would result
in a pastiche building. Furthermore, it is unclear why a window opening is required into what appears
to be a storeroom, to the front of the building at first floor, further obscured by shelving internally. The
submitted drawings do not include the detailed infrastructure that would be necessary for the
proposed use, including soil vent pipes, mechanical ventilation, rainwater goods, fire safety
measures etc. Such infrastructure poorly applied can diminish the overall design aesthetic. It is
assumed the proposed lift would be a platform lift therefore not requiring an over run. The inclusion
of a lift over-run as an 'add-on' feature would be inappropriate and an incongruous feature
considering the slope of the roof.

The use of the roof space for 8 guest rooms would establish a permanent alternative new use on the
site. There is no evidence before me indicating that the site or building was used primarily as a
historic inn.

The argument that the development is required for the preservation of the Listed Building is
unfounded and lacks evidence to justify the proposal. As existing the Listed Building has been
restored and there is no evidence before me as to why the approved additional dining facility would
not enable the continued care and maintenance of the building. Any development proposed as a
means of supporting the care and repair of a listed building must be considered for the benefit of a
heritage asset itself.

The submitted information fails to demonstrate the need for the specified 8 guest rooms and
increase to the internal dining capacity, which appears to be laid out as an event space. It would
need to be clearly demonstrated in any instance that the income generated from the proposed
development would solely be used for the care and repair of the designated heritage asset. As
submitted, it would fail to demonstrate that the proposal would be minimum necessary to secure the
long-term future of the designated heritage asset. In any instance, if we were to consider this type of
development, quantitative evidence would be required to justify the harm caused by the development
and it would need to meet a number of tests.

To confirm the building was not formally included on Historic England's Heritage at Risk register.
The 2018 approved scheme recognised that the building was in need of repair, with the additional
dining capacity contributing to the future preservation of the building. The Listed Building's former
'state’ is now irrelevant taking into account the condition of the building at present.

The proposal appears to be connected to the circumstances of the present time rather than the
urgent need for repairs to the Listed Building to allow for its use. There is no indication on how
permanent the current circumstances are. The permanent nature and negative impact of the
proposed development must be materially considered.

The development would detract from the site's significance as a public house and would be
considered a negative contributor to the setting of the heritage asset. The proposed development
would result in significant permanent harm to the setting of the Listed Building. It would need to be
noted that harm to the setting of a heritage asset is not limited to physical or visual impact. Other
considerations including to how users interact with site and its history form part of the building's
significance.

The proposed development would erode the setting of the Listed Building. Taking into consideration
the paragraph 196 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019) the proposed development

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



would result in less than substantial harm to the setting and significance of the listed building. In any
instance under sections 16 and 66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 a statutory duty is placed upon the decision maker(s) to pay special attention to the
preservation of the Listed Building and its setting. Paragraph 193 (NPPF, 2019) would also be
relevant in this instance.

5. Conclusion: Objection - Harm to the setting of the Listed Building
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

COMMUNITY FACILITY

Paragraph 92 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that planning policies and decisions
should plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities
(such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public
houses and places of worship) and other local services to enhance the sustainability of
communities and residential environments.

Policy HC7 of the Publication London Plan (December 2020) states that planning decisions
should:

1) protect public houses where they have a heritage, economic, social or cultural value to
local communities, or where they contribute to wider policy objectives for town centres,
night-time economy areas, Cultural Quarters and Creative Enterprise Zones

2) support proposals for new public houses where they would stimulate town centres,
Cultural Quarters, the night-time economy and mixed-use development, taking into account
potential negative impacts.

Policy CI1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and
Policy DMCI 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) generally supports the retention of community facilities.

As evidenced above, it is considered that there is general support for proposals which
retain community facilities such as public houses.

PRINCIPLE OF GUESTHOUSE USE

Under application reference 14387/APP/2018/1383, it was established that the application
site was considered to fall within both Use Class A3 and A4. Following changes to the Use
Classes Order on 1st September 2020, Use Class A3 would now fall under Use Class E
and Use Class A4 would now fall under Sui Generis. Based on this, the existing use of the
site is considered to be Sui Generis.

It is unclear from the application submission whether the proposed guesthouse use (Use
Class C1) would be ancillary to the existing use on site. Nonetheless, the proposed
development is considered to propose a change in the use of the site, although it would still
be categorised as a mixed use (Sui Generis).

Paragraph 86 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that Local Planning Authorities should
apply a sequential test to planning applications for main town centre uses which are neither
in an existing centre nor in accordance with an up-to-date plan. The addition of 10 new
guest bedrooms is deemed to fall under the category of 'tourism development' which is a
main town centre use as defined by the NPPF (February 2019).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



However, the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) is clear that the application of a
sequential test needs to be proportionate and appropriate for the given proposal. As
outlined above, the proposal appears essentially linked to the existing use of the building
and therefore it would not be pragmatic to request that a full sequential test of the Borough
is undertaken for alternative sites.

Policy DME 5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that the Council will support a range of visitor accommodation,
conference and related uses in accessible sustainable locations, as defined in the Site
Allocations and Designations document, subject to:

i) A high standard of building and site design, including landscaping and placement of
signage that makes a positive contribution to local amenity and the streetscape;

i) Provision of an accessible layout and rooms in accordance with Policy DME 6:
Accessible Hotels and Visitor Accommodation; and

iii) No adverse impact on nearby land uses or on the amenity of either adjoining occupants
or proposed occupants by virtue of noise, lighting, emissions, privacy, overlooking, any
other potential nuisance, parking or traffic congestion.

The application site is not located in an accessible and sustainable location, as indicated
by the low Public Transport Accessibility Level of 1b. The site is also not within or on the
edge of a town centre and is not identified as a sequentially preferable location for new
hotel bedrooms in the Development Plan. The principle of such a proposed use is not
therefore supported and an assessment of other material considerations is required to
establish whether there is a case to depart from these policies.

In terms of the criteria attached to Policy DME 5, the design of the proposed development
is considered in Section 07.03 and 07.07, the impact of the proposal on neighbour amenity
is addressed within Section 07.08 of the report, accessibility matters are addressed in
Section 07.12 of the report and the proposed landscaping arrangements are considered in
Section 07.14 of the report.

EMPLOYMENT GENERATION

Based on the 'Case of Need' document submitted by the applicant, the proposed use
would require receptionists, night porters, additional cleaners, bedroom maids, room
service attendants, busboys, additional restaurant servers and additional chefs. The
applicant therefore anticipates that the new BnB operation will create an extra 24 jobs for
the company.

Consideration is given to the HCA's Employment Density Guide 3rd Edition (November
2015) which states that 1 job is generated per 5 beds for a limited service/budget hotel.
Accordingly, the proposed 8 guest rooms would generate 2 jobs. The HCA's Employment
Density Guide 3rd Edition (November 2015) also states that 1 job is generated per 15 to 20
square metres of restaurant floorspace. The proposed 183.17 square metres of restaurant
floorspace would therefore generate between 9 and 12 jobs. Together, the proposed use
would generate between 11 and 14 jobs.

Based on the same guidelines, the approved scheme (planning permission reference
14387/APP/2018/1383) would generate between 6 and 8 jobs if implemented in full. As
such, the proposed development would generate between 3 and 8 jobs more jobs than the
scheme previously permitted. This is a material planning consideration which is afforded
weight in the consideration of the proposed development in the following sections.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

ARCHAEOLOGY

Policy DMHB 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that the Council, as advised by the Greater London Archaeological
Advisory Service, will ensure that sites of archaeological interest within or, where
appropriate, outside, designated areas are not disturbed. If that cannot be avoided,
satisfactory measures must be taken to mitigate the impacts of the proposals through
archaeological fieldwork to investigate and record remains in advance of development
works. This should include proposals for the recording, archiving and reporting of any
archaeological finds.

The application site forms part of the Ruislip Motte & Bailey Archaeological Priority Area. As
such, the Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service were consulted as part of the
application and advised that groundworks are unlikely to have a major impact but may
reveal evidence related to the occupation of this northernmost part of the historic village.
Although the development could cause harm to archaeological remains, the significance of
the asset and scale of harm to it is such that the effect can be managed using a planning
condition. If recommended for approval, a condition would secure the submission of a
written scheme of investigation. Subject to such a condition, the proposal would not be
considered contrary to Policy DMHB 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020).

LISTED ASSETS

The application site does not form part of a Conservation Area but does include the Grade Il
Listed Six Bells Public House. Accordingly, the following planning policies are considered
relevant:

Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that development affecting heritage
assets and their settings should conserve their significance, by being sympathetic to their
form, scale, materials and architectural detail.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) seeks
a quality of design in all new development that enhances and contributes to the area in
terms of form, scale and materials; is appropriate to the identity and context of the
townscape; and would improve the quality of the public realm and respect local character.

Policy HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) states
that the Council will conserve and enhance Hillingdon's distinct and varied environment, its
settings and the wider historic landscape.

Policy DMHB 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

A) The Council will expect development proposals to avoid harm to the historic
environment. Development that has an effect on heritage assets will only be supported
where:

i) it sustains and enhances the significance of the heritage asset and puts them into viable
uses consistent with their conservation;

ii) it will not lead to a loss of significance or harm to an asset, unless it can be

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



demonstrated that it will provide public benefit that would outweigh the harm or loss, in
accordance with the NPPF;

iii) it makes a positive contribution to the local character and distinctiveness of the area;

iv) any extensions or alterations are designed in sympathy, without detracting from or
competing with the heritage asset;

v) the proposal would relate appropriately in terms of siting, style, scale, massing, height,
design and materials;

vi) buildings and structures within the curtilage of a heritage asset, or in close proximity to
it, do not compromise its setting; and

vii) opportunities are taken to conserve or enhance the setting, so that the significance of
the asset can be appreciated more readily.

Policy DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

A) Applications for Listed Building Consent and planning permission to alter, extend, or
change the use of a statutorily Listed Building will only be permitted if they are considered
to retain its significance and value and are appropriate in terms of the fabric, historic
integrity, spatial quality and layout of the building. Any additions or alterations to a Listed
Building should be sympathetic in terms of scale, proportion, detailed design, materials and
workmanship.

B) Applications should include a Heritage Statement that demonstrates a clear
understanding of the importance of the building and the impact of the proposals on its
significance.

C) The substantial harm to or total loss of significance of a statutory Listed Building will
only be permitted in exceptional circumstances when the nature of the heritage asset
prevents all reasonable use of the building, no viable use can be found through marketing,
grant-funding or charitable or public ownership and the loss is outweighed by bringing the
site back into use. In such circumstances, full archaeological recording of the building will
be required.

D) Planning permission will not be granted for proposals which are considered detrimental
to the setting of a Listed Building.

In order to consider the impact of the proposed development, it is considered pertinent to
quantify the previously approved development and compare it to the currently proposed
development.

Based on measurements taken from the plans, the barn structure approved under
permission references 14387/APP/2018/1383 and 14387/APP/2018/1385 approximately
measured as follows:

- Length: 18.8m

- Width: 6.33m

- Height at the eaves: 2.92m

- Highest point: 7.04m

- Footprint: 6.33 x 18.8 = 119.04m2

- Volume: (2.92 x 6.33 x 18.8) + (4.12 x 6.33 x 18.8)/2 = 347.5 + 245.1 = 592.6m3

Based on measurements taken from the submitted plans, the proposed barn structure
would measure as follows:

- Length: 20.33m

- Width: 9.01m

- Height at the eaves: 4m

- Highest point: 7.75m

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



- Footprint: 20.33 x 9.01 = 183.17m2
- Volume: (4 x 9.01 x 20.33) + (3.75 x 9.01 x 20.33)/2 = 732.69 + 343.45 = 1076.14m3

Evidently, the proposed development would increase the footprint of the development by
64.13m2 (equating to 53.87% increase) and would increase the volume of the development
by 483.54m3 (equating to 81.57% increase).

In terms of the harm posed to the setting of the Grade Il Listed Building, it is noted that
paragraph 193 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that great weight should be given to the
conservation of heritage assets. It is acknowledged that the height and length of the
proposed development has been reduced when compared to the previously refused
applications (references 14387/APP/2020/2775 and 14387/APP/2020/2776). Specifically,
the harm to the setting of the Listed Building should be viewed in the context of the
previously approved application which establishes merit for the development of the footprint
adjoining the Public House.

As stated by the Council's Conservation Officer, the proposed development would
negatively affect the setting of the Listed Building by virtue of its scale, footprint and height.
It would have a dominant presence on the site and be highly visible from the street scene
and within the site itself. Although the height has been reduced to match that of the exiting
Public House, the proposed building would not be considered ancillary to the main Listed
Building and the infrastructure associated with the proposed use would further erode the
setting of the Listed Building. Accordingly, the proposed development would harm the
significance and setting of the heritage asset.

In this instance, the extent of harm is considered to be 'less than substantial', therefore
requiring consideration of paragraph 196 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(February 2019). This states that where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing
its optimum viable use.

It is noted that the development approved under application references
14387/APP/2018/1383 and 14387/APP/2018/1385 provided public benefit by restoring the
Grade |l Listed Building, reversing the harm caused to its significance, generating local
employment, supporting the viability of the business, supporting the preservation of the
heritage asset and providing a community hub.

Significantly, the Grade Il Listed Building has already been restored and is operating as a
public house. In this respect, the harm caused to the heritage asset has been reversed and
is not applicable to the current situation. It is acknowledged, however, that the costs of
such restoration do have a financial impact on what can be brought forward on-site in
terms of further development. Although this is not a public benefit of the current application,
it is inherently linked and is therefore afforded some weight in the consideration process.

Based on the HCA's Employment Density Guide 3rd Edition (November 2015), the
proposed development would generate a range between 11 and 14 jobs. In comparison,
the approved scheme would have generated between 6 and 8 jobs. The proposed
development would therefore generate between 3 and 8 jobs more than the scheme
previously permitted. It should be noted that the applicant states that the development
would create 24 jobs and that the development would utilise local business for its delivery.
Accordingly, the employment generation of the proposed development is considered to be

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



a public benefit of the scheme, although this benefit can be applied to most forms of
development in some capacity and is only given limited weight.

It is acknowledged that the proposed development would support the viability of the
business and would in turn support the preservation of the heritage asset. This
consideration is undermined, to an extent, by the fact that the site has already been
permitted a barn extension which would expand its capacity and support its viability. It is
noted, however, that at least 315 public houses have closed in England in 2020 and follows
the closure of 473 public houses in 2019 and 914 public houses in 2018. The closure of
public houses which do not or cannot adapt to changing economic circumstances is
therefore a very real concern.

In terms of the circumstances specific to the Six Bells Public House, it is acknowledged
that the Public House is only one of three public houses which provides such a use to the
local community (based on a 800 metre radius survey of the site). It is worth noting that the
site is also not located within a local centre or town centre and does not benefit from the
support of such co-locations. This is considered to support the need to diversify the
business in order to safeguard its long term viability.

It is agreed that public houses form important hubs for communities. Specifically,
paragraph 92 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that planning decisions should plan
positively for the provision and use of community facilities such as public houses to
enhance the sustainability of communities and residential environments. This is also
supported by Policy HC7 of the Publication London Plan. In terms of the current application,
it is important to factor in the significant public support for the proposed development,
taking the form of a supporting petition with 30 signatories, as well as support from the
Eastcote Conservation Panel, the Eastcote Residents Association and the Ruislip,
Northwood and Eastcote Local History Society.

As addressed in other sections of the report, planning conditions will also be applied to
secure further benefits from the proposed development if recommended for approval. This
includes ecological benefits which are to be secured as part of an ecological enhancement
scheme.

In accordance with paragraph 196 of the NPPF (February 2019), the 'less than substantial
harm' posed to the setting of the heritage asset has been weighed against the public
benefits of the proposal. In the context of Public Houses in England and more specifically
the Six Bells Public House, the proposed development is considered to provide public
benefits to outweigh the harm posed. Conditions are also proposed to safeguard the
special architectural and historic interest of the listed building. On balance, the proposed
development is accepted and is not considered contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies DMHB 1 and
DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January
2020), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016), Policy HC1 of the London Plan
(December 2020) and the NPPF (February 2019).
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to the consideration of this application. There is no requirement to consult
the aerodrome safeguarding authorities on a development of this nature in this location.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

GREEN BELT

The suitability of the site to accommodate the proposed development is notably limited due

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



to its location within Green Belt designated land. The proposal is therefore subject to the
planning policy considerations stated below.

Paragraph 143 of the NPPF (February 2019) sets out that inappropriate development is, by
definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in 'very special
circumstances'. Paragraph 144 continues this, stating:

"When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special circumstances' will
not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and
any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations."

Paragraph 145 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that a local planning authority should
regard the construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt but that
exceptions to this include:

a) buildings for agriculture and forestry;

b) the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or a
change of use) for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and burial grounds and
allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not
conflict with the purposes of including land within it;

c) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate
additions over and above the size of the original building;

d) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger than the one it replaces;

e) limited infilling in villages;

f) limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the
development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and

g) limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land,
whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would:

- not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing
development; or

- not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the development
would re-use previously developed land and contribute to meeting an identified affordable
housing need within the area of the local planning authority.

Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (March 2016) supports this, stating:

"The strongest protection should be given to London's Green Belt, in accordance with
national guidance. Inappropriate development should be refused, except in very special
circumstances. Development will be supported if it is appropriate and helps secure the
objectives of improving the Green Belt as set out in national guidance."

In terms of local policy, the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012) gives strong protection to Green Belt land. Policy EM2 states that the Council will
seek to maintain the current extent of the Green Belt and any proposals for development in
the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will be assessed against national and London
Plan (March 2016) policies, including the very special circumstances test.

Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

A) Inappropriate development in the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will not be
permitted unless there are very special circumstances.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



B) Extensions and redevelopment on sites in the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land
will be permitted only where the proposal would not have a greater impact on the openness
of the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land, and the purposes of including land within it,
than the existing development, having regard to:

i) the height and bulk of the existing building on the site;

ii) the proportion of the site that is already developed;

iii) the footprint, distribution and character of the existing buildings on the site;

iv) the relationship of the proposal with any development on the site that is to be retained;
and

v) the visual amenity and character of the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land.

As noted above, paragraph 145 part c) of the NPPF (February 2019) states that new
buildings in the Green Belt may not be inappropriate development if it is an extension or
alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate additions over and
above the size of the original building. Part d) of the same paragraph also states that the
replacement of a building may not be inappropriate if the new building is in the same use
and not materially larger than the one it replaces.

The principle of a barn extension on Green Belt designated land has already been
established by the grant of planning permission reference 14387/APP/2018/1383. This
permission noted that the floor area of the pre-existing dilapidated outbuildings and play
area, which have now been removed, equated to 276 square metres of development. It
was therefore acknowledged that the barn extension building did not exceed this quantum
of development. Notwithstanding this, it was considered that the building would have a
greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt in this location, given that parts of the
structure would be higher than the demolished structures and would have a greater mass.
The development was considered to constitute inappropriate development in the Green
Belt and required very special circumstances.

The following very special circumstances were considered:

i) The proposals will reverse the loss of significance and harm that the last few years of
neglect have caused. The extra restaurant space that the extension will provide, will help
the building preserve itself and is designed to complement the character of the Six Bells.
ii) The proposed scheme will restore the local significance of the Six Bells.

i) The extension is designed to provide the accommodation to enable long term viability for
any business run within it and at the same time be sympathetic to the character of the
listed building.

iv) The proposed extension is designed in form and materiality to complement the existing
building.

v) The completed scheme will result in a much improved quality of setting for the Six Bells,
allowing it to be a more positive part of the community in which it sits.

vi) The proposals will lead to increased levels of local employment and increase in custom
to shops and other community facilities. The Six Bells will contribute to local social
cohesion and interaction providing a new place to meet.

At the time, the Planning Officer considered that the benefits, when weighed against the
drawbacks of the proposed development, were significant and that very special
circumstances weighed in favour of the proposal. The proposed new barn for dining was
considered acceptable in principle.

In terms of the current application submission, the impact of the additional development on
the openness and visual amenities of the Green Belt is a primary concern. Please refer to

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



Section 07.03 of the report for a quantification of the previously approved development and
a comparison to the currently proposed development. In summary, the proposed
development would increase the footprint of the development by 64.13m2 (equating to
53.87% increase) and would increase the volume of the development by 483.54m3
(equating to 81.57% increase).

In addition to the increase in building volume, the proposed development would also extend
the car park by 8 no. spaces, although this would be achieved through the use of
reinforcement mats and crates akin to grasscrete. This is would further intensify
development within the Green Belt but is only considered to be low level and would not
pose significant harm to the openness of the Green Belt.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed barn building extension would have a greater
impact on the openness of the Green Belt by virtue of its greater scale and mass when
compared to both the pre-existing structures and the approved barn building extension
structure. As such, the proposed development is considered to constitute inappropriate
development in the Green Belt and very special circumstances are required.

In terms of very special circumstances, these do not exist unless the potential harm to the
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal,
is clearly outweighed by other considerations. The previously approved development was
considered to benefit from very special circumstances as it would restore the Grade Il
Listed Building, reverse the harm caused to its significance, generate local employment,
support the viability of the business which would in turn support the preservation of the
heritage asset and provide a community hub.

Significantly, the Grade Il Listed Building has already been restored and is operating as a
public house. In this respect, the harm caused to the heritage asset has been reversed.
This very special circumstance is not therefore considered to be applicable to current
circumstances.

Based on the HCA's Employment Density Guide 3rd Edition (November 2015), the
proposed development would generate a range between 11 and 14 jobs. In comparison,
the approved scheme would have generated between 6 and 8 jobs. The proposed
development would therefore generate between 3 and 8 jobs more than the scheme
previously permitted. The applicant also notes that local business would benefit from the
permission. Accordingly, the employment generation of the proposed development is
considered to be a benefit of the scheme, although this benefit can be applied to most
forms of development in some capacity and is only given limited weight.

It is acknowledged that the proposed development would support the viability of the
business and would in turn support the preservation of the heritage asset. This
consideration is undermined, to an extent, by the fact that the site has already been
permitted a barn extension which would expand its capacity and support its viability. It is
noted, however, that 315 public houses had closed in England by September 2020 and
follows the closure of 473 public houses in 2019 and 914 public houses in 2018. The
closure of public houses which do not or cannot adapt to changing economic
circumstances is therefore a very real concern.

It is important to consider the circumstances specific to the Six Bells Public House. Based
on a 800 metres radius around the site (equivalent to a 10 minute walk), the following public
houses have been identified:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



- The Woodman, Breakspear Road, Ruislip, HA4 7SE
- The Waters Edge, Reservoir Road, Ruislip, HA4 7TY

Evidently, the Six Bells Public House is only one of three public houses which provides
such a use to the local community. It is worth noting that the site is also not located within a
local centre or town centre and does not benefit from the support of such co-locations.
This is considered to support the need to diversify the business in order to safeguard its
long term viability.

It is agreed that public houses form important hubs for communities. Specifically,
paragraph 92 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that planning decisions should plan
positively for the provision and use of community facilities such as public houses to
enhance the sustainability of communities and residential environments. In terms of the
current application, it is important to factor in the significant public support for the proposed
development, taking the form of a supporting petition with 30 signatories, as well as support
from the Eastcote Conservation Panel, the Eastcote Residents Association and the
Ruislip, Northwood and Eastcote Local History Society.

In the context of the above considerations, the proposed development is afforded weight in
favour of very special circumstances existing.

In terms of the harm posed, it should be highlighted that paragraph 144 of the NPPF
(February 2019) gives substantial weight to any harm to the Green Belt. It is acknowledged
that the height and length of the proposed development has been reduced when compared
to the previously refused applications (references 14387/APP/2020/2775 and
14387/APP/2020/2776). Specifically, the harm to the Green Belt should be viewed in the
context of the previously approved application which establishes merit for the development
of the footprint adjoining the Public House. Following the reduction in height and length
(relative to that previously refused), and taking into consideration the buildings proposed
location within the previously developed area of the site, the proposed development would
not be considered to significantly harm the openness of the Green Belt. Accordingly, the
level of harm posed to the Green Belt is reduced and weighs in favour of the proposed
development.

Harm is also posed to the setting of the Grade Il Listed Building. Paragraph 193 of the
NPPF (February 2019) states that great weight should be given to the conservation of
heritage assets. As noted in Section 07.03, the Conservation Officer concludes that the
development poses 'less than substantial harm'. However, also also explained in this
Section of the report, paragraph 196 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that where a
development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use. On balance, the
proposed development is concluded to provide public benefits which outweigh the harm
posed.

Taking into consideration the above factors, it is considered that the harm posed is now
limited sufficiently for the development to be considered on-balance acceptable. As such,
the proposed development is not considered to be contrary to Policy DMEI 4 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020), Policy
EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policy 7.16
of the London Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework (February
2019).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



It should be made clear that the proposed development is at the upper limit for
development which is considered to be on-balance acceptable.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan (March 2016) seeks to promote high quality design
that is informed by the surrounding historic environment.

Policy BE 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to improve and maintain the quality of the built environment in
order to create successful and sustainable neighbourhoods.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that:

A) All development, including extensions, alterations and new buildings will be required to
be designed to the highest standards and, incorporate principles of good design including:
i) harmonising with the local context by taking into account the surrounding:

- scale of development, considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures;

- building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established street patterns;

- building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for example, gaps between
structures and other streetscape elements, such as degree of enclosure;

- architectural composition and quality of detailing;

- local topography, views both from and to the site; and

- impact on neighbouring open spaces and their environment.

ii) ensuring the use of high quality building materials and finishes;

iii) ensuring that the internal design and layout of development maximises sustainability and
is adaptable to different activities;

iv) protecting features of positive value within and adjacent to the site, including the
safeguarding of heritage assets, designated and un-designated, and their settings; and

v) landscaping and tree planting to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and green
infrastructure.

The application site is located within an established suburban/rural setting. The site
comprises a two storey public house to the south section of the site with extensions and
alterations to the rear, a car park within the centre of the site, a play space structure to
west side of the site, and woodland and green space to the north and west of the site. Low-
rise residential properties are located to the south and south-east, and the Ducks Hill
Garden Centre is located to the east.

The proposed development would be equal in height when compared to the existing public
house and would not therefore be considered as ancillary as would be expected for an
extension. The proposed building would be approximately the same width as the public
house and would be approximately 12.75m longer than the public house.

It is important to note that the footprint adjoining the public house has previously been
permitted the development of a barn structure (under application references
14387/APP/2018/1383 and 14387/APP/2018/1385). When compared to this permitted
scheme, the proposed development would be approximately 1.53m greater in length,
2.68m greater in width and 0.71m greater in height. It is therefore calculated that the
footprint of development on-site would be increased by 64.13m2 (equating to 53.87%
increase) and the volume of development would be increased by 483.54m3 (equating to
81.57% increase). Evidently, the development proposed would be substantially larger than
that previously permitted and would have an increased dominant presence on the site.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



In terms of its impact on the street scene, it is noted that the proposed building would be
set approximately 15m back from Ducks Hills Road. Its reduction in height and length
relative to the scheme previously refused (references 14387/APP/2020/2775 and
14387/APP/2020/2776) would also reduce the impact on direct and oblique views attained
from Ducks Hill Road, whilst restricting the sprawl of development across the Green Belt
site. The proposed development is therefore recognised as an improvement on the
scheme previously refused.

It is noted by the Council's Conservation Officer that the site has not historically operated
as a historic farmstead. As such, the proposal to erect a medieval threshing barn style
building would deviate from the character and significance of the site, failing to respect the
character of the area. This position is generally maintained although it is also
acknowledged that the site can be brought forward with a barn style development as it has
already been permitted. This consideration is therefore given less weight when balancing
the acceptability of development.

It is also noted that a bin store and cycle storage is proposed on the north side of the
existing car park. In order to ensure that this does not injure the visual amenities of the
Green Belt setting, further details of this structure and the associated screening are
required. If recommended for approval, this would be secured by condition.

Overall, the proposed development would be considered to be substantial in footprint and
volume and would have an impact on the local context. The extent of this impact is less
than the scheme previously refused for its detrimental impact to the character, appearance
and visual amenities of the street scene. In the context of the public benefits and very
special circumstances discussed in Sections 07.03 and 07.05 of the report, this impact is
considered to be outweighed. Accordingly, the development would not be considered
contrary to Policies BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (January 2020) and Policy 7.6 of the London Plan (March 2016).

If recommended for approval, the detail of materials would be secured by condition.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that:

B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and
sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

Paragraph 5.38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states: "The Council will aim to ensure that there is sufficient privacy for
residents and it will resist proposals where there is an unreasonable level of overlooking
between habitable rooms of adjacent residential properties, schools or onto private open
spaces. A minimum of 21 metres separation distance between windows of habitable
rooms will be required to maintain levels of privacy and to prevent the possibility of
overlooking. In some locations where there is a significant difference in ground levels
between dwellings, a greater separation distance may be necessary."

Paragraph 5.40 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states: "For the purposes of this policy, outlook is defined as the visual
amenity enjoyed by occupants when looking out of their windows or from their garden. The
Council will expect new development proposals to carefully consider layout and massing in
order to ensure development does not result in an increased sense of enclosure and loss

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



of outlook."

Paragraph 5.41 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states: "The Council will aim to minimise the impact of the loss of daylight
and sunlight and unacceptable overshadowing caused by new development on habitable
rooms, amenity space and public open space. The Council will also seek to ensure that the
design of new development optimises the levels of daylight and sunlight. The Council will
expect the impact of the development to be assessed following the methodology set out in
the most recent version of the Building Research Establishments (BRE) "Site layout
planning for daylight and sunlight: A guide to good practice".

Ducks Hill Garden Centre is located to the east of the application site and woodland and
open fields are located to the north and west. The nearest residential properties with
respect to the proposed development are located to the south of the application site and
include property names: Greenwood, The Glade, The Fuchsia Garden, Davelle, Woodside,
Finsceal and Redleaves. At the closest point, The Fuchsia Garden and Davelle would be
sited approximately 17 metres from the proposed barn extension. This is considered to be
a sufficient distance to avoid issues with regard to neighbour outlook and the receipt of
daylight and sunlight by such neighbours.

The proposed development would not meet the required 21 metre separation distance
noted above, although it is noted that the south-facing windows provided by the proposed
development would be narrow roof lights which are considered to limit the scope for
overlooking. The windows would also face the front elevations of the neighbouring
properties and are not generally considered to be particularly sensitive elevations in terms
of privacy. In light of the proposed rooms being for guest room use, as opposed to
residential use, the impact is also considered to be limited.

Given the above considerations, the proposed development is not considered to
compromise the amenity of neighbouring properties and is not contrary to part B) of Policy
DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposed guest room floor space is measured approximately as follows:
- Bedroom 1 - 11.70 square metres
- Bedroom 2 - 11.80 square metres
- Bedroom 3 - 11.73 square metres
- Bedroom 4 - 11.74 square metres
- Bedroom 5 - 11.77 square metres
- Bedroom 6 - 11.74 square metres
- Bedroom 7 - 11.72 square metres
- Bedroom 8 - 17.73 square metres

Evidently, the rooms would be equivalent to a double bedroom in floor space, as specified
by the National Space Standards (March 2015). Each room would also have access to a
rooflight which would provide an element of outlook and natural lighting. It is noted that
these rooms are not for residential use and do not require the same standard of
accommodation. In light of this, the proposed rooms are considered to provide a
satisfactory internal living environment for the purposes of a hotel guest room use.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Duck's Hill Road is covered by all day waiting restrictions in order to allow an unimpeded
flow of traffic on this heavily trafficked road. A Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ)

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



encompassing the address and general location has been introduced in the area and
operates for seven days a week between 9am and 7pm. Based on Transport for London's
WebCAT planning tool, the application site has a poor Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) of 1b, emphasising the reliance of local transport network users on the private car.

As the site exists, an established vehicular access serves a 32 no. space car park for the
public house/restaurant use.

With regard to highways impacts and considerations, the following policies are considered:

Policy DMT 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

A) Development proposals will be required to meet the transport needs of the development
and address its transport impacts in a sustainable manner. In order for developments to be
acceptable they are required to:

i) be accessible by public transport, walking and cycling either from the catchment area
that it is likely to draw its employees, customers or visitors from and/or the services and
facilities necessary to support the development;

ii) maximise safe, convenient and inclusive accessibility to, and from within developments
for pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users;

iii) provide equal access for all people, including inclusive access for disabled people;

iv) adequately address delivery, servicing and drop-off requirements; and

v) have no significant adverse transport or associated air quality and noise impacts on the
local and wider environment, particularly on the strategic road network.

B) Development proposals will be required to undertake a satisfactory Transport
Assessment and Travel Plan if they meet or exceed the appropriate thresholds. All major
developments that fall below these thresholds will be required to produce a satisfactory
Transport Statement and Local Level Travel Plan. All these plans should demonstrate how
any potential impacts will be mitigated and how such measures will be implemented.

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that proposals must ensure that safe and efficient vehicular access
to the highway network is provided, schemes do not contribute to the deterioration of air
quality, noise or local amenity or safety of all road users and residents. Also that impacts
on local amenity and congestion are minimised and there are suitable mitigation measures
to address any traffic impacts in terms of capacity and functions of existing and roads.

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) requires that proposals comply with the Council's parking standards in
order to facilitate sustainable development and address issues relating to congestion and
amenity.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019) states that development
should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road
network would be severe. Policy 6.3 of the London Plan (March 2016) requires
development proposals to ensure that the impacts on transport capacity and the transport
network are fully assessed.

PARKING PROVISION
Based on the proposed mixed use (Sui Generis) which includes an element of public

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



house use, restaurant use and guest room use, an individual site assessment is required.

The application submission indicates an extension to the car park which would facilitate 8
additional spaces adjacent to the existing car park hard standing, utilising reinforcement
mats and crates akin to grasscrete. The existing car park would also be rearranged to
provide 2 additional accessible car parking spaces. A total of 10 spaces are proposed,
totalling 42 car parking spaces which is considered sufficient and acceptable by the
Council's Highways Officer.

ELECTRICAL VEHICLE CHARGING POINTS

Appendix C, Table 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (January 2020) states that parking for electric vehicles should be provided at a
current minimum of 5% of car parking spaces with 5% passive provision.

If recommended for approval, the provision of 1 active electrical charging point and one
passive electrical charging point would be secured by condition.

ACCESSIBLE PARKING

Appendix C, Table 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (January 2020) states that: "For commercial developments, 10% of car parking
spaces must be for blue badge holders and 5% for brown badge holders, together with one
accessible on or off street parking bay designated for blue badge holders, even if no
general parking is provided."

The proposed development would provide 2 accessible car parking spaces which is
considered to be acceptable by the Council's Highways Officer. If recommended for
approval, this would be secured by condition.

CYCLE PARKING

In conjunction with Policy DMT 6, Appendix C of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (January 2020) requires that:

- A3 restaurant uses provide 1 cycle parking space per 20 staff + 1 per 20 customers.

- A4 public house uses provide 1 cycle parking space per 100 square metres

- C1 hotel uses provide 1 cycle parking space per 10 staff

As the proposal would not be creating additional floorspace for A4 public house use, this
standard is not considered relevant. Based on the table arrangement shown on the
proposed ground floor plan, the additional dining space would accommodate 132
customers at maximum capacity. Also, based on the HCA's Employment Density Guide
3rd Edition (November 2015), the proposed 10 guest rooms would generate 2 jobs and the
proposed restaurant floorspace would generate between 9 and 12 jobs.

Accordingly, the proposed development would require 1 cycle space for the C1 staff, 1
cycle space for A3 staff and 7 cycle spaces for A3 customers. The proposed development
should therefore provide 9 secure and accessible cycle parking space. If recommended for
approval, this would be secured by condition.

VEHICULAR TRIP GENERATION

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



As stated by the Council's Highways Officer, there will be no measurable or specific impact
on the 'key' peak morning and afternoon traffic periods given the scale of proposal and
activity profiles which are statistically concentrated outside peak periods. Any uplift would
be considered marginal in generation terms and therefore can be absorbed within the local
road network without notable detriment to traffic congestion and road safety.

ACCESS PROVISION

The existing vehicular access into the site is to remain and would serve both the public
house and residential uses. This shared arrangement is considered satisfactory and
acceptable.

CONSTRUCTION LOGISTICS PLAN

A full and detailed Construction Logistics Plan will be a requirement given the constraints
and sensitivities of the local road network in order to avoid/minimise potential detriment to
the public realm. If recommended for approval, this would be secured by condition.

SUMMARY

The application has been reviewed by the Highway Authority who are satisfied that the
proposal would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress, and would not
raise any measurable highway safety concerns, in accordance with Policies DMT 1, DMT 2
and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) and Policies 6.3, 6.9, and 6.13 of the London Plan (March 2016).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Please see sections 07.03 and 07.07 of the report.
7.12 Disabled access

Policy 4.5 of the London Plan (March 2016) requires that at least 10 per cent of bedrooms
are wheelchair accessible for hotel development.

Policy 7.2 of the London Plan (March 2016) requires that the all new development provides
the highest standards of accessible and inclusive design.

Policy DME 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

A) In order to ensure that inclusive access has been incorporated into the proposal from
the onset, the Council will require:

i) all proposals to meet the requirements of the Accessible Hillingdon SPD;

ii) a Design and Access Statement to be submitted with the planning application; and

iii) For proposals of ten rooms or more, an Accessibility Management Plan should be
submitted with the planning application.

B) For proposals of 10 rooms or more, the Council will require 10% of hotel rooms to meet
wheelchair accessibility standards. In particular, accessible rooms should:

i) be located along accessible routes, close to lifts on upper floors and close to the
reception on the ground floor;

ii) be situated so that they have equal access to views enjoyed from standard bedrooms;
and

iii) provide appropriate facilities for a wide range of disabilities.

The proposed development would not meet the threshold stated above as it would only
provide a total of 8 guest rooms. Nonetheless, Bedroom 8 is proposed as an accessible

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



bedroom and is located within close proximity to the proposed lift. As stated by the
Council's Access Officer, the standard to which the required accessible room has been
designed is unknown. The accessible bedroom should be designed in accordance with
Figure 52, incorporating either Figure 30 or 33 of British Standard BS8300-2:2018. If
recommended for approval, this would be secured by condition. Subject to such a
condition, the proposed development would accord with Policy DME 6 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020).
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

TREES AND LANDSCAPING

Policy 5.10 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that development proposals should
integrate green infrastructure to contribute to urban greening, including the public realm.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) requires that new development is high quality, sustainable, adaptable, and
harmonises with the local context. Landscaping and tree planting should also enhance
amenity, biodiversity and green infrastructure.

Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping, trees,
biodiversity or other natural features of merit.

B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that includes
hard and soft landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which supports and
enhances biodiversity and amenity particularly in areas deficient in green infrastructure.

Parking and informal external amenity space is located among the open woodland, with the
buildings located at the southern end of the site. The trees are not protected by a Tree
Preservation Order or Conservation Area. However, as stated by the Council's Trees and
Landscaping Officer, their collective value adds significantly to the character and
appearance of the area forming an attractive interface between the more suburban
character to the south and the rural Green Belt land to the north.

The submitted Tree Report identifies and assesses the condition and value of 40 trees.
There are no 'A' grade trees, 21 trees are category 'B' and the remaining trees are 'C' or 'U'
grade, categories that are not normally considered to be a constraint on development.
Three 'C' grade trees will be removed to facilitate the development and two 'U' grade trees
will be removed for sound arboricultural reasons.

As confirmed by the Council's Trees and Landscaping Officer, there is no objection to the
proposed development in this regard, subject to conditions securing details of a
landscaping scheme and tree protection measures. The proposal is not therefore
considered contrary to Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2
- Development Management Policies (January 2020) and Policy 5.10 of the London Plan
(March 2016).

ECOLOGY

Immediately to the north and west of the site is the designated Mad Bess Woods Nature
Conservation Site of Metropolitan or Borough Grade | Importance. The following planning

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



policies are therefore taken into consideration:

Paragraph 170 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that planning decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by: d) minimising impacts on
and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological
networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures.

Policy 7.19 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that development proposals should
wherever possible, make a positive contribution to the protection, enhancement, creation
and management of biodiversity.

Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that the design and layout of new development should retain and
enhance any existing features of biodiversity within the site.

The application site has large areas of scrub grass and tree cover that provides the
potential for rich biodiversity. Notably, the current proposals do not require the removal of
any important ecological features and is not considered contrary to relevant planning policy.
If recommended for approval, an ecological enhancement plan would be secured by
condition to ensure further public benefits are provided as part of the development. A
condition to ensure that the lighting of the site will not have a significant impact on the
ecological value of the site. Subject to such planning conditions, the proposed development
would accord with Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020), Policy 7.19 of the London Plan (March 2016) and the
National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019).
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy 5.17 of the London Plan (March 2016) sets out the Mayor's spatial policy for waste
management, including the requirements for new developments to provide appropriate
facilities for the storage of refuse and recycling.

The proposal indicates sufficient bin storage and would accord with Policy 5.17 of the
London Plan (March 2016).
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site is located within Flood Zone 1 and is less than 1 hectare in size. As such, no
Flood Risk Assessment is required.

Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (March 2016) requires that development proposals must
comply with the flood risk assessment and management requirements set out in the NPPF
and the associated technical Guidance on flood risk over the lifetime of the development.

Policy 5.13 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that development should utilise
sustainable urban drainage systems (SUDS) unless there are practical reasons for not
doing so, and should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure that surface water
run-off is managed as close to its source as possible.

Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) states
that applicants must demonstrate that Flood Risk can be suitably mitigated.

Policy DMEI 9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



(January 2020) states that proposals that fail to make appropriate provision for flood risk
mitigation, or which would increase the risk or consequences of flooding, will be refused.

Policy DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that development within areas identified at risk from surface water
flooding which fail to make adequate provision for the control and reduction of surface
water run-off rates will be refused.

The proposed development is considered to be an appropriate use in Flood Zone 1.
Subject to a condition requiring details of sustainable water management, it is considered
that the scheme will accord with Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020), Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies 5.12 and 5.13 of the
London Plan (March 2016).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Policy 7.15 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that development proposals should
seek to manage noise by:

a. avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life as a result of new
development;

b. mitigating and minimising the existing and potential adverse impacts of noise on, from,
within, as a result of, or in the vicinity of new development without placing unreasonable
restrictions on development or adding unduly to the costs and administrative burdens on
existing businesses;

c. improving and enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate
soundscapes (including Quiet Areas and spaces of relative tranquillity);

d. separating new noise sensitive development from major noise sources (such as road,
rail, air transport and some types of industrial development) through the use of distance,
screening or internal layout - in preference to sole reliance on sound insulation;

e. where it is not possible to achieve separation of noise sensitive development and noise
sources, without undue impact on other sustainable development objectives, then any
potential adverse effects should be controlled and mitigated through the application of good
acoustic design principles;

f. having particular regard to the impact of aviation noise on noise sensitive development;
g. promoting new technologies and improved practices to reduce noise at source, and on
the transmission path from source to receiver.

Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) states
that the Council will seek to ensure that noise sensitive development and noise generating
development are only permitted if noise impacts can be adequately controlled and
mitigated.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that:

B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and
sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

It is acknowledged that the proposed expansion in the uses on-site could generate noise
impacts. However, it is considered that mitigation is possible, including the sound insulation
of the new building, control of amplified music and control of noise from external plant. If
recommended for approval, these matters would be controlled by condition. Subject to
such conditions, the proposed development would accord with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020), Policy

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



719

7.20

7.21

7.22

EMS8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policy
7.15 of the London Plan (March 2016).

AIR QUALITY

The application site does not form part of an Air Quality Management Area or Focus Area.
As such, this is not considered to be a relevant consideration.
Comments on Public Consultations

Please see Section 06.1 of the report.
Planning Obligations

None.
Expediency of enforcement action

It was noted through the officer site visit that temporary timber structures have been
erected within the curtilage of the Public House and require planning consent. They are not
considered to have a bearing on the determination of the current application, nonetheless
an informative has been added to ensure the applicant is aware that they need to be
subject to further discussion with the Councils Planning Team.

Other Issues

FIRE SAFETY

Policy D12 of the Publication London Plan (December 2020) states:

A) In the interests of fire safety and to ensure the safety of all building users, all
development proposals must achieve the highest standards of fire safety and ensure that
they:

1) identify suitably positioned unobstructed outside space:

a) for fire appliances to be positioned on

b) appropriate for use as an evacuation assembly point

2) are designed to incorporate appropriate features which reduce the risk to life and the risk
of serious injury in the event of a fire; including appropriate fire alarm systems and passive
and active fire safety measures

3) are constructed in an appropriate way to minimise the risk of fire spread

4) provide suitable and convenient means of escape, and associated evacuation strategy
for all building users

5) develop a robust strategy for evacuation which can be periodically updated and
published, and which all building users can have confidence in

6) provide suitable access and equipment for firefighting which is appropriate for the size
and use of the development.

It is noted that Policy D12 only requires the submission of a Fire Statement for major
development proposals. As the proposed development would not constitute a major scale
form of development, a Fire Statement is not required. However, as stated by the Council's
Access Officer, details should be submitted to ensure that disabled people can evacuate
from the intended first floor accommodation in a safe and dignified way during a fire
evacuation situation. If recommended for approval, these details would be secured by
condition. Subject to such a condition, the proposal would accord with Policy D12 of the
Publication London Plan (December 2020).

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



10. CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the proposed barn building would be considered to pose 'less than
substantial harm' to the setting of the Grade Il Listed Building and would constitute
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. As outlined within the main body of the
report, the proposed development is also considered to provide public benefits to outweigh
the harm posed to the setting of the Listed Building and very special circumstances are
considered to exist. Accordingly, the principle of development and its proposed design is
considered to be on-balance acceptable, although it is at the upper limit of what would be
considered on-balance acceptable.

For the reasons outlined within the report, the proposed development is recommended for
approval subject to planning conditions.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019)

Publication London Plan (December 2020)

The London Plan (March 2016)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020)
Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document (September 2017)
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (July 2014)

Contact Officer: Michael Briginshaw Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



—

Greenwood

N

The Old Workhouse

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

THE SIX BELLS PH
DUCKS HILL ROAD
RUISLIP

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
14387/APP/2020/4126 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 87 | February 2021

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address THE SIX BELLS PH DUCKS HILL ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Proposed barn extension to provide an extended dining area at ground floor
and 8 no. guest rooms at first floor (Application for Listed Building Consent)

LBH Ref Nos: 14387/APP/2020/4128

Drawing Nos: Case of Need
Design Access & Planning Statement (Dated 12th December 2020)
BS 5837:2012 Tree Survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Draft
Arboricultural Method Statement & Tree Protection Plan (Dated 27th August
2020)
Heritage Impact Assessment (Dated 12th December 2020)
VSA20/11 - 011
Location Plan
VSA20/11 - 003
VSA20/11 - 004
VSA20/11 - 005
VSA20/11 - 008
VSA20/11 - 009
VSA20/11 - 010
VSA20/11 - 001A
VSA20/11 - 002A
VSA20/11 - 006A
VSA20/11 - 007A

Date Plans Received: 15/12/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 15/12/2020

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The site is located on the west side of Ducks Hill Road, just north of the junction with
Reservior Road and contains a building known as the Six Bells Public House, which is
Grade |l listed (first listed on 10-Apr-1972), under the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended, for its special architectural or historic interest.

The Six Bells Public House has been occupied and restored as part of the planning
permission (reference 14387/APP/2018/1383) and Listed Building Consent (reference
14387/APP/2018/1385) granted in 2018. The barn building extension granted under these
permissions has not, however, been started. The extant permissions were granted with the
understanding that the extension to the Public House would provide extra space for the
restaurant and make the project financially viable and self sustaining in order to secure the
long term preservation of the heritage asset.

The application site forms part of designated Green Belt land and the Ruislip Motte & Bailey
Archaeological Priority Area. Based on TfL's webCAT planning tool, the site has a poor

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) rating of 1b. Based on the Council's GIS, the
site forms part of Flood Zone 1 and a Critical Drainage Area.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks Listed Building Consent for the erection of a barn building to extend
the existing premises, providing a restaurant at ground floor and 8 no. guest rooms at first
floor. Based on measurements taken from the submitted plans, the proposed barn
structure would measure as follows:

- Length: 20.33m

- Width: 9.01m

- Height at the eaves: 4m

- Highest point: 7.75m

- Footprint: 20.33 x 9.01 = 183.17m2

- Volume: (4 x 9.01 x 20.33) + (3.75 x 9.01 x 20.33)/2 = 732.69 + 343.45 = 1076.14m3

1.3 Relevant Planning History
14387/APP/2018/1383 The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Restoration of the Six Bells Public House, to include minor alterations to fittings internally and a
new extension independent of the historic building to increase dining capacity.

Decision Date: 02-10-2018 Approved Appeal:
14387/APP/2018/1385 The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Restoration of the Six Bells Public House, to include minor alterations to fittings internally and a
new extension independent of the historic building to increase dining capacity (Listed Building
Consent).

Decision Date: 18-10-2018 Approved Appeal:
14387/APP/2019/528 The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Application for a Non-Material Amendment to planning permission Ref: 14387/APP/2018/1383
dated 18/10/18 (Restoration of the Six Bells Public House, to include minor alterations to fittings
internally and a new extension independent of the historic building to increase dining capacity) to
reduce the footprint of the proposed extension

Decision Date: 17-04-2019 Refused Appeal:
14387/APP/2020/2775 The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Proposed barn extension to provide a restaurant at ground floor and 10 no. guest rooms at first
floor, changing the use from a public house/restaurant to mixed use (Sui Generis), with
associated works and landscaping.

Decision Date: 18-11-2020 Refused Appeal:
14387/APP/2020/2776 The Six Bells Ph Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Proposed barn extension to provide a restaurant at ground floor and 10 no. guest rooms at first
floor (Application for Listed Building Consent)

Decision Date: 18-11-2020 Refused Appeal:
Comment on Planning History

Planning permission (reference 14387/APP/2018/1383) and Listed Building Consent
(reference 14387/APP/2018/1385) granted the restoration of the Six Bells Public House, to

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



include minor alterations to fittings internally and a new extension independent of the
historic building to increase dining capacity. The Public House has since been occupied
and restored but has not formally been extended. A site visit indicates that the building has
been extended temporarily to provide additional capacity.

A planning application (reference 14387/APP/2020/2775) and Listed Building Consent
application (reference 14387/APP/2020/2776) for a barn extension to provide a restaurant
at ground floor and 10 no. guest rooms at first floor has been refused. The reasons for
refusal are outlined as follows:

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, size, scale, and design, would
constitute inappropriate development within designated Green Belt land and very special
circumstances do not exist to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness. As such, the proposal is contrary to Policy EM2 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020), Policy 7.16 of the
London Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019).

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, size, scale, and design, would fail to
preserve the significance of the Grade Il Listed Building by posing 'less than substantial
harm' to the significance of the designated heritage asset. Further, the proposed
development is not considered to provide public benefits sufficient to outweigh the harm
posed. As such, the proposal is contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies DMHB 1, DMHB 2 and DMHB
11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020),
Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework
(February 2019).

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, size, scale, and design, would be
detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenities of the street scene. As
such, the proposal is contrary to Policies BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 -
Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (January 2020), Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London
Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019).

2, Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 3rd February 2021
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 25th January 2021

Contact Officer: Michael Briginshaw Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



21st January 2021

3. Comments on Public Consultations
EXTERNAL CONSULTATION

Letters have been sent to neighbouring properties, a site notice has been displayed and the
application has been advertised in the local paper. A petition in support of the proposed
development has been received with 30 signatories, although it is technically lodged
against the Full Planning application reference 14387/APP/2020/4126. Only one comment
has been received and states that there is no objection to the proposed development as
long as sufficient parking on site is provided and noise levels are strictly regulated.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

It should be noted that car parking and control of noise is addressed under the Full
Planning application submission (reference 14387/APP/2020/4126), as opposed to the
Listed Building Consent application.

COUNCILLOR CORTHORNE:

I am writing to express my support for this fresh application following the recent committee
decision.

| am given to understand that there has been dialogue between the applicant and officers
and changes to the original proposals has been made to the scale and bulk of the
development, which make it acceptable in planning policy terms.

I've previously indicated that the economic benefits should be recognised as part of the
overall planning balance, and with these changes feel this should now be supported.

RUISLIP, NORTHWOOD AND EASTCOTE LOCAL HISTORY SOCIETY:

The Ruislip, Northwood and Eastcote Local History Society does not have any major
concerns that the proposed extension will be detrimental to this listed building or the Green
Belt. We appreciate that the revised proposals are suggesting that the extension be
reduced in height and length which will lessen its impact on the original building and site.
We think that a barn type appearance for the extension is appropriate and will be in keeping
with the other buildings. We would stress for historical reasons that it is very important that
the name 'The Six Bells' is retained and is still prominently displayed.This building has been
in use as a public house since the early 1800s, when it was built.It was seen as the centre
of the community at Ruislip Common and it was regularly used for wood sales and the
occasional inquest. There used to be an earlier beer house on the corner of Howletts Lane
and Breakspear Road with the same name of 'The Six Bells' but when the present building
was constructed the licence and sign was transferred there.lt is therefore important that
the name continues to survive having been part of our local history for several centuries. If
the proposals are sympathetic and present no harm to this listed building we would prefer
to have the building in use rather than stand empty and fall into neglect and disrepair.

INTERNAL CONSULTATION

PARTNERSHIPS AND BUSINESS ENGAGEMENT MANAGER:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



The application to extend the previously approved extension is supported from an
economic development perspective. The investment in the premises will sustain a
resource for the local community and it is refreshing to see investment in a commercial
concern that is not linked to residential development.

It is noted that the extension will accommodate 10 ensuite bedrooms that will be used to
provide bed and breakfast accommodation.

The application is supported for a number of reasons. It serves to secure the future of an
established and popular community facility. The applicant advises that this development is
crucial to the future viability of the business and given the financial challenges the licenced
premises faced it is difficult to argue with this view.

The days of public houses in locations such as the Six Bells surviving on 'locals' calling in
for a couple of drinks are long gone. Public houses outside town centres have had to shift
their focus to being family friendly establishments offering food and as with the Six Bells,
party and function facilities.

The closure of public houses' which do not or can not adapt to changing economic
circumstances is a very real concern. Real Estate advisers the Altus Group reported that
already in 2020 (up to the middle of September) 315 pubs have closed. This follows on
from 2019 when 473 pubs in England closed or were converted to other purposes. 2018
saw 914 pubs close.

It is noted that the proposal will create and secure ten full time and twenty part time jobs. At
a time when unemployment is rising this is welcome news. Due to the hours the licenced
sector operate and the fact that the proposal is to offer bed and breakfast, it is anticipated
that the jobs on offer will by and large be taken by members of the immediate or local
community. The creation of new employment in the licenced premises sector is at present
very much against the current trend. At the end of September 2020 Fullers Brewery, one of
the region's biggest owners of public houses announced that it was likely to make at least
10% of its staff in its chain redundant.

It is also worth noting that the contract for delivering the new development could potentially
go to a local building contractor. Whilst this cannot be guaranteed, developments of this
scale are likely to attract local firms to bid. They will have the advantage of already using
mainly local employees and source materials through local supply chains.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

It should be noted that the proposal is for 8 no. guest rooms and not 10 no. ensuite
bedrooms as referred to in the comments above.

CONSERVATION OFFICER:
1. Summary of comments: Objection
2. Historic Environment Designation (s)

- Grade Il Listed Building - The Six Bells PH - NHLE: 1080240
- Ruislip Motte and Bailey Archaeological Priority Area (APA)

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



3. Assessment - Background/ Significance

The origin of The Six Bells public house (PH) is thought to date from the late 17th/ early
18th century however the site has benefitted from alterations over time. The building is
originally of timber frame construction and externally finished in a painted brick to the front
and side however the rear elevations remain as exposed red brick. It is a two-storey
building with a cellar. The barrel drop can be seen along the pavement to the front of the
building. There is a notable dentil detail below the half-hipped roof form, which is externally
finished in plain clay tiles. Two tall chimney stacks bookend the original portion of the
building along the south-east side elevation and one to the north-west side elevation. The
front elevation is double fronted and symmetrical in appearance with a centrally positioned
entrance door and a 19th century hood over the door with decorative barge boards. The
former door comprised of a 3 panel door however this appears to have been altered to a
modern 4 panel door. The replacement of the front door does not appear to be detailed as
part of the consented works in 2018, therefore is likely to be unauthorised. The sash
windows are positioned either side of the entrance door at ground and first floor. The
ground floor sash windows are large, recessed openings with vertically sliding 10 over 10
multi-paned sash windows. The sash boxes are set behind the brickwork, a requirement
following the 1774 Building Act. The first floor windows are proportionately smaller providing
a sense of hierarchy to the building. The windows are of historic interest contributing to the
building's significance. They can be a good indicator of the building's historic development
overtime.

Evidence of historic structural movement can be seen by the existence of traditional wall tie
pattress plates particularly towards the southern end of the building.

The building has benefitted from a number of additions overtime, including a collection of
20th century single storey built forms to the rear comprising of the kitchens and toilets. The
piecemeal nature of the rear additions somewhat detracts from the overall composition of
the building. There is also a single storey addition to the north-west side elevation used as
a dining area. This is subservient in character, externally finished in dark stained
weatherboarding and a plain tiled roof to match the original property. It was not uncommon
for traditional buildings to have a small number of ancillary structures within the associated
site area, usually used as a store or to house animals. From looking at historic maps there
were a couple of small ancillary structures to the north-east of the main building.

Originally the building was formed part of a small hamlet historically known as Cheapside.
The hamlet of Cheapside formed part of a group of three hamlets on the edge of what was
Common Wood outside the enclosed Park Wood in Ruislip, the other two were known as
Cannons Bridge and Park Hearne. Collectively they were referred to as Ruislip Common,
as we know it today. Documentary evidence references Cannons Bridge as the earliest
hamlet within the area. It wasn't until a mid-16th century Terrier that the land near Cannons
Bridge was referred to as Cheapside. However, in the late 17th century it became known
as 'in the withies' and then later changed to Withy Lane during the Victorian era. Prior to
The Six Bells the small hamlet was served by a public house known as 'The Black Potts'
which was located to the west of the application site. The license to serve beer/alcohol at
The Six Bells was ideal due to its proximity to the road along a historic route and was most
likely to reason The Black Potts ceased to exist. It was part of the route from
Rickmansworth to Ealing, via Ruislip (a notable manorial holding). This would have aided in
its establishment as a public house, as a stop along this historic route as well as serving
the community of the small hamlet. (Source: Ruislip, Northwood and Eastcote Local
History Society, Journal 2004, Article 04/1 by Eileen M. Bowilt)

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



The heritage value of the Listed Building is duly recognised by its notable historic and
architectural interest. It forms part of the history of the area and is a good example of a
traditional building of its time. The strong communal value of the site is evident and
contributes to the significance of the heritage asset. It must be duly noted, as defined in
Annex 2: Glossary, National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), June 2019 is,
'Significance derives not only from a heritage asset's physical presence but also from its
setting.'

The setting of the heritage asset and impact of the proposed development has been
assessed with reference to Historic England 2017 Good Practice Advice Planning Note 3
(GPAN3), The Setting of Heritage Assets.

The surroundings of a heritage asset contribute to how it is experienced, and the setting of
a heritage asset can be influenced by a number of natural and/or human factors. Whilst the
wider environment to the east and south of the site has changed, to the north and west it
has remained undeveloped. This strongly contributes to the sites sense of openness and
semi-rural environment, appropriately protected by the Greenbelt designation of the land. It
is a key reminder of the once rural past of the area and small hamlets which established
settlement in this location. The immediate experience of the Listed Building has somewhat
been compromised by the existing rear additions and the large expanse of hard standing to
the north. Nevertheless, the semi-rural environment, wider woodland backdrop and low-
density of development neighbouring the site contributes to the building's setting. Whilst
some additions are not entirely in keeping, the hierarchy of the site has been maintained.
The 2018 approved structure to the rear is intended to remain subservient to the original
building. These elements form part of the building's setting, positively contributing to its
significance.

As briefly mentioned above, consent was granted in 2018 for a subservient extension to the
rear of the building to allow for an increased dining provision for the business, enabling the
repair of the building at that time. Whilst the historic portion of the building has been
restored and is currently in use, the rear addition is yet to be constructed. As existing a
large, enclosed timber pergola structure with a solid flat roof form has been erected on site
providing a substantial area of covered seating. The structure has been enclosed with
Perspex and extends up to Ducks Hill Road. This structure is located within the curtilage of
the Listed Building and has a negative impact upon its setting. It does not benefit from
planning permission or listed building consent.

4. Assessment - Impact

The principle of the proposed development would be the same as the previous scheme,
refused in December 2020 (planning refs:14387/APP/2020/2775 and
14387/APP/2020/2776). In comparison to the refused scheme the number of bedrooms
proposed has been reduced to 8. The built form itself has been reduced at the rear, the
drawing annotation indicates 3m, in any instance this would need to be accurately checked
on the submitted drawing. The building would be the same width as previously proposed,
positioned in the same location and proximity to the listed building. The design concept
would still adopt the barn-style approach.

In light of the above, the proposed development would still have a harmful impact on the
setting of the listed building. The assessment below is not significantly different to
comments provided in relation to the refused scheme.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



The submitted existing and proposed floor plans fail to include the small single storey
structure attached to the south-east side elevation of the listed building. This should be
clearly included on the submitted drawings to ensure plans accurately depict the existing
site situation.

Paragraph 1.7.1 within the submitted Heritage Impact Assessment refers to the building as
'at risk' however it is clearly evident the building has been restored alongside the recent
erection of the large enclosed pergola structure, with the site in use as a bar and grill
restaurant.

Whilst the principle of a structure in the proposed location on the site has been established
in order to increase the dining capacity for the restaurant, the 2018 approved, barn-like
structure would remain subservient to the listed building and at such time of approval a
balanced judgement was made taking into account the condition of the listed building.

The proposed development, which would be notably larger than the approved structure,
would negatively affect the setting of the Listed Building. The building would be bulkier in
form exacerbated by its increased scale, bulk, footprint and height. It would have a greater
dominant presence on the site and be highly visible from the street scene and within the
site itself. The development would fail to respect the scale and setting of the original Listed
Building. The lack of subservience would diminish any sense of hierarchy to the site. The
Listed Building in itself is an important historic built asset recognised by its Grade Il
designation and strongly contributes to the historic settlement of the area. The existing and
proposed additions to the building and site, cumulatively, would no longer be ancillary to the
original building harming its significance and setting.

The 2-storey structure would fail to relate to the original, approved, design concept as an
ancillary, subtle addition to the site, competing with the original listed building. The roof
ridge height appears to match the listed building along the south east elevation however it
appears to be slightly higher along the north west elevation. This may be due to variations
to the ground levels however the development should remain entirely subordinate to the
principal heritage asset.

As noted above whilst the design of the building appears to be somewhat influenced by a
barn style structure, as proposed it fails to respect and truly embrace the architectural
principles and qualities of a traditional agricultural barn. The barn structure would dominate
the site as the larger built form drawing undue attention to it. The reference made in the
supporting design and access statement and heritage statement shows a photograph of
the Grade | listed medieval barn in Harmondsworth however incorrectly describes it as The
Great Barn in Ruislip. In this instance a threshing barn would be an inappropriate design
precedent. It would establish a farmstead character to the site. Historically the site has not
operated as a typical historic farmstead, the concept of erecting a barn style building would
deviate from the character and significance of the site as a public house, in turn failing to
respect or preserve the setting of the Listed Building.

Historic timber framed barns are typically characterised by steeply pitched, tiled roof forms.
The roof form tends to dominate the appearance of the building, in turn reducing the bulk of
the structure, above the ground floor level. The proposed roof pitch would be shallow
resulting in a higher eaves line and the timber clad elevations dominating the appearance of
the building. Whilst the building may be reduced in length, the bulk and volume would
essentially be relocated as part of the first-floor space.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



The inclusion of multiple roof lights and windows to the gable ends of the proposed barn
would result in a pastiche building. Furthermore, it is unclear why a window opening is
required into what appears to be a storeroom, to the front of the building at first floor, further
obscured by shelving internally. The submitted drawings do not include the detailed
infrastructure that would be necessary for the proposed use, including soil vent pipes,
mechanical ventilation, rainwater goods, fire safety measures etc. Such infrastructure
poorly applied can diminish the overall design aesthetic. It is assumed the proposed lift
would be a platform lift therefore not requiring an over run. The inclusion of a lift over-run as
an 'add-on' feature would be inappropriate and an incongruous feature considering the
slope of the roof.

The use of the roof space for 8 guest rooms would establish a permanent alternative new
use on the site. There is no evidence before me indicating that the site or building was
used primarily as a historic inn.

The argument that the development is required for the preservation of the Listed Building is
unfounded and lacks evidence to justify the proposal. As existing the Listed Building has
been restored and there is no evidence before me as to why the approved additional dining
facility would not enable the continued care and maintenance of the building. Any
development proposed as a means of supporting the care and repair of a listed building
must be considered for the benefit of a heritage asset itself.

The submitted information fails to demonstrate the need for the specified 8 guest rooms
and increase to the internal dining capacity, which appears to be laid out as an event
space. It would need to be clearly demonstrated in any instance that the income generated
from the proposed development would solely be used for the care and repair of the
designated heritage asset. As submitted, it would fail to demonstrate that the proposal
would be minimum necessary to secure the long-term future of the designated heritage
asset. In any instance, if we were to consider this type of development, quantitative
evidence would be required to justify the harm caused by the development and it would
need to meet a number of tests.

To confirm the building was not formally included on Historic England's Heritage at Risk
register. The 2018 approved scheme recognised that the building was in need of repair,
with the additional dining capacity contributing to the future preservation of the building. The
Listed Building's former 'state' is now irrelevant taking into account the condition of the
building at present.

The proposal appears to be connected to the circumstances of the present time rather
than the urgent need for repairs to the Listed Building to allow for its use. There is no
indication on how permanent the current circumstances are. The permanent nature and
negative impact of the proposed development must be materially considered.

The development would detract from the site's significance as a public house and would be
considered a negative contributor to the setting of the heritage asset. The proposed
development would result in significant permanent harm to the setting of the Listed
Building. It would need to be noted that harm to the setting of a heritage asset is not limited
to physical or visual impact. Other considerations including to how users interact with site
and its history form part of the building's significance.

The proposed development would erode the setting of the Listed Building. Taking into
consideration the paragraph 196 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019) the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



proposed development would result in less than substantial harm to the setting and
significance of the listed building. In any instance under sections 16 and 66 of the Planning
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 a statutory duty is placed upon the
decision maker(s) to pay special attention to the preservation of the Listed Building and its
setting. Paragraph 193 (NPPF, 2019) would also be relevant in this instance.

5. Conclusion: Objection - Harm to the setting of the Listed Building

4. Local Plan Designation and London Plan

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 2 Listed Buildings

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

NPPF- 16 NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main planning issue relates to the impact of the proposed works on the character,
appearance and setting of the Grade Il Listed building. The following planning policies are
considered relevant:

Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that development affecting heritage
assets and their settings should conserve their significance, by being sympathetic to their
form, scale, materials and architectural detail.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) seeks
a quality of design in all new development that enhances and contributes to the area in
terms of form, scale and materials; is appropriate to the identity and context of the
townscape; and would improve the quality of the public realm and respect local character.

Policy HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) states
that the Council will conserve and enhance Hillingdon's distinct and varied environment, its
settings and the wider historic landscape.

Policy DMHB 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that:

A) The Council will expect development proposals to avoid harm to the historic
environment. Development that has an effect on heritage assets will only be supported
where:

i) it sustains and enhances the significance of the heritage asset and puts them into viable

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



uses consistent with their conservation;

ii) it will not lead to a loss of significance or harm to an asset, unless it can be
demonstrated that it will provide public benefit that would outweigh the harm or loss, in
accordance with the NPPF;

iii) it makes a positive contribution to the local character and distinctiveness of the area;

iv) any extensions or alterations are designed in sympathy, without detracting from or
competing with the heritage asset;

v) the proposal would relate appropriately in terms of siting, style, scale, massing, height,
design and materials;

vi) buildings and structures within the curtilage of a heritage asset, or in close proximity to
it, do not compromise its setting; and

vii) opportunities are taken to conserve or enhance the setting, so that the significance of
the asset can be appreciated more readily.

Policy DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

A) Applications for Listed Building Consent and planning permission to alter, extend, or
change the use of a statutorily Listed Building will only be permitted if they are considered
to retain its significance and value and are appropriate in terms of the fabric, historic
integrity, spatial quality and layout of the building. Any additions or alterations to a Listed
Building should be sympathetic in terms of scale, proportion, detailed design, materials and
workmanship.

D) Planning permission will not be granted for proposals which are considered detrimental
to the setting of a Listed Building.

In order to consider the impact of the proposed development, it is considered pertinent to
quantify the previously approved development and compare it to the currently proposed
development.

APPROVED SCHEME

Based on measurements taken from the plans submitted, the barn structure approved
under permission references 14387/APP/2018/1383 and 14387/APP/2018/1385
approximately measured as follows:

- Length: 18.8m

- Width: 6.33m

- Height at the eaves: 2.92m

- Highest point: 7.04m

- Footprint: 6.33 x 18.8 = 119.04m2

- Volume: (2.92 x 6.33 x 18.8) + (4.12 x 6.33 x 18.8)/2 = 347.5 + 245.1 = 592.6m3

PROPOSED SCHEME

Based on measurements taken from the submitted plans, the proposed barn structure
would measure as follows:

- Length: 20.33m

- Width: 9.01m

- Height at the eaves: 4m

- Highest point: 7.75m

- Footprint: 20.33 x 9.01 = 183.17m2

- Volume: (4 x 9.01 x 20.33) + (3.75 x 9.01 x 20.33)/2 = 732.69 + 343.45 = 1076.14m3

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



COMPARISON

Evidently, the proposed development would increase the footprint of the development by
64.13m2 (equating to 53.87% increase) and would increase the volume of the development
by 483.54m3 (equating to 81.57% increase).

In terms of the harm posed to the setting of the Grade Il Listed Building, it is noted that
paragraph 193 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that great weight should be given to the
conservation of heritage assets. It is acknowledged that the height and length of the
proposed development has been reduced when compared to the previously refused
applications (references 14387/APP/2020/2775 and 14387/APP/2020/2776). Specifically,
the harm to the setting of the Listed Building should be viewed in the context of the
previously approved application which establishes merit for the development of the footprint
adjoining the Public House.

As stated by the Council's Conservation Officer, the proposed development would
negatively affect the setting of the Listed Building by virtue of its scale, footprint and height.
It would have a dominant presence on the site and be highly visible from the street scene
and within the site itself. Although the height has been reduced to match that of the exiting
Public House, the proposed building would not be considered ancillary to the main Listed
Building and the infrastructure associated with the proposed use would further erode the
setting of the Listed Building. Accordingly, the proposed development would harm the
significance and setting of the heritage asset.

In this instance, the extent of harm is considered to be 'less than substantial', therefore
requiring consideration of paragraph 196 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(February 2019). This states that where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing
its optimum viable use.

It is noted that the development approved under application references
14387/APP/2018/1383 and 14387/APP/2018/1385 provided public benefit by restoring the
Grade Il Listed Building, reversing the harm caused to its significance, generating local
employment, supporting the viability of the business, supporting the preservation of the
heritage asset and providing a community hub.

Significantly, the Grade Il Listed Building has already been restored and is operating as a
public house. In this respect, the harm caused to the heritage asset has been reversed and
is not applicable to the current situation. It is acknowledged, however, that the costs of
such restoration do have a financial impact on what can be brought forward on-site in
terms of further development. Although this is not a public benefit of the current application,
it is inherently linked and is therefore afforded some weight in the consideration process.

Based on the HCA's Employment Density Guide 3rd Edition (November 2015), the
proposed development would generate a range between 11 and 14 jobs. In comparison,
the approved scheme would have generated between 6 and 8 jobs. The proposed
development would therefore generate between 3 and 8 jobs more than the scheme
previously permitted. It should be noted that the applicant states that the development
would create 24 jobs and that the development would utilise local business for its delivery.
Accordingly, the employment generation of the proposed development is considered to be
a public benefit of the scheme, although this benefit can be applied to most forms of

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



development in some capacity and is only given limited weight.

It is acknowledged that the proposed development would support the viability of the
business and would in turn support the preservation of the heritage asset. This
consideration is undermined, to an extent, by the fact that the site has already been
permitted a barn extension which would expand its capacity and support its viability. It is
noted, however, that at least 315 public houses have closed in England in 2020 and follows
the closure of 473 public houses in 2019 and 914 public houses in 2018. The closure of
public houses which do not or cannot adapt to changing economic circumstances is
therefore a very real concern.

In terms of the circumstances specific to the Six Bells Public House, it is highlighted that
the Public House is only one of three public houses which provides such a use to the local
community (based on a 800 metre radius survey of the site). It is worth noting that the site
is also not located within a local centre or town centre and does not benefit from the
support of such co-locations. This is considered to support the need to diversify the
business in order to safeguard its long term viability.

It is agreed that public houses form important hubs for communities. Specifically,
paragraph 92 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that planning decisions should plan
positively for the provision and use of community facilities such as public houses to
enhance the sustainability of communities and residential environments. This is also
supported by Policy HC7 of the Publication London Plan (December 2020). In terms of the
current application, it is important to factor in the significant public support for the proposed
development, taking the form of a supporting petition with 30 signatories, as well as support
from the Eastcote Conservation Panel, the Eastcote Residents Association and the
Ruislip, Northwood and Eastcote Local History Society.

As addressed in the Full Planning application report, planning conditions will also be applied
to secure further benefits from the proposed development if recommended for approval.
This includes ecological benefits which are to be secured as part of an ecological
enhancement scheme.

In accordance with paragraph 196 of the NPPF (February 2019), the 'less than substantial
harm' posed to the setting of the heritage asset has been weighed against the public
benefits of the proposal. In the context of Public Houses in England and more specifically
the Six Bells Public House, the proposed development is considered to provide public
benefits to outweigh the harm posed. Conditions are also proposed to safeguard the
special architectural and historic interest of the listed building. On balance, the proposed
development is accepted and is not considered contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies DMHB 1 and
DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January
2020), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016), Policy HC1 of the London Plan
(December 2020) and the NPPF (February 2019).

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 LB1 Time Limit (3 years) - Listd Building Consent

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the
date of this consent.

REASON

To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

2 CcomM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers VSA20/11 - 006A,
VSA20/11 - 007A, VSA20/11 - 008, VSA20/11 - 009, VSA20/11 - 010, VSA20/11- 011 and
shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (March 2016).

3 LB2 Making good of any damage

Any damage caused to the building in execution of the works shall be made good to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within 6 months of the works being completed.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the listed building, in
accordance to Policy HE1 of Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies DMHB 1 and DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) and the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

4 LB3 Works to building's interior

Unless specified on the approved drawings, the Local Planning Authority's agreement
must be sought for the opening up of any part of the interior of the building.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the listed building, in
accordance to Policy HE1 of Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies DMHB 1 and DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) and the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

5 LB9 Samples of materials

Prior to commencement of development, samples of all materials and finishes to be used
for all external surfaces of the building, including the erection of a sample panel, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the listed building, in
accordance to Policy HE1 of Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies DMHB 1 and DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) and the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

6 NONSC Detailed Drawings

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



Prior to commencement of development, detailed drawings of the proposed infrastructure
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall
include detail of the:

(i) Soil vent pipes;

(i) Mechanical ventilation;

(iii) Rainwater goods; and

(iv) Fire safety measures.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the listed building, in
accordance to Policy HE1 of Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies DMHB 1 and DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) and the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

7 LB10 Internal and External Finishes (Listed Buildings)

All new works and works of making good to the retained fabric of the building, whether
internal or external, shall be finished to match the existing fabric with regard to methods
used and to material, colour, texture and profile.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the listed building, in
accordance to Policy HE1 of Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies DMHB 1 and DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) and the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

8 LB12 Hidden Features

Any hidden historic features which are revealed during the course of works shall be
retained in situ, work suspended in the relevant area of the building and the Council as
local planning authority notified immediately. Provision shall be made for the retention,
proper recording, as required by the Council.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the listed building, in
accordance to Policy HE1 of Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies DMHB 1 and DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) and the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

INFORMATIVES

1 The decision to GRANT Listed Building Consent has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT Listed Building Consent has been taken having regard tc

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



2 the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2
(2020) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial
Development Strategy for London consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016)
and national guidance.

DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 2 Listed Buildings

DMHB 1 Design of New Development

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

NPPF-1 NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

3 In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our
statutory policies from Local Plan Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary
Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well
as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure that the
applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely
to be considered favourably.

4 All unauthorised timber structures within the confines of the site should be
removed prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



The Old Workhouse

’
‘.
., '

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary THE SIX BELLS PH OF HILLINGDON

For dentificatl | DUCKS HILL ROAD Residents Services

or identification purposes only. Planning Section

This copy has been made by or with RUISLIP Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Services pursuant to section 47 of the . T . .

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 14387/APP/2020/4128 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:

© Crown copyright and database

qgggséggg Ordnance Survey North Page 105 February 2021 LonDom




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 188 BURY STREET RUISLIP

Development: Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 4 x 4 bed dwelling houses
with associated parking spaces and external works

LBH Ref Nos: 8697/APP/2020/3622

Drawing Nos: 03
04 Rev. B
05
02
Design and Access Statement
001
CIL Form
Drainage Strategy
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement and Tree
Protection Plan

Date Plans Received:  02/11/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 30/11/2020
1. SUMMARY

The current application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing
bungalow and the erection of 4 x 4 bed two storey dwelling houses with roof space
accommodation and associated parking spaces, amenity spaces and external works.

The dwellings would be detached and have a 2 metre separation gap between each
dwelling. The first two dwellings would follow the established building line of 186 Bury
Street. The remaining two dwellings would be set forward of this building line by
approximately 4 m.

The proposed development is considered to accord with the criteria in Policy DMH 6 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020). The
redevelopment of the site is therefore considered to be acceptable and would provide the
type of family dwellings that are most needed in the borough. The proposed design is
considered appropriate within the site's context and the proposal would not have an
adverse impact on the openness of the Green Belt, the amenity of neighbouring properties
or the local highways network.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 547/P 03, 547/P 04
Rev B and 547/P 05 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part
1 - Strategic Policies (2012), the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management
Policies Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2016).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020).

4 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping (which must also include all land which is not part of a
residential curtilage, including the green belt land).

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that all parking spaces are served by
electrical charging points, each dwelling should incorporate 1 'passive' and 1 ‘'active’
space)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years (which must also
include all land which is not part of a residential curtilage, including the green belt land).
4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB
12, DMHB 14, DMEI 1 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies
5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2015).

5 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the Arboricultural Impact Assessment,
Method Statement & Tree Protection Plan prepared by Trevor Heaps, dated October 2020
(ref TH 2550), shall not be damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is
removed or severely damaged during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously
diseased or dying, another tree, hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if
planting in the same place would leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to
disease, then the planting should be in a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the completion
of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where
damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect
of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part
1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'.

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations’ and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
Part 2 (2020) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

6 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The first floor windows in the south east flank elevations and north west flank elevations of
the new dwellings shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass to at least scale 4 on
the Pilkington scale and be non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal
finished floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policies DMHB 11 and
DMHD 1-2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



7 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or
roof alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
(2020)

8 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No superstructure works shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision of
sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that sustainable drainage
systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the development in
accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of the London Plan
and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method
employed to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the
measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;
ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout
its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

V. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and London Plan (2016) Policy
5.12.

9 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No superstructure works shall take place until a full and detailed Construction Logistics
Plan (CLP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The CLP will be a requirement given the constraints and sensitivities of the local
residential road network in order to minimise/avoid potential detriment to the public realm.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies DMHB 11, DMHB
12, DMHB 14, and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

10 RES24 Secured by Design

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policy DMHB 15 of the Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and
London Plan (2015) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

11 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to superstructure works, details of step free access via the principal private entrance
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Such
provision shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON: To ensure that an appropriate standard of housing stock, in accordance with
the 2016 London Plan policy 3.8(c) and policy D7 of the 2019 (Intend to Publish) London
Plan, is achieved and maintained.

12 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The dwellings hereby approved shall be constructed to meet the standards for a Category
2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015, and all such provisions shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON
To ensure that an appropriate standard of housing stock, in accordance with London Plan
policy 3.8(c), is achieved and maintained.

13 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the approved plans, prior to first occupation of the development hereby
permitted, a plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary
treatment to be erected on the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The boundary treatment shall be erected prior to first occupation
of the development in accordance with the approved details and shall be permanently
maintained as such thereafter.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB
12, DMHB 14, DMEI 1, DMEI 6 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and
Policies 5.11 and 5.17 of the London Plan (2016).

14 MRD4 Single Dwellings Occupation

The development hereby approved shall not be sub-divided to form additional dwelling
units or used in multiple occupation without a further express permission from the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the premises remain as a single dwelling until such time as the Local
Planning Authority may be satisfied that conversion would be in accordance with Policy H7

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

DMEI 6 Development in Green Edge Locations
DMH 1 Safeguarding Existing Housing
DMH 2 Housing Mix
DMH 6 Garden and Backland Development
DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping
DMHB 16 Housing Standards
DMHB 17 Residential Density
DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space
DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts
DMT 2 Highways Impacts
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking
LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply
LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential
LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character
LPP 7.5 (2016) Public realm
LPP 7.6 (2016) Architecture
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan Policies (2016).
Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies on 8
November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 on 16 January 2020.

4 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

5 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application may have to
be submitted. The validity of this planning permission may be challengeable by third
parties if the development results in any form of encroachment onto land outside the
applicant's control for which the appropriate Notice under Article 13 of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has not
been served.

6 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 558170).

7 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

8 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction.
Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a
private road and where possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads.
The applicant may be required to make good any damage caused.

9 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan
Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other
informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order
to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application
which is likely to be considered favourably.

10 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London
Borough of Hilingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be calculated in accordance with the
London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL
Charging Schedule 2012. Before commencement of works the development parties must
notify the London Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the construction
works (by submitting a Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by
submitting an Assumption of Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.
The Council will then issue a Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL
that is payable. Failure to submit a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and
Commencement Notice prior to commencement of the development may result in
surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal  at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability
perspective as a scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement
conditions have been discharged/complied with.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a substantial single storey detached bungalow located on
the north east side of Bury Street. The subject site is rectangular shaped plot with an area
of approximately 2,900 sgm. The north western part of the site with an area of
approximately 876 sqm is designated as Green Belt land. There are two existing vehicular
crossovers on Bury Street, one giving access to the existing bungalow and the other at the
north west end of the site giving access through and across the designated Green Belt
around to a single storey outbuilding at the rear of the site. The site lies within a Critical

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



Drainage Area.

The neighbouring property at Hillingdon Athletic Club lies to the north and No. 186 Bury
Street lies to the south. To the rear lies the public open space known as Ruislip Common.
The area is characterised by a variety of property types and designs, with mainly detached
properties in the immediate locality. Both adjacent properties are two storey dwellings.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The current application seeks planning permission for the demolition of existing bungalow
and erection of 4 x 4 bed dwelling houses with all associated parking spaces and external
works.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

8697/PRC/2016/105 188 Bury Street Ruislip

Erection of a single building comprising 9 apartments involving the demolition of the existing
house

Decision: 24-11-2016 OBJ

8697/PRC/2016/85 188 Bury Street Ruislip

Double storey rear and side extensions

Decision: 24-11-2016 OBJ

8697/PRC/2019/166 188 Bury Street Ruislip
Demolition of existing bungalow and construction of 3 x 2 storey, 5 bed detached dwellings

Decision: 04-11-2019 OBJ

8697/PRC/2020/64 188 Bury Street Ruislip

Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 3 x 3 bed terrace houses and 1 x 4 bed detache:
house on adjacent land

Decision: 23-07-2020 OBJ

Comment on Relevant Planning History
A number of pre application requests but no other relevant planning history.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Development Plan

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies

Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local
Planning Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2020)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March
2018 with the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The
Plan was subject to examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated
Draft Plan with amendments was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors
appointed by the Secretary of State issued their report and recommendations to the Mayor
on 8th October 2019.

The Mayor considered the Inspectors' recommendations and, on 9th December 2019,
issued to the Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a
statement of reasons for the Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor did not wish to
accept. The Secretary of State responded on the 13th March 2020 and stated that he was
exercising his powers under section 337 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 to direct
that modifications are required.

On 9th December 2020, the Mayor wrote to the Secretary of State to advise of his intention
to formally approve a new draft London Plan, which included his best understanding of the
modifications required. The Secretary of State responded on 10th December 2020
requesting that the draft London Plan was re-submitted with more specific amendments to
address the 11 previous Directions and 2 additional Directions. On 21st December 2020,
the Mayor formally approved a new London Plan, the 'Publication London Plan'. This has
been submitted to the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State has 6 weeks to respond
or can request a further extension of time. The Mayor can only publish the Plan after the
Secretary of State has given approval.

More limited weight should be attached to parts of draft London Plan policies where the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



Secretary of State has directed specific amendments. Greater weight may be attached to
policies that are not subject to the specific amendments from the Secretary of State.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

DMEI 6 Development in Green Edge Locations
DMH 1 Safeguarding Existing Housing

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMH 6 Garden and Backland Development

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2016) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2016) Architecture
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

7 neighbouring properties and the local residents association were consulted by letter dated
3/12/2020. The consultation period expires on 24/12/2020.

No local response.

Internal Consultees
Please refer to the relevant sections within the body of this report

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Paragraph 118 of the NPPF expects planning decisions to give substantial weight to the
value of using suitable brownfield land within settlements for homes and other identified
needs. It promotes and supports the development of under- utilised land and buildings,
especially if this would help to meet identified need.

Policy 3.3 of the London Plan (2016) expects Hillingdon to deliver a minimum of 559 new
homes each year until 2025.

Policy H1 of the Local Plan: Part One (2012) requires the Council to exceed or meet its
minimum strategic dwelling requirements, where this can be achieved, in compliance with
other Local Plan policies.

The proposed development would result in a net gain of three dwellings (four dwellings in
total). The site is not identified as a housing site in the adopted Site Allocations document.
Where a site is not identified for development, it may still come forward through the
planning application process where it will be tested in accordance with relevant national,
London Plan and local policies.

The application site is not considered to be previously developed land and would technically
be development on garden land and spreads beyond the footprint of the existing dwelling.
Policy DMH 6 of the Local Plan Part 2 states that in exceptional cases a limited scale of
backland development may be acceptable. This is subject to the neighbour impacts,
access road details being acceptable, tree retention and the scale of development being
more intimate than directly adjoining neighbours.

The parcel of land has a sprawling bungalow of no architectural merit. As such new
dwellings would appear to fit into the existing settlement pattern rather than appearing as
an incongruous addition to the existing settlement pattern. The area is characterised by
large detached properties and the adjacent property is a two storey dwelling.

In effect given all of the above considerations the development of the land parcel would
appear to be a logical redevelopment within the context of its surroundings, rather than an
obvious backland/garden development proposal. Overall there are no objections in principle
to the addition of residential development on the application site subject to compliance with
the policies set out in the Development Plan.

Housing Mix

The Council's current information on housing need indicates a substantial borough-wide
requirement for larger affordable and private market units, particularly 3 bedroom
properties. Applicants proposing residential schemes are required to demonstrate that this
need has been taken into account in line with Policy DMH 2 of the Local Plan: Part 2 (2020)
and Policy H10 of the Intend to Publish Version of the London Plan (2020). The proposal
seeks to provide 4 x 4 bed family sized homes for which there is a borough-wide
requirement and as such, the proposed unit mix is considered acceptable.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that the new development takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not relevant to this application
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to this application
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Although part the site, i.e. the northern part of the former extensive garden land of the
existing dwelling, is situated within Green Belt, the area to be redeveloped does not
encroach onto the Green Belt and is set away from the boundary of the Green Belt by in
excess of 4 metres. This area of the site will be soft landscaped.

Given the existing built environment and its relationship with the boundary, it is considered
on balance that there would be no adverse impact on the openness of the Green Belt.
Where seen from within the adjoining Green Belt the buildings would be a continuation of
the Bury Street properties. No Green Belt issues are therefore considered to be raised by
this application.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The NPPF (2019) notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its
context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions."'

Policy 7.1 of the London Plan states that "design of new buildings and the spaces they
create should help reinforce or enhance the character, legibility, permeability and
accessibility of the neighbourhood".

Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states, "Development should have regard to the form,
function, and structure of an area, place or street and the scale, mass and orientation of
surrounding buildings. It should improve an area's visual or physical connection with natural
features. In areas of poor or ill-defined character, development should build on the positive
elements that can contribute to establishing an enhanced character for the future function
of the area".

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires that all new development achieves a 'high quality of design in all new buildings,
alterations and extensions'. Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020) advises that all development will be required to
be designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good design.

Policy DMEI 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020) will not allow developments adjacent to or conspicuous from the Green Belt that
would injure the visual amenities of the Green Belt by reason of siting, materials, design,
traffic or activities generated and proposals should assimilate development into the
surrounding area by the use of extensive peripheral landscaping to site boundaries.

It is noted that part of the site is designated as Green Belt however, no part of the proposal
would be built on this area of land. Notwithstanding this, it should be noted that Policy DMEI
6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (January 2020) Development in Green Edge Locations states

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



that new development adjacent to the Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land, Green Chains,
Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation, Nature Reserves, countryside, green spaces
or the Blue Ribbon Network should incorporate proposals to assimilate development into
the surrounding area by the use of extensive peripheral landscaping to site boundaries.
That said, the boundary of the Green Belt that covers only approximately half the garden
area of the site would appear to be a little incongruous.

The northern most proposed new dwelling would be set in by approximately 4.2 m from the
Green Belt boundary and between 17 m and 18 m to the rear and the eastern boundary.

Policy DMH 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020) states that A) The net loss of existing self-contained housing, including affordable
housing, will be resisted unless the housing is replaced with at least equivalent residential
floor space. B) The Council will grant planning permission for the subdivision of dwellings
only if: i) car parking standards can be met within the curtilage of the site without being
detrimental to the street scene; ii) all units are self contained with exclusive use of sanitary
and kitchen facilities and provided with individual entrances and internal staircases to serve
units above ground floor level; iii) adequate amenity space is provided for the benefit of
residents; and iv) adequate living space standards are met.

Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020) states that the Council will require the provision of a mix of housing units of different
sizes in schemes of residential development to reflect the Council's latest information on
housing need. The Council will require the provision of a mix of housing units of different
sizes in schemes of residential development to reflect the Council's latest information on
housing need.

Policy DMH 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020) states that there is a presumption against the loss of gardens due to the need to
maintain local character, amenity space and biodiversity. In exceptional cases a limited
scale of back land development may be acceptable, subject to the following criteria: i)
neighbouring residential amenity and privacy of existing homes and gardens must be
maintained and unacceptable light spillage avoided; ii) vehicular access or car parking
should not have an adverse impact on neighbours in terms of noise or light. Access roads
between dwellings and unnecessarily long access roads will not normally be acceptable;
i) development on back land sites must be more intimate in mass and scale and lower
than frontage properties; and iv) features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife habitat must be
retained or re-provided.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that: A) All development, including extensions, alterations and new
buildings, will be required to be designed to the highest standards and, incorporate
principles of good design including: i) harmonising with the local context; ii) ensuring the
use of high quality building materials and finishes; iii) ensuring that the internal design and
layout of development maximises sustainability and is adaptable to different activities; iv)
protecting features of positive value within and adjacent to the site, including the
safeguarding of heritage assets, designated and undesignated, and their settings; and v)
landscaping and tree planting to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and green
infrastructure. B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity of
adjacent properties and open space.

The proposal is for four detached two storey dwellings with rear dormers to accommodate

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



a fourth bedroom in the roofspace. The first two dwellings on the southern end of the site
would follow the established front building line of the neighbouring property at 186 Bury
Street. Dwellings Nos 3 and 4 would be set forward of this building line by 4 m. There
would be separation distance of 2 metres between each dwelling and two car parking
spaces are allocated to the front of each dwelling which would be accessed by a driveway
using the existing vehicular crossover on the southern end of the site. The proposed
dwellings would be set back between 21 m and 22 m from the boundary of the site with a
frontage onto Bury Street.

The immediate locality of Bury Street is characterised by large detached and semi-
detached dwellings and the proposed development is considered to respect the character
and appearance of the existing built environment along Bury Street.

With regard to the criteria in Policy DMH 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020), the proposed limited scale of development,
including the re-development of the existing bungalow, is considered to: i) maintain
neighbouring residential amenity and the privacy of existing homes and gardens and avoid
unacceptable light spillage; ii) the proposed vehicular access and car parking will not have
an unacceptable adverse impact on neighbours in terms of noise or light; iii) the proposed
development will be more intimate in mass and scale than186 Bury Street, to the south-
east; and iv) features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife habitat are generally retained or re-
provided.

The four dwellings are considered to be in keeping with the character of the street scene
and the surrounding area. The new dwellings would benefit from adequate private amenity
areas to the rear of the site with spacious frontages and on site car parking.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 B) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) seeks to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in terms of loss
of light, loss of outlook, sense of dominance and loss of privacy.

The first of the four dwellings closest to the southern shared boundary would be set in from
the shared side boundary with No. 186 Bury Street by approximately 1 m. Both dwelling
Nos 1 and 2 would follow the established front building line. In addition, the proposed new
dwelling (no. 1) would not extend beyond this neighbouring property's rear wall. A first floor
window is proposed in the south facing flank elevation however, this would serve a landing
area and could therefore be conditioned to be obscure glazed should planning permission
be forthcoming. Consequently, it is considered that the proposal itself would not result in
the loss of residential amenity to the neighbouring property at 186 Bury Road in terms of
loss of light, loss of outlook and sense of dominance.

Dwellings 3 and 4 would be set forward of this building line by approximately 4 m however,
dwelling No. 3 would not intersect the 45 degree line of site when measured from the
nearest ground and first floor habitable room windows in the front elevation of dwelling No.
2. It is noted that to the rear dwelling No. 3 would also comply with the 45 degree line of
sight.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



alteration to The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. The standards require a 7
person 4 bed dwelling over three storeys should have a minimum internal floor area of 121
sq m. Submitted plans indicate that all the dwellings would be in excess of these standards
and therefore would provide a satisfactory living environment for the future occupants in
accordance with Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2016.

The Technical Housing Standards - nationally described space standard requires that in
order to provide a single bedroom it must have a floor area of at least 7.5m2 and be 2.15m
wide. A double or twin bedroom should have a floor area of at least 11.5m2. Hillingdon's
local variation stipulates 8m2 and 12m2 respectively. The proposed floor plans indicate that
all the bedrooms would be in excess of these space standards.

Any proposal should ensure that all the proposed habitable rooms would have an adequate
outlook and source of natural light, in compliance with the Mayor of London's Housing
Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016).

Paragraph 5.40 within the Local Plan: Part Two (2020) states that the Council will expect
new development proposals to carefully consider layout and massing in order to ensure
development does not result in an increased sense of enclosure and loss of outlook. Single
aspect dwellings should be avoided.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016).

Private Amenity Space

Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies
(January 2020) stresses the importance of new buildings and extensions providing
adequate amount of external amenity space, that not only protects the amenity of the
occupants of the proposed development, but also of those of the surrounding buildings, as
well as protecting both parties privacy.

Table 5.3: Private Outdoor Amenity Space Standards states that a dwelling house with 4 +
bedrooms should be provided with a minimum of 100 sgm of private external amenity
space. Each of the private amenity spaces provided meets or exceeds this. Therefore the
proposal complies with Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development
Management Policies (January 2020).

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Highways & Transportation commented as follows: -
Site Characteristics & Background

The site in Bury Street is located within a residential catchment just south of Breakspear
Road (both designated as 'Classified' roads in the boroughs hierarchy of roads).

The immediate vicinity is encompassed by double yellow line waiting restrictions and in
addition there are generous off-street parking facilities available for most of the surrounding
residential properties in the area which further assists in reducing general on-street parking

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



demand. The public transport accessibility level (PTAL) rating (1b) is considered as poor
thereby heightening ownership and use of private motor transport.

The proposal is for the demolition of the existing detached bungalow and the provision of 4
new four-bedroom detached properties. Each of the 4 units would be provided with 2 on-
plot parking spaces. An existing vehicular access shared with No.186 is to be utilised to
access the site with a new internal 'shared' roadway layout serving the 4 dwellings.

Parking Provision

Local Plan: Part 2 Policy - DMT 6 requires that new development will only be permitted
where it accords with the Council's adopted parking standards unless it can be
demonstrated that a deviation from the standard would not result in a deleterious impact on
the surrounding road network.

In order to comply with the adopted parking standard, the maximum on-plot requirement
demands up to 2 spaces for each unit. This level of provision is proposed hence the
standard is met.

Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP's)

In line with the emerging London Plan, within any final parking quantum there is a
requirement for a minimum of 20% 'active' EVCP provision with all remaining spaces being
designated as 'passive' provisions. In this case, each dwelling should incorporate 1
'passive’ and 1 'active' space. This aspect should be subject to a planning condition.

Cycling Provision

In terms of cycle parking there should be a provision of at least 2 secure and accessible
spaces for each of the dwelling units in order to conform to the adopted minimum borough
cycle parking standard. This requirement has been acknowledged by the applicant but is
not depicted on-plan hence this detail should be secured via planning condition.

Access Arrangements for Vehicular and Pedestrian Usage

The principle of layout and design of the roadway and highway access should broadly
conform to the Department for Transport's (DfT's) - Manual for Streets (MfS) (circa 2007)
best practice for road and parking layouts as this would allow for vehicles using the site to
enter and leave the site in a forward gear which is the recommended practice on highway
safety grounds and appears achievable given the plot area.

An existing vehicular access shared with No.186 is to be utilised to access the site with a
new internal 'shared' roadway layout serving the 4 dwellings. Given that Bury Street is a
major heavily trafficked thoroughfare, the utilisation of an existing access point reduces the
proliferation of additional crossings onto this roadway which is considered beneficial in
highway safety terms and therefore welcomed. This approach would also avoid the loss of
grass verge space on the public highway which is considered as a positive environmental
benefit.

Vehicular Trip Generation
Local Plan: Part 2 Policies - DMT 1 and DMT 2 require the Council to consider whether the

traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

The proposal would produce a marginal increase in traffic generation from the site as
compared to the existing single dwelling unit however peak period traffic movement into
and out of the site would not be expected to rise beyond 1-2 vehicle movements during the
peak morning and evening hours. Hence this uplift is considered marginal in generation
terms and therefore can be absorbed within the local road network without notable
detriment to traffic congestion and road safety.

Operational Refuse Requirements

Refuse collection would continue via Bury Street. No bin storage areas for the new units
are depicted. On collection day, a site management regime should ensure that waste
collection distances do not exceed 10m from the point of collection from the public highway
in order to conform to accepted best practice This can be achieved by either a formal
planning condition or informal arrangement applied by the new occupier/s. It is considered
that for this scale of development it is in the best interest of the occupier to place their
refuse within the 10m distance parameter from the highway if they wish for their refuse to
be collected. Such an informal arrangement is therefore highly likely to occur and is
therefore considered acceptable in this particular case. There are no further observations.

Conclusion

The application has been reviewed by the Highway Authority who are satisfied that the
proposal would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress, and would not
raise any measurable highway safety concerns, in accordance with Local Plan: Part 2
Development Plan Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies 6.3, 6.9, and 6.13 of the
London Plan (2016).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Design matters have been addressed in Paragraph 07.7 of this report.
Security

Policy DMHB 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that the Council will require all new development to ensure safe and
attractive public and private spaces by referring to the Council's latest guidance on
Secured by Design principles. Where relevant, these should be included in the Design and
Access Statement. Development will be required to comprise good design and create
inclusive environments whilst improving safety and security by incorporating the following
specific measures:

i) providing entrances in visible, safe and accessible locations;

ii) maximising natural surveillance;

iii) ensuring adequate defensible space is provided;

iv) providing clear delineations between public and private spaces; and

v) providing appropriate lighting and CCTV.

A condition is attached requiring compliance with Secured by Design standards.
7.12 Disabled access

Policy 3.8(c) of the London Plan (March 2016) requires that ninety percent of new housing
should meet Building Regulation requirement M4 (2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings'.

Policy 7.2 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that new development should achieve

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



the highest standards of accessible and inclusive design to ensure that:

a) development can be used safely, easily and with dignity by all regardless of disability,
age, gender, ethnicity or economic circumstances and

b) development is convenient and welcoming with no disabling barriers, so everyone can
use them independently without undue effort, separation or special treatment.

The Access officer commented as follows: -

| have considered the detail of this planning application for four, 4 bed houses and deem
there to be no accessibility issues raised by the proposal. However, any grant of planning
permission should include the following conditions:

Prior to works commencing, details of step free access via the principal private entrance
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Such
provision shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON: To ensure that an appropriate standard of housing stock, in accordance with the
2016 London Plan policy 3.8(c) and policy D7 of the 2019 (Intend to Publish) London Plan,
is achieved and maintained.

The dwellings hereby approved shall be constructed to meet the standards for a Category
2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015, and all such provisions shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON: To ensure that an appropriate standard of housing stock, in accordance with the
2016 London Plan policy 3.8(c) and policy D7 of the 2019 (Intend to Publish) London Plan,
is achieved and maintained.

A condition is attached to ensure the details of step free access via the principal private
entrance and compliance with Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015. Subject to such conditions, the proposal would accord with Policies 3.8 and 7.2 of
the London Plan (March 2016).

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) states
that housing provision is expected to include a range of housing to meet the needs of all
types of households and the Council will seek to maximise the delivery of affordable
housing from all sites over the period of the Local Plan. For sites with a capacity of 10 or
more units the Council will seek to ensure that the affordable housing mix reflects housing
needs in the borough, particularly the need for larger family units. This is supported by
Policy DMH 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020).

The proposal is for less than 10 residential units and does not meet the threshold in order

to require affordable housing provision. As such, the proposal is not contrary to Policy H2 of

the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policy DMH 7 of

the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020).
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) also requires that new development is high quality, sustainable, adaptable,
and harmonises with the local context. Landscaping and tree planting should also enhance
amenity, biodiversity and green infrastructure.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping, trees,
biodiversity or other natural features of merit.

B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that includes
hard and soft landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which supports and
enhances biodiversity and amenity particularly in areas deficient in green infrastructure.

Trees & Landscaping commented as follows

This site is occupied by a detached chalet bungalow, with a detached garage, shed and
swimming pool located within a spacious garden plot on the east side of Bury street.

The site makes a significant contribution to the leafy character and appearance of the
area.The garden contains some 37 trees which are not protected by TPO or Conservation
Area. The Bury Road boundary is defined by trees and hedges with a fine Horse chestnut
and other trees within the highway verge.

Most of the trees within the site are located within the northern half of the site, which lies
within the Green Belt.

The land to the east is a densely wooded National Nature Reserve, Ruislip Woods. The
land across the road is an attractive public open space, known as Ruislip Common.

COMMENT: EXISTING TREES

A full tree report, by Trevor Heaps, dated October 2020,has been submitted. The report
has identified 37 trees which are on, or close to the site. The condition and value of these
trees is exceptionally high. 8 of the trees are category 'A'; T1,75,T10,T17,T20,T21,T36 with
25 trees category 'B'. Only one hedge, H2, and two individual trees; T3 and T4, fall into the
lower 'C' category.

The arboricultural impact assessment concludes that one 'B' grade tree, T26 magnolia, will
be removed to facilitate the development.

There will be some incursion into the root protection area (RPA) of a small number of
trees, however, any encroachment is within the tolerance advised by BS5837:2012. Full
tree protection measures are specified, supported by an arboricultural method statement.

COMMENT: SITE LAYOUT
The site layout has been constrained within the southern end of the site and retains all of
the trees on site which occupy the Green Belt / northern part of the plot, together with the

valuable tree screen along the Bury Road frontage and other boundaries.

The proposed four detached houses will share a new access road located behind, and
parallel with, the tree-lined Bury Road frontage.

The site layout includes space for private gardens and soft landscape enhancement.

RECOMMENDATION

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

No objection subject to strict adherence to the recommendations of the tree report and
conditions RES 9 (parts 1,2,4,5 and 6) and RES 10.'
Sustainable waste management

The Highways & Transportation officer has assessed the waste management and
considered it to be acceptable.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to this application
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site is located in Flood Zone 1 and is within a Critical Drainage Area. It is not identified
as at risk of surface water flooding. It is considered that a condition can be imposed to
ensure suitable sustainable drainage methods and materials are used to help prevent
additional surface water run off during high rain fall events.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not relevant to this application
Comments on Public Consultations

Comments raised have been addressed within the body of this report.
Planning Obligations

Due to the scale of development, planning obligations are not required.
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £60 per sq metre.

Initial calculation for the proposed development
Mayoral CIL =410 x £60 = £24,600
Hillingdon CIL = 410 x £38,950 = £38,950

Total CIL payable = £63,550
Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to this application
Other Issues

No other issues identified.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the existing single
storey bungalow and the erection of 4 x 4 bed detached dwellings with amenity space, car
parking, landscaping and associated works. The redevelopment of the site is considered to
be acceptable and would provide the type of family dwellings that are most needed in the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



borough. The proposed design is considered appropriate within the site's context and the
proposal would not have an adverse impact on the openness of the Green Belt, the
amenity of neighbouring properties or the local highways network.

On this basis, the proposal is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Diane Verona Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



Hillingdon
Athletics Club

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON

For identificati | 188 BURY STREET Residents Services

or identification purposes only. RUlSLlP PIanning Section

This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . T . .

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 8697/APP/2020/3622 1:1,250 K

Unless the Act provides a relevant @;‘. s

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: SR
© Crown copyright and database

rights 2020 Ordnance Survey North Page 130 | February 2021 FHLLINGDON




Agenda Item 11

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address PYLON FARM NEWYEARS GREEN LANE HAREFIELD
Development: Demolition of existing outbuildings and construction of single replacement
outbuilding

LBH Ref Nos: 12579/APP/2020/2742

Drawing Nos: Photographic Schedule, Rev. PO, dated 22/2/2(
135 L 49 Rev. P1 (Proposed Section B B)
135 L 50 Rev. PO (Proposed South Elevation
135 L 37 Rev. P3 (Proposed Roof Plan’
McDougall Architects Ltd Letter dated 27/8/2(
135 L 01 Rev. P1 (Location Plan’
135 L 02 Rev. P1 (Existing Site Layout
135 L 05 Rev. P2 (Existing Ground Floor Plan
135 L 32 Rev. P1 (Proposed Site Layout
135 L 35 Rev. P2 (Proposed Ground Floor Plan
135 L 48 Rev. P1 (Proposed Section)
Design & Access Statement, Rev. P1, dated 29/8/20
135 L 45 Rev. P1 (Proposed North Elevation
135 L 06 Rev. P2 (Existing First Floor Plan’
135 L 07 Rev. P2 (Existing Roof Plan
135 L 46 Rev. P1 (Proposed East Elevation’
135 L 47 Rev. P1 (Proposed West Elevation’
Statement on Town Planning and Green Belt Matters, June 202
Client Statement
Arboricultural Report, July 202(
Bat Survey Report, June 202(

Date Plans Received: 01/09/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 12/01/2021
Date Application Valid: 11/09/2020 29/08/2020

1. SUMMARY

The proposal is for the demolition of a small group of existing farm buildings and
construction of a single replacement building that would continue to fulfill the same
multiple functions in association with the maintenance of the farm and farm buildings,
together with a proportion of domestic use within the farm yard area of Pylon Farm which
forms part of the Green Belt.

A very similar application (12579/APP/2020/632 refers) was refused planning permission
under delegated powers on 22/5/20 as it was considered that the application lacked detail
in terms of the intended use of the building in relation to Green Belt policy, no survey had
been undertaken to establish the presence or otherwise of a protected species, namely
bats within the buildings and no arboricultural information had been submitted to allow the
LPA to assess the impact of the proposal on trees on and adjoining the site.

The additional clarification and information has now been provided with this application
and it is considered that all the reasons for refusal of the previous application have now
been overcome. The application is recommended for approval, subject to the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



recommended conditions.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2 COoM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:-

135 L 32 Rev. P1 (Proposed Site Layout)

135 L 35 Rev. P2 (Proposed Ground Floor Plan)
135 L 37 Rev. P3 (Proposed Roof Plan)

135 L 45 Rev. P1 (Proposed North Elevation)
135 L 46 Rev. P1 (Proposed East Elevation)
135 L 47 Rev. P1 (Proposed West Elevation)
135 L 48 Rev. P1 (Proposed Section)

135 L 49 Rev. P1 (Proposed Section B B)

135 L 50 Rev. PO (Proposed South Elevation)
and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON

To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2016).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Ecological Enhancement / Safeguarding Measures to include installation of bird and bat
boxes and light spillage mitigation [Bat Survey Report]
Tree Protection [Arboricultural Report]

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies DMHB 14 and
DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan, Part 2 (2020).

4 COM6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

5 COM12 Use Within Same Use Class

The premises shall be used for agriculture, commercial storage in connection with the
adjoining converted farm buildings and ancillary residential storage and for no other
purpose unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

In order to accord with the terms of the application and to protect the openness of the
Green Belt from increased activity generated by further uses / subdivision of the building,
in accordance with Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6 COM7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

7 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.b Car Parking Layouts

2.c Hard Surfacing Materials

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB
14, DMEI 1 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

8 NONSC Sustainable Water Management Condition

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site to a greenfield run off rate
which does not exceed 1.4l/s and the measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving
groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies 5.13 and 5.15 of the
London Plan (2016).

9 COM29 No floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered other than for routine maintenance which does not change its
details.

REASON
To protect the ecological value of the area in accordance with Policy DMEI 7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

NPPF- 13 NPPF-13 2018 - Protecting Green Belt land
NPPF- 15 NPPF-15 2018 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
NPPF- 16 NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage
LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 6.9 (2016) Cycling
LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking
LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology
LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt
LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature
LPP 7.21 (2016) Trees and woodlands
DMHB 1 Heritage Assets
DMHB 2 Listed Buildings
DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping
DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality
DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts
DMT 2 Highways Impacts
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking
3 113 Asbestos Removal

Demolition and removal of any material containing asbestos must be carried out in
accordance with guidance from the Health and Safety Executive and the Council's
Environmental Services. For advice and information contact: - Environmental Protection
Unit, 3S/02, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 277401) or the
Health and Safety Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS
(Tel. 020 7556 2100).

4 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application may have to
be submitted. The validity of this planning permission may be challengeable by third
parties if the development results in any form of encroachment onto land outside the
applicant's control for which the appropriate Notice under Article 13 of the Town and

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has not
been served.

5 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 558170).

6 14 Neighbourly Consideration - include on all residential exts

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. When
undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your neighbours and
do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at any time on Sundays or
Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all vehicles associated with the
construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed and cleaned to
prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway. You are advised that the
Council does have formal powers to control noise and nuisance under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information
and advice, please contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High
Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 143 Keeping Highways and Pavements free from mud etc

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or
adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Act 1980.

8 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction.
Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a
private road and where possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads.
The applicant may be required to make good any damage caused.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



9 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

10 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan
Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other
informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order
to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application
which is likely to be considered favourably.

11 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London
Borough of Hilingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be calculated in accordance with the
London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL
Charging Schedule 2012. Before commencement of works the development parties must
notify the London Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the construction
works (by submitting a Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by
submitting an Assumption of Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.
The Council will then issue a Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL
that is payable. Failure to submit a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and
Commencement Notice prior to commencement of the development may result in
surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability
perspective as a scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement
conditions have been discharged/complied with.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The 0.15 ha application site is located on the south side of New Years Green Lane,
approximately 500m to the west of its junction with Breakspear Road South and forms part
of Pylon Farm. The application site is occupied by a small group of farm buildings set back
from the south side of New Years Green Lane, with the farmhouse located immediately to
the east, separated from the application site by a farmyard.

The main farm building on the application site has a fairly traditional appearance, with
wooded weatherboarding and an asbestos sheet ridge roof which provides ancillary
agricultural / commercial and residential storage space and a brick outbuilding in front and
a static caravan sited to the side of the main building, mainly in use as office space. The

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



buildings are in a poor state of repair. Retained barns, yards and associated structures on
the adjacent site (within the blue line of the application) form part of the operational land
used by West London Composting.

The site forms part of the Green Belt. The wider landscape tends to slope down towards
the south-west. There are five residential properties in the vicinity on the other side of New
Years Green Lane, one of which, St Leonard's Farmhouse is Grade Il Listed. The farm
house at Pylon Farm is also in residential use and is owned by the applicant.

The wider area has seen significant change over recent years which has altered the local
character. The West London Composting operational facility is located to the east and
shares a boundary with Pylon Farm and there is also an open compost maturation site on
the northern side of New Years Green Lane. The Council's Civic Amenity site as well as
BFA, which operates a large metal recycling plant, are located further along New Years
Green Lane to the west. Country Compost Ltd, at Crows Nest Farm is also located to the
west of the site which has light industrial/commercial uses on site as well as a compost
business. Beyond these commercial / waste sites is open countryside, with arable fields
and fragments of woodland.

This part of the Green Belt also forms part of the Colne Valley Regional Park.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the demolition of a small group of existing farm buildings and
construction of a single replacement building that would continue to fulfill the same multiple
functions in association with the maintenance of the farm and farm buildings, together with
a proportion of domestic use.

The proposed barn would occupy a similar siting to the demolished buildings and would be
27.22m long by 15.20m wide and would have a pitched roof, perpendicular to New Years
Green Lane which due to the sloping ground levels, at its maximum height on the north
elevation would have a ridge height of 7.87m and an eaves height of 4.21m.

Vehicular access into the building would be provided through roller shutter doors in the
middle of the front (north) elevation with pedestrian access provided through double doors
within the middle of each side elevation. The building would contain two sets of windows
equally spaced either side of the side doors with 5 rooflights above the windows and door
on each side elevation. The building would have an insulated timber structure above a
cavity brickwork plinth, with full height brickwork piers to form bays. The walls would mainly
be covered with insulated black painted horizontal timber planks and the roof would
comprise concrete tiles.The proposed site plan shows the hardstanding around the
building being being re-surfaced with tarmac and extended to the front and to the west of
the site.

The documentation submitted with the application advises that the Pylon Farm estate
comprises 3 elements, namely:-

1. The farm house and yard, together with the group of outbuildings facing onto the farm
yard,;

2. The separate group of structures, known as Pond Farm. This is a commercial property
estate adjacent to Pylon Farm that provides serviced business space for small businesses
and

3. 25 acres of arable land surrounding the farm buildings.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



The existing buildings facilitate storage for a wide range of goods and equipment
associated with the maintenance of Pylon Farm and Pond Farm premises, together with
workspace for the same purpose. The buildings also provide storage space for a wide
range of equipment required for field maintenance and hay collection and associated office
space and document storage. In addition, the outbuildings also provide a limited range of
residential purposes such as firewood storage for use within Pylon Farmhouse, storage of
old furniture and a small home gym.

The documentation advises that the proposal is for continued storage of a variety of goods
and equipment, together with a small workshop and administrative space to facilitate the
continued operation of the applicant's business. Also proposed is a small w.c., shower and
changing area, along with a tea point that will allow the applicant to change from muddy
and wet work clothes and allow ease of use of administration space without need to enter
the house. In addition, the building will allow 2 cars to be securely parked and enable a 4
post car lift to be installed to service and maintain business vehicles as well as a track
racing car which is a hobby of the applicant.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

The most relevant planning history is an almost identical application for the demolition of
existing farm buildings and construction of a replacement building which was refused on
22/5/20 (12579/APP/2020/632 refers) for the following reasons:-

The application fails to demonstrate that the proposed agricultural building is reasonably
required in terms of the continued functioning of an agricultural unit. The proposal therefore
fails to provide sufficient justification for the proposal in terms of NPPF (February 2019),
Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (March 2016) and Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

The proposal involves the demolition of an existing building whose design and siting make it
suitable for bats. In the absense of any ecological surveys to establish the presence or
otherwise of protected species on site, the proposal fails to demonstrate that there would
be no detrimental impact on protected species, contrary to the NPPF (February 2019),
Policy 7.19 of the London Plan (March 2016) and Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

In the absence of any Tree Survey and Arboricultural Implication Assessment to
BS5837:2012 standards and existing and proposed land level information, the Local
Planning Authority was unable to fully assess the likely impact of the proposal, including the
extension of hardstanding areas, on nearby trees and their root protection areas. As such,
the proposal fails to demonstrate that the development would not have a detrimental impact
on the retention and longevity of surrounding trees. The proposal is thus contrary to Policy
7.21 of the London Plan (March 2016) and Policies DMHB 14 and DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

4. Planning Policies and Standards
Development Plan

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 139



following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies

Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local
Planning Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2020)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March
2018 with the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The
Plan was subject to examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated
Draft Plan with amendments was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors
appointed by the Secretary of State issued their report and recommendations to the Mayor
on 8th October 2019.

The Mayor considered the Inspectors' recommendations and, on 9th December 2019,
issued to the Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a
statement of reasons for the Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor did not wish to
accept. The Secretary of State responded on the 13th March 2020 and stated that he was
exercising his powers under section 337 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 to direct
that modifications are required.

On 9th December 2020, the Mayor wrote to the Secretary of State to advise of his intention
to formally approve a new draft London Plan, which included his best understanding of the
modifications required. The Secretary of State responded on 10th December 2020
requesting that the draft London Plan was re-submitted with more specific amendments to
address the 11 previous Directions and 2 additional Directions. On 21st December 2020,
the Mayor formally approved a new London Plan, the 'Publication London Plan'. This has
been submitted to the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State has 6 weeks to respond
or can request a further extension of time. The Mayor can only publish the Plan after the
Secretary of State has given approval.

More limited weight should be attached to parts of draft London Plan policies where the
Secretary of State has directed specific amendments. Greater weight may be attached to

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 140



policies that are not subject to the specific amendments from the Secretary of State.
UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage
PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
PT1.EM6 (

(

PT1.EM7

2012) Flood Risk Management

2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF- 13 NPPF-13 2018 - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF- 15 NPPF-15 2018 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
NPPF- 16 NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

LPP 5.13 2016) Sustainable drainage

(
LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 6.9 (2016) Cycling
LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking
LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology
LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt
LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature
LPP 7.21 (2016) Trees and woodlands
DMHB 1 Heritage Assets
DMHB 2 Listed Buildings

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 2nd November 2020
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees
9 surrounding occupiers have been consulted on this application, together with the Harefield Tenant

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 141



and Residents' Association and a site notice was displayed outside the site on 8/10/20, with the last
date for consultation responses being 29/10/20. 1 objection response from a neighbouring occupier
has been received, raising the following concerns:-

(i) The proposed building will have an excessively higher ridge than the current buildings and with a
much larger footprint. This proposed ridge level will exceed the current tree levels and will ruin the
green belt views.

(ii) The applicant has more than a dozen other barns to use for proposed storage of vehicles and
currently uses outside contractors to make hay as per the last 10 plus years.

(iii) The current barns are very much in keeping with all of the surrounding buildings in the area and
requires more remedial than demolition work. This remedial work would still yield a very useable
barn without changing the landscape.

Herts and Middlesex Wildlife Trust:
No response.

Internal Consultees
Planning Policy Officer:

Development Plan

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with
the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the following
documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in planning
decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies

Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local Planning
Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:

(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the greater the
weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this Framework (the
closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that
may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2020)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March 2018 with
the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The Plan was subject to

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated Draft Plan with amendments
was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors appointed by the Secretary of State issued their
report and recommendations to the Mayor on 8th October 2019.

The Mayor considered the Inspectors' recommendations and, on 9th December 2019, issued to the
Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a statement of reasons for the
Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor did not wish to accept. The Secretary of State
responded on the 13th March 2020 and stated that he was exercising his powers under section 337
of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 to direct that modifications are required.

On 9th December 2020, the Mayor wrote to the Secretary of State to advise of his intention to
formally approve a new draft London Plan, which included his best understanding of the
modifications required. The Secretary of State responded on 10th December 2020 requesting that
the draft London Plan was re-submitted with more specific amendments to address the 11 previous
Directions and 2 additional Directions. On 21st December 2020, the Mayor formally approved a new
London Plan, the 'Publication London Plan'. This has been submitted to the Secretary of State. The
Secretary of State has 6 weeks to respond or can request a further extension of time. The Mayor
can only publish the Plan after the Secretary of State has given approval.

More limited weight should be attached to parts of draft London Plan policies where the Secretary of
State has directed specific amendments. Greater weight may be attached to policies that are not
subject to the specific amendments from the Secretary of State.

Designations
- Colne Valley Regional Park
- Green Belt

Principle of Development

The proposed development involves the demolition of the existing farm building and the erection of a
replacement agricultural building (barn). The site lies within the Green Belt and the Colne Valley
Regional Park area.

Green Belt

Policy EM2 of the Local Plan: Part One (November 2012) notes that any proposals for
development in the Green Belt will be assessed against national and London Plan policies,
including the very special circumstances test.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) attaches great importance to the Green Belt. The
fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open.
The essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence. The NPPF
states that once Green Belt boundaries have been defined and local planning authorities are required
to positively enhance the beneficial use of the Green

Belt. Paragraph 144 of the NPPF states that when considering any planning application, local
planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt.

Paragraph 145 of the NPPF (2019) notes a local planning authority should regard the construction of
new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt unless it meets one of the exceptions. Exceptions
relevant to this development are:

- Part a) of paragraph 145 which states that buildings for agriculture and forestry are not
inappropriate; and
- Part c) of paragraph 145 which states that the extension or alteration of a building provided that it
does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building are not
inappropriate; and

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 143



- Part d) of paragraph 145 which states that the replacement of a building, provided the new building
is in the same use and not materially larger than the one it replaces is not inappropriate.

Policy DMEI 4 of the Local Plan: Part Two (2020) notes inappropriate development in the Green Belt
will not be permitted unless there are very exceptional circumstances. Extensions and
redevelopment of sites will also only be permitted where this would not have a greater impact on the
openness of the Green Belt as well as the purposes of including land within it, than the existing
development, having regard to:

- the height and bulk of the existing building on site,

- the proportion of the site that is already developed,

- the footprint, distribution and character of the existing buildings on site,

- the relationship of the proposal with any development on the site that is to be retained; and
- the visual amenity and character of the Green Belt.

The proposed replacement building appears to have a slightly larger footprint and is taller than the
current building. The proposed scheme should be assessed against the above policies and the
criteria in Policy DMEI 4 in assessing its impact on the Green Belt.

Tress and Landscape Officer:

This site is occupied by a a complex of farm buildings set back from the the south side of New
Years Green Lane. Retained barns, yards and associated structures on the adjacent site (within the
blue line of the application) form part of the operational land used by West London Composting. The
site lies within the Green Belt which seeks to retain the openness of the landscape and prevent
urban sprawl. There are existing trees along the north, east and west boundaries which provide
some degree of visual screening. - There are no TPO's or Conservation Area designations affecting
the site.

Comment

This application was preceded by application ref. 2020/632, which was refused. The current scheme
is similar to that previously submitted, however, additional supporting information has been provided,
including a tree report by DPA, dated July 2020. The report has identified and assessed 7 individual
trees and a hedge, H8 on the schedule. There are no 'A' grade trees. Two trees are category 'B": T1
a Lombardy poplar and T4, a Black poplar. The remaining trees are lower value, 'C' grade. The
report confirms that T6 magnolia and T7 an apple tree will be removed to facilitate the development.
These are small, low value trees, of no particular merit. Their removal is acceptable. All other
planting around the site perimeter will be be protected and retained. The report provide tree
protection details and an arboricultural method statement. Furthermore, arboricultural supervision /
monitoring has been specified to ensure that the protection measures are strictly adhered to. The
proposed single large barn will replace a collection of smaller structures. The ridge height of the new
barn will be just under 1 metre higher than the tallest structure to be demolished and 600mm above
the height of the nearest retained farm building. According to the D&AS, the only proposed
landscape will be a concrete apron of hardstanding around the barn to provide access. No
landscape enhancement has been proposed. Tree planting within the grass verge is required to
mitigate the tree loss and the scale of the new building and extensive area of hardstanding.

Landscape Related Policies
Relevant landscape planning policies include: DMEI 4 Green Belt DMHB 11 New development
DMHB 14 Trees and landscape

Recommendation
If the proposal is deemed to be acceptable in the Green Belt, there is no objection subject to
conditions COM9 (parts 1, 2, 4 and 5).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 144



Highways Engineer:

Site Characteristics & background

The address is designated as Green Belt land and NewYears Green Lane is bounded by Harvil Road
and Breakspear Road South which are both designated as a 'Classified' in Hillingdon's road
hierarchy.

The site is a developed Brownfield site formally used for equestrian and agricultural and waste
disposal purposes. It is now predominantly used for Hay cutting purposes and storage.

The proposal is for a replacement agricultural building of slightly larger scale (388-405m2 gross
external area) which is aimed to consolidate farm operations.

The application site is divided into two parts which share the same vehicular access/egress located
midway through New Years Green Lane which is established and is to remain unaltered.

Appraisal

As there are no envisaged implications related to the aspect of highway consequences whether
internal or external to the site envelope, the proposal is therefore considered acceptable on highway
and transport grounds.

Conclusion

The application has been reviewed by the Highway Authority who are satisfied that the proposal
would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress, and would not raise any measurable
highway safety concerns, in accordance with Local Plan Part 2 Development Plan Policies DMT 1,
DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies 6.3, 6.9, and 6.13 of the London Plan (2016).

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
The application site forms part of the Green Belt.

Paragraph 133 of the NPPF (2019) states that the Government attaches great importance
to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by
keeping land permanently open. The essential characteristics of Green Belts are their
openness and their permanence. The NPPF states that once Green Belt boundaries have
been defined, local planning authorities are required to positively enhance the beneficial use
of the Green Belt. Paragraph 144 of the NPPF states that when considering any planning
application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any
harm to the Green Belt.

Paragraph 145 of the NPPF notes a local planning authority should regard the construction
of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt unless it meets one of the exceptions.
Exceptions relevant to this development are:

- Part a) of paragraph 145 which states that buildings for agriculture and forestry are not
inappropriate; and

- Part c) of paragraph 145 which states that the extension or alteration of a building
provided that it does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the
original building are not inappropriate; and

- Part d) of paragraph 145 which states that the replacement of a building, provided the
new building is in the same use and not materially larger than the one it replaces is not
inappropriate.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 145



In terms of the use, the proposal would continue the use made of the existing outbuildings,
namely for the storage and maintenance of goods and equipment associated with
agriculture on the surrounding arable fields and to service and maintain the former farm
buildings that are now in commercial use. The small scale, residential use would also
continue, including firewood and old furniture storage and small gym. Therefore the use
would essentially remain the same.

Policy DMEI 4 of the Local Plan: Part Two (2020) notes inappropriate development in the
Green Belt will not be permitted unless there are very exceptional circumstances.
Extensions and redevelopment of sites will also only be permitted where this would not
have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt as well as the purposes of
including land within it, than the existing development, having regard to:

- the height and bulk of the existing building on site,

- the proportion of the site that is already developed,

- the footprint, distribution and character of the existing buildings on site,

- the relationship of the proposal with any development on the site that is to be retained;
and

- the visual amenity and character of the Green Belt.

The proposed building would have a very similar siting to the existing outbuildings, albeit the
footprint would be squared-off with a regular rectangular shape. In terms of the floor space,
the existing outbuildings have an overall ground floor area of 325sqgm with 63sgm provided
on the first floor of the main building to give a total of 388sqm. This compares to the
proposed building which would provide a total of 405sgm on the ground floor, with no first
floor proposed. As regards height, the proposed building would have a maximum eaves
height of 4.21m and ridge height of 7.87m, approximately 1m and 1.2m taller than the
maximum eaves and ridge heights respectively of the outbuildings it would replace. This
compares with other retained outbuildings on site which have a comparable eaves height,
although the ridge height would be approximately 0.8m higher.

The proposed outbuilding would therefore have a slightly larger footprint and be marginally
taller than the current outbuildings it would replace. However, the building would still be set
back from the road and this site is fairly well screened from the road by mature trees that
only permit restricted views of the site. The site is also adjoined by built development and
commercial and waste sites so that it is somewhat remote from the open countryside. The
proposal would also replace outbuildings that are in a poor state of repair, including a static
caravan. It is therefore concluded that replacement building is not materially larger than the
outbuildings it would replace and that on balance, it would not have a material adverse
impact on the openness of the Green Belt as compared to the current situation.

The proposal is considered to comply with the NPPF and accord with the criteria of Policy
DMEI 4 of the Local Plan: Part Two (2020).
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site does not form part of nor is it located close to a Conservation Area or
Arae of Special Local Character. The proposal would also replace the existing building so
that any archaeological interest is unlikely to be disturbed.

The site does lie opposite St Leonard's Farmhouse, a Grade Il Listed Building which
originally dates from the 16th century however was re-fronted in the 19th century and is a

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 146



traditionally constructed timber framed building defined by its red brick exterior and plain
clay tiled gable roof.

On the previous application (12579/APP/2020/632), the Council's Conservation / Urban
Design Officer advised that the original setting of the farmhouse was rural in character,
with a few farm buildings and open farmland around. Whilst this character has somewhat
been compromised by the activities and use of land around the heritage asset, the lane like
character of New Years Green Lane and remaining open environment positively contributes
to the building setting and significance but in terms of the impact of the proposal on the
setting of the Listed Building, such harm is likely to be limited due to the nature of the
proposed building, which would relate to the agricultural environment.

As such, the officer concluded that there would be negligible harm to the setting of the
listed building and no objections were raised on this basis.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

No airport safeguarding issues are raised by this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The proposed replacement farm building would occupy a very similar siting as the
outbuildings it would replace. As a result of the squaring-off of the existing footprint of the
outbuildings and 1.2m increase in the ridge height to 7.87m, the bulk of the building would
increase, mainly within the roof mass. With the increase in the length of the roof ridge, the
bulk of the building would also extend towards the road frontage and towards the western
boundary of the site, albeit the building's footprint would not materially extend beyond the
built envelope formed by the existing outbuildings, whilst the separation distance to the
farmhouse from the main elevation of the building would generally increase by
approximately 1.5m, with an increase in the main width of the farmyard.

The limited increase in the ridge height of the building would not materially impact the
openness of this part of the Green Belt, given the built context on site and the recessive
nature of the ridged roof. Along the bulk of the building would extend towards the road
frontage, the building would still be set back a similar distance as compared to the existing
outbuildings and the road frontage and the eastern and western boundaries are marked by
a mature trees which will assist in the screening of the building from wider views from the
road and surrounding Green Belt. A landscaping condition will also ensure that additional
trees are planted to further reduce the its impact.

The existing outbuildings on site are also in a poor state of repair and include a static
caravan and an asbestos sheet roof to the main outbuilding. The proposal, which
comprises timber boarded clad ding and a tiled roof, will improve the appearance of the site
and its use, including the storage of farm and hay collection equipment, will assist in the
maintenance and upkeep of the surrounding Green Belt.

As such, it is considered that the scheme is acceptable in terms of its overall impact of the
openness of the Green Belt, in accordance with Policy DMEI 4 of the Local Plan: Part Two
(2020).

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy DMHB 11 requires all development to be designed to the highest standards and
incorporate principles of good design, including harmonising with the local context; use of
high quality building materials and finishes; internal design and layout maximises
sustainability and is adaptable; protects features of positive value and their settings and
includes landscaping and tree planting. Proposals should also not impact upon the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 147



amenity, daylight and daylight and sunlight of adjoining properties and open space,
development does not prejudice the development of adjoining sites and appropriate
provision is made for the storage of waste and recycling.

Policy DMHB 12 re-iterates Policy 11 by stating that development should be well integrated
with the surrounding area and be accessible by improving legibility and promote routes and
wayfinding between the development and local amenities; public realm design takes
account of the established townscape character and quality of the surrounding area;
includes landscaping that is suitable for the area; makes provision for the safe and direct
movement of pedestrians and cyclists; incorporates appropriate and robust hard
landscaping; incorporates public art where appropriate and incorporates inclusive design.
Public realm improvements will also be sought from developments close to transport
interchanges and community facilities.

The proposal would replace existing buildings with a single building that would have a
similar overall size and siting. The proposed building would have a ridge height
approximately 1m higher than the tallest structure to be demolished and 600mm above the
height of the nearest retained farm building so that it would appear marginally more
dominant but the building would be set back some distance from the road and this road
frontage is marked by mature vegetation and trees so that its impact on the street scene
would not be readily discernible.

The design of the building, although it introduces some features that would have more of a
domestic character such as the window openings and rooflights, would with its simple
design and materials, such as the black painted timber cladding retain sufficient agricultural
character so as to sit comfortably within its rural setting.

It is also noted that the Council's Conservation/Urban Design Officer did not raise any
objections to the loss of the existing buildings or overall design of the proposal on the
previous proposal.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (January 2020) states that development proposals should not adversely impact on
the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

With the exception of the farm house at Pylon Farm which is in the applicant's ownership,
the nearest adjoining residential properties to the application site are located diagonally on
the opposite side of Newyears Green Lane where they would not be unduly affected by the
proposal.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's Highway Engineer has reviewed the application and advises that the
proposal is for a replacement agricultural building of slightly larger scale (with an uplift from
388m2 to 405m2 gross external area) which is aimed to consolidate farm operations. The
application site is divided into two parts which share the same vehicular access/egress
located midway through New Years Green Lane which is established and is to remain
unaltered. As there are no envisaged implications related to the aspect of highway
consequences whether internal or external to the site envelope, the proposal is therefore
considered acceptable on highway and transport grounds.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 148



7.11

712

713

714

The Engineer concludes that the application has been reviewed by the Highway Authority
who are satisfied that the proposal would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking
stress, and would not raise any measurable highway safety concerns, in accordance with
Local Plan Part 2 Development Plan Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies 6.3, 6.9,
and 6.13 of the London Plan (2016).

Urban design, access and security

Relevant planning issues are discussed within the relevant sections of this report.
Disabled access

No accessibility issues are raised by this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Trees and Landscaping

Policy 7.21 of the London Plan (2016) and Policy G7 of the Publication London Plan (2020)
state that development proposals, wherever possible, should retain existing trees of value,
replace any tree loss and should include the planting of additional trees.

Policy DMHB 11 of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) requires all development proposals to include the principles of good design,
including need to consider local topography and views both from and into the site and
landscaping and tree planting is required to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and
green infrastructure. Policy DMHB 14 of the Part Two Local Plan requires development to
retain or enhance existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other natural features of merit;
provide a landscape scheme that includes hard and soft landscaping appropriate to the
area that enhances biodiversity and amenity; living walls and roofs are considered where
ground floor space is limited and accurate tree surveys are provided where the proposals
affect trees.

The Council's Trees and Landscape Officer has reviewed the proposal and advises that
the site is occupied by a complex of farm buildings set back from the the south side of New
Years Green Lane. Retained barns, yards and associated structures on the adjacent site
(within the blue line of the application) form part of the operational land used by West
London Composting. There are existing trees along the north, east and west boundaries
which provide some degree of visual screening, although there are no TPO's or
Conservation Area designations affecting the site.

The officer states that this application was preceded by application ref.
12579/APP/2020/632, which was refused. The current scheme is similar to that previously
submitted, however, additional supporting information has been provided, including a tree
report by DPA, dated July 2020. The report has identified and assessed 7 individual trees
and a hedge, H8 on the schedule. There are no 'A' grade trees. Two trees are category 'B":
T1 a Lombardy poplar and T4, a Black poplar. The remaining trees are lower value, 'C'
grade. The report confirms that T6 magnolia and T7 an apple tree will be removed to
facilitate the development. These are small, low value trees, of no particular merit and their
removal is acceptable. All other planting around the site perimeter will be protected and
retained. The report provides tree protection details and an arboricultural method
statement. Furthermore, arboricultural supervision / monitoring has been specified to
ensure that the protection measures are strictly adhered to. The proposed single large barn
will replace a collection of smaller structures. The ridge height of the new barn will be just
under 1 metre higher than the tallest structure to be demolished and 600mm above the
height of the nearest retained farm building. According to the D&AS, the only proposed

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 149



landscape will be a concrete apron of hardstanding around the barn to provide access. No
landscape enhancement has been proposed. Tree planting within the grass verge is
required to mitigate the tree loss and the scale of the new building and extensive area of
hardstanding.

The Landscape Officer's suggested landscaping scheme condition forms part of this
report's recommendation.

- Ecology

Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) seeks to protect biodiversity and advises that if development is proposed
on or near a site considered to contain features of ecological value, applications must
submit appropriate surveys and assessments to demonstrate that the proposed
development will not have unacceptable effects.

In the officer's report on the previous application, it was acknowledged that the buildings on
site, including features such as weatherboarding and accessible loft space do provide
potential for roosting bats, all species of which are European Protected Species under the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, particularly given that the site is
also situated in close proximity to very high value feeding habitat and there are records of
bats being present in the vicinity. The previous application was refused, in part due to the
lack of any ecological surveys.

This application is supported by a Bat Survey Report, prepared by Ecology by Design. A
preliminary roost assessment was carried out on the buildings on site in May 2020, a desk
top study undertaken and a further roost survey, including an emergence survey using
electronic bat detectors was undertaken on 3/6/20. Although the main building was
assessed as having low potential to support roosting bats and very old bat droppings were
found on the floor, no bats emerged from or entered the building during the emergence
survey, although three species of bats, categorised as being common within England
(common pipistrelle, soprano pipistrelle and noctule) were recorded foraging to the north of
the site and along the hedgerow to the west of the site. The report does advise that for the
survey findings to remain valid, building works should be undertaken within two years. The
report concludes with its recommendations and suggested enhancements for the site,
including the need to safeguard nesting birds (active swallow nests were found within the
barn at the time of the survey); the need for sensitive use of artificial light and site
enhancements including a bat box to be installed on the new building or on a mature tree
on site and a bird box on the building.

These recommendations and enhancements are included with the supporting
documentation condition. On this basis, the application is considered to accord with Policy
DMEI 7 of the Local Plan.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

This proposal would not alter existing waste collection arrangements at the site.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

This is a minor application and energy efficiency measures would be dealt with under the
Building Regulations.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site is in Flood Zone 1 and less than 1 hectare in area and as such, a Flood Risk

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 150



7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Assessment (FRA) is not required for this proposal. Policy DMEI 10 of the Local Plan, Part
2 does require all development proposals to make adequate provision for surface water
run-off and water use efficiency and a Sustainable Water Management condition forms part
of the officer's recommendation.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

The application site is not located within Hillingdon's Air Quality Management Area and
does not form part of an Air Quality Focus Area. The application proposes to continue the
use of the outbuildings proposed to be demolished and the replacement building would not
result in any significant increase in the amount of floor space. As such, the proposal would
not result in any adverse impacts on noise generation or adverse impacts on air quality so
that the scheme complies with Policies 7.14 and 7.15 of the London Plan (March 2016) and
Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(January 2020).

Comments on Public Consultations

The comments raised have been dealt with in the main body of the report.
Planning Obligations

The scheme would not result in significant adverse impacts that would need to be
mitigated through a S106 obligation.
Expediency of enforcement action

The proposal does not raise any enforcement issues.
Other Issues

No other issues are raised by this application.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 151



1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal for a replacement building in the Green Belt is acceptable in principle and its
impacts on the openness of the Green Belt, the visual amenity of the area, impact on
neighbouring property and highway impacts.

Additional clarification and information has also now been provided with this application
which overcomes the reasons for refusal of the previous very similar application
(12579/APP/2020/632 refers) which was refused planning permission due to a lack of
detail relating to the use of the building in relation to Green Belt policy, no bat survey had
been undertaken and no arboricultural information had been provided.

The application is therefore recommended for approval, subject to the recommended
conditions.

11. Reference Documents

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The London Plan (March 2016)

Publication London Plan (December 2020)

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 152



Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 153



Waste Transfer Station

)

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

PYLON FARM

NEWYEARS GREEN LANE

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

HAREFIELD Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
12579/APP/2020/2742 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 154 February 2021 LONDON




Agenda Item 12

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address MOUNT VERNON HOSPITAL RICKMANSWORTH ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Construction of 1.5m wide gravel footpath around lawn perimeter and through
the centre of the woodland belt to south of lawn, to include two access ramps
with handrails.

LBH Ref Nos: 3807/APP/2020/4265

Drawing Nos: 273W-02 Rev. A
273W-03
273W-01 Rev. D
Design and Access Statement (Dated 11th January 2021

Date Plans Received: 18/12/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 18/01/2021
Date Application Valid: 18/12/2020
1. SUMMARY

The proposed development would construct a 1.5m wide self binding gravel footpath
around the lawn perimeter and through the centre of the woodland belt to the south of the
lawn, to include two short ramped sections with associated timber handrail. It would be
used for rehabilitation of patients with extremely restricted mobility who are recovering
from procedures or are receiving treatment for cancer, to improve their health and
wellbeing. Accordingly, the principle of the development is supported. It would also be
considered to constitute appropriate development within the Green Belt and would not
have a detrimental impact on the setting of the Grade Il Listed Building.

Subiject to planning conditions, the application is recommended for approval.
2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 CcomM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 273W-01 Rev. D and
273W-03 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2016).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 155



The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

- Design and Access Statement (Dated 11th January 2021)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (March 2016).

4 COom7 Materials

Prior to the commencement of the development, details of all materials shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details should include
information relating to make, product/type, colour and photographs/images.

Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020).

5 NONSC Detailed Elevations

Prior to the commencement of the development, detailed elevations of the access ramps
hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. This should also detail the handrails to the ramps and shall not be fixed to the
listed building.

Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the listed building, in
accordance to Policy HE1 of Hillingdon's Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies DMHB 1, DMHB 2 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (January 2020) and Policy 7.8 of the London Plan
(March 2016).

6 NONSC Imported Materials

No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported soils
and gravel materials for the purposes of landscaping and/or construction of the pathway
shall be clean and free of contamination. All imported materials shall be tested for
chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval.

REASON

To ensure that future users of the pathway and other receptors are not subject to any
risks from soil contamination in accordance with Policy DMEI 12 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 156



INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land

DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 2 Listed Buildings

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP 3.2 (2016) Improving health and addressing health inequalities

LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 7.2 (2016) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2016) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2016) Architecture

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

NPPF- 2 NPPF-2 2018 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF- 8 NPPF-8 2018 - Promoting healthy and safe communities

NPPF- 9 NPPF-9 2018 - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF- 12 NPPF-12 2018 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF- 13 NPPF-13 2018 - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF- 16 NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
3 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan
Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other
informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order
to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application
which is likely to be considered favourably.

4
It is advised that, based on Ordnance Survey mapping (1944-1969), the proposed

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 157



pathway appears to follow the direction of an earlier path and a track. Therefore, there is a
minor possibility of contaminating substances (e.g. ash, clinker and asbestos fibres etc.)
to be present on and/or in the ground at shallow depth. We have no information on the
actual ground conditions at the location, therefore, we would advise persons working on
site to take basic precautions in relation to any contamination they may find. Precautions
should also be taken to minimise the mixing of any exposed contaminated material with
clean shallow soils that are to remain in place. The advice is provided on the grounds of
Health and Safety of the workers on site and to ensure the appropriate restoration of the
site once works are complete, to minimise risk to the future users of the proposed paths.

5

This Planning Permission does not act as Listed Building Consent. It is advised that a
separate Listed Building Consent application is required if any works are to alter the listed
building's built fabric.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site forms part of the grounds to Mount Vernon Hospital, a Grade Il Listed
Building. The site consists of an open space situated to the south of this building and forms
part of designated Green Belt land. The open space slopes down towards a wooded
southern boundary with hospital buildings to the east and west. The northern end consists
of a raised terrace with a grass embankment leading onto an upper lawn used as a kick-
about area. A second smaller embankment to the south opens onto another lawned area
with tree lined edges and formal footpaths around part of the perimeter.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks permission for the construction of 1.5m wide gravel footpath around
the lawn perimeter and through the centre of the woodland belt the to south of the lawn, to
include two access ramps with handrails.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
None.

4. Planning Policies and Standards
Development Plan

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 158



Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies

Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local
Planning Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2020)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March
2018 with the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The
Plan was subject to examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated
Draft Plan with amendments was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors
appointed by the Secretary of State issued their report and recommendations to the Mayor
on 8th October 2019.

The Mayor considered the Inspectors’ recommendations and, on 9th December 2019,
issued to the Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a
statement of reasons for the Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor did not wish to
accept. The Secretary of State responded on the 13th March 2020 and stated that he was
exercising his powers under section 337 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 to direct
that modifications are required.

On 9th December 2020, the Mayor wrote to the Secretary of State to advise of his intention
to formally approve a new draft London Plan, which included his best understanding of the
modifications required. The Secretary of State responded on 10th December 2020
requesting that the draft London Plan was re-submitted with more specific amendments to
address the 11 previous Directions and 2 additional Directions. On 21st December 2020,
the Mayor formally approved a new London Plan, the 'Publication London Plan'. This has
been submitted to the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State has 6 weeks to respond
or can request a further extension of time. The Mayor can only publish the Plan after the
Secretary of State has given approval.

More limited weight should be attached to parts of draft London Plan policies where the
Secretary of State has directed specific amendments. Greater weight may be attached to
policies that are not subject to the specific amendments from the Secretary of State.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 159



PT1.HE1
PT1.EM2
PT1.EM4

(2012) Heritage
(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

(2012) Open Space and Informal Recreation

Part 2 Policies:

DMEI 4
DMHB 1
DMHB 11
DMHB 14
DMHB 2
DMT 1
DMT 2
DMT 5
DMT 6
LPP 3.2
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.16
NPPF- 2
NPPF- 8
NPPF-9
NPPF- 12
NPPF- 13
NPPF- 16

Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
Heritage Assets

Design of New Development

Trees and Landscaping

Listed Buildings

Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

(2016) Improving health and addressing health inequalities
(2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2016) Parking

(2016) An inclusive environment
(2016) Local character
(2016) Public realm
(2016) Architecture
(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2016) Green Belt

NPPF-2 2018 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF-8 2018 - Promoting healthy and safe communities

NPPF-9 2018 - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF-12 2018 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF-13 2018 - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1
5.2

Advertisement Expiry Date:- 10th February 2021
Site Notice Expiry Date:- 27th January 2021

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 160



25th January 2021

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Letters were sent to neighbouring residents, a site notice was displayed and an advert was posted in
the local paper. All forms of consultation expired on 10th February 2021. No comments from
residents have been received.

Northwood Residents Association:

The NRA fully supports the application.

Internal Consultees
CONTAMINATED LAND OFFICER:

GIS mapping shows the proposed path would situated on open land. Historic mapping from 1944-
1969 shows former pathways and a track were present at similar locations. There is no evidence of
contaminative activities having taken place in the vicinity.

However, due to the presence of former pathways of unknown design and construction | would
recommend the following informative and condition be applied.

Contamination Informative

You are advised that based on Ordnance Survey mapping (1944-1969) the proposed pathway
appears to follow the direction of an earlier path and a track. Therefore, there is a minor possibility of
contaminating substances (e.g. ash, clinker and asbestos fibres etc.) to be present on and/or in the
ground at shallow depth. We have no information on the actual ground conditions at the location,
therefore, we would advise persons working on site to take basic precautions in relation to any
contamination they may find. Precautions should also be taken to minimise the mixing of any
exposed contaminated material with clean shallow soils that are to remain in place.

REASON: The advice is provided on the grounds of Health and Safety of the workers on site and to
ensure the appropriate restoration of the site once works are complete, to minimise risk to the future
users of the proposed paths. [The suitability of [building materials] [and] [building techniques] may
also need to be considered under the Building Regulations.]

Imported Materials Condition

No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported soils and gravel
materials for the purposes of landscaping and/or construction of the pathway shall be clean and free
of contamination. All imported materials shall be tested for chemical contamination, and the results
of this testing shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval.

REASON: To ensure that future users of the pathway and other receptors are not subject to any
risks from soil contamination in accordance with Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (January 2020)
Policies - DMEI 11: Protection of Ground Water Resources and DMEI 12: Development of Land
Affected by Contamination.

ACCESS OFFICER:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 161



This proposal which seeks to improve accessibility to the natural environment for all patient groups
and visitors is supported in principle from an accessibility perspective. Although the information
provided is detailed in its intention to improve access to the areas which are currently 'out of
bounds', no technical detail has been submitted on exactly how the proposal would be delivered.
Further information is requested from the developer on the following points:

1. To be accessible, the minimum surface width of an access route (i.e. between walls, kerbs or
path edgings) should be at least 1800 mm for general routes, although a width of 2000 mm is
preferable to accommodate larger electric mobility scooters. Will this be achieved?

2. For disabled people who need a generous amount of space when moving about, the provision of
narrow approaches creates difficulties. The new pathway should be firm, as level as possible and
free from obstructions, such as litter bins and signposts. Resin bonded gravel should be used for all
surfaces. Please provide details.

3. Ramps should accord with the specifications set out in BS8300-1:2018. In gardens, where it
might not be practicable to adhere strictly to the recommendations in this standard, the aim would
nonetheless be to maintain as close compliance as possible. Please provide details.

4. The intended pathway should have a detectable demarcation which can be followed by people
who are blind or partially sighted, for example a wall, building line, kerb edge, grass verge, barrier, or
clearly detectable change in texture of the surface underfoot. Visual contrast should also be provided
sympathetically within natural and/or historical environments. Please provide details.

Conclusion: further details are requested prior to any planning consent.
PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

An amended Design and Access Statement (Dated 11th January 2021) was submitted in response
to the Access Officer's comments. This responds to the points raised above and is summarised as
follows:

1. A wider path, particularly one 2m wide, would look very out of place here and will be out of
proportion and scale with the landscape setting. As the landscape is part of a historic layout, a
balance between user requirements and aesthetics is required. The design achieves accessibility by
creating passing places, so that at each seating bay the path will be widened locally to a width of
2000mm.

2. There will be no site furniture placed within the path surface other than the seats which will be
located so as to maintain a clear width of 2000mm. The pathway will be firm and level without any
undulations. In line with Sensory Trust guidance we will construct the path to a minimal crossfall
rather than a camber, where it is necessary to prevent water ponding on the surface.

The surface material proposed is self-binding gravel. Self binding gravel is a naturally-occurring
material composed of different sized pieces of aggregate, from 20mm diameter, down to dust. This
mix of sizes enables the individual pieces of aggregate in the path surfacing material to lock together
to form a firm surface with plenty support, suitable for wheelchair-users. Please also note that the
proposed path is reached via the existing terrace path which in contrast to the proposal, has a
shallow loose gravel surface. The self binding gravel is considered to be an improvement.

Resin bonded gravel is a very useful surfacing material but it involves a top dressing of aggregate
laid over an asphalt or concrete base to which it adheres via a tack coat of resin. This would require
a deeper path construction which would be far more costly and potentially more intrusive in terms of
tree roots. In addition it is a non permeable surface compared with the self binding gravel surface

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 162



which does allow some permeability.

3. Access at the top of each ramp will be spacious as the ramp will be approached via the existing
terrace path, which is a wide firm surface. There are currently a number of site furniture items in the
vicinity of both ramps and these will be relocated prior to opening the proposed path, to ensure that
there is sufficient circulation space at the top of each ramp.

The ramps will be constructed to a maximum gradient of 1:12. This is steeper than is normally
recommended however as the ramps are very short, we have followed the recommendations of the
Sensory Trust. The ramps will follow a straight run without any bends and will be around 8 - 9m long
with one central landing 1.5m long to create a resting point. The landing is slightly longer than
normally specified to ensure that larger motorised wheelchairs can be easily accommodated there.
They will be constructed in the same material as the path surface. The ramp surface will be firm and
even, stable, and non-slip, with well compacted crushed stone sub-base with a high proportion of
fines (as the path below). A timber handrail of between 900mm - 1000mm high will be provided on
both sides of the ramp to improve access for users who may have a stronger or weaker right or left
side.

4. The proposed path is to be located within two very different types of surfaces which will in our
opinion provide sufficient contrast for users. Within the lawn area the grass either side will provide a
natural demarcation in terms of surface texture and 'feel' underfoot. Within the woodland area the
natural woodland floor either side will provide an equivalent level of natural demarcation in terms of
surface texture and 'feel' underfoot. The path itself will be of a much lighter appearance than the
grass and woodland floor either side and this will provide an additional visual contrast.

ACCESS OFFICER FOLLOW-UP:
| have no further concerns.

| have reviewed the ramp details shown on drawing no. 273W-03 and consider the specifications
proposed at this development control stage to be satisfactory.

Conclusion: acceptable.
TREES AND LANDSCAPING OFFICER:

This site is occupied by an area of green open space to the south of one of the central buildings
(listed Grade IlI) on the Mount Vernon Hospital campus. The open space slopes down towards a
wooded southern boundary with hospital buildings to the east and west. The northern end is on
raised terrace with a grass embankment leading onto an upper lawn used as a kick-about area. A
second smaller embankment to the south opens onto another lawned area with tree lined edges and
formal footpaths around part of the perimeter. There are no TPQO's or Conservation Area
designations affecting the site which lies within the Green Belt.

Comment

No trees will be affected by the proposal. According to the D&AS some scrub clearance will be
required at the southern end of the site. The proposal seeks to make better use of the space for the
benefit of patients, by improving the footpath network and creating an informal circular pedestrian
route, which links to the existing footpath network. The new route includes two short ramped
accesses across the embankment at a gradient of 1:12, with handrails. Otherwise the gravel
footpath will extend across the open space into the wooded southern perimeter. A landscape plan by
Aileen Shackell Landscapes provides the proposed layout of hard and soft landscape. The
annotation on plan refers to a schedule for items A-E which does not appear on file. Details of the
gravel footpath (materials and construction) are required to ensure that the surfacing is suitable and

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 163



accessible for all.

Recommendation
No objection subject to the submission of supporting hard and soft landscape details which should
be conditioned - unless they are already available? Conditions COM9 (parts 1,2, and 5)

Planning Officer Comment:

The landscape scheme information submitted is considered to be sufficient and a condition will be
attached to secure the detail of materials if recommended for approval.

CONSERVATION AND DESIGN OFFICER:

1. Summary of comments: Further information required - conditions proposed
2. Historic Environment Designation (s)

- Grade Il Listed Building - Mount Vernon Hospital (NHLE: 1080083)

3. Assessment - background/significance

The land originally formed part of the Northwood Hall Estate now known as Denville Hall, to the
south-east of the hospital site. The listed hospital building dates from 1902-04 and was designed by
F.H. Wheeler. It forms a group alongside the Grade II* chapel to the east of the main hospital
building. Unfortunately, the visual connection between the two buildings has been somewhat
compromised by the infilling of the once open space with modern structures built during the mid-
20th century.

The hospital building is an extensive structure and described as being built in an Edwardian 'free-
style'. A 4-storey tower with a clock at roof level forms the central point, with the built form tapering
down to a 3-storey, 5-bay block which is then flanked by 2-storey, 14-bay wings. At the end of each
wing is a tall winter garden structure with some notable detailing adding interest to its elevations. The
building is finished in a brown brick laid in a Flemish bond, with red brick quoins and dressing, stone
ashlar dressing and gabled plain tiled roofs. The central tower appears to be finished in an oxidised
metal. Some of the windows have been altered, most likely prior to listing however original windows
(where extant) comprise of multi-paned timber casements to the southern block. The buildings to
the north, connected by corridors include neo-Georgian timber sash windows.

The plan form of the original hospital building is shaped as a'Y', with a V-shaped southern end. The
southern elevation maintains its original symmetrical appearance and includes a continuous balcony
at first floor. Originally the raised terrace at ground floor was a dominant feature, however overtime
planting has softened its appearance. The elevated nature of the land was an important factor in
establishing a hospital in this location, it provided the opportunity for fresh air for recovering patients
being treated at the hospital and extensive views across the Colne Valley and towards Windsor.

The history of the site and hospital, quality of the buildings and open, verdant surroundings
contributes to the significance of the listed building.

4. Assessment - Impact

There would be no objections to the proposed landscaping of the area to the south of the listed
hospital building. Historically area has remained undeveloped as open grassland, however originally
a series of pathways had existed allowing people to interact with the open space and provide a
connection between the main hospital building and listed chapel to the east. The proposal would

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 164



maintain the area's sense of openness and verdant qualities therefore, the setting of the listed
building would be preserved in this instance.

The submitted statement mentions the remnants of parkland fencing and a gate along the southern
lawn boundary with the wooded area. This may relate to the original hospital site and should be
retained in situ. Subject to further clarification and investigation the fencing may be considered to be
curtilage listed, nevertheless any alteration to a means of enclosure within the curtilage of a listed
building would require planning permission.

Further details would be required in relation to the two proposed ramps provided access/egress of
the existing ground floor terrace to the listed building. No scaled elevations have been submitted
therefore it is difficult to assess the impact of the proposed ramps on built fabric and the appearance
of the building's elevations. Alterations to existing built fabric, notably the existing terrace would
warrant the need for Listed Building Consent, which has not been submitted to date. Alterations to
original building features, notably the terrace in this instance would inevitably result in some harm to
the Listed Building and its original architectural integrity.

The associated handrails to the ramps would introduce some clutter to the elevations, resulting in
some harm to the setting of the listed building. Due to the lack of information it is not clear whether
the railings would be fixed to the building. If they are to be fixed Listed Building Consent would be
required for such works. In any instance it is strongly recommended the handrails remain
independent to avoid interventions to historic built fabric.

Further details of the ramps should ideally be provided upfront, otherwise pre-commencement
conditions would be required if this application is to be determined favourably.

Based on the submitted information the proposal would result in less than substantial harm to the
listed building and its setting. The decision maker(s) would need to determine this application in line
with the duties under section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 199C

5. Conclusion: Less than substantial harm - further information required - conditions proposed if
approved

Conditions: Prior to the commencement of development, scaled elevation drawings of the ramps in
context with the listed hospital building shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The drawings shall be no more than 1:20 in scale. Works shall be carried out in
accordance to approved details.

Reason: To preserve and conserve the special architectural and historic interest of the Listed
Building in accordance to policy HE1 (Hillingdon's Local Plan Part 1, adopted November 2012),
policies DMHB 1 and 2 (Hillingdon's Local Plan Part 2, adopted January 2020) and the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Prior to the commencement of development, details of the handrails to the ramps shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The handrails shall not be fixed to the
listed building. Works shall be carried out in accordance to approved details.

Reason: To preserve and conserve the special architectural and historic interest of the Listed
Building in accordance to policy HE1 (Hillingdon's Local Plan Part 1, adopted November 2012),
policies DMHB 1 and 2 (Hillingdon's Local Plan Part 2, adopted January 2020) and the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Prior to the commencement of development, product details of hard surfacing to pathways and
ramps shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Works shall be

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 165



carried out in accordance to approved details.

Reason: To preserve and conserve the special architectural and historic interest of the Listed
Building in accordance to policy HE1 (Hillingdon's Local Plan Part 1, adopted November 2012),
policies DMHB 1 and 2 (Hillingdon's Local Plan Part 2, adopted January 2020) and the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Informative: This Planning Permission does not act as Listed Building Consent and you are advised
accordingly of the need to submit a separate listed building consent application in respect of the
works altering the listed building's built fabric.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

These comments are addressed within the main body of the report.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Paragraph 92 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that planning decisions should:

a) plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities and other
local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential environments;
and

b) take into account and support the delivery of local strategies to improve health, social
and cultural well-being for all sections of the community

Policy 3.2 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that new developments should be
designed, constructed and managed in ways that improve health and promote healthy
lifestyles to help to reduce health inequalities.

Policy EM4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) states
that the Council will safeguard, enhance and extend the network of open spaces, informal
recreational and environmental opportunities that operate as carbon sinks and that meet
local community needs and facilitate active lifestyles by providing spaces within walking
distance of homes. Provision should be made as close as possible to the community it will
serve.

The proposed path will be used for rehabilitation of patients with extremely restricted
mobility who are recovering from procedures or who are receiving chemotherapy or other
treatment for cancer, to improve their health and wellbeing. The lawn and woodland area is
currently not accessible to anyone with impaired mobility. Accordingly the proposed
development is generally supported by national, regional and local planning policy.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not relevant to the consideration of the application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

ARCHAEOLOGY, CONSERVATION AREA AND AREA OF SPECIAL LOCAL
CHARACTER

Not relevant to the consideration of the application.
LISTED ASSET
Please see Section 07.07 of the report.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 166



Not relevant to the consideration of the application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The application site is located within Green Belt land and is subject to the following policy
considerations:

Paragraph 143 of the NPPF (February 2019) sets out that inappropriate development is, by
definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in 'very special
circumstances'. Paragraph 144 continues this, stating:

"When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special circumstances' will
not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and
any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations."

Paragraph 145 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that a local planning authority should
regard the construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt but that
exceptions to this include:

a) buildings for agriculture and forestry;

b) the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or a
change of use) for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and burial grounds and
allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not
conflict with the purposes of including land within it;

c) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate
additions over and above the size of the original building;

d) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger than the one it replaces;

e) limited infilling in villages;

f) limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the
development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and

g) limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land,
whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would:

- not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing
development; or

- not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the development
would re-use previously developed land and contribute to meeting an identified affordable
housing need within the area of the local planning authority.

Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (2016) supports this, stating:

"The strongest protection should be given to London's Green Belt, in accordance with
national guidance. Inappropriate development should be refused, except in very special
circumstances. Development will be supported if it is appropriate and helps secure the
objectives of improving the Green Belt as set out in national guidance."

In terms of local policy, the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012) gives strong protection to Green Belt land. Policy EM2 states that the Council will
seek to maintain the current extent of the Green Belt and any proposals for development in
the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will be assessed against national and London
Plan (March 2016) policies, including the very special circumstances test.

Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) also states that:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 167



A) Inappropriate development in the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will not be
permitted unless there are very special circumstances.

B) Extensions and redevelopment on sites in the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land
will be permitted only where the proposal would not have a greater impact on the openness
of the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land, and the purposes of including land within it,
than the existing development, having regard to:

i) the height and bulk of the existing building on the site;

ii) the proportion of the site that is already developed;

iii) the footprint, distribution and character of the existing buildings on the site;

iv) the relationship of the proposal with any development on the site that is to be retained;
and

v) the visual amenity and character of the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land.

The proposed footpath and ramps are considered to meet the criteria stated under part b)
of paragraph 145 of the NPPF (February 2019). The proposal is for the purposes of outdoor
recreation and are not considered to harm the openness of the Green Belt. The proposal
complements the existing use of the land and provides appropriate facilities within the
Green Belt.

In view of the above, the proposal is considered to constitute appropriate development

within the Green Belt and does not require 'very special circumstances'. Following this, the

proposed development is considered to comply with Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local

Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020), Policy EM2 of the

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policy 7.16 of the

London Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019).
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The application sites form part of the Mount Vernon Hospital grounds, sitting within the
landscaped parkland setting.

The impact of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the area
requires the consideration of the following planning policies:

Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan (2016) require that new development is of the
highest architectural quality; is a proportion, composition, scale and orientation that
enhances, activates and appropriately defines the public realm; and comprises details and
materials that complement the local architectural character.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) seeks
a quality of design in all new development that enhances and contributes to the area in
terms of form, scale and materials; is appropriate to the identity and context of the
townscape; and would improve the quality of the public realm and respect local character.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) is taken into consideration and states:

A) All development, including extensions, alterations and new buildings will be required to
be designed to the highest standards and, incorporate principles of good design including:
i) harmonising with the local context by taking into account the surrounding:

- scale of development, considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures;

- building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established street patterns;

- building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for example, gaps between
structures and other streetscape elements, such as degree of enclosure;

- architectural composition and quality of detailing;

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 168



- local topography, views both from and to the site; and

- impact on neighbouring open spaces and their environment.

ii) ensuring the use of high quality building materials and finishes;

iii) ensuring that the internal design and layout of development maximises sustainability and
is adaptable to different activities;

iv) protecting features of positive value within and adjacent to the site, including the
safeguarding of heritage assets, designated and un-designated, and their settings; and

v) landscaping and tree planting to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and green
infrastructure.

The impact of the proposed works on the character, appearance and setting of the Grade
II* Listed Buildings also requires the consideration of the following planning policies:

Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that development affecting heritage
assets and their settings should conserve their significance, by being sympathetic to their
form, scale, materials and architectural detail.

Policy HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) states
that the Council will conserve and enhance Hillingdon's distinct and varied environment, its
settings and the wider historic landscape.

Policy DMHB 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that:

A) The Council will expect development proposals to avoid harm to the historic
environment. Development that has an effect on heritage assets will only be supported
where:

i) it sustains and enhances the significance of the heritage asset and puts them into viable
uses consistent with their conservation;

ii) it will not lead to a loss of significance or harm to an asset, unless it can be
demonstrated that it will provide public benefit that would outweigh the harm or loss, in
accordance with the NPPF;

iii) it makes a positive contribution to the local character and distinctiveness of the area;

iv) any extensions or alterations are designed in sympathy, without detracting from or
competing with the heritage asset;

v) the proposal would relate appropriately in terms of siting, style, scale, massing, height,
design and materials;

vi) buildings and structures within the curtilage of a heritage asset, or in close proximity to
it, do not compromise its setting; and

vii) opportunities are taken to conserve or enhance the setting, so that the significance of
the asset can be appreciated more readily.

Policy DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

D) Planning permission will not be granted for proposals which are considered detrimental
to the setting of a Listed Building.

The proposed development would construct a 1.5m wide self binding gravel footpath
around the lawn perimeter and through the centre of the woodland belt to south of lawn,
and would include two short ramped sections with associated timber handrail where the
proposed footpath joins the existing upper terrace path. As confirmed by the Council's
Conservation Officer, there would be no objections to the proposed landscaping of the area
to the south of the listed hospital building. Historically the area has remained undeveloped

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 169



as open grassland, but originally a series of pathways had existed allowing people to
interact with the open space and provide a connection between the main hospital building
and listed chapel to the east. The proposed pathway and planting would maintain the area's
sense of openness and verdant qualities. With regard to this element of the proposal, the
setting of the listed building would be preserved.

It is noted that no scaled elevations of the proposed ramps have been submitted, although
the applicant has clarified that they would be situated entirely within the grass area and
their construction will not entail any modification or alteration to either the gravelled terrace,
the building terrace, or the building itself. The ramps consist of sloping sections of path to
accommodate the small change in ground levels from lower terrace path down to lawn
level, and will be constructed within the grass bank which will be re-modelled either side of
the ramps. There will be no elevations as such as the sides of the ramps will be hidden
from view by the built-up ground either side.

The associated handrails to the ramps would introduce some clutter to the elevations,
resulting in some harm to the setting of the listed building. In this instance, the extent of
harm is considered by the Council's Conservation Officer is 'less than substantial',
therefore requiring consideration of paragraph 196 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (February 2019). This states that where a development proposal will lead to
less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate,
securing its optimum viable use.

The proposed development would be used for the rehabilitation of patients with extremely
restricted mobility who are recovering from procedures or are receiving treatment for
cancer. Accordingly, the proposal would improve their health and wellbeing. This is
considered to be a significant public benefit and would outweigh the limited 'less than
substantial harm' posed.

If recommended for approval, details of the proposed ramps and the materials to be used
would be secured by condition to ensure that the proposal is appropriate for the setting of
the Grade Il Listed Building. Subject to such conditions, the proposed development would
not be considered contrary to Policies DMHB 1, DMHB 2 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020), Policies BE1 and
HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies
7.4, 7.6 and 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2016).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that:

B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and
sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

There are no neighbouring residential properties within the immediate vicinity of the
application site. As such, the proposed development will not adversely affect the amenity of
any neighbouring residents and accords with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to the consideration of the application.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Not applicable to the consideration of the application.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 170



7.11 Urban design, access and security
URBAN DESIGN

Please see Section 07.2 of the report.
7.12 Disabled access

ACCESS

Policy 7.2 of the London Plan (March 2016) requires that all new development proposals
provide the highest standards of accessible and inclusive design.

Following the submission of a revised Design and Access Statement (Dated 11th January
2021), the Council's Access Officer has confirmed that the proposals raised no concerns.
Accordingly, the proposal is considered to accord with Policy 7.2 of the London Plan
(March 2016).

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to the consideration of the application.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

TREES AND LANDSCAPING

Policy 5.10 of the London Plan (2016) states that development proposals should integrate
green infrastructure to contribute to urban greening, including the public realm.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) also requires that new development is high quality, sustainable, adaptable,
and harmonises with the local context. Landscaping and tree planting should also enhance
amenity, biodiversity and green infrastructure.

Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping, trees,
biodiversity or other natural features of merit.

B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that includes
hard and soft landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which supports and
enhances biodiversity and amenity particularly in areas deficient in green infrastructure.

There are no Tree Preservation Orders or Conservation Area designations affecting the
site. No existing trees are to be affected by the proposals, although some scrub clearance
will be required at the southern end of the site. Accordingly, the Council's Trees and
Landscaping Officer has confirmed no objection to the proposal, subject to a condition for
detail on hard landscaping materials. Subject to such a condition, the proposed
development would accord with Policy 5.10 of the London Plan (March 2016) and Policies
DMHB 11 and DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (January 2020).

ECOLOGY
Policy 7.19 of the London Plan (2016) states that development proposals should wherever
possible, make a positive contribution to the protection, enhancement, creation and

management of biodiversity.

Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 171



715

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

(January 2020) states that the design and layout of new development should retain and
enhance any existing features of biodiversity within the site.

The application site does not form part of a Nature Conservation Site of Metropolitan or
Borough Grade | Importance. The proposed works would also add ecological value to the
site. As such, the proposed development would accord with Policy 7.19 of the London Plan
(March 2016) and Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (January 2020).

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to the consideration of the application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to the consideration of the application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The proposed development is not considered likely to impact on flood risk or drainage of
the application site.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to the consideration of the application.
Comments on Public Consultations

Please see Section 06.1 of the report.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to the consideration of the application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the consideration of the application.
Other Issues

CONTAMINATED LAND

Policy 5.21 of the London Plan (March 2016) states that appropriate measures should be
taken to ensure that development on previously contaminated land does not activate or
spread contamination.

Policy DMEI 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that:

A) Proposals for development on potentially contaminated sites will be expected to be
accompanied by at least an initial study of the likely contaminants. The Council will support
planning permission for any development of land which is affected by contamination where
it can be demonstrated that contamination issues have been adequately assessed and the
site can be safely remediated so that the development can be made suitable for the
proposed use.

B) Conditions will be imposed where planning permission is given for development on land
affected by contamination to ensure all the necessary remedial works are implemented,
prior to commencement of development.

C) Where initial studies reveal potentially harmful levels of contamination, either to human
health or controlled waters and other environmental features, full intrusive ground
investigations and remediation proposals will be expected prior to any approvals.

D) In some instances, where remedial works relate to an agreed set of measures such as
the management of ongoing remedial systems, or remediation of adjoining or other
affected land, a S106 planning obligation will be sought.

The Council's GIS mapping shows that the proposed footpath would situated on open land

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 172



and there is no evidence of contaminative activities having taken place in the vicinity.
However, due to the presence of former pathways of unknown design and construction, the
Council's Contaminated Land Officer advises that persons working on site to take basic
precautions in relation to any contamination they may find. Precautions should also be
taken to minimise the mixing of any exposed contaminated material with clean shallow
soils that are to remain in place. A condition is also recommended to ensure that no
contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. Subject to such a
condition, the proposal is not considered contrary to Policy DMEI 12 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020) and 5.21 of the London
Plan (March 2016).

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 173



proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable

10. CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the proposed 1.5m wide footpath and two access ramps is supported for the
purpose of patient rehabilitation and recovery. It would also be considered to constitute
appropriate development within the Green Belt and would not have a detrimental impact on
the setting of the Grade Il Listed Building. Subject to conditions, the application is
recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019)

Publication London Plan (December 2020)

The London Plan (March 2016)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020)
Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document (September 2017)
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (July 2014)

Contact Officer: Michael Briginshaw Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 174



Gray

Cancer
Institute El
Sub Sta

o
o\‘?‘

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site AddreSF S UNT VERNON HOSPITAL
RICKMANSWORTH ROAD
NORTHWOOD

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
3807/APP/2020/4265 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 175 | February 2021

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address THE OLDE NORTHWOOD PH 142 PINNER ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Conversion of public house to residential use to provide 4 self-contained flats
including habitable roofspace and roof terrace, demolition of existing garages
and rear element and the erection of 2 x two storey, dwellings with habitable
roofspace including parking and amenity space and external works

LBH Ref Nos: 73773/APP/2020/3002

Drawing Nos: 20114-A-P100 Rev D
20114-A-P21C
20114-A-P200 Rev D
A-010
A-011
AX-10C
AX-101
AX-20C
Planning and Design and Access Statement
20114-A-P101 Rev C

Date Plans Received:  21/09/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 15/10/2020
Date Application Valid: 16/10/2020 19/01/2021
21/09/2020

1. SUMMARY

The property is located within the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character and
formerly contained a two storey residential unit. Planning approval for the demolition of the
existing public house and erection of a part three storey part two storey building to provide
9 flats was approved in January 2020. This proposal considers the retention of the building
and conversion to form 4 flats and the provision of a pair of semi-detached properties to
the rear of the site.

The proposed development would respect the character and appearance of the Area of
Special Local Character. It is considered that the proposal would not significantly impact
on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and would provide adequate living
accommodation, amenity space and parking provision.

As such the proposal is recommended for approval.
2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 177



The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 20114-A-P100 Rev
D; 20114-A-P101 Rev C; 20114-A-P200 Rev D and 20114-A-P210, and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part
1 (2012), Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2016).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No superstructure works shall take place until details of all materials and external
surfaces, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No superstructure works shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5% of all parking spaces are served
by electrical charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 178



Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB
12, DMHB 14, DMEI 1 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies
5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2015).

5 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or
roof alteration to the dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
(2020)

6 RES22 Parking Allocation

The residential units hereby approved shall not be occupied until a parking allocation
scheme has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.
The parking allocation scheme shall, as a minimum, include a requirement that all on-site
car parking shall be allocated and dedicated for the use of each of the residential units
hereby approved and shall remain allocated and dedicated in such a manner for the life-
time of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two 2 (2020) and Chapter
6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

7 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No superstructure works shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision of
sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that sustainable drainage
systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the development in
accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of the London Plan
and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method
employed to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the
measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;
ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout
its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

V. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 179



development.
Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and London Plan
(2016) Policy 5.12.

8 NONSC Flood Risk Mitigation

Prior to commencement of any superstructure works, suitable ground investigations
should be carried out that demonstrate the development will not effect local surface water
or contribute to future issues should climate change worsen. A report should be submitted
to demonstrate an understanding of what the risk is to the site and if it is found at risk,
suitable mitigation proposed to ensure that the occupants of the proposed dwellings would
not be at risk of flooding.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and London Plan
(2016) Policy 5.12.

9 NONSC Noise levels

The noise level in rooms at the development hereby approved shall meet the internal noise
levels specified in BS8233:2014 for internal rooms and external amenity areas.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
London Plan Policy 7.15.

10 NONSC Step free access

Prior to the commencement of superstructure works, details of step free access via the
principal private entrance shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. Such provision shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON
To ensure that an appropriate standard of housing stock, in accordance with London Plan
policy 3.8 c, is achieved and maintained.

11 COM31 Secured by Design

The building(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000 to ensure the development provides a safe and secure environment

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 180



in accordance with Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 policy DMHB 15 and London Plan (2016)
Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

12 NONSC Compliance with Building Regulations

The dwellings hereby approved shall be constructed to meet the standards for a Category
2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015, and all such provisions shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON
To ensure that an appropriate standard of housing stock, in accordance with London Plan
policy 3.8 c, is achieved and maintained.

INFORMATIVES

1 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction.
Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a
private road and where possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads.
The applicant may be required to make good any damage caused.

2 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 181



61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a plot of approximately 750 sqm situated on the North
Eastern corner of the junction of Pinner Road and High Street. It currently comprises a two
storey building at the front of the plot, which is a former Public House with the main
entrance facing the junction. To the rear of the building is a single storey extension and a
car park, with detached garages and car port, accessed from High Street.

The street scene is primarily residential in character and appearance. To the rear of the
site is a single storey retail unit No. 2 High Street and opposite are railway lines. The
application site lies within the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character (ASLC). It is
also within a critical drainage area and shown at risk of surface water flooding. It has a
PTAL of 2.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the conversion of the existing public house to residential use to provide
4 self-contained flats including habitable roofspace. It is also proposed to demolish the
existing garages, car port and rear element and the erection of 2 x two storey dwellings
with habitable roofspace, including parking and amenity space.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

73773/APP/2019/2660 140-142 Pinner Road Northwood

Demolition of existing public house and residential buildings and erection of part three-storey, pa
two storey detached building to provide 1 x 3-bed, 5 x 2-bed and 3 x 1-bed self contained flats
with associated works

Decision: 24-01-2020 Approved

73773/PRC/2018/104 Land And Buildings At 142 Pinner Road Northwood

Redevelopment of site to provide 9 flats.

Decision: 28-08-2018 OBJ

73773/PRC/2020/190 Land And Buildings At 142 Pinner Road Northwood

Conversion of existing former pub building to provide residential dwellings associated external
alterations, demolition of existing garages to rear to provide dwelling houses.

Decision: 02-12-2020 OBJ

Comment on Relevant Planning History

A previous submission under application 73773/APP/2019/2660 for the demolition of
existing public house and residential buildings and erection of part three-storey, part two

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 182



storey detached building to provide 1 x 3-bed, 5 x 2-bed and 3 x 1-bed self contained flats
with associated works, was approved in January 2020.

4. Planning Policies and Standards
Development Plan

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies

Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local
Planning Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2020)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March
2018 with the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The
Plan was subject to examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated
Draft Plan with amendments was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors
appointed by the Secretary of State issued their report and recommendations to the Mayor
on 8th October 2019.

The Mayor considered the Inspectors’ recommendations and, on 9th December 2019,
issued to the Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a
statement of reasons for the Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor did not wish to
accept. The Secretary of State responded on the 13th March 2020 and stated that he was
exercising his powers under section 337 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 to direct
that modifications are required.

On 9th December 2020, the Mayor wrote to the Secretary of State to advise of his intention

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 183



to formally approve a new draft London Plan, which included his best understanding of the
modifications required. The Secretary of State responded on 10th December 2020
requesting that the draft London Plan was re-submitted with more specific amendments to
address the 11 previous Directions and 2 additional Directions. On 21st December 2020,
the Mayor formally approved a new London Plan, the 'Publication London Plan'. This has
been submitted to the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State has 6 weeks to respond
or can request a further extension of time. The Mayor can only publish the Plan after the
Secretary of State has given approval.

More limited weight should be attached to parts of draft London Plan policies where the
Secretary of State has directed specific amendments. Greater weight may be attached to
policies that are not subject to the specific amendments from the Secretary of State.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:
DMCI 1 Retention of Existing Community Sport and Education Facilities
DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space
DMHB 5 Areas of Special Local Character

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 6.12 (2016) Road Network Capacity

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 6.9 (2016) Cycling

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 184



NPPF- 11 NPPF-11 2018 - Making effective use of land

NPPF- 12 NPPF-12 2018 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF- 16 NPPF-16 2018 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
NPPF- 2 NPPF-2 2018 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF- 5 NPPF-5 2018 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

44 neighbours, the Northwood Hills Residents Association and the Northwood Residents
Association were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 9 November 2020. 42 responses
were received raising the following issues:

- Only to be expected that this site will be redeveloped, please consider traffic

- Insufficient parking

- Historic building

- We don't need more flats

- Erasing part of Northwood history for greed

- Loss of a local historic building

- Loss of the community facility/public house

- Out of keeping with the area

- Corrupt if approved

- Area overpopulated already

Cadent Gas - Due to the presence of Cadent and/or National Grid apparatus in proximity to the
specified area, the contractor should contact Plant Protection before any works are carried out to
ensure the apparatus is not affected by any of the proposed works.

Internal Consultees

Access Officer - The proposal falls short of the requisite standards for an M4(2) accessible and
adaptable dwelling. Particular attention should be paid to the size of the entrance level WC required
for a three bed dwelling and to the clear access zones within the cubicle. The plan should show
evidence of level access and clear zones within the kitchen, bedroom and bathroom. Any grant of
permission should include a condition requiring compliance with Building regulations.

Officer response: Revised plans have been submitted to address these concerns.

Conservation and Urban Design - No. 142 is an early 20th century former public house of significant
notable interest located within the Old Northwood ASLC. It is a prominent building located on the
corner of Pinner Road and High Street. It positively contributes to the street scene of both roads,
with the main entrance located at the corner. The entrance is set at an angle and is highlighted by a
decorative pediment above. The angled wall rises above the roof eaves and retains the old pub
signage.

Whilst the building has benefitted from some alterations it still includes many attractive features. The
interior of the former pub is fairly altered however the plan arrangement of the two separate bar

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 185



areas is notable alongside some cast iron fireplaces. The significant architectural merit of the
exterior allows the former pub to positively contribute to the character and appearance of the
surrounding area.

The northern portion of the site is occupied by a detached outbuilding of a similar date to the former
public house. It was originally a much longer structure projecting further eastward. It is positioned
along the boundary with High Street and simply characterised by a gable end, slate roof construction
of London stock brick.

The site is a focal point along Rickmansworth/Pinner Road and forms part of the gateway into the
Old Northwood ASLC. It is an important transition point from the Arts and Crafts aesthetic that
defines the outer residential areas of Northwood and the Victorian and Edwardian splendour of Old
Northwood. The former pub is a key landmark building and a positive local contributor to the
surrounding area.

There are no objections, from a conservation perspective to the principle of converting the former
public house for residential use. The conversion would allow for 4 residential units within the existing
built envelope. From reviewing the submitted information, in general the external character and
appearance of the former pub and notable external features would be retained. The retention of the
building's external character would be commendable ensuring it continues to have a pub-like
aesthetic, positively contributing to the ASLC.

However there would be concerns in relation to the proposed private terrace at roof level associated
to Flat 3 (off bedroom 3). This feature would be highly visible from the Pinner Road street scene.
Roof terraces are not an established feature within the ASLC and would be a contrasting element
considering the character of the building. This would need to be omitted, a rooflight could be
considered.

The roof terrace associated with flat 4 would be visible from High Street and to mitigate the
appearance of the terrace it is recommended the lower portion of the proposed terrace enclosure is
constructed of brick, to match the existing building and topped with a smaller section of railings. It s
assumed the existing windows are to be retained, repaired and re-used which would be strongly
supported.

The loss of the outbuilding would be considered regrettable. It is important material wastage is kept
to a minimum therefore the structure would need to be carefully demolished. Existing materials
would need to be salvaged and ideally re-used as part of the development.

It is recognised that there is scope to enhance the site. The proposed semi-detached pair of dwelling
houses appears to have been designed in a manner which would relate to the appearance of the
existing Victorian/Edwardian dwellings further along the High Street. Therefore, the design approach
would be deemed admissible in this instance. However, the box dormers and projecting balconies to
the rear roof slope would be considered unacceptable. Ideally the dormer design should reflect the
form and character of the proposed building and ideally reduced in width. The balcony element
would need to be omitted and replaced with a window to match those proposed at first floor.

Further information of all external materials and finishes would be required; this can be covered by
way of a condition. There are no objections to the proposed roof lights however they would need to
be conservation roof lights and flush along the roof line.

Officer response: The plans have been amended in accordance with the Conservation Officer's
comments.

Trees/Landscape Officer - There is no soft landscaping and no TPO's on site. No trees or

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 186



landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal. The proposal introduces areas of soft
landscaping to the front and side of the building and amenity space at both ground level and roof
level. Landscape details which should be subject to conditions. Any shared amenity space will need
to be actively managed. No objection subject to landscape conditions.

Highways - The application has been reviewed by the Highway Authority who are satisfied that the
proposal would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress, and would not raise any
measurable highway safety concerns, in accordance with Local Plan: Part 2 Development Plan
Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies 6.3, 6.9, and 6.13 of the London Plan (2016).

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

National Planning Policy Framework states there is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development which is described for decision taking as "approving development proposals
which accord with the development plan." As a core planning principle the effective use of
land is encouraged by reusing land that has been previously developed (brownfield land).
The proposed site currently comprises of a public house and constitutes 'previously
developed land'. There is a presumption in favour of residential development on brownfield
land subject to other material planning considerations as detailed below.

Policy DMCI 1 of the Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
advises that proposal involving the loss of an existing community facility will be permitted if
the specific use is not longer required on site. In such circumstances the applicant must
provide evidence demonstrating that the proposal would not lead to a shortfall in provision
for the specific use within the local catchment area and there is no demand for another
suitable social infrastructure use on-site. Applicants will need to demonstrate that the
existing, specific social infrastructure is no longer required on-site. Where this is the case,
marketing evidence should be submitted to establish the lack of demand, by showing the
premises have been offered at a reasonable charge to appropriate user groups.

The site is situated in a predominantly residential area. The nearest alternative facilities are
located within the Northwood Hills town centre approximately 545m to the east of the site.
Additional facilities are also available in Northwood town centre approximately 920m to the
north west. In the previous submission the applicant submitted evidence to demonstrate
that The Olde Northwood as a public house through regular changes in ownership and
management with a meagre footfall or passing trade and the general weak trading
environment for public houses, was not a viable prospect. The premises have been
advertised since June 2016 until 31st December 2018, when 24 expressions of interest
were raised in the premises but none as a use as a public house.

The principle of the development is therefore considered acceptable, as it would accord
with the objectives of Policy DMCI 1 of the Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) and the NPPF.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that the new development takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 187



impact on adjoining occupiers.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
advises that all development will be required to be designed to the highest standards and
incorporate principles of good design. It should take into account aspects including the
scale of the development considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures;
building plot sizes and established street patterns; building lines and streetscape rhythm
and landscaping.

Policy DMHB 12 advises that development should be well integrated with the surrounding
area. It should ensure public realm design takes account of the established townscape
character and quality of the surrounding area.

Policy DMHB 5 (Areas of Special Local Character) states that within ALSC new
development should reflect the character of the area and its original layout. Alterations
should respect the established scale, building lines, height, design and materials o the
area. Extensions to dwellings should be subservient to and respect the architectural style
of the original buildings and allow sufficient space for appropriate landscaping, particularly
between and in front of buildings.

The proposal includes the conversion of the existing building to provide 4 self contained
flats and the erection of a pair of semi detached two storey dwellings to the rear of the site.

The proposed alterations to the building include the demolition of an existing single storey
extension to the rear of the building. It also includes the provision of an addition ground floor
window and three rooflights on the western side elevation, and 2 additional windows on the
ground floor and 1 rooflight on the east side elevation. The Conservation Officer has
advised that from reviewing the submitted information, in general the external character
and appearance of the former pub and notable external features would be retained. The
retention of the building's external character would be commendable ensuring it continues
to have a pub-like aesthetic, positively contributing to the ASLC.

To the rear of the site it is proposed to erect a pair of semi detached properties. These
would be set in part on the footprint of the existing garage and the building would measure
9.9m in width, 10.4m in depth with a gabled roof of 8.85m in height. The properties would
front High Street and have the same height as the adjacent terrace. The Conservation
Officer advises that the proposed semi-detached pair of dwelling houses appears to have
been designed in a manner which would relate to the appearance of the existing
Victorian/Edwardian dwellings further along the High Street. Therefore, the design
approach would be deemed admissible in this instance.

Therefore it is considered that the proposed development would be in keeping with the
character and appearance of the surrounding Area of Special Local Character and that its
visual impact is acceptable. As such the proposal would comply with policies DMHB 5 and
DMHB 11 of the Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020).

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to this proposal.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 188



Not relevant to this proposal.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

As detailed under the assessment on the impact on the Area of Special Local Character.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
advises that all development will be required to be designed to the highest standards and
incorporate principles of good design. It should also not adversary impact on the amenity,
daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open space. The Council will aim to ensure
that there is sufficient privacy for residents and it will resist proposals where there is an
unreasonable level of overlooking between habitable rooms of adjacent residential
properties or onto private opens spaces. A minimum of 21m separation distance between
windows of habitable rooms will be required to maintain privacy. The Council will also
expect new development proposals to carefully consider layout and massing in order to
ensure development does not result in an increased sense of enclosure and loss of
outlook.

The proposal is for the retention of the existing public house building and the erection of a
pair of semi-detached dwellings on the site of the existing garage building to the rear of the
site.

The proposed conversion would include additional windows at ground floor level and new
roof lights, which would not significantly increase any overlooking to that already in
existence. To the side/rear of flat 4 is proposed a roof terrace, to the side of the living room.
This would be adjacent to High Street and separated from the adjacent property by the
existing building.

To the rear of the site is proposed the pair of semi detached properties. These would front
High Street, maintaining a similar building line to the adjacent properties. The principle
windows would face front and rear, with the rear windows facing towards a storage area
and garages, serving 2-4 High Street. Given the scale and position of the proposed
dwellings it is not considered that they would impact on the amenity of neighbouring
occupiers.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact on
the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers and as such complies with Policy DMHB 11.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Residential Amenity of future occupiers

London Plan Policy 3.5 seeks to ensure that all housing developments are of the highest
quality, both internally and externally and in relation to their context and the wider
environment.

Policy DMHB 16 sets out the minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in
order to ensure that there is an adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants.
The standards require:

- 2 bed, three person unit on 1 storey should have a minimum of 61sgm

- 2 bed, four person unit on 1 storey should have a minimum of 70sgm

- 3 bed, five person unit on 2 storeys should have a minimum of 93sgm

- 3 bed, 6 person property on 3 storeys should have a minimum of 108sqm

Whilst the semi detached properties and units 1, 2 and 4 would comply with this standard,
flat 3 would only achieve 91.5sgm against a requirement of 93sgm. However this is only
North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 189



marginally below the required standard over 2 floors and it may be unreasonable to refuse
the proposal on this basis only. It is therefore considered that the proposed flats would
provide a satisfactory living environment for the future occupiers in compliance with the
principles of adopted policy.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms and those altered by the proposals
would maintain an adequate outlook, ventilation and source of natural light in accordance
with the requirements of Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2016.

Policy DMHB 18 requires all new residential development to provide good quality and
useable private outdoor amenity space. A 3 bed residential property would require amenity
space of at least 60sgm. Whilst 1 unit would provide sufficient amenity space, the other
would be marginally below this only achieving 56sqm, less than the requirement. With
regard to the flats, this would require a 2 bed unit to have a minimum of 25sgm and for a 3
bed property 30sgm. This would require a total of 105sqm of amenity space. There is no
communal garden facility although 3 of the units are shown to have private amenity space
of 17.85sqm; 22.3sqm and 8.7sqm. This would be less than policy requirements. However
it is noted that the application site is situated just 110m from a large recreation ground and
it would be unreasonable to object to the proposal on this basis.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Local Plan: Part 2 Policy - DMT 6 requires that new development will only be permitted
where it accords with the Council's adopted parking standards unless it can be
demonstrated that a deviation from the standard would not result in a deleterious impact on
the surrounding road network.

It is proposed to provide converted to 4 flats (1x1, 2x2 & 1x3 bedrooms) together with the
construction of 2 three-bedroom town houses. The maximum standard requires 1-1.5
spaces per unit (up to 2 bedrooms in scale) with 2 spaces for the three bedroom units
hence a total quantum of 9-11 spaces should be provided in order to comply with the
adopted parking standard. Hence there is a deficit in provision with the 6 spaces proposed
which equates to a 1:1 parking ratio per unit. However, it is noted that the existing consent
was determined on the basis of the same parking ratio.

It is also noted that the surrounding residential catchment and road network exhibits certain
characteristics which arguably support a marginally lower quantum of on-plot parking
provision. The local area is covered by extensive daytime parking controls in the vicinity of
the address which in the main operate between 9am to 6.30pm - Monday to Saturday
which limits the likelihood of untoward parking displacement. Double yellow lines are also
present at key junction locations further reinforcing this aspect.

When contextualising the above factors (including the existing consent) and facets of the
surrounding local area, it is considered that the quantum of parking proposed is to an
acceptable level.

Detail of parking allocation per unit is sought in order to secure the appropriate allocation of
spaces. This aspect would be subject to a planning condition.

Electric Vehicle Charging Point (EVCP) Provision

In line with the emerging London Plan, within the final parking quantum there is a
requirement for a minimum 20% 'active' EVCP provision with all remaining spaces (80%)
being designated as 'passive' provisions. This would equate to 1 space designated as
'active’ with the remaining 5 spaces acting as 'passive' provisions. This aspect can be

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 190



secured via planning condition.

Cycle/ Provision
In terms of cycle parking there should be a provision of at least 1 secure and accessible
space for two bedroom units with 2 spaces for the larger three bedroom provisions. This
equates to 9 spaces in total. This again should be secured via planning condition.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

As previously discussed.
7.12 Disabled access

The dwelling(s) would be required to be constructed to meet the standards for a Category
2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to this proposal.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The Landscape Officer has advised that the site is occupied by a vacant two-storey pub,
with parking to the rear, at the junction of Pinner Road and High Street, Northwood. The
property has a car park to the rear which is accessed from the High Street. There is no soft
landscape and there are no TPO's or Conservation Area designations affecting the site.
The property lies within the area covered by Old Northwood Area of Special Local
Character.

This application follows previous applications ref. 2019/2660. No trees or landscape
features of merit will be affected by the proposal. The Landscape Officer has advised that
the proposal introduces areas of soft landscaping to the front and side of the building and
amenity space at both ground and first floor level. There are no objections to this proposal
subject to the submission of landscaping details.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Not relevant to this proposal.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to this proposal.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site lies within a critical drainage area and is identified as a site at risk of surface water
flooding.

The current scheme reduces the overall level of built form on the site from that previously
approved. Currently the whole site is covered by buildings or non porous areas of
hardstanding, which increases the risk of surface water flooding within the site and
surrounding area. The proposal would significantly reduce this, introducing approximately
162sgm of soft landscaping to the site. Other mitigation measures can also be provided to
ensure that the new dwellings were not at increased risk of flooding and details for the
provision of these measures is the subject of a SUDS condition.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not relevant to this proposal.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The previous consent was for the demolition and redevelopment of the site. This proposal
retains the existing building and converts it to 4 flats. The principle for development and
other planning considerations are addressed appropriately within the main body of the
report.

7.20 Planning Obligations

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 191



The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for additional floorspace for residential developments is £95 per
square metre and office developments of £35 per square metre. This is in addition to the
Mayoral CIL charge of £65 per sq metre.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to this proposal.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 192



Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposal would respect the character and appearance of the wider
street scene and would not be detrimental to the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers.
The proposal would provide adequate living and amenity space and no objections have
been raised by the Highways or Conservation Officers.

It is therefore recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012).
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020).

The London Plan (2016).

Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.
National Planning Policy Framework.

Contact Officer: Liz Arnold Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 193



’ 1
__/ Shelter/ ,’
\ i

/-

’
'
'

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Si :
te AddresstLIE OLDE NORTHWOOD
PH 142 PINNER ROAD
NORTHWOOD

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
73773/APP/2020/3002 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 194 | February 2021

i

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION Agenda Item 14

Exempt information by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Document is Restricted

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION Agenda Item 15

Exempt information by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Document is Restricted

Page 205



This page is intentionally left blank



STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION Agenda Item 16

Exempt information by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Document is Restricted

Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Plans for
North
Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 1/7th February
2021

HILLINGDON

OOOOOO

Page 227



Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 16 MURRAY ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Two storey rear extension and enlargement of habitable roofspace to include
2 rear dormers, 3 side rooflights, central roof lantern and alterations to
elevations

LBH Ref Nos: 4626/APP/2020/3048

Drawing Nos:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 228



ANSSI ONINNV1d

‘910z PooojnY Buisn paonpoid som BuMbIp siy| “Bumolp
siy) woy pelo3s 89 of

1o P8y 3q SN SOl

0 jou fsnus puo @ P sy

9LOOVR EZ610 LLOOVR ET610 |

UYL YYH XesBIPPIA
“disiny “jeeus YBIH -2

S|Oo9]IYDIY =
H -
-
PN =
[ |
- 10ld 0.9l
uotsiay “op Bumpiq “oN psfoid
N onv g
4q paroiddy sjog Bupmpiq 4q umoig
052l [ad 101d
21025 s215 joayg a3 peO
NV1d NOILYDOT

eliL Bumoig
AZ 9VH ‘AOOMHLION ‘AVOY AVHENIA 9L

ONITEMA ONILSIX3
OL SNOILV¥ALTY 8 SNOISNILX3 43SOdO¥d
2L pafoid

39007 SAA

Ul
co_.%umwn__ sjpq _>wm

anBobeuls

Jopny’

HLJON

Page 229



ANSSI ONINNV1d

NV'1d 220719 ONILSIX3

“dising ‘jee.
S|o9IYIlyY =
H -
-
PN =
[ ]
cold 0L91
uorsirey “oN Bumbiq “oN sfolg
N 0202 OoNvY g
ajog Bumpig q umpig
v
Ip3s 9215 jo3ys 8l
NV1d %2078 ONILSI
eliL Bumoig
f IOOMHLION 'AVYOM AVHININ 9
NITIIMA ONILSIX3
S 17V B SNOISNILX3 A3SOdOY
L psfo
El

s

[

woe

00¢:1 ¥va 3TvOS

ﬁ

wy we 0

HLION

N

Page 230



£ : 5 [
—= B b
3 F A
5 s °ge
238 |2 8%R
g3 e El siz
2 o iy
< g
% il 8 3 ?, @
o = ° 22| @
g gl = 2 ls £8 | T
5 @ |s 882 FsER | Q
2 3@ 2REg WL Z
_ 2 E| 2 [3_[3gtx . |2EEE| 2=
5 5 9 z |ag53o g 2250 | =
2 o 2l 3 gis
= =3 =L 2 §22 j
39 1 gzg| & 21
ag L& 8| ¢ 55| &
zd 11 w < 9 13
o= 2 2 H
el 2 3 1331
6 - 8 = - 2
93 LIl 2 |3 £
9% &l € 2 s
3
bwodoy .
_ 1%
5 <
L
ES
H
<3
g
g
5
2
g
5
H
boodory .
bowodory :
z
z
H
8 &
s =
8 g
& =
§ é 5
g A E
3 8
&
Y
Ly e |\|| _|h __ &
bownday . ...
) i
y II||IIII|I|III|III|mllll
1 ||||||||||||||||- "“Ill“l
B ||||||| ||||| H
g ||
4
]
E
<
2
g
5
H
g
el H g
8 E
2 H
g
2 °
g 2
E 2

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Page 231




20m

5m

m o am

SCALEBAR 1:100

Sheel Size

lDescvipﬁiw

KEYS LODGE

Project Tile

PROPOSED ALTERATIONS

16 MURRAY ROAD, NORTHWOOD. KA 2YJ
Drawing Tile

EXISTING & PROPOSED STREETSCENE

CadFile

R;«} Dale
Ci

sions must be checked on

sing AutoCac 2016,

PLANNING ISSUE

opied or ofherwise reproduced. All imens
Grawing, Ths drawing was produced us

|||||||||||||||||||||| I
T
“T =Sif=
[1 \E ‘||||| __|
il T i
||||||||||||||||||||||||||||
|||||||||l|/
= (UL |||||||||||||||II I||||||||||||||||
== =
Ui i ; INS(i] ||||||||||||||||| |||||||||||||||
\||||||||||||| i ||||||||||||||||| g Dl ||||||||||||||||| |||||||||||||||||
‘=| s 4%\|
\||||||||||||| I ||||||||||||||||| i NIl ||||||||||||||||| |||||||||||||||||
¢ i||||||!!!!n!n!!!n!!||||lI"'ﬂ"!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!"mm" { llI|||||I!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!||||||nnIIl!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!"'" I
|||||||||||||||||||| I‘}% I ‘| \IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
||||||||||||| |||||||‘iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii'iihw
I
||
28
29
&l
il l|||||
I ||||||I i
I IﬂlllmllillliIIM |||||||||II Il

ADUACENT PROPERTY
18 MURRAY ROAD

Page 232

14 MURRAY ROAD - COPPERBEACH COURT

ADJACENT PROPERTY

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION - HO CHANGE

16 MURRAY ROAD

18 MURRAY ROAD.

ADJACENT PROPERTY



NV'1d 20019 d350dOdd

INSSI ONINNV1d

HLION

N

v,
“dhs dl
S|o9lIUDIY &=
H -
-
PN =
W
\4 €0ld 0L91
orsirey o Bumbiq -op pefolg
™ 0202 9NY ]
q paroiddy o1oq Bumpiq Aq umoiq
00Z*1 v 10ld
ajoog 5215 joayg 313 PoD
NV1d X20713 43SOdOdd
eliL Bumoig
AT 9YH 'AOOMHLION ‘AQVOd AVHININ 9L
ONITIIMA ONILSIXT
OL SNOILYHALTV B SNOISNILXT d3SOdOdd
SJi1) ppsfold
3950071 SAIA
usio
) voyduaseq|  eipq ey
¥g SINIFNWOD §3DI340 38VD LINSOL| 0T'1l've |V
o
[ N yoeaqgladdo)d
7 \
\ 2
£ %2

woe

wol

00¢:1 ¥va 3TvOS

i

wy

we

0

Page 233



[EIZ ] &
FE
s |2 #H
2 2z . si<

H 2 3 2 E2G | w

: o | B 22t | S

15 S sed | @

8 £8 I ) | @

g 28l d ols I

g 22 =z 8 |ezey sl 2

3 2 &k 233938 Z

g g o 2 A5z s 2

% s|e 29 & § j

3 HF I
2 Hi : g
,g:' g X H
hE! R <o .
<5} <1312 & 8. io H
-7 gl ¢ zlee :

nnnnnnnn

i IE g |
|
|

||I|||||I| | ||||||||I||||||||I||I||I||I||I||I||||||||||||||||||

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

bbbbbbb

g i““"!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!|
Lﬂl\\ﬁmw\ "
<__ 0 ]f:“

nnnnnn

Page 234

uuuuuuu

bbbbbb

A T ||||||||||||||||||||
A T

jf WHW
(1

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION



Copperbeach
Court

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

16 MURRAY ROAD

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

NORTHWOOD Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
4626/APP/2020/3048 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 235 | February 2021




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 4 WOODSIDE ROAD NORTHWOOD MIDDLESEX
Development: Erection of a garden shed to rear

LBH Ref Nos: 73105/APP/2020/3521

Drawing Nos:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 236



NOTES

1. All dinensions are fo be checked on sife
prior to the commencement of work and any
discrepancy is o be reported fo the constrction
manager before construction.

2. All wark is to conply with current Building
Regulations and allied legislation

3. All contractors and sub-contractars must
ensure thaf they have the Latest issue of this
drawing and defzils before the commencement of
work on site.

4. All materials are to be used end installed in
shrict compliznce with the relevant manufacturers
instructions and reconmendations.

5. All works on site, menaged and implementes as

& result af the designs indicafed on this drawing,
are fo be given full consideration for conpliance with
the Health and Safety (DM Regulations in respect of
design and implementation on site and no works are

to
Be undertaken if it is considered that compliance with
the Building Regulations cannot be achieved.

& All dinensions shown in illinetres.

7. Footprint of buldings shown at.0m above ground
level.

TREE STAKING DETAIL

TREE STAKING SPECIFICATION

LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATION

Landscaping generally fo be carried out in accordance with BS.4L26.
Al new Irees fo be supplied s selected sfandards unless ofherwise nofed
Overall height 3.0-35m and 18-2m straight sten o 853936 Part 11992
Trees supplied with bareroos with polythene wrapping or as noted ofherwise,
znd planted in a min of 30 lifres peat. Planting beds fo be excavated and
Uned with screened fopsail enriched with pea free compostfertilser or
sinilar manure 50mm deep, top dressed with 75mm deep forest bark mulch

Site to be cleared of al builders rusble and rotavated levelled and Hiled
before planting commences. Front gardens to be furfed and rear gardens seedsd
AU furfing to BS 3936 1390

Pericious weeds are fo be freafed with franslocated herbicice during growing
seasan (spot Hrested)

Tree and shrub planfing to BS3936 Part 11992
Tree protection to be carried out in accordance with B.5.5837. 2005
Sub-suil areas below planting fo be de-compacted before planting commences.

DRIVEWAY SPECIFICATION

Oriveways fo be finished with Marshalls Priora grey permeable concrete pavers,
framed with brind.e Priorz border & canpatble brindle edgings bedded on S0
sharp sand an GEOTEXTILE memrane on 6-20mn graced zggregate sub-base
on geotextile membrane on conpacted sub-grade fo falls.

Crossaver fo be finshed in black farmac. Construction specification
in accordance with local authorities requirements.

2600

]

P

2800

|
AR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

2800

FRONT ELEVATION

2800

E——
SIDE ELEVATION

PROPOSED SHED - SCALE 1:100

0 2 b 6 8 10

© Copyright Dusek Design Assaciates Ltd

Proposed new shed

+*

P>
S
3 S5
wi’z\ X
SeR
NS
88 S
S

555
=
W%
R
RS
S
5
R
SRS

5
M
\gﬁ%\’&

R
R
&
55
R
S

RS
NS
R
SRR
55 <

«
:
2
=
-
\< K
K
-
5

5

SR
SRR
SR

53
>

SITE

LAYOUT PLAN

N
F—x

- SCALE 1:100

For selected standard frees o/a height 30-35m Support using stakes
extending to 100-17m above ground and 06-0.75m below ground level

{depending on ground canditions).
Supported by single non reinforced e 75 from fop of stake

Renove stzke on onset of or curing Hhe second growing season
after planting.

Page 237

Application site

SITE LOCATION PLAN - SCALE 1:1250

0 2% 50 i) 100 125
© Copyright Dusek Design Associates Ltd

LEGEND

Existing trees to remain
Remove existing frees and shrubs
Proposed fwo storey building
Proposed single starey buldng
New frees and shrubs

Proposed hecging

Existing levels

Proposed levels

rev l date l description

scale: Al date. 0170172016
draving 0 1251 / BR /1015 | gran AT
wawng  PLANNING PROPOSALS
SITE LAYOUT PLAN
4 profct 4 WOODSIDE ROAD,
NORTHWOOD, MIDDLESEX, HA6 30E
client:

MR VIJEN SHAH

DUSEK DESIGN ASSOCIATES LTD
ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
01895 831 103

info@dusek.cous
wiw dusek co.k

print history. Monday, 7 Seplenber, 2020 %4012

SUSIALH HSHEINDS £ VOLESOL READ, DAL L0015

6 b




NOTES

1 All dinensions zre to be checked on site
prior fo the commencement of work and any
discrepancy is fo be reported o fhe construction
nanager before construction.

2. All wark is to conply with current Building
Regulations and zlled legislation

3. All contractars and sub-cantractors must
ensure that they have fhe latest issue of this
drawing and defils before the commencement of
work on site.

L. All maferials are to be used and installed in
strict compliznce with the relevant manufacturers
inskructions and recommendations.

5. All works on site, menaged and implementec as
2 result of the desigos indicated on this drawing,
are 10 be given full consideration for conpliance with
the Health and Safery COM Regulations in respect of
design end implementalion on site and no works are

fo
be undertaken if it is considered that compliance with
the Building Regulztions czmot be achieved

6. All dinensions shown in millnefres.

7. Footprint of bulldings shown att.0n above ground
level,

Existing 3.0m high hedge
to be refained

A

TREE STAKING DETAIL

TREE STAKING SPECIFICATION

LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATION

Landscaping generclly fo be carried ouf in accordance with BS L426,
All new trees to be supplied as selected standards unless otherwise noted.
Overall height 30-35m and 18-2n straight stem fo BS 3936 Part 11992
Traes supplied with bareroofs with polythene wrapping or s noted otherwise,
and plante in 2 min of 3.0 ltres peat. Planting beds fo be excavafed and
linad with screened fopsail enriched with peat free compost/fertilser or
sinilar manure SOnn deep, fop dressed with TSmm deep forest bark muleh

Sife to he cleared of all bulders rubble and rotavated levelled and filled
before planting commences, Front gardens to be furfed and rear gardens sesded

Al turfing to B5.3336.1990.

Pericious veeds are fo be freated with translocated herbicde during growing

season spot frezred)

Tree and shrub planfing to BS.3936 Part 1 1992

Tree protection to be carried out in accordance with B.S5837. 2005
Sub-sall areas below planting to be de-compacted hefore planting commences.

DRIVEWAY SPECIFICATION

Driveways fo be finshed with Marshalls Priara grey permezble concrete pavers,
framed with brindle Priorz border & compatible brindle edgings bedded on SUnm
sharp sand on GEOTEXTILE menbrane on 6-20nn graded aggregate sub-base

on geotextile membrane on compacted sub-grate fo falls.

Crossover fo be finshed in black farmec. Construchion specificafion

in accordance with local authorities requirements.

ol fence

Existing 12m high

2278

REAR

1

2378

iR

ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

L

218

T

2%

MANHOLE TYPES

COVER TYPES

22

HEDGE HT 2-3n

/L FENCE HT 12m

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
PROPOSED SHED - SCALE 1:100
. 1040
1

HEDGE HT 2-25m
/L FENCE HT 14m

Tree profection barrier

—L/L FENCE HT 18m

SW storage cell / soakaway to
be designed by specialist cesign

Proposed new shed

™~

8242

Wade linear drainage
| sf ¢
!
i

+

It )

& \ 261 |

rodding &ye = s
B2.65

( Wade tnear dranege

3
TS iy ”
0079,,7ﬁ
6263
| Verge
S182521

o167
Propased new atcess
and permezble driveway

SITE LAYOUT PLAN -

200, st
i
Existing dwelling
5
6264
¢ SL82.200
)
’ +
24
9 [eaks) e
/L FENCE HT 12n, sidg/gate
F
) svp
) D] =
Existing hedge shown ( H
dotted to be trimmed back J 531 =
gl H| s24s
) 823¢]
/ rodding eye
¢ S 8
)
/
/

Wat linezr drainage

8233
+

SCALE

— sice gzfe

L/L FENCE HT 18m

Surface water drainage
to comect on to exisfing
drainage systen.

2100

For selected stancard frees o/2 height 30-35m Support using stakes
extending fo 100-12n zbove ground and 06-0.75m below ground level

{depending on ground conditions)

Supported by single non relnforced tie 7S fron fop of stake

Remove stake on onset of or during Hhe second growing season

after planting

Page 238

2

Existing dwelling

PRELIMINARY DRAWINGS NOT TO BE

MANHOLE SCHEDULE FOR PLOTS
R | | T oo | rvee | coven REMARKS
O 8112 | 8012 | 1000 - EXISTING MANHOLE
P - B - B M FITOFO - 1: L0 FALLS
F2 8240 | 81365 | 1040 A M F2TOF1 - 1:60 FALLS
3 82275 | 81465 | 0810 A M F3TOF2 - 1:60 FALLS
i 8235 | 81800 | 0.550 A M F& TOF3 - 1:60 FALLS
5 8265 | B1650 | 1000 B M F5 TOF3 - 1: 60 FALLS
3 8235 | 81728 | 0622 A M F6 TOF5 - 1: 60 FALLS
F 8235 | 81600 | 0550 A M F?T0F6 - 1:60 FALLS
51 8235 | 8185 | 0.500 A L 270 S1- 1IN 60 FALLS
52 8235 | 8125 | 1100 A L $17T0 EXISTING DRAINAGE

A INSPECTION CHAMBERS LESS THAN 10M DEEP MANUFACTURED BY DSMA OR SIMILAR APPROVED
B - CIRCULAR OR RECTANGULAR CONCRETE SUPPORTED BY 150MM CONCRETE BASE

L- LIGHT DUTY M - MEDIUM DUTY H - HEAVY DUTY EX - EXISTING

Betula Pendula - Silver Birch

Prunus Accolads - Flowering Cherry

LAUREL HEDGING - PRUNUS LAUROCERASUS

DRAINAGE LEGEND

Foul water manhale in UPVc by “OSMA'or similar size

s indicated

Surface water manole in UPV by ‘OSHA" or similer size as indicated

SVP and foul water connection size as indicated

RWP and gulley and surface water comnection size as

indicared

Foul water back inlef gulley and connection size as indiatec

Surface water channel *ACCO" or similar and connection size as indiczred

RWP and guley an Y-Branch connection with radding eye

Foul shallow zccess chanber

FO
e
= 1L 8012

LEGEND

Remove existing frees

Proposed fwo storey b

New trees and shrubs

Proposed fedging

Exisfing levels

Proposed levels

PLANTING LEGEND

3

Planted in double rows zf §00mm c/c and
staggered, height 900-1500mn size 15 CG or
equivaent if ot using roofbaled stock

USED FOR CONSTRUCTION

Existing frees o renain

and shruss

uitding

Proposed single starey bulding

©
©

+ o+ o+ +

D 1-01-2021 Shed height adjusted
C 10-11-2020 Shed floor plan added
B 07-09-2020 | Shed added
A | 06-1-2017 | Drainage re-designed
v | aste | desrpton
scale: 10100 A1 date. 0170172016
draving 10251 / BR /101 | grauns AT
drawing
SITE LAYOUT PLAN
projct & WOODSIDE ROAD,

NORTHWOOD, MIDDLESEX, HA6 3QE

clent:

MR VLEN SHAH

ARCHITECTURE « PLAN

01855 831 103
info@dusek couix
waw dusekcouk

DUSEK DESIGN ASSOCIATES LTD

INING

print fistory:

Vonday, 11 Januzry, 2021

4426




Harleyford

Kelvin

Gair

QO

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
4 WOODSIDE ROAD

NORTHWOOD
MIDDLESEX

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
73105/APP/2020/3521 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 239 | February 2021




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address THE SIX BELLS PH DUCKS HILL ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Proposed barn extension to provide an extended dining area at ground floor
and 8 no. guest rooms at first floor, adding a guest house use to the existing

public house/restaurant to create a mixed use (Sui Generis), with associated
works and landscaping.

LBH Ref Nos: 14387/APP/2020/4126

Drawing Nos:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 240



1k Buy A Plan

UK's Fastest and Easiest Planning Site

Six Bells, Ducks Hill Road, Northwood, Hillingdon, HA4 7TP

Site Plan shows area bounded by: 508271.09, 188944.92 508471.09, 189144.92 (at a scale of 1:1250), OSGridRef: TQ 8378904. The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of
way. The representation of features as lines is no evidence of a property boundary.

Produced on 13th Apr 2018 from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision available at this date. Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the
prior permission of Ordnance Survey. © Crown copyright 2018. Supplied by www.buyaplan.co.uk a licensed Ordnance Survey partner (100053143). Unique plan reference: #00313154-9EB4EA

Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered trademarks of Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency of Great Britain. Buy A Plan logo, pdf design and the www.buyaplan.co.uk website
are Copyright © Pass Inc Ltd 2018

Page 241



& w
C C
S =
= V]
=)

a o}
o o]
£ 3
C

(9]

)

N\ O

Area of /:,/vfd' gs 100m2
/

ere growing thif

Trees Shown Indicatively See tree survey for prec

{

V) §

TINT SR
‘K<%)

L~ / N

d

Site Plan: As Found 1/02/2018

Site Plan: As Existing 14/8/2020

1:200

Riseley

Bedfordshire MK44 1DF

VERNQINSMITH
Croots Bam
103 High Street

01234 708630




301 ¥PIN ULSPIIE

0E980, ¥EZ10

fopsy R I
P30S UGH €01 I I
(eg 1000 _uSomﬂm. ‘BUPING 1915 01 WOQs 1409 LOZD J0 UV ﬂ
HLTASNONIA s
™
4
AN
)
(@]
@©
o




2 121 —
ity IY®0s:1 25 o _—
5.— 1 B,4003 315 LR, L0 LA I —
axqusod se — —_—
weg 51000 DarN a8 PR SUAXRAP Y OISR U 3 ISy Wenessy Peoy ItHPng Dok —
SB0XUNT UORINIR.0) BUIPING SI9E 5 01 W00 J30Q YIGZ JO UOIPDY
mmmmmmmmmm tumen SuomAP wodn A 3 Bupsra sv SUBIJ SOOI JBIISD '3 3544 PUNCID 400y L Bumenq eg uoRdiseg
HLTASNONSIA
G
0l4 punolIo




301 HIN UUPIOPRY 0E980L YEZ10 Y2400~ 11/0ZVSA 0N Bumei SAW umeid 8loz/zo/Lz =eg —
sy P —_— Weos| 205 I o
2205 UGH €01 ugxiﬁgzﬂgx YO/BIVSA oy Do
wieg 52000 DarN 8 PR U Y oKD 1eInEsY PEOY IH PG ok S .
seie50sse e oy o e o0 pasodoid sy Sugid 100t punciD 2Ry wopdoseq "y
HLTIASNON A
051
@ﬂj :w ueld J0oj4 punolo
I=1Tln >
|
I
L] I D_, _, @
I _ -
= =
! y
SIERpOD/ted SaIPET /M
I I
e =iy
T mdﬁ OB
3 SUSIN D/M
/M
Ueing [TaXTA) B
w sJ032RAUOD) s)Eads Aq
1 s
Inofen ULy 0
| pp— w M
! &
! (@)]
i ]
m ssed ay| o
I
{ SBE1/8102/ddV/L8E¥) [er0dY 8107 S310USQ U PaYseq Py
T e —— ) ——— [ g — & e s = M
| N

A %

M\@Wﬂ N,WN&\W,

A Y V4

01 w mm or | m
2

[ ] ued/ieH Buuig MmN pssodoud
[ ] w0zD 21=7 01 s3seyd LORdNASUOD SNOURA

[ ouqed uig1 3 21

4

¥4 we g I
- US Sy s12A0D 8] | xouddy i

= L — =
. k Jr M g - D8l ,
] A FAFF L
- _ yv - = ﬁ
=/ = — e 8 J L=

Rwiwiwd LT

9L£2 3 §L£2/020Z/ddv/L8EY | suoned)dde pasnya) s310usp au) paused)
Apouany Bujuuey (2307 3L WOy 33Ape BUMOII0) LRBUS) Ul 0°E AQ PRdnpa. W0} Ueld




301 HIN UUSPIOPRY 0E980L YEZ10 800~ 11/0ZVSA “oN Bumeiq SAW umeid sloz/zo/Lz =neq — —
o P — eos1 210§ I o
w05 UBH €01 n&aﬁxing!“nﬁ& YO/BIVSA e
weg 3000 ey 1 P 2 U ARROSERP Y TSI IRINEISY Peoy iH Prg Dofosd P —
mmmmmmmmmm Bamen s R oD A0 pasodoid sy S8 004 ' 00 24 g wopdoseg £
HLIASNONSIA
00 00 001
ueld Jooy
UORBPOWIIODIY LIOREPOLILLIODDY |
Aeyipuy Atpuy _
oo D
|
T T T T T T T T T T T T T T —]1
UORRPOWILLIODY —
Keipuy U i Ll ee—o—ooo—o—o-oo--—-—-—-____ |
©
DWO woouy N
() SEL
— 9L423 5LLZ/0Z0Z/ddv/LBEY | SuoRRIdde pasnjal sI0UIP ul oﬂ%z
Auoupny Bujuueld 12307 343 Woy 231pe Bumolios LABU3| Ul 0'€ AQ pRdNpai Loy Leld
05°|
11
_T T T T T T T T T T T T T W, Cm_m hoo*m HW.&H*
S8E1/8102/ddV/18€% | [eACUdY 8107 SA10USQ Ur P3Useq Py
T =E=E=E=====5
m [ ) | [ ) I  — | e —
m ! I I I
[T T T T T T T T @ (R _Aﬁ@vﬁq ;@d W\\Nﬂ\gjﬁmm
Ol ST R B
@ ! D I N /@\ D D I NiF J@\ ﬁ / / Ll T:
D ArHHHWI £ G D | SEERSER ST AN \ 1\:” ;:
SR S WiooIpag AN U | Lo L i
e £ woolpsg i "9 WoaIpag S wooupsg W N W ;:
L SRt ( F—r——-
ol DT e TS Ay o
F=T
” e
— dn i M@w * * * * ﬁ@ﬂ Vi H I ﬁﬁqﬂﬁ jmm
AN
, , d H l@ MeE oIpag S == \\,::
n W | wooJpag n@ |/ ["Cwooipsg € Wwooipag HENEE o D ,::
“““““““““ | LQ/O === —_—— [p—— | | e | W —_—— c=3==1 1‘7. ) —_— -
[ usea/ien Buia maN pasodoly W = |\ = N | e S T
N ) B v \N VA G B AN /, A D , PN ;:
[ ] u10ZD 2127 01 $3seuyd LoRaNAsSUoD SNOUEA T _ b, @ _ ,T\\\\\\v,ﬂ :,:
) e S -
T bugeq yigl D e [ ][ ][ [ i ] [ ] mmmmmmmmgﬁ




401 $IIN AUSPOYPIg 0E980L HEZ10 €00~ 11/02VSA SAW ozoz/el/zi

fopsyy NZ-X0

R30S UGH €01 11/0zvsA

wieg 53000 UOISLBIG UU| 3 JUSLUSIGIY3Y Ineissy 20Y [IH PNQ

mmmmmmmmmm Bupspg sy SUORRASZ AS3/M YINOS PUR 1583 LAON ey
NONIFA

0s°1

(u0J4) UONBASIF 1523 YLION

T

1
[

S

__________________

051

uoneAsls 153 yinos

Page 247




401 #IIN UUSPOYPIY OE980L $EZI0 ¥00- 1 1/0ZVSA SAW ozoz/ei/zt

fopspy NZ-T0

R30S UGH €01 1 1/02vSA

useg 3000 UOISUPG UU| '3 JUSWYSINSY Weineissy PeoY I1H Pna

wwwwwwwwww Gupspa sy SUORRNDIZ SN UINOS U2 1523 LLON 2 g wopdoseq e
NONIFA

0s:1

(Med 42D 01) UORBASIT 1S9 ULON

=i ==

j===|

[Tl

0ogog

A

Page 248

0s:1

uoneAs|d (Jeay) 1sam Yinos

__________________




301 ¥PIN UUSPOIPg

R30S UBH €01
weg 5000

5918|120

SNONSIA

SAW 0z0z/21 /21
V@081
11/0zvsA

PEOY [IH PNQ
{PaNOUISY SUOAPPY 121E7]) SUORBASIZ SIM LINOS PU. 3523 LLION

UOISURIG UU] '3 JUSUWISIGINYSY Winetsoy

0E980L ¥EZ10 $00- 11/0ZVSA
7 7 Bupsya sy

0s:1

{panowsy suonippy Yi0zD) UoneAs|3 153/ YLON

—

e e e e e e e e e e e s s s e s e e e e e e e s e e e | vH nM M
—

\

)

05°1

(panowisy suonippy Y10zD) UONeAS|T 1594\ LINOS

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T

Page 249




401 #IIN UUSPOYPIY 0E980L HEZ10 010~ 1 1/0ZvSA SAN 0202/40/60

fosy ®00Z:1

R30S UGH €01 0/0ZVSA

wieg 53000 WSS WeInersy Peoy [iH g

mmmmmmmmmm pasodaxd sv beidwo) Bupyng) suoenag ] uopdiaseg "y
NONIFA
0s:1
uoneAs|q 1se3 YLoN
E | _
[ =
// ——
—_— ’//
- N
ﬁ N 1

__________________ 0
Lo
[qV}
(8]
. (@]
0s°1 @©
o

UoneAs|3 1590 YInos




301 ¥ uspiosPog 0E980L ¥EZ10 110~ 11/0ZVSA SAW 0202/40/60

Aasy V@ 00z

P30S UGIH €01 €0/07vsA

wseg 53000 WRSIQNIY 1URINeIsSy Peoy ItH Pna

mmmmmmmmmm pasodosgd sy berduwoD Buping) suopenar ey uopdiosg e
NONIFA

0s:1

i DIIENNNE=TE— i e

Page 251

0s°1

uoneAs|d 1s9/\ Yainos

[Tl ,, il A % % “““““““““““ S

kD
® a
v

[ 11

1




301 ¥PIN UUSPOIPg

P05 UG €01

YRR s
NONEA

pasodoud sy 0s:1

:UONBAS[T 1S3\ LANOS

91123 6£42/0202/ddv/L8E Y| Suopedjdde pasryaz souSp aujl pauseq
Auouiny Bujuueld 12307 3u3 woy ape Bumolioy yBray ul 01 Aq paonpa: 1ubRY 36app

0E980L $EZ10 600~ 11/0ZVSA ozoz/zi /o1
veos!
€0/0ZvSA
WBUIYSIQINY JURINEISAY PeCy [IH g
pasodosd sv [uosuana) weg suopensg
1 = =S|
|
ﬂ |
I
I
I
. 4\ ﬁ.,
4 |
|
05’1
pssodold sy :uoneas| €3 yyno§ — 00000000
” i | 05
_ _ pasodoud UoneA3|3 1523 YUON
, 1] | I
,: ,J
f |
) S | | S | S § S| S o S | S o S | S | S o S o S | S o S | S | S o S | S | S o S| S | S S S | S 1 S o S| S— 1 S| | S | S— 1 S—| T—1 o
|
|
I = = = — =
o 0 O 0O 0O
— I I I I | | I I I
= | | J ! | L
|
|
I
|
|
051 0s:1 - -
pasodold sy :UuoneAl|3 1534\ Yinos pasodo.d :uoneAl|g 1se3 ULoN
LI
SBE1/8102/ddV/L8E | IAOLdY §10Z SI0USA BT PaUseq Py ﬂﬂ
Vqﬂﬁ — ws/ '/
I Uond 9€ N

Page 252




N

The OIld Workhouse

! | —

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

THE SIX BELLS PH
DUCKS HILL ROAD

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

RUISLIP Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
14387/APP/2020/4126 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 253 | February 2021




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address THE SIX BELLS PH DUCKS HILL ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Proposed barn extension to provide an extended dining area at ground floor
and 8 no. guest rooms at first floor (Application for Listed Building Consent)

LBH Ref Nos: 14387/APP/2020/4128

Drawing Nos:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 254



1k Buy A Plan

UK's Fastest and Easiest Planning Site

Six Bells, Ducks Hill Road, Northwood, Hillingdon, HA4 7TP

Site Plan shows area bounded by: 508271.09, 188944.92 508471.09, 189144.92 (at a scale of 1:1250), OSGridRef: TQ 8378904. The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of
way. The representation of features as lines is no evidence of a property boundary.

Produced on 13th Apr 2018 from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision available at this date. Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the
prior permission of Ordnance Survey. © Crown copyright 2018. Supplied by www.buyaplan.co.uk a licensed Ordnance Survey partner (100053143). Unique plan reference: #00313154-9EB4EA

Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered trademarks of Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency of Great Britain. Buy A Plan logo, pdf design and the www.buyaplan.co.uk website
are Copyright © Pass Inc Ltd 2018

Page 255



& w
C C
S =
= V]
=)

a o}
o o]
£ 3
C

(9]

)

N\ O

Area of /:,/vfd' gs 100m2
/

ere growing thif

Trees Shown Indicatively See tree survey for prec

{

V) §

TINT SR
‘K<%)

L~ / N

d

Site Plan: As Found 1/02/2018

Site Plan: As Existing 14/8/2020

1:200

Riseley

Bedfordshire MK44 1DF

VERNQINSMITH
Croots Bam
103 High Street

01234 708630




301 ¥PIN ULSPIIE

0E980L ¥EZ10 V900~ 11/0ZVSA SAW el 0202/80/51
Aasy : — —
P30S UGH €01
i : ! BUPING g XS O WS J4OG LROZD JO UOUPRY v
s318|J00S55 @ g .x\&
HLTIASNON A pr
N~
Lo
[qV}
)
o
@©
o




2 121 —
ity IY®0s:1 25 o _—
5.— 1 B,4003 315 LR, L0 LA I —
axqusod se — —_—
weg 51000 DarN a8 PR SUAXRAP Y OISR U 3 ISy Wenessy Peoy ItHPng Dok —
SB0XUNT UORINIR.0) BUIPING SI9E 5 01 W00 J30Q YIGZ JO UOIPDY
mmmmmmmmmm tumen SuomAP wodn A 3 Bupsra sv SUBIJ SOOI JBIISD '3 3544 PUNCID 400y L Bumenq eg uoRdiseg
HLTASNONSIA
G
0l4 punolIo




301 HIN UUPIOPRY 0E980L YEZ10 Y2400~ 11/0ZVSA 0N Bumei SAW umeid 8loz/zo/Lz =eg —
sy P —_— Weos| 205 I o
2205 UGH €01 ugxiﬁgzﬂgx YO/BIVSA oy Do
wieg 52000 DarN 8 PR U Y oKD 1eInEsY PEOY IH PG ok S .
seie50sse e oy o e o0 pasodoid sy Sugid 100t punciD 2Ry wopdoseq "y
HLTIASNON A
051
@ﬂj :w ueld J0oj4 punolo
=1 ;
[
I
L] I D_, _, @
I _ -
= =
! y
Si D/Jeq SaIpeT D/
Il IPET /M
e =iy
T 4:,@:@ BB
3 SUSIN D/M
/M
Ueing [TaXTA) B
w sJ032RAUOD) s)Eads Aq
1 s
Inofen ULy o
| pp— w %
! &
! (@)]
| ©
m ssed 3yl o
I
{ SBE1/8102/ddV/L8E¥) [er0dY 8107 S310USQ U PaYseq Py
| T —T | S— | R—— o o o e M
| N

A %

M\@Wﬂ N,WN&\W,

A Y V4

01 w mm or | m
2

[ ] ued/ieH Buuig MmN pssodoud
[ ] w0zD 21=7 01 s3seyd LORdNASUOD SNOURA

[ ouqed uig1 3 21

4

¥4 we g I
- US Sy s12A0D 8] | xouddy i

= L — =
. k Jr M g - D8l ,
] A FAFF L
- _ yv - = ﬁ
=/ = — e 8 J L=

Rwiwiwd LT

9L£2 3 §L£2/020Z/ddv/L8EY | suoned)dde pasnya) s310usp au) paused)
Apouany Bujuuey (2307 3L WOy 33Ape BUMOII0) LRBUS) Ul 0°E AQ PRdnpa. W0} Ueld




301 HIN UUSPIOPRY 0E980L YEZ10 800~ 11/0ZVSA “oN Bumeiq SAW umeid sloz/zo/Lz =neq — —
o P — eos1 210§ I o
w05 UBH €01 n&aﬁxing!“nﬁ& YO/BIVSA e
weg 3000 ey 1 P 2 U ARROSERP Y TSI IRINEISY Peoy iH Prg Dofosd P —
mmmmmmmmmm Bamen s R oD A0 pasodoid sy S8 004 ' 00 24 g wopdoseg £
HLIASNONSIA
00 00 001
ueld Jooy
UORBPOWIIODIY LIOREPOLILLIODDY |
Aeyipuy Atpuy _
oo D
|
T T T T T T T T T T T T T T —]1
UORRPOWILLIODY —
Keipuy U i Ll ee—o—ooo—o—o-oo--—-—-—-____ |
o
2050 wooLp %
() SR -
— 9L423 5LLZ/0Z0Z/ddv/LBEY | SuoRRIdde pasnjal sI0UIP ul oﬂ%z
Auoupny Bujuueld 12307 343 Woy 231pe Bumolios LABU3| Ul 0'€ AQ pRdNpai Loy Leld
051
I
_T T T T T T T T T T T T T W, Cm_m uooﬁn_ HW.&H&
S8E1/8102/ddV/18€% | [eACUdY 8107 SA10USQ Ur P3Useq Py
T =E=E=E=====5
m [ ) | [ ) I  — | e —
m ! I I I
[T T T T T T T T @ (R _Aﬁ@vﬁq ;@d W\\Nﬂ\gjﬁmm
Ol ST R B
@ ! D I N /@\ D D I NiF J@\ ﬁ / / Ll T:
D ArHHHWI £ G D | SEERSER ST AN \ 1\:” ;:
SR S WiooIpag AN U | Lo L i
= £ wooupag o "9 uaaipag § woolpag | . I
L SRt ( F—r——-
ol DT e TS Ay o
F=T
” e
— dn i M@w * * * * ﬁ@ﬂ Vi H I ﬁﬁqﬂﬁ jmm
AN
, , d H l@ MeE oIpag S == \\,::
n W | wooJpag n@ |/ ["Cwooipsg € Wwooipag HENEE o D ,::
“““““““““ | LQ/O === —_—— [p—— | | e | W —_—— c=3==1 1‘7. ) —_— -
[ usea/ien Buia maN pasodoly W = |\ = N | e S T
N ) B v \N VA G B AN /, A D , PN ;:
[ ] u10ZD 2127 01 $3seuyd LoRaNAsSUoD SNOUEA T _ b, @ _ ,T\\\\\\v,ﬂ :,:
irel e S -
T bugeq yigl D e [ ][ ][ [ i ] [ ] mmmmmmmmgﬁ




401 $IIN AUSPOYPIg 0E980L HEZ10 €00~ 11/02VSA SAW ozoz/el/zi

fopsyy NZ-X0

R30S UGH €01 11/0zvsA

wieg 53000 UOISLBIG UU| 3 JUSLUSIGIY3Y Ineissy 20Y [IH PNQ

mmmmmmmmmm Bupspg sy SUORRASZ AS3/M YINOS PUR 1583 LAON ey
NONIFA

0s°1

(u0J4) UONBASIF 1523 YLION

T

1
[

S

__________________

051

uoneAsls 153 yinos

Page 261




401 #IIN UUSPOYPIY OE980L $EZI0 ¥00- 1 1/0ZVSA SAW ozoz/ei/zt

fopspy NZ-T0

R30S UGH €01 1 1/02vSA

useg 3000 UOISUPG UU| '3 JUSWYSINSY Weineissy PeoY I1H Pna

wwwwwwwwww Gupspa sy SUORRNDIZ SN UINOS U2 1523 LLON 2 g wopdoseq e
NONIFA

0s:1

(Med 42D 01) UORBASIT 1S9 ULON

=i ==

j===|

[Tl

0ogog

A

e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s s e e s

Page 262

0s:1

uoneAs|d (Jeay) 1sam Yinos

__________________




301 ¥PIN UUSPOIPg

R30S UBH €01
weg 5000

5918|120

SNONSIA

SAW 0z0z/21 /21
V@081
11/0zvsA

PEOY [IH PNQ
{PaNOUISY SUOAPPY 121E7]) SUORBASIZ SIM LINOS PU. 3523 LLION

UOISURIG UU] '3 JUSUWISIGINYSY Winetsoy

0E980L ¥EZ10 $00- 11/0ZVSA
7 7 Bupsya sy

0s:1

{panowsy suonippy Yi0zD) UoneAs|3 153/ YLON

—

e e e e e e e e e e e s s s e s e e e e e e e s e e e | vH nM M
—

\

)

05°1

(panowisy suonippy Y10zD) UONeAS|T 1594\ LINOS

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T

Page 263




AN UUSPIYPIY 0E980L HEZ10 010~ 1 1/0ZvSA SAN 0202/40/60

@00z

R30S UGH €01 0/0ZVSA

wieg 53000 WSS WeInersy Peoy [iH g

mmmmmmmmmm pasodaid sv beidwo) Bupyng) suoenag ey uopdusag "y
NONIFA
0s’1
uoneAs|3 1seq YLUON
| .. =
=
//
—_— ’//
ﬁ N = 1
__________________ 4
O
[qV}
(8]
. (@]
0s°1 @©
o
uoneAs|3 1se\ yinos




301 ¥ uspiosPog 0E980L ¥EZ10 110~ 11/0ZVSA SAW 0202/40/60

Aasy V@ 00z

P30S UGIH €01 €0/07vsA

wseg 53000 WRSIQNIY 1URINeIsSy Peoy ItH Pna

mmmmmmmmmm pasodosgd sy berduwoD Buping) suopenar ey uopdiosg e
NONIFA

0s:1

i DIIENNNE=TE— i e

Page 265

0s°1

uoneAs|d 1s9/\ Yainos

[Tl ,, il A % % “““““““““““ S

kD
® a
v

[ 11

1




301 ¥PIN UUSPOIPg

P05 UG €01

YRR s
NONEA

pasodoud sy 0s:1

:UONBAS[T 1S3\ LANOS

91123 6£42/0202/ddv/L8E Y| Suopedjdde pasryaz souSp aujl pauseq
Auouiny Bujuueld 12307 3u3 woy ape Bumolioy yBray ul 01 Aq paonpa: 1ubRY 36app

0E980L $EZ10 600~ 11/0ZVSA ozoz/zi /o1
veos!
€0/0ZvSA
WBUIYSIQINY JURINEISAY PeCy [IH g
pasodosd sv [uosuana) weg suopensg
1 = =S|
|
ﬂ |
I
I
I
. 4\ ﬁ.,
4 |
|
05’1
pssodold sy :uoneas| €3 yyno§ — 00000000
” i | 05
_ _ pasodoud UoneA3|3 1523 YUON
, 1] | I
,: ,J
f |
) S | | S | S § S| S o S | S o S | S | S o S o S | S o S | S | S o S | S | S o S| S | S S S | S 1 S o S| S— 1 S| | S | S— 1 S—| T—1 o
|
|
I = = = — =
o 0 O 0O 0O
— I I I I | | I I I
= | | J ! | L
|
|
I
|
|
051 0s:1 - -
pasodold sy :UuoneAl|3 1534\ Yinos pasodo.d :uoneAl|g 1se3 ULoN
LI
SBE1/8102/ddV/L8E | IAOLdY §10Z SI0USA BT PaUseq Py ﬂﬂ
Vqﬂﬁ — ws/ '/
I Uond 9€ N

Page 266




The Old Workhouse

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
THE SIX BELLS PH

DUCKS HILL ROAD

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

RUISLIP Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
14387/APP/2020/4128 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 267 | February 2021




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 188 BURY STREET RUISLIP

Development: Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 4 x 4 bed dwelling houses
with associated parking spaces and external works

LBH Ref Nos: 8697/APP/2020/3622

Drawing Nos:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 268



Trafalgar Properties Ltd

SITE:

188 Bury Street, Ruislip, Uxbridge. HA4 7TN. 001 547/P | 24.9.20
DRAWING NO. PROJECT NO. DATE.
TITLE:
Location Plan 11250 - : rev
SCALE AT A4. DRAWN. CHECKED. REVISION.

N

0 25 50 75 100 125m
I \ | \ |
Scale 1:1250

2
"704,

Hillingdon
Athletics Club

site area = 2845m?, 0.2845ha

location plan

Page 269



00Z:L 9109S

ASI 20 d/LyS
e o S0 oN 193r0Hd
payosUD umolp | 0Z'60'vC 00
Q31534 ) aiva 171 31995 ; -
woz st
up|d [oowydpiBodo)] puo Bulsixg
L
‘NI 7VH “8Bpuaxn ‘diisiny ‘jeals Aing 8L s
P seledold JoBjoil|
ool
P41 salsdold iobjool| T
* ONINNY1d |
IEZEES HONA$5530 |
AUBST = jundjooy Buysix3 |pjo]
WMOE = asnoyussi
LEG = |100d @C_Eg_gw PaIBA0)D
MYE = ¢ Pays
W9 = L Pous
Wz = 7 9boins
G| = | ebpID
JMBC L = 1eaus Aing 881

SONIATING ONILSIX3 40 VIO

:59JON

1
0

buuog

S99} DINOW YHM
Daly PapPOOM asuaq

10VdS J119nd N3dO

obpIpbH

tozs 818

NV1d TYOIHd VIO OdOL ONIISIX3

Page 270



€0 d/LyS

om0 ouoarous
UMD 60" n

P 0ze0re 00z: L R
awiom s ava v awos

i
woz st o
Ul 8jis Pasodold

au

“NLZ ¥'YH "9Bpuaxn ‘diisiny ‘jeaus Aing 881 ans

P salpadold JoBpoIL
e

pjseledold BP0

* ONINNV1d

TR s

95N0Y Yo0S 0} Pays S|0AD ubissp AQ 81N28S Sou |
$900ds J0D 040} § JO J|qIssod asnoy Jjad 8o0pds PppP |
Bullemp 1ad seonds Buppod 102 g

Bupjing
WPl = ¥ UspInD
W8S = € usping
WpSL = ¢ usping
Wy0C = | Uspioo

Ajuswy ajpAug

WOy = [010} 2|0l ® V3D 8snoy yoos
JoWIOP IDaI UM 8snoy uosiad / ‘WooIpad ¥ ‘Sou §
UOHPPOWIWOIDY JO S|NPAYIS

590N

002:1 31¥OS

|PuIOU ‘Y AIDpUNOG Ul SoUBLUS

{2245 Aing 981 jo ul Buipping

SBUPING POUSIOWSP 10 U 50y yobe of siojs opoA>

e|qpyjo0] ubisep Aq einoes
K

poulpjeI 9q o} 95us) ;equiy Bulisixe

BuidnospuB 1os pub USpIDG Jo iod wiio)
0} parowai 2q o} sBUIPIINg 100PNO IV

porows: 7 860IDS Sioym
Buysixe yojow of 95us JequIl [I§u) MOU

suspinb usemieq sedus)
Buyoindes sequiy yBIY wg'L

Buidpospup] os
Pup uspIns o pod wio) of ys ol UM
panows] oq o} sseaob-pasnd Buysixe

eous) sl Y61 We'L

S99} DINOW YHM
Daly papooM asuaq

10VdS JI19nd N3do

uspim o} penous iaid Buysixe

sBulpjing paysiowsp o sugino

NY1d 31IS d3s0Od0dd

Page 271



Page 272



A3 S0
e o Dm0
payosuo | umop [ 02607z oot sios
Q31534 17 awa 171 31995 f ]
abojuowojoyd ot S 0

[PUD UolDASH JUOI Pasodold

L

“NLZ ¥'YH "9Bpuaxn ‘diisiny ‘jeaus Aing 881

s

pJ1 saliadold JoBjojoi)

HoIvNIouO

P41 salsdold iobjool|

pEno

ONINNV1d

s

TR

o [ 1 |

S|2A3] 40} 700 Buimpip
|ooiydpiBodoy o} 1syay (1)

:59JON

00L:L 3TVOS
JOVINOWOLOHd ANV NOILYAITE INOd4 d35O40dd

NOILVAITI 13341S A3SOdO¥d 40 IOVINOWOLOHJ QILVWILSSIND

LV®@00L:L NOILVAI13 INOYd

SIHOIFH 4008 ONIMOHS M3IA 13341S INOI190 DNILSIXI

NMOHS LON - INDNEO NV 1v NOUVAITA - 133415 A¥NG 981

00°E€ 10 [9A8] Buljsixe UIDjes

8£'€9 B PPOI ANg 98| 4o 8BpU /\/\J\ m A puoAeq yjaq UsaIB Jo aUl| 831} AYLOIPUL

Suj Appunog
S0y bpuncg

Page 273




Hillingdon
Athletics Club

%

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identificati | 188 BURY STREET Residents Services
or identification purposes only. RUISLIP Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . . .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 8697/APP/2020/3622 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database b
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey Februarv 2021
L 10003 North Page 274 Yy




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address PYLON FARM NEWYEARS GREEN LANE HAREFIELD
Development: Demolition of existing outbuildings and construction of single replacement
outbuilding

LBH Ref Nos: 12579/APP/2020/2742

Drawing Nos:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 275



Pond Farm

Newyears Green

Newyears Green

%

<

/
‘g /
o
& [ /
O RGN W T /
&, oA 3
a AR\ Bﬂra emar r@% /
3 laW O /
\ /
@
W /
\ Y4 Mast
\\‘30 V4 (Telecommunicotion)
/
A '/
Vv /
\ /
\ /
N /
~ ~ -
-~
Site Location Plan 1:1250 @ A2
20 0 20 40 60 80 100
Py / ; ; ; |
Metres
McDougall Architects Ltd. 4 Squires Road, Bedfordshire, MK43 0QL:
Tel. 01234 962 263: Email. sean@mcdougall-architects.co.uk:
Web. www.mcdougall-architects.co.uk.
Application Site REV ISSUE DATE || Pylon Farm Barn
Boundary 1451sqm } Mr Campbell Mc Auley
________________ P1 Plan enlarged to encompass entire
Pylon Farm lands 27.08.20

Applicants land
not part of application
10.1939 HA / 25.19 Acres

Site Location Plan

owe No. 135 L0 ‘ stas. Planning

paper. A2 ‘ scale1:1250 ‘ Revision. P

Page 276



A\
GQ‘Q%\A 6 »%°
SN x
N“'P\“(
Newyears 'r,@ A
Green Lane "
%
kS
25
%
S - Site Boundary
Qﬁ ® © L
L © Site Area 1451 sgm
~*\3 d/
o Existing Outbuildings.
P . (e @ Gross External Area.
ot G D> S *ﬁ'@ O«
{ﬁﬂ i 3
B » ek . AS
o =y
o™

) Ground Floor 325 sqm
. First Floor 63 sqm
oL u x'p\a

Total 388 sqm
N :’3‘; x"nﬂ; .® 3 i P
e e Leve Existing hedge and tree
N B e
o KN cof identification and treatment. Please
s o §
. 09 see DPA Existing Site Tree Survey
. 29, Drawing and report.
s WL @
2 o E
. N
R o cos!
o &
) . 3
B bop e S
w x °
0® °
K o . <

o
*  Site area
e ° 1451 sqm

x‘u - ote
- : b
2 ‘ e
& . 3
o :ao-“
o #"4 #*  Pylon Farm 1 R
. g
=+ ¢ Yard | T
3 .
RO Y -4
8 17945 1
i » »
& o0 &
. et . \
- o B © o33 %
- 3736" 1683
* «F A
- 4 qass B A
~ # s 298GM @ . Pylon Farm
0 = prefabricoted buiding o B
o House
5 i ° contrete paving slabs
7] E 3
8478 MY 6025 & 2
B ER & B £
Kk 41sgm| - o g «° s
5 q - Existing ve H
e 5 outbuildings B
] X 8 e 52
= £ : Total area 8 . FiBs
8 ° 3 « 30 3
A : 388 sqm A =
° £ 8 Lo E
j o c . . . N
R S - e = W
ol 2 a o 2 = Il B
Az A . - 5 ;
N- 3 |2 z H i R >
B 5 | o - 3 [ Sk
* 2 |- 13 o 5 o ©0 oA
i x| = 322sgm £ |3
! E & E o
. il E = fioo "
B . = . © A
. concrete nt 0.80m - 3
3 < « H
p © % E b $
i kﬁg 0.35 §0.37 - ;." ;
S 1
a concrete paving o (& T
o] b | @ § REV ISSUE DATE
: g o
‘ g B " P1 Planning Issue 27.08.20
# 10421 B : iz ald,
o T e T T Scale 1:100 @ A1
o B 3 2 d
A &
p=cl X N S B e
. B m
Ty
4 1,400
rick wol 1 o Jence Nt 2.00M §
& o E
et |2 Pond Farm
: commercial L B85 7o @b b
= . . .medougall-architects.co.uk
5 units -
w Client
puilding line at first floor ]P‘\/Ir ?anlpbell MC Auley
roject
4 brick building Pylon Farm Barn
Existing Site Plan
)( P 277 owe o, 135 L 02 ‘ stws. Planning
g Revision. P1 ‘ Scale. 1:100 ‘ Paper. A1




Iy e 7 0011 s 7 Zd womon

Buiuueld smeis 7 G0 GEL oNOmMa

ue|d Joo|4 punols) Bunsixg

ureq uue uojAd
aloid
Koy o [[oqduwe)) JA

waip

T —
00 SIe)udE-[eBnopoWBUesS Iew3 :£9Z Z96 YEZLO L
7100 £75IN SISPIP3E 'Pe0y SaUNDS DT SPNPAY IEBROCON

N -

LV ® 00L:L 8IPds

woc

90 7G€L "ou ‘ueld 100/
1S414 Bunsix3 oos sioxiep
UoJj09s pue UoyeAs|g

'90 16GeL ‘ou ‘Bmp @8s  °N eary

7uswdinbg Bujuepiesy wbs 2| ‘W ealy
‘sped aledg pue [eoujos|g  wbspe ] ealy
‘Bupennb pue Buiquinld  wbsgy "y ealy
‘Bupeynb pue Buyooy wbsgy T ealy
‘doysyopy  wbsze 'H ealy
quswdinbg  wbsye ‘o ealy
“J0joel) - Bupied wbsgz "4 ealy
abelo)s all4 wbsg'zl "3 ealy
‘uayoyy  wbsg " ealy

*O'M /Jemoys  wbsg D ealy
"90WO  Wbsg'z) *g ealy

“sleusjew pue juswdinbs
Bujuespo ‘ebeio)g o4 "wbs zz "y ealy

‘sisAjeue asn Buipjing

P

g3 M
rga w25
058

ov1e ®

purptt™®

asnoH
wJe- uojid

PRl
2 o1

x
o

wbs |Gy | edly OUg

Aepunog aus

00LS g€l eInpaydos

oydesBojoud
98s “I0jRoIpUIl ,\
uoneoso| ydeiboyoyd //xxx \¥

*Hodau pue Buimelq

Aonng 98] a)g Bunsix3g vdq 99s

asea|d Juslieal) pue UoleoyRuapl
931} pue abpay Bunsixg

wbs gge lejol
wbs g9 100|4 18414
wbs gzg 100]4 punol

yueq deals 9
Buousy pieoq 8sol) g

BulpueispieH -y

oeuue] g
. HnL ¢
V3o
sBuip|inginQ Bupsixg Aepunoq o}
Bulousy pseoq esofo pue Bunued ainepy  °|
02°80°LC anss| 8uiuueld d >®
iva anssi A3y A

uap.eb
JuUol} SNoH
wJe uojid

2 Lo® 3l
SHUN |eloJaWwwWo) P o s
wJie4 puod TR
X e
® . ® ®
al 3 _ o W
? b
* ®
. 8 g oos
< _m || —
H B
gl o .
g p 2 B . -
. Foos i 3
g R e1ous @ < moo ) o
8 azes 5 A e 3y —
u— - @ m xu 00 s 4 o
5 . - i wbs "
Bl 5 s To ‘ v 42 © .
@ K -] 8 3
5 - 3 = o1 - -
<0 Ef o o g * e
e ; aNuNw v - @ V»m o (a%x . =
) sbv & wbs E N E \-
N ol 21 5 ; E b
® s g - @ , : : ) E ©) 3"
2 § ° g @ 5 e 17
Ll 2 N 5
iy TN E(H H
g ( ”{v ° g
ww /Wwo\ | 2 3 W & s
wbs zyz : L
=8 e 2 @ - e
o3 ° 2 -
L ©® ¢ 1|2 . E <
ece 0oy S| 9 D @
wbs gz squs Bunnd sisibuos ¢ &
v
o o
LA] o
ca® ~
o E Y Ly
i No) @ * F e ,/WBQ \, [©)
1 > ® o . “
vcm—a mm ‘\%// o @
1 () B\
— @ ,/% \, B ' X
. O @] o \ o
| & b s & \
@ & & ,,\nw/ ©
s )
H o \8/
e
E\ (%, o
0 @ 3
K\OO | /- // N~ @ R A . >
\& (S) 5 &
os® - &/
& 3 P o
50 e % S
aws»w
& N "
" e
oc,
cn qu tuw
* © © = X ©
o . 50,
@ R
,m@ ) A @ % w )
PG 2919 \& K
e k o
E&Q sueT
¢ 3 o U9slI9) SIBOA Md
SN TN s

Page 278



Iy e 7 0011 s 7 Zd womon

Buiuued smeis 907G oNOma

ueld Joold 1sil4 Bupsix3

ureq uue uojAd
aloid
Koy o [[oqduwe)) JA

waip

O —
00 SIe)udE-eBnopoWBUesS Iew3 :£9Z Z96 YEZLO IeL
7100 £75IN SISPIP3E 'Be0y SaUNDS DT SPNPAY IEBROCON

N

~ ]

o —

LIV ® 00L:L 3IP25

woz

wbs Lgy| ealy a)g

Aepunog aus

*Hodau pue Buimelq
Aonng 98] a)g Bunsixg vdqa 99s
asea|d Juslieal} pue uoLeoyRuapl

931} pue abpay Bunsixg

-abelols sjeusjew pue juswdinby
‘wbs €9 ‘N ealyY

'G0 71 €L "ou “Bmp seg
‘N - V sealy

‘sisAjeue asn Buipjing

wbs gge

el

wbs g9

100|4 1814

wbs gzg J00]4 punois

°JO0l [ejow passald ‘c
V30 ‘Joorjepiled ‘¢
sBulpingino Bugsix3y
‘Buyoous 198yg sojseqsy ‘|
0T'80°LC anss| 8ujuue|q 2d
Koy
lva 3nss| A3Y

asnoH
wJe- uojid

SjuUN [e10JaWwwWwo)

EEERr]

wueH puod

CIREDRD

s0c0 13

9579 13

s6e8 13
—
—

15274

—
—

£
g
2

—

9Z¥8 Wd cgeo 13

578 13

808 W

3

LIEERTY

%
o

wbs |Gy
eale alg

Y
S
et

aueT
usaI9) SIBS A MO

Page 279



v i 001} s i Zd oo
SjuN [elJaWwWwo)

wle puod

90 76€L "ou ‘uejd Joo|H
18114 Bugsixg ees siexiep
ueld jooy Bupsix3 || LOOBS pue UoHEAS|T

55 T8

[T — 7 207166} oMo

ureg wie uojAg
PREICIN
Koy oy joqduwe)) I

w1

6359 13

T —
DIOTSRRREEBNOpWD RS “Jeu3 9T 296 YEZLD oL
IO EFIN ‘SROPOR PECk SOINDS T IO 1EBT0QOH

ses

15638

N

PR

658

749 W

959 W

ses 1

asnoH
wJie4 uojAd

3

o W8

IV ® Q0L 2[pas

wog

wbs |Gy ealy oIS

Arepunog ayg|

8
%

wbs |Gp|

L=<

eale a)g

“Jodas pue Buimelg
Aening oa1] g Bulsix3 vd4q 99s
9se9|d "Juslijesl} pue UoHEOLRUSPI
9aJ) pue abpay Bulisixg

wbsgge  |elol uapieb

wbs g9 10014 1sul4 b ;
wbs GZ¢ 100|4 punoli9 WCO._h ww:OI
001 [ejow passeld g wJe4 uojhd

V39 ‘Jjoolieped  C 5@
sBuiplingino Bupsix3g sjen
-Bulyoos j98Yg sojseqsy |
Ro)
0C'80°LL anss| Buluue|d 2d \AQY_ o

va ansst A3y S~ /.

<

aueT
Us8Io) SIBBA MO

w®

Page 280



Ld “uosiey

00L:} s 4 £ eded

Bujuueld smeis _ 9l 7 GE1 °NOma

uoneas|3 yseq bunsixg

Koy o\ [1eqdwe) I
ureq wue, uojAd

N"00°S108)IYOIE-||[EBNOPOW MMM "GaL
Hin‘easjoeyyole-IleBnopow@uess “lewd 19 296 YEZL0 'leL
700 £¥3I ‘911YSPIOPag ‘PEOY SOANDS ¥ *PF] SISUYOY IBBNOGON

07'80°L¢ anss| Buluueld 1d

ilva anssi AEL]

¢V © 00QlL-1 *°Ib3S
Ol S v ¢ <
[ L]

L O

0 [

e i e e

ZaN

ov'L9
[2A7 93p1Y
Sunsix3

L9°L9
|oAa7 28p1y
Sunsix3

Page 281



Ld “uosiey

00L:} s 4 £ eded

Bujuueld smeis _ Gl 7 GEL °NOma

uoneAs|3 yuop Bunsix3y

Koy o\ [1eqdwe) I
ureq wue, uojAd

N"00°S108)IYOIE-||[EBNOPOWL MMM "GapL
"v-_._.Ou.wﬁmd__._Q._Nu__mm_._OUoE@:Nmm “rew3 ie9z 296 vEZ1L0 18l
00 EYHIN ‘2AYSPIOJPOg ‘PROY SAINDS ¥ *PY] SIANYOY IBBNOgoN

¢V ©® 00L-L 2IPOS
Ol S ¥ ¢ ¢ |
[ L]

L O

07'80°L¢ anss| Buluueld 1d

ilva anssi AEL]

7 N ¥ A —— -
o7 ss =

[9Aa7 93p1Y
Sunsix3 A1 23p1y
o Sunsix3



Ld “uosiey

00L:} s 7 £ eded

¢V © 00QlL-1 *°Ib3S
Ol S v ¢ ¢ L 0
[ L]

Bujuueld smeis _ /1 7 GEL °NOma

uoneAs|3 1sep) Bunsixg

Koy o\ [1eqdwe) I
ureq wue, uojAd

"S1081IUQJE-[|EBNOPOW MMM *GSA

b () JleBnopow@ueses ‘i €92 296 vECI0 1oL
<100 EYHIN piojpeg ‘peoy seanbg ¢ "py] sjoepyoIy leBnogo
[ T|
|
I .
BEE L 2
[ ] LT Es T E= T | |- ~
B )
o)
_ ©
o
VAN
ov'L9
|aA7 93ply
8unsixg
02'80°LT anss| Sujuueld 1d

ilva anssi AEL]



Key

1. New verge to turfed area to provide
driveway and pedestrian walkway around
new outbuilding.

2. New tarmac to driveway.

Newyears

3. New bat box installed at high level to gable
Green Lane

wall in accordance with recommendations
of Pylon Farm Bat Survey report written by
Ecology by Design.

New bird box installed at high level to gable
wall in_accordance with recommendations
of Pylon Farm Bat Survey report written by
Ecology by Design.

Proposed new outbuilding 'The barn'. Brick
and timber clad walls with concrete plain tile
pitched roof with integral rooflights. See
dwg no. L 35 and referenced drawings.

Site Boundary

Site Area 1451 sqm

Proposed Replacement
Outbuilding

Gross External Area.

Ground Floor 405 sqm
First Floor 0sgm
Total 405 sqm

Existing hedge and tree
identification and treatment. Please
see DPA Existing Site Tree Survey

Drawing and report.

Pylon Farm
House

ht 1.10m

Brick wal
wooden panel fence

Proposed
new ety
outbuilding "

brick wall ht 1.00m

REV ISSUE DATE
P1 Planning Issue 27.08.20
] E Scale 1:100 @ Al
I o A B B
0 2.5 5 7.5 10m
\\ nt 1 Arﬂ ',‘, ol
¢
Pond Farm
commercial M°?Zf%1“2§£°2v'sv‘§§‘ESZJ.EZL'SZI@R&Z:’E‘Q“’J%#ZJS&S?“
Units /eb. www.medougall-architects. co.uk
Client
butdng ine ot firet foor Mr Campbell Mc Auley
o Project
brick bullding Pylon Farm Barn
Proposed Site Plan

Page 284

ow o, 135 L 32 ‘ sttws. Planning
/ fotton P1 | 5o 1100 | o A




Iy e 7 0011 s 7 Zd womon

Buiuueld smeis 7 GE 7 6EL oNOmMa

20LDUAYUDA PRIy

/ Buanag Ajsadaig S Lo Buny — lssoqna

aBpay "Slamaq 'SISLILIS

A0 SIDRLEEBN
0T SBIIEEBNOPIL DS
7100 £7IN ‘ayspioipag 'PeOy S

W GA
13 3607 296 VEZL0 oL
"pY SPaNYIY [IEBRogan

N

IV ® 00L:l ®3IP3S

woz

wbs LGy| ealy o)g

Aepunog aus

L€ 7G€L "ou ‘Ueld 4004
18414 Buisixg o9s siaxiep
Uo0l}08S pue UoneAs|y

Hodas pue Bumelq

oAINg 9al] alg Bunsixg vdqa @8s
psesld Jusweal) pue Uoneo|USpl
pal} pue abpay Bupsixg

wbs Goy [eloL
wbs o 100]4 18414
wbs GO 100]4 punois)

“BOIY [BUIBIXT SSOID)

Buipiingino
juswade|day pasodold

oz'80'LT anss| Bujuueld 2d

pLva 3nss! A3Y

[EP— g o N

coupuztuBH PRl (SpuEIow win pspo0) Les0)
Sunnies Kynte, ori) dn-yatd b 5

ueld Jooj4 punois) pasodoid / buginies fsedoig 9x v poraydn—spig ebusy pio)
T o x sy oo s
Bupinies Ajisdaig x| Jamow ysng 5

ureq uue uojAd
poloid I zx st e »
Kany o [[oqduwe)) I aouDuRIUON PRLY cxe wona iedunp auuor 57 5
walp |onuspisaY / adubuajuop iRl

/ Bupiies Aliedoid 0% gy X 4T 7 x 0003 Bupng 16) q
Pruepisay /Ioswiag sex s asubueTalow apien 4l 190d & N
asoding (ssnow) suopsuaLg asn on
anpayos Buptiog
op B os6g vege [
X 56 Juodoa.
S 56 onous / oM
1ze 902 230 \w
o i doysnion,
269 £vo asolg
00v2 58 Buiog 1A
oy B oa1y puRlY Ss0k
Li0s nos 1408 nos
ssoip N

3|NP8sYOS UOI}DPOLILLIODDY

sria®

putp !t

*JOO} SJ2I0U0D pajuled
*suoped [euIBjul }IOMYO0|q pedelIE

“Butpiing
M8U JO }sem pue yinos o} Aemyyed oewle]

*mojaq a8s - Jnoke| Juswdinba / aPIYaA

*Ara8uowuol)
Aunsas  ydily  yum “(pauaysnol)
paze|d3 s|gnog ‘9JUBIUB  UBLISBpad

*J00p JaNNYS
13](04 [BIDW NIB|q Ddd "@IBIIUD JBINIIYIA

‘smopuim Suiuado
paze|S 3|qnop pauies) [BIBIA 'SMOPUIM MON

*s|ie19p Jaylny
10} [t - Sb 1 TET sSumesp uoneas|d
995 'sAeq wJoy 03 suaid juomydLIq ySiay
1IN} YyuM ‘yaulid YI0MDLIG SAOGE BINJONIIS
Jaqui paje|nsul Jano yae|q pajuled syueld
JaquWI}  |BJUOZIIOH “S[IEM [euIRlXa  MAN

-ubisaq Aq ABojoog
Aq uspum podal Aeming jeg uueq uolhd
1O SUOIJEPUSLLILLIOdAI )M 8OUBPIOOOE U [[em
|qeb o} [9A3] YBIY Je pajieIsul Xoq piig MaN

ubisaq Aq ABojoog
Aq uspum podas Asnng jeg uwueq uojhd
1O SUO[JEPUSWILLIODA U}IM 8OUBPIOODE U [[em
a|qeb 0} [oAs| YBly Je pajieisul xoq Jeq meN

*KemMaALIp 0} DBULIE} MON
“Bulp|ingIno mau

punole Aemyjlem ueujsapad pue Aemonup
opinoid 0} ease pepny 0} obieA meN

2L 9SnNoH
wJe- uojid

L

s

~

b4

e

Koy

gros WS

el

*
Pt

uap.eb
JuUol} SNoH
wJe4 uojAd

wQI'| 3y sausy (suod uspoom

W0g'L 14 oM Aouq
[ e—re—

SjuUN [e10JaWwwWwo)
wJe puod

W00 14 oM 0

&

o2

; ” doysiopn
5 (@) \@U%_
- i e
B ¢ lodes) 0I01S
&

* =S

G088

we

Gozst

Aemanug

9097 Toidl 5097 Tozdl 9097 Aszgt 985y

rzsL g

00s1 1

wsL 1

LB

aueT
usaIo) SIBS A MO

Page 285



[y e 7 0011 oS 7 cd wommon

EZTRr]

S)UN [e10JaWwwo)

Bujuue|g snms 7 €768} oNoma uleq puod

ue|d J00y pasodoid

@Mu@ €

22%9 134

weg wieq uojAg : 6535 Mg
»afolg @
Koy o [[oqduwe)) JA
waip
@] [e]]
N - Tz ] |

o —]

“ ®

~ ]

o —]

@ ] (@]
°— :
@ | o
9snoH B x®¢ 8 %

" wJe4 uojhdq 5 s N
s 7] S
. SEE @ | 2 R
: = o
[}
© v ®
=5 T

7 )

+
SrIGel 6¥ 16EL }

wbs |G| easy aug

Aepunog aus

”

Liodat pue Bumelg -ubisaq Aq ABojoog

OMNS .ww_._. aUs Bunsix3 vdq ess Aq uepum podal Aeming jeg uueq uolhd
psea|d "Juaw)eal) pue Uopeluap]
JO SUOIJEPUSWILLIODA )M 8OUBPIOOOE Ul [|em
lpaJ) pue abpay Bunsix3 Q
a1qeb oy [9A9] UBIY Je pajleIsul Xod piIg MON ¥
‘ubisaq Aq ABojoo3
wbs gop lelol Aq uepum uodas Asning jeg uueq uojhd
wbs o 10014 18414 1O SUOIJEPUSWILLIODA] )M 8OUBPIODDE U] [|em % Q
’ |qeb o} [ers| UBlY je pajlelsul xoq jeq MeN g
wbs GO 100]4 PuUNOID R
*MOJaC SMOPUIM Yim paubie “
‘BOIY |BUIBIXT SSOIS) sybioos pswel [elew [eiBajul Wl X Wz Z
5 252 YoHd @l1L “Ajleutsyul n@ ‘
uip|ingino spoddns [99)s [BINONAS  UIA  "eInoNnaS S
juswade|day pasodold Jaquiy psjensur uo sejy ueld sjeIOUOY UL °
T 10T %696 aueT

pappe JaeIN UoneAs|3 €d “

usalc) SIes A Md
va 3nss! A3y Ao TN ° A N




[y e 7 0011 s 7 Z2d womon

EZTRr]

SjuUN [e10JaWwwWwo)
wJe puod

Buiuueld smeis 7 L€76¢) oNoma

ueld Jooy pasodold

22%9 124

z [ericei] s ®©
wieq wueg uojhd g , ses s
»afolg @
Koy o [[oqduwe)) JA
waip
@] [e]]
N 2] 5
o —1
“ ®
.
o —|
(@ ] (2]
5 :
@ | Kl
: N~
9snoH 3 x®¢ i %
9 5| wue4 uojhd 5 5 %J
. S © ] o 8
S g
(@]
(O] ®
=5 T

7 )

+
SrIGel 6¥ 16EL }

wbs |G| easy aug

Aepunog aus

”

Liodat pue Bumelg ubisaq Aq ABojoog

oMNS .ww_._. aUs Bunsix3 vdq ess Aq uapum podal Aeming jeg uueq uolhd
pses|d JuswW)eal) pUue UoRESuSp]
JO SUOIJEPUSWILLIODA] )M S8OUBPIOOOE Ul [|em
lpaJ) pue abpay Bunsix3 Q
alqeb oy [9As] UBIY Je pajieIsul Xod pIig MON ¥
ubisaq Aq ABojoog3
wbs gop lelol Aq uepum uodas Asning jeg uueq uojhd
wbs o 10014 18414 1O SUOIJEPUSWILLIODAI )M 8OUBPIODDE U] [|em % Q
y 21qeb 0} [9A9] UBIY 32 Paljelsul X0g Jed MON g
wbs GO 100]4 punois R
"MOJaC SMOPUIM Yim paubie “
"BOIY |BUIBIXT SSOIS) sWBIoos pewey fejew [eibel wl x wg
5 252 YOHd @l1L “Ajleutsyul n@ ‘
uipiingino suoddns [esls [eInonAs A\ enionis S
juswade|day pasodold Jaquiy psjensul uo sajl ueld sjRIOUOY (L ¢
e aueT

0z'80'LT anss| Bujuueyd u %
uaalc) sies A ma
va 3nss| A3y £ — ° - :




Ld ‘uoisiney

00L:4 RS 7 £y Ueded

Bujuueld smeis _ G 1 GE1 °Noma

uoneas|3 YuoN paesodold

Koy o [[oqdwe) I
ureq wie,J uo[Aq

3IN"00°$}98 Y0 1E-{|eBNOPOW MMM GO
Hin*00°sioaljyose-||eBnopow@uess ‘lews :£9z 296 YEZ L0 ‘PL
7100 EVMIN “B1USPIO}PRE ‘PEOY SAANDS ¥ "P1T SI0SNLRLY lIEBnogoN

0085 ‘A 0098 ‘A

ud youa SalIeA [9A37 pUnolg

T ]

0
|
\
\
\
\
\
\

A
18°09 23]

F——11254

0085

¢V © 001l-1
Ol

9|D0S
S ¥ ¢ ¢
[ L]

L O

Joo|4
EENT

1214 oug

S
6’79
|9AS7 saAe]

e
6589
[9Aa7 28p1Y

0T'80°LC anss| ujuue|d Td

ilva anssi JAEL]

“SMopum
paze|3 ajgnop
pawiely jela

.S 4oUd 3L “Ajjeusaiur
suoddns [993s [AN3ONIIS YIM

“31n1PNAS JBQUIN Paje|NSul
uo s3|i uiejd a3a10u0)

ANARY J18A0 21N1DNUAS JaquIIY
parejnsur 1an0 yoe|q pajured
. syuejd Jaquin} [e3uozIIoH
“llem pep Jaquin parejnsul

or'L9
[aAa7 98p1Y
paysijowsq

66'79
[9AS7 S9AE]
Sunsix3

paysijowap
8ulp|ing Bunsixg

L9°'L9
[2A7 98p1Y
8unsixa

Page 288



Ld ‘uoisiney

00L:L s 7 gy weded ¢V © 00l 23IboS
Buluuelq smeis _ 9p 7 GE L °NOmMa Ol niu) ﬂ M Ni |

L O

uoneas|J 1seq pasodoid

Koy o [[oqdwe) I
ureq wie,J uo[Aq

3IN"00°S}98 Y0 1E-{|2BNOPOW MMM GO
Hin*00°spoaljyose-||eBnopow@uess ‘|lews :£9zZ 296 YEZ L0 ‘PL
7100 EVMIN “B1USPIOJPRE ‘PEOY SAANDS ¥ *P1T SJ0SNLRLY lIEBnogoN

-Asaguowuo 1snqoJ
pue syp0| Ajunaas ysiy yum pazejd
3|qnog "eouenua uelsapad

4e3] 3|gnop paweld (el

“SMOPUIM
pazejs ajqnop paweld [EIBN

sallep
IELCA] \
UC_JO.._ mu 77N 89S 1529 ﬂ 909% 4 Sio1 ﬂ S/9 H S09% 4 GZ9 H vSrY ‘— SLL
ST Yurd youg T8'09 [oA91
_ ) T ooer 1 - m — J100|4 |euJalu]
3 7 < —
o = — — — = = — -pasodo.d sy1om oN
m —_— — = — — — “Ju0efpe afesed Sunsix3 9
» — — — — — — 8
2 — — = = = = o N
— —— — — —— — 2
= = = = = D_H_ = S 1)
= — = — — — =2
= = = = = — Dnm
Jaid e ——H — — — I = ]
AN — —
6’79
[ELCA]
SoAe3 A \\ .
Jjinnnnnanr
e > A £9°L9
[

A [ona a8p1y
65°89 sheq oy 03 siaid pomyduq 3ydiay Su 13S1X3
[CLEA] ‘mojaq ST YPYd 3|1 “Ajjewsajuy 1IN} yam “Yaund spompdrig Auaes o

‘SMopUIM yym paublje sjyBiycos spoddns [2935 [eAN3IN1IS YU J3A0 2INJINIYS JAGUII} paje|nsul
me_I pauwey [elsw [eabajul W x wg “24N3INAS JI2qUU} pae|nsul Jan0 xe|q pajuted syueld Jaquiy
° uo saji ureyd a32.0u0) |EIUOZLIOH “|[em Pejd Jaquwi} pajejnsu|
0T'80°LC anss| Suluueld Td

ilva anssi JAEL]



0d ‘uorsney 00L:L s

4 v “1adedq

Bujuueld smeis _ 06 7 GEL ONoma

uoneAs|3 yinos pasodoid

Koy o [1oqdwe) JA
ureq wie, uofAd

>IN"00"Sj09)IYOIE-{|EBNOPOW MMM "GIAA
in‘oo'sjosjyose-[leBnopow@uees “llew3 19z 296 YEZL0 ‘IoL
700 £ ‘O11YSPIOPag ‘PEOY SAANDS 1 "Y1 SIOYRY IIBBNOGON

¢V © 00lL-L 2Ib29S
Ol S ¥ ¢ ¢ L 0
[ L]

00251

SalleA [9A37 pUNOJD wud g

V4

1125

-——& -

6679
|9A97 sone]
8unsixa

N

‘sydom jo yed
j0u pasodoud syiom
ou - aunypns unsixy

“s10m 40 p1ed Jou pasodoid

SHIOM OU - 31035 BulISIXT

puokaq |jem \<

pasodoud

18°09 [2A91
Joo|4

_mc._wﬁ%
(Q\V

N

1314 youg

'Page

|
z

UL

ZaN

£9°/9

[9A97 28p1y
Sunsix3

T2T0CT anss| Suluueld

0d

ilva anssi

N3d

———
6’79
|2A37 sane]

ST Youd a1l “Aljeusazur
spoddns 2335 [BINONIS YHM sheq
“8IN3ONAS JBqUIR Pae|nsul wioy 03 siad v_‘_o\,\,uu_‘_n w3y o o
uo 53|13 ute|d 833.15U0; 1IN Yum “yauiid omydtiq N W
i ueld 23 o AyAed J3A0 3N3ONA3S JaqUI
T paje|nsul Jano soejq pajured .
syueld Jaquil [e3uozIIoH mm ww

“||lem pejo Jaquil} paje|nsu| _w>wl_ QMU_Z




Ld ‘uoisiney

00L:4 RS 7 £y Ueded

Bujuueld smeis _ /¥ 1 GE1 oNoma

uoneas|3 188\ pasodold

Koy o [[oqdwe) I
ureq wie,J uo[Aq

3IN"00°S$}98 Y0 1E-{|2BNOPOW MMM GO
Hin*00°spoal|yose-||eBnopow@uess ‘|lews :£9zZ 296 YEZ L0 ‘PL
7100 EVMIN “B1USPIOJPRE ‘PEOY SAANDS ¥ *P1T SJ0SNLRLY lIEBnogoN

pue sy20| A3anaas ysiy yum paze|s
ajqnoq "aouenua uernsapad

*A1a8uowuol 3snqos

4e9] 3qNOp pawel eI

¢V © 001l-1

Ol

9|D0S
S ¥ ¢ ¢ 1 0
[ L]

“II19 %214G PUNoJ Jjey pue siapeay
Youq pasodxa Yam “smopuim
pazej8 ajqnop pawely [e13N

Saliep c02LT

11 / \

UC 30.—@ 77N 89G¥ 1529 ﬂ 909% 4 Sio1 909% \ ﬂ S79 H 908% 1549 H 89G% ,— SiL
, - — Gund ypug f o081 f

1914 S1g

1975

u
[

7 Nl

1998

AT T
6589
_®>®|_ “mojeq

‘SMopuIm yym paublje sjyBiycos
wmv_w_ pawely [e1ow [eiBojul w X Wz

0T'80°LC anss| ujuue|d Td

ilva anssi JAEL]

.SZ Youd 211 “Ajjewiaiul
spi0ddns 9335 [BIN39N13 UMM
“31N1IN1S J3qUIY paje|nsul
uo sa|n ureyd a3a10u0)

1y8iyood Suluado
paze(s a|qnoq

sheq wioy 03 sia1d uoMPLG 1Ty
1Ing M ‘Yauid Saomp1q Ajaea

13A0 31NN 13GUIN Paje|nSUl

Jano dejq pajuled syued Jaquin
[E3UOZLIOH “|[EM pejd Jaquil} palejnsu|

18°09 19A97
Joo|4
|eusau]

789T

Page 291

1998




Ld ‘uoisiney 4 00L:}eros 4 gy eded

Buluueld smeis _ 8% 1 GE1 °Noma

VYV uonoag pasodoid

Koy o [[oqdwe) I
ureq wie,J uo[Aq

3IN"00° 1980 1E-{|2BNOPOW MMM GO
Hin*00°spoaljyose-||eBnopow@uess ‘lews :£9zZ 296 YEZ L0 ‘PL
100 EVMIN “31USPIO}PRE ‘PEOY SAANDS ¥ *P1T SI0SNURLY lIEBnogoN

¢V © 00L-1 SIP3S
Ol S ¥ ¢ ¢
[ L]

L O

z0zs1
SalleA [2A27 pUNOJID
I
- . !
AT |
18'09 [9A7 m !
1004 ! 1 !
|eusaju| _ i |
‘SMOpUIM m Q “ “
e o — 66'79
,,,,,,, — | T [9AS7 sane]
Tz > S Sunsix3

|9A7 saAe]
sAeq wiuoy 03 saa1d yJomydLIq 1ySiey
1In$ yum “Yaud yaomydug Ajiaed
190 BINPNIIS JGUIN Paje|NSUl

1an0 e|q payuted syueyd saquuy
|EJUOZLION “[|em pejd Jaquiy pajejnsu

S
6589
[9Aa7 28p1Y

0T'80°LC anss| ujuue|d 1d

ilva anssi JAEL]

“mojaq
SMopuIM Uym paubije spybiool
pawey [efou [elBajul w X wg,

ST Yud 2|11 “Alfeusarun
spoddns (2215 [BIN3INIS YUM
“21n1IN1s JaquI} paje|nsul
uo sajn ureyd 33310u0)

or'L9
[aAa7 98p1Y
paysijowsq

L9°'L9
[2A7 98p1Y
8unsixa

paysijowap
Sulpjing 8unsix3

Page 292



Tq e 7

004} ms 7 gy etk

Buluue|d smeis

_ 67 1 G€1 °Noma

g g uonoag pesodold

Koy oA [joqdwe)) I

uieq wie uojAd

AN"00'SIOBILRIB-{|EBNOPOLI MMM “GBAN

HInoo'sjoBIOIe-IEBno
100 EVYIN ‘oa1yspIojpeg

pPoW@uess “lews 29z 296 YEZLO L
‘peoy SANbS ¥ *PY SIBUDIY IIEBROCON

4By yam paze8 agnoq -adueiu

¢V © 00lL-1
Ol

2|pog
S ¥
||

— M

12 }214q PUNOJ ey pue sispesy
lg Pasodx® YAM “smopuIm

SalIBA
EIEY
punoJs

“RISBUOILO 3ST1G01 PUE SY90] AYana3s
sapep Uernsapad Jea] aqnop pawield (1N paze[8 Sqnop pawesy [e3aIN
oz
[9A9] 1 1
S9¢ Gog
punoJg Smi 18°09 |9A3] TIE0T ‘— ‘joom
7 J100|4 |eulaiy| -
0 | %
]
g
0051 7
g |
2 5 8
= 8 &
!
/ “JleM YIoM§LIG
— MV _Mm mw_wm_m H = H Kunes parexnsu|
| [
sheq wiioy 6’79
o1s1aid siomypLIg SRy EYEY]
1IN M “auljd SomiaLiq — [ — ] — I
e Jano anians saquin sane
paje|sul 13A0 ¥oe|q pajuted 2 El
8
“Jlem pep> Jaquir} pajejnsuy
m m Ml
D ST Youd 3L “Ajjeussyu
65°89 spoddns (9935 [eAMIONAS Y
“2UMPNI3S JagUI Paje|Nsul “mojeq
[2A97 o sapn ure(d 210:5u09 ‘Smopup L poUBIle SIyBIROOH
3 poLIEy fejous [eiBeju| W], X Wz
93Py
Tz10Ct papuswy L Td

Jlva anssi AEL]

Page 293



Waste Transfer Station

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

LONDON BOROUGH

PYLON FARM OF HILLINGDON
NEWYEARS GREEN LANE Residents Services
HAREFIELD Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:

12579/APP/2020/2742 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 294 | February 2021




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address MOUNT VERNON HOSPITAL RICKMANSWORTH ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Construction of 1.5m wide gravel footpath around lawn perimeter and through
the centre of the woodland belt to south of lawn, to include two access ramps
with handrails.

LBH Ref Nos: 3807/APP/2020/4265

Drawing Nos:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 295



Mount Vernon Hospital, Rickmansworth Road, Northwood, HA6
2RN

Map area bounded by: 507600,191641 508000,192041. Produced on 09 December 2020 from the OS National Geographic Database.
Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey. © Crown copyright 2020. Supplied by
UKPlanningMaps.com a licensed OS partner (100054135). Unique plan reference: p16buk/546663/740367

Site Location
Red Line Boundary

Site Location Plan

Revision A - Redline boundary
Drawing no. 273W-02A
Scale 1:2500@A4 Page 296




0z07 8nv EVO00S:T
d TO-MELT
1noAeq pasodoud
B pug|poom
|endsoH uouJap JUNOIN
S PJEPUEIS H3 / IBARO0Y  /WO9l-¥| wy-g Auayd pIM wniAe snunid
JaquinN wio4 /300y [TT1S) JybleH  swepN uowwo) sepads
$9al]
Gl ueldsues] /}ool aseg L+l Wwop0L-08 slpuids  snaedouns snwkuonz
Gl lueldsues] /}ool aseg L+l WwoQp0L-08 lozeH eugjjone snikiod
Gl jueldsues] /300l ateg J+l  woQo}-08 woymer  eukBouow snbeejes)
Gl jueldsuel] /jool aseg L+l wopQ1-08 s|de plel4 aujsadwes Jeoy
JaquinN wioH /jo0y aby 9IS SWEN Uowwo) saadg
Bunueld pue|poom
31INAIHOS ONILNY1d
(sa10ads anieu)
Bunue|d puejpoom maN
3 0}  suonduosap
Wi}l 10} 8|NPayds 0} Jajoy 5o obie] meN
SSJON seale ajedlewsp /
wool 0} Buibpa Bad uo adoy |~
1osyew soueysig |
. sseJb ul sqing
9|qe} d1udld
XIW dAleu abpa
yied wouly 3oeq }8s puejpoom ‘mopeaw Apeys
‘(yoeq pue swie) jeasg
Xiw
apim wg'| aAljeU ‘Mopeaw Auung
:y1ed diyopoom ybnoy
eIbUE Bunueid diym
IleJpuBY Lpim 10} BBJE - 3OUBJESIO S|qWElg
yied 0} uonoas padwey
yidop Wwg | ‘opim wg'L soaJ] Buisixg
:yred |anelb Buipuiq y8s o
N

EmN_ 0¢ m_v ol ] 0
T

a|npayos

99s - sa|quielq

40 paJes|d eale [ejuad
0} Bupuerd diyam

Jess juoy
ul 90BHNS

31NLILSNI P e
N_mww_w_\w / . winiAe snunig
— — .\. . \}
/~/ O -\
, .‘
. |
7 UMET JaMOT \
4 \
A | o —
1028 003 27N L o~ s
ur e0enS — . . ~. . 1§
op iz ; Iy INAEN
/ =
o
/.
v \
f
* Jeas juol
\. ul ssedb umop
\.
. 7 Baly Jnogexony a niAE shunid oug
- dwei 4o aseq )

pue ume] Jaddn

0} papelB-ai
yueq jusoelpy
- ZL) e dwey

dWerjo 558G

0} papeJb-al
yueq juadelpy ‘ "
ZhiL e dwey s

TV1IdSOH NONY3IA LINNOW




120z ver :@ieg EV@00T'T :9|eas
- :UOISINDY €0-MELTZ U Suimelq
sdwey pasodoud :2[111 Suimelq

3|e/W\ pue|pooMm
|e}dSOH UOUJA JUNOIA :109f04d

3LNLILSNI
YIONVO
AZ™O

eary Jnogexany
pue umeT 1sddny

IVLIISOH NONY3A LNNOW

P A

g

wwQoEOT-006 UsaMiaq 24 0} [lelpueH*
}ley J913Welp WWQQT YHm sisod Jaquiil wwooT X 00T

s|eAsaiul wz'T Ajpjewixosdde

1B 195 9q 0} 5350 ‘punoJd ojul uaAlp ajids Joddns 1sod
20Uy [933s Alnp Aaeay Suisn punous o3ul 18s 9 03 S150d

‘|]aA3] punoJs anoqe
Jpuey punod

TIV4ANVH

3JvHH3L 40 3AIS NY3ILSIM NO dAVY

Buipue| [enuan
Z1:1 uey} sades)s
ou aq 0} dwey

adeoss a4

dweu jo aseq
je Buipue| [ana7

AN

dwel

JO sapIs yjoq uo
ybiy wWwoooL-006
9q 0} |leJpueH

ume]

dweu jo aseq 0}
papelb-al yueq juaselpy
/\\

ume]

dweu Jo eseq 0}
papeJsB-al yueq juaoelpy

dwel

JO sapIs yjoq uo
ybiy wwE0L-006
aq 0} |leJpueH

yjed Jo uoi}o8s |oneT]

Buoj wz 0} G'L
Buipue| [lenuan
Zl:1 uey} Jadass
ou aq 0} dwey




i
1

Gray

Cancer

Institute El
Sub Sta

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address;
I\/ISOUNT VERNON HOSPITAL
RICKMANSWORTH ROAD
NORTHWOOD

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
3807/APP/2020/4265 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 299 | February 2021




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address THE OLDE NORTHWOOD PH 142 PINNER ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Conversion of public house to residential use to provide 4 self-contained flats
including habitable roofspace and roof terrace, demolition of existing garages
and rear element and the erection of 2 x two storey, dwellings with habitable
roofspace including parking and amenity space and external works

LBH Ref Nos: 73773/APP/2020/3002

Drawing Nos:

North Planning Committee - 17th February 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 300



‘L7 dNOY¥O 013dVO ® LHOIMADOD WV Zr:S  0Z/9L6

( 0L0v-7L10C
NOISIAY "ON ONIMVHa

02.d3S O3IN  ev® 0szLik
3lva AgNMYd¥a 3IIvOS

NV1d NOILYOOT
NOLLdI¥OS3a

1NINdOT13A3A VILNIAISTY
QJOOMHLYON 3010 IHL
103royd

‘00 'dOdd °dN0O4 ALN3AIS
AN3IMO

UBisapofedeaoly / UBKaP')

OTddVD

AINO ONILSO0 204 | |
WAOUddY 04 [ |
NOLLYWSO4NI 304 [ |

,
TYAOXddY ONINNYTd 404 [ /]

SNLVYLS 02=S<~_n_\
N
0z/B0rY L anssist| -
3iva NOLLdI¥Os3a | A3
NOISIAIY
J

d81 9vH

QOOMHLYON
QOOMHLYON 3070 3HL
:SS3WAAV AL

NOILVINHOLNI LO3rodd )

ANY OL 03019810 ¥O G3NIVLIY '030NA0¥dIY
‘Q31d09 38 LONNYD ONIMY
0713d¥0 40 LHOINALOD

Q3AOTdING 38 LSNIN HIINIONT TVHNLONULS

"SNOILYINOIY ALINOHLNY
IVO0T HLIM S3INdINOD dIHSNYIN ¥OM

N\
‘NOS¥3d QISINOHLAYNN

Wy wge wsz wgl wg
LLTTT 1T [ T[Joszs:k 31v0S

wog woy woe woz wolL we

€V @ 0szhiL m Fow
NV1d NOILVYOO1

Page 301




ozmiie

WLy

17 UBISe0 0T3O B HuBldoD

001-XV-¥1 102

NOISIAZY "ON a

0z, 'd3s 03N WD 00kL
3lva A8 NMv¥d Ivos

SNY1d ¥0074 ANNOHD
® LNIWISVE ONILSIXT
NOILdOs3a

LNINdOTIAIA VILNIAISIH
JOOMHL¥ON 3070 JHL
103rodd

‘00 'dO¥d ¥NO4 ALNIAIS
N3O

B s e e

OT1ddVD

IVAOYHddY ONINNY1d 804

ATNO ONILS0D o4 [ |
TAONddy 03[ _|
NOLLYW¥ONI o4 [ |

SNLYLS ONIMVYA

ozeors | 03w anssiist | -
a1va | nwvaa NOILdI¥os3 | A3y
NOISIAZY

—_—_—

dal ovH
GOOMHLYON
GOOMHLYON 3010 3HL
:$534aQY 3LIS

NOILYW¥O4NI LD3rodd

‘NOS¥3d GISINOHLNYN
ANY 0L 035070510 ¥0 QaNIVL3N ‘030N00N3Y
‘31400 38 LONNYO ONIMYSA SIHL ‘0L NOIS3a

01340 40 1HOINAAOD 3HL S| ONIAVXG SIHL

“318Y01dlY FUIHM
340143 38 LS HTANIONT TN LONHLS

“SNOLLYINDZ ALIOHLNY
Y007 HLIM SN0 dIHSNYAOM
QNY STVINZLYI 1Y JMNSN OL HOLOVAINOD

‘NOILONNLSNOD OL ORI
TYAONAAY 5,103 LIHONY / SYINOISIA ¥Od
‘SNOISNINIO 3LIS GIUNSYIN OL HOLOVAINOO
A8 Q31100 38 OL SONIMYAA NOLLONAOYd
“ATNO INIININ®ISIO Y SONIMVAA

S3LON

T 0ok:L 37ws
W

-9~ NOLLVAT 13

v @001 M 20 u
NV1d ¥00T4 ANNOYO ONILSIX3

8€l ON

o T

0¥l ON

NOILVYATTS

s

w0 14

e

e

s

AN

e

ssna

JHNSOIONE oL
ONILSIE

ﬂ

15

NOILVATT3

V-

¢

-a- NOILVYATT3

v @ 00kL h Su
NYd LNIWN3SvE ONILSIX3

F- oo -—®m = o=

Page 302




ozmiie

WLy

oY1 UBlSq 013d¥O G WBAdoo

LOI-XV-¥L102

NOISIAZY "ON a

0z, 'd3s 03N WD 00kL
3lva A8 NMv¥d Ivos

SNY1d 4004
B ¥OOT4 LSYI4 ONILSIXI
NOILdOs3a

LNINdOTIAIA VILNIAISIH
JOOMHL¥ON 3070 JHL
103rodd

‘00 'dO¥d ¥NO4 ALNIAIS
N3O

s s e e

OT1ddVD

IVAOYHddY ONINNY1d 804

ATNO ONILSOD ¥04 D
IVAO¥ddY ¥O4 D
NOILYWHOINI 304 D

SNLYLS ONIMVYA

ozso | 03w anssiist | -
awva | wavea NolLdRos30 | A3y
NOISIAZY

—_—

dal ovH
GOOMHLYON
GOOMHLYON 3010 3HL
:$534aQY 3LIS

NOILYW¥O4NI LD3rodd

‘NOS¥3d GISINOHLNYN
ANY 0L 035070510 ¥0 QaNIVL3N ‘030N00N3Y
‘31400 38 LONNYO ONIMYSA SIHL ‘0L NOIS3a

01340 40 1HOINAAOD 3HL S| ONIAVXG SIHL

“318Y0I1ddlY FUIHN
340143 38 LS HTANIONT TN LONHLS

“SNOLLYINDZ ALIOHLNY
Y007 HLIM STV dIHSNYIOM
QNY STVINZLYI 1Y JMNSN OL HOLOVAINOD

‘NOILONNLSNOD OL ORI
TYAONAAY 5,103 LIHONY / SYINOISIA ¥Od
‘SNOISNINIO 3LIS GIUNSYIN OL HOLOVAINOO
A8 Q31100 38 OL SONIMYAA NOLLONAOYd
“ATNO INIININ®ISIO Y SONIMVAA

S3LON

I oot:4 37w¥9s
W

v @ 00}

NV1d 4004 ONILSIX3

@)

v @ ool

1o
NY1d Y0074 LS¥Id ONILSIX3

o T

s

s

et ovar
e

Page 303




ozmiie

Wavzy

17 UBISe0 0T3O B 1uBldoD

002-XV-¥1 102

NOISIAZY "ON a

0z, 'd3s 03N WD 00kL
3lva A8 NMv¥d Ivos

SNOILYAZT3
YORYILX3 ONILSIXI
NOILdOs3a

LNINdOTIAIA VILNIAISIH
JOOMHL¥ON 3070 JHL

103rodd

‘00 'dO¥d ¥NO4 ALNIAIS
N3O

B s e e

OT1ddVD

IVAOYHddY ONINNY1d 804

ATNO ONILS0D o4 [ |
TAONddy 03[ _|
NOLLYW¥ONI o4 [ |

SNLYLS ONIMVYA

ozeors | 03w anssiist | -
a1va | nwvaa NOILdI¥os3 | A3y
NOISIAZY

—_—_—

dal ovH
GOOMHLYON
GOOMHLYON 3010 3HL
:$534aQY 3LIS

NOILYW¥O4NI LD3rodd

‘NOS¥3d GISINOHLNYN

ANY 0L 035070510 ¥0 QaNIVL3N ‘030N00N3Y
‘31400 38 LONNYO ONIMYSA SIHL ‘0L NOIS3a
01340 40 1HOINAAOD 3HL S| ONIAVXG SIHL

“318Y0I1ddlY FUIHN
340143 38 LS HTANIONT TN LONHLS

“SNOLLYINDZ ALIOHLNY
Y007 HLIM SN0 dIHSNYAOM
QNY STVINZLYI 1Y JMNSN OL HOLOVAINOD

‘NOILONNLSNOD OL ORI
TYAONAAY 5,103 LIHONY / SYINOISIA ¥Od
‘SNOISNINIO 3LIS GIUNSYIN OL HOLOVAINOO
A8 Q31100 38 OL SONIMYAA NOLLONAOYd
“ATNO INIININ®ISIO Y SONIMVAA

S3LON

T 0ok:L 37w2s
W

[AZ-JIet h vo u
-0- NOILYATT3 ONILSIX3

W00l h 20 u
-8~ NOILVA3T3 ONILSIX3

L0770

A%

=]

=

]

W@ ook

-0~ NOILVYATT3 ONILSIX3

®)

_

|

=

W@ ookt

Page 304

=

“v- NOILVAI13 ONILSIX3

(o)




ozsLle

wWrzrs

oY1 UBIS 01340 G WBAdoo

LLo-v-vLI0Z

NOISIAZY "ON a

0z, 'd3s 03N V@ 00ZiL
3lva A8 NMv¥d Ivos

NV1d ¥0018 @3S0d0¥d
NOILdOs3a

LNINdOTIAIA VILNIAISIH
JOOMHL¥ON 3070 JHL
103rodd

‘00 'dO¥d ¥NO4 ALNIAIS
N3O

s s e e

OT1ddVD

IVAOYHddY ONINNY1d 804

ATNO ONILSOD ¥04 D
IVAO¥ddY ¥O4 D

NOILYWHOINI 304 D
SNLYLS ONIMVYA

ozeors | 03w anssiist | -
a1va | nwvaa NOILdI¥os3 | A3y

NOISIAZY

dal ovH
GOOMHLYON
GOOMHLYON 3010 3HL
:$534aQY 3LIS

NOILYW¥O4NI LD3rodd

‘NOS¥3d GISINOHLNYN
ANY 0L 035010810 ¥O QINIVLI¥ ‘030N00Hd3Y
‘31400 38 LONNYO ONIMYSA SIHL ‘0L NOIS3a

01340 40 1HOINAAOD 3HL S| ONIAVXG SIHL

“318Y0I1ddlY FUIHN
340143 38 LS HTANIONT TN LONHLS

“SNOLLYINDZ ALIOHLNY
Y007 HLIM STV dIHSNYIOM
QNY STVINZLYI 1Y JMNSN OL HOLOVAINOD

‘NOILONNLSNOD OL ORI
TYAONAAY 5,103 LIHONY / SYINOISIA ¥Od
‘SNOISNINIO 3LIS GIUNSYIN OL HOLOVAINOO
A8 Q31100 38 OL SONIMYAA NOLLONAOYd
“ATNO INIININ®ISIO Y SONIMVAA

S3LON

3

Wi

] 00z:L 308
n

avOd d3NNId

v ® 00zt h Eu
NV1d ¥0018 03S0d0o¥d

OMSNYINHOR

avod H1d

Page 305




\zeL

WLy

17 UBISe0 0T3O B HuBldoD

a 00ld-v-¥L102

NOISIAZY "ON a

0z, 'd3s 03N WD 00kL
3lva A8 NMv¥d Ivos

SNY1d 40014 Lsyld
ANV ANNO¥O Q3S0d0o¥d
NOILdOs3a

LNINdOTIAIA VILNIAISIH
JOOMHL¥ON 3070 JHL
103rodd

‘00 'dO¥d ¥NO4 ALNIAIS
N3O

B s e e

0O13dVD

IVAOYHddY ONINNY1d 804

ATNO ONILSOD ¥04 D
IVAO¥ddY ¥O4 D

NOLLYW¥ONI o4 [ |
SNLYLS ONIMVIG

3aN0T0 SV 3SINGY
30070 SV a3SINGY
03aN0710 S¥ AISINZY
30070 S¥ Q3NN
anssiist
NOILdI¥os3 | A3y

NOISIAZY

tamoo

—_—_—

dal ovH
GOOMHLYON
GOOMHLYON 3010 3HL
:$534aQY 3LIS

NOILYW¥O4NI LD3rodd

‘NOS¥3d GISINOHLNYN
ANY 0L 035070510 ¥0 QaNIVL3N ‘030N00N3Y
‘31400 38 LONNYO ONIMYSA SIHL ‘0L NOIS3a

01340 40 1HOINAAOD 3HL S| ONIAVXG SIHL

“318Y01dlY FUIHM
340143 38 LS HTANIONT TN LONHLS

“SNOLLYINDZ ALIOHLNY
Y007 HLIM SN0 dIHSNYAOM
QNY STVINZLYI 1Y JMNSN OL HOLOVAINOD

‘NOILONNLSNOD OL ORI
TYAONAAY 5,103 LIHONY / SYINOISIA ¥Od
‘SNOISNINIO 3LIS GIUNSYIN OL HOLOVAINOO
A8 Q31100 38 OL SONIMYAA NOLLONAOYd
“ATNO INIININ®ISIO Y SONIMVAA

S3LON

T 0ok:L 37w0s
W

v @ ool

NV1d ¥OOTd LS¥ld 03S0d0o¥d

nooya3g
¥ILSYIN

3HONONYM

J
N3H:

WHHLYS =
==

0 [592] Tacuwm

 NAa38

“aNuM

1

v

ONINIG

Endonian o
R

0L

EIEE

/i S
L ﬂ T
wooya3s

HILSYIN
[—

@)

30vadaL
ooy

=
Od0
WYHLVE
zwya3g £ Nua3s
N N\

s

n
Saoug n% i Sacaau,

| —— —— )

| —— m——

ZW¥a3g
’

3E0NQNYM

N1

e Y wooy

d ¥OOT4 ANNO¥O A3ISOdO¥d

woorK
_y ONIAI ZWNa3g [fossao
1500
- | 380u0uYM|
NN H
i
1
P Wooxa3s
§ALSVIV
Doz
Nanots [ e
Wooxa3s
LSV
S
$H)
5T tl
] Iy S
Iy M A
sowsind | s 23, 5
V [ et / wooxa3g
i
£
: E
m 3
"] ]
ONIAIT
NZHOLDY
h B
N3axve — L _
A A Al
N3Quve
NV
A
YEZRN
S 4 € c 3
Npuzey/
=
9
va 3080
-1

L]

NIQHYO

I\

NIHOL

]

TIVH A
S

N3IQ¥VO

TvH A
S

NIHOLIM

38NS010NE dOLS SNE
oNILSIE

rw.TL




\zsL

P11 UBISe0 01340 O BUAdD Wd ¥ 2L

2 L0Ld-V-¥110Z
NOISIAZY “ON a [ [T T T __TMoort 3vos W0k hmou WOk h Su
0z, 'd3s oIW  IWD 0oLl ok e w NV1d 400¥ Q3S0d0o¥d NV1d ¥0074 ANOD3S A3S0OdO¥d
31va ASNMYNA  31Y0S
SNv1d 400¥
ANV ¥0014 ANOOIS 03S0dONd
NOILdIMOS3a
INIWJOTIAIA TVILNIAISTY
QOOMHLYON 3010 FHL
1o3rond
‘00 "dO¥d ¥N04 ALNIAIS -
IN3ITD
P — = 1 ¥ iz
| i i (A M i
h it ity (R T N (it
IVAO¥ddY ONINNY1d ¥04 ! Hi HHY il = T |HHHHHH
i Hi I €Wya3a T
ATNO ONILSOD ¥04 D H u | (i B | et taked
IVAO¥ddY ¥O4 D i i [HH HH
NOILYWHOANI 04 D il | T
SNLVLS ONIMYYA H Hi) |
i hitiie / N i
sznom | o3 | caonowsvazsvay | o
Gaonorosvazsiay | 8
aaonomo svazsiay | v
3nsslist | -
NOILdINOS3a | A3y
NOISIAY
-
A Bt}
HH | i L W¥a3g FHHHHH
[ | S A 5 - HHHHIH
aal v ! hilititebdshilely shilitihily
QOOMHLNON J30 3L (e — _ "_ HHHHHEHEHRA : [ FHHHH
HonaT0 3L ] it q ol [T
NOILYWHO4NI 103rodd i nj I HHTHHTHH
i s eyl HHHHT
NOS¥3d GISINOHLNVNA il ielaryratsigfad bty ialan ety A FHHHHHD
ANY OL 03SOTOSI0 ¥O GINIVLZ4 G30N00NG3Y LA | e e E R [HHHH THHHHH
‘031400 38 LONNVO ONIMY¥A SIHL ‘0L NOIS3a CH | e e T _ﬁmm T unsa) HHHHHH
‘0T340 40 IHINAAOD 3HL S1 ONIAYNQ SIHL [t [HHHH THHH
| i | Wyass HH
T8Oy IuIHM P | R I g HHTH
03401413 38 LS HIINION WHNLONHIS i s — _ T @ | HHH
“SNOILYINO3H ALINOHLNY ||y (=2 e 5 HHH
TVOOT HLIM S3MJMIOD dIHSNYIHOM H1 HHH MHHHHHHHE R )| HHHE
QY ST TV S5 01 HOLOMILNES | ! T
NOLLONNLSNOD OL Homd | X HHH
TWAONdAY S.LO3LIHONY / SHINOISIA ¥Od gt lehetih el tua i adadifo il gl rHHH
SNOISNINIQ 3115 G3UNSYAN OL HOLOVAINGD ]
RS e el
“AING IN3LNINSIS3] 3 SONMVIA
s3LoN

Page 307




ozsiie

Waore

oY1 UBlSq 013d¥O G WBAdoo

2lo-v-viLoz
NOISIAZY "ON ONIMV¥a

0z, 'd3s 03N V@ 00ZiL
3lva A8 NMv¥d Ivos

SNV1d A3X A3S0d0o¥d
NOILdOs3a

LNINdOTIAIA VILNIAISIH
JOOMHL¥ON 3070 JHL
103rodd

‘00 'dO¥d ¥NO4 ALNIAIS
N3O

B s e e

OT1ddVD

IVAOYHddY ONINNY1d 804

ATNO ONILS0D o4 [ |
TAONddy 03[ _|
NOLLYW¥ONI o4 [ |

SNLYLS ONIMVYA

ozeors | 03w anssiist | -
a1va | nwvaa NOILdI¥os3 | A3y
NOISIAZY

—_—_—

dal ovH
GOOMHLYON
GOOMHLYON 3010 3HL
:$534aQY 3LIS

NOILYW¥O4NI LD3rodd

‘NOS¥3d GISINOHLNYN
ANY 0L 035070510 ¥0 QaNIVL3N ‘030N00N3Y
‘31400 38 LONNYO ONIMYSA SIHL ‘0L NOIS3a

01340 40 1HOINAAOD 3HL S| ONIAVXG SIHL

“318Y0I1ddlY FUIHN
340143 38 LS HTANIONT TN LONHLS

“SNOLLYINDZ ALIOHLNY
Y007 HLIM SN0 dIHSNYAOM
QNY STVINZLYI 1Y JMNSN OL HOLOVAINOD

‘NOILONNLSNOD OL ORI
TYAONAAY 5,103 LIHONY / SYINOISIA ¥Od
‘SNOISNINIO 3LIS GIUNSYIN OL HOLOVAINOO
A8 Q31100 38 OL SONIMYAA NOLLONAOYd
“ATNO INIININ®ISIO Y SONIMVAA

A9'EP / USO'S DN TTOAO
IS/ WIGY THOLS NI

AE'OVZE | WBY'ROZ ‘SIOVS ONDINYA HYO X9
ALWEZ] WSS 11T 3NV WIOL

SHavd ¥vo

W00z

v @00z

28261 1 MEL'6LL WLOL
UL'VE 1 AZZ'e ANODTVE HOOT4 ANOD3S
AUF'16 ) M9E'VS WY NITHYD

L0l [ 42T INOYS 'NITHYD

PTG [ MGHEE OO ANODIS
WE'LLY J Gy OO LS¥ld

U612 W93 'EY HOOT ONNOND
AT S WL LLL VD

WOOMT38 €

ZISNOHNMOL

MBI /16581 TVIOL
LVE/AZZE ANODTVE ¥OOT4 NODIS
5559 WEE'09 MY 'NIQHYD

UL WELLLL VD
WooMa3d ¢
TISNOANMOL

1661/ :WE°pL VLOL

OO

038 ¢
TIvH

2UL°BE0L / JEGDE TTVIOL
UPBHT /BT NIOHYO ILVARID
E0BL/ AUGYEL VHID
noo¥a3se

ZivH

686/ WIZ'L8 VIOL

AT LL6L NIHYO ILVARID
WTLTLI WG9 VHID
noo¥a3se

rar)

4500

2595 WIOL

AVBLL/ WAL 00T LSHI
b0l /U096 MO0 NNOYS
WLEZZ L WELGZ VD

V399 NOAWOS

V34V 40074 TYNH3LNI SSOHD -

A

S3LON

NV1d Y0014 ANOD3S A3S0dO¥d

@)

NV1d ¥0074 1S¥I4 d3S0d0¥d

NV1d 30074 ANNOYO dISOdo¥d

@)




P11 UBISO0 O340 O BUAGOD WA vSZL  1Z6LIL

CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE ALL MATERIALS AND
WORKMANSHIP COMPLIES WITH LOCAL

CONTRACTOR TO MEASURED SITE DIMENSIONS
AUTHORITY REGULATIONS.

FOR DESIGNERS / ARCHITECT'S APPROVAL

PRODUCTION DRAVINGS TO BE COMPLETED BY
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

DRAWINGS ARE DESIGN INTENT ONLY.

NOTES

14109720

1801721

DRAWN | DATE
SEP. 20
REVISION

MEC
MEC
MEC
MEC
MEC

DRAWN BY DATE
MEC

REVISED AS CLOUDED
spal.tesn alo@capelo.sesn

REVISED AS CLOUDED
REVISED AS CLOUDED
REVISED AS CLOUDED

REPRODUCED, RETAINED OR DISCLOSED TO ANY

THIS DRAVING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF CAPELO
DESIGN LTD. THIS DRAWING CANNOT BE COPIED,
UNAUTHORISED PERSON.

SEVENTY FOUR PROP. CO.

THE OLDE NORTHWOOD
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED EXTERIOR

CLIENT
PROJECT
DESCRIPTION
ELEVATIONS
SCALE

1:100 @ A1
20114-A-P200

! FOR PLANNING APPROVAL

STRUGTURAL ENGINEER MUST BE EMPLOYED.

VWHERE APPLICABLE.

PROJECT INFORMATION

SITE ADDRESS:
DRAWING STATUS

D FOR INFORMATION
D FOR APPROVAL
D FOR COSTING ONLY

THE OLDE NORTHWOOD
NORTHWOOD.

HAS 1BP

REVISION

1om

LYW 1)
R R
SAYIN
LRI

S
X

XA

Q

N

m

SCALE 1:100 [T

A A S
RIRRRERRER R R,

X
X,

A

A

LY,

PROPOSED ELEVATION -E-

PROPOSED ELEVATION -C-
1100 @ A1

1100 @ A1

)
)

R GLY
A Z

X
N
\/

7Q
78

Y/
COORx XX

A\

X
W
U

R

5

SUANAN
NG
2

A
L

NN
R,

%
X
R
SN
KK

R

G
K
R,
N
R
R

X
NG

R
PROPOSED ELEVATION -A-

R
X
01

N

3

(e2)

PROPOSED ELEVATION -D-

PROPOSED ELEVATION -B-
1:100 @ AT

1100 @ AT
1100 @ AT

R

()

X




\zeL

P11 UBISO0 013dVO GO0 Wa LY

- oled-v-riioz
NOISIAZY "ON a

[ TTTTTTTTT]ozL3amwos

wg 3 we 3 wr w50

0z, 'd3s O3 LY @0z}
3lva A8 NMv¥d Ivos

NOILO3S
INOO¥ 14071 a3S0d0o¥d
NOILdOs3a

LNINdOTIAIA VILNIAISIH
JOOMHL¥ON 3070 JHL
103rodd

‘00 'dO¥d ¥NO4 ALNIAIS
N3O

B s e e

OT1ddVD

WAOYddY ONINNYTd 404 [ A]

ATNO ONILSOD ¥04 D

IVAO¥ddY ¥O4 D

NOLLYW¥ONI o4 [ | s

SNLYLS ONIMVYA NOILO3S WOOY 1401

—
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ SR I KA Y R
<
<4
<
<4
<
s | oo p— =
21va | nwvea NOlLds30 | A3y S 4
NOISIAZY = 7=
1 o
e A 4
= o N | o> 7= o _uw
N T
S
S R, O - - .
mur—
s
- - 00 0" " " —/ /7 T/ T/ /T o

dal ovH
GOOMHLYON
GOOMHLYON 3010 3HL
:$534aQY 3LIS

NOILYW¥O4NI LD3rodd

‘NOS¥3d GISINOHLNYN

ANY 0L 035070510 ¥0 QaNIVL3N ‘030N00N3Y
‘31400 38 LONNYO ONIMYSA SIHL ‘0L NOIS3a
01340 40 1HOINAAOD 3HL S| ONIAVXG SIHL

“318Y0I1ddlY FUIHN
340143 38 LS HTANIONT TN LONHLS

“SNOLLYINDZ ALIOHLNY
Y007 HLIM SN0 dIHSNYAOM
QNY STVINZLYI 1Y JMNSN OL HOLOVAINOD

‘NOILONNLSNOD OL ORI
TYAONAAY 5,103 LIHONY / SYINOISIA ¥Od
‘SNOISNINIO 3LIS GIUNSYIN OL HOLOVAINOO
A8 Q31100 38 OL SONIMYAA NOLLONAOYd
“ATNO INIININ®ISIO Y SONIMVAA

S3LON




’ 1
Shelter,! /
/

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Add :
e AddresSLIE OLDE NORTHWOOD
PH 142 PINNER ROAD
NORTHWOOD

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
73773/APP/2020/3002 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 311 | February 2021




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting dated 28 January 2021
	6 16 Murray Road, Northwood - 4626/APP/2020/3048
	3048
	LP

	7 4 Woodside Road, Northwood - 73105/APP/2020/3521
	3521
	LP

	8 The Six Bells Public House, Ducks Hill Road, Ruislip - 14387/APP/2020/4126
	4126
	LP

	9 The Six Bells Public House, Ducks Hill Road, Ruislip - 14387/APP/2020/4128
	4128
	LP

	10 188 Bury Street, Ruislip - 8697/APP/2020/3622
	3622
	LP

	11 Pylon Farm, New Year Green Lane, Harefield - 12579/APP/2020/2742
	2742
	LP

	12 Mount Vernon Hospital, Rickmansworth Road, Northwood - 3807/APP/2020/4265
	4265
	LP

	13 The Olde Northwood PH, 142 Pinner Road, Northwood - 73773/APP/2020/3002
	3002
	LP

	14 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	15 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	16 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	 PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee
	Cover for Booklet - 17th Feb 21
	3048 ST
	fs 2
	Location Plan 2
	Existing Block Plan 2
	Existing Floor Plans and Elevations 2
	Existing and Proposed street scene 2
	Proposed Block Plan 2
	Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations 2
	LP

	3521 ST
	fs 2
	Site Layout Plan 2
	Site Layout Plan 2 22
	LP

	4126 ST
	fs 2
	Location Plan 2
	Site Plan - As Existing 2. pdf
	Site Plan - As Proposed 2
	Roof, Ground, First & Cellar Floor Plans - As Existing 2 
	Ground Floor Plans - As Proposed 2
	First Floor & Roof Plans - As Proposed 2
	North East and South East Elevations - As Existing 2
	North West and South West Elevations - As Existing 2
	North West and South West Elevations (Later Additions Removed) - As Existing 2
	Elevations (Building Complex) - As Proposed 1 2
	Elevations (Building Complex) - As Proposed 2 2
	Elevations Barn (Extension) - As Proposed 2
	LP

	4128 ST
	FS 2
	Location Plan 2
	Site Plan - As Existing 2
	Site Plan - As Proposed 2
	Roof, Ground, First & Cellar Floor Plans - As Existing 2
	Ground Floor Plans - As Proposed 2
	First Floor & Roof Plans - As Proposed 2
	North East and South East Elevations - As Existing 2
	North West and South West Elevations - As Existing 2
	North West and South West Elevations (Later Additions Removed) - As Existing 2
	Elevations (Building Complex) - As Proposed 1 2
	Elevations (Building Complex) - As Proposed 2 2
	Elevations Barn (Extension) - As Proposed 2
	LP

	3622 ST
	fs 2
	Location Plan 2
	Existing and Topological Plan 2
	Proposed Site Plan 2
	Proposed Plans and Elevations 2
	Proposed Front Elevation and Photomontage 2
	LP

	2742 ST
	FS 2
	Site Location Plan 2
	Existing Site Plan 2
	Existing Ground Floor Plan 2
	Existing First Floor Plan 2
	Existing Roof Plan 2
	Existing East Elevation 2
	Existing North Elevation w
	Existing West Elevation 2
	Proposed Site Plan 2
	Proposed Ground Floor Plan 2
	Proosed Roof Plan 2
	Proposed Roof Plan 2
	Proposed North Elevation 2
	Proposed East Elevation 2
	Proposed South Elevation 2
	Proposed West Elevation 2
	Proposed Section AA 2
	Proposed Section BB 2
	LP

	4265 ST
	FS 2
	Site Location Plan 2
	Proposed Layout 2
	Proposed Ramps 2
	LP

	3002 ST
	FS 2
	Location PLan 2
	Existing Basement and Ground Floor Plan 2
	Existing First Floor Plan and Roof Plans 2
	Existing Exterior Elevations 2
	Proposed Block Plan 2
	Proposed Ground and First Floor Plans 2
	Proposed Second Floor and Roof Plan 2
	Proposed Key Plans 2
	Proposed Exterior Elevations 2
	Proposed Loft Room Section 2
	LP



